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DEFINED TERMS

The following is a list of frequently used abbreviations or acronyms that are found in this report:

NiSource Subsidiaries and Affiliates   

Columbia of Kentucky    Columbia Gas of Kentucky, Inc.
Columbia of Maryland    Columbia Gas of Maryland, Inc.
Columbia of Massachusetts    Bay State Gas Company
Columbia of Ohio    Columbia Gas of Ohio, Inc.
Columbia of Pennsylvania    Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc.
Columbia of Virginia    Columbia Gas of Virginia, Inc.
NIPSCO    Northern Indiana Public Service Company LLC
NiSource ("we," "us" or "our")    NiSource Inc.
Rosewater Rosewater Wind Generation LLC and its wholly owned subsidiary, Rosewater

Wind Farm LLC
Indiana Crossroads Wind Indiana Crossroads Wind Generation LLC and its wholly owned subsidiary,

Indiana Crossroads Wind Farm LLC
Abbreviations and Other   

AFUDC    Allowance for funds used during construction
AOCI    Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
ASC    Accounting Standards Codification
ASU Accounting Standards Update
ATM At-the-market
BTA Build-transfer agreement
CAP Compliance Assurance Process
CCGT Combined Cycle Gas Turbine
CCRs    Coal Combustion Residuals
CEP Capital Expenditure Program
CERCLA

  
Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act
(also known as Superfund)

Corporate Units Series A Corporate Units
COVID-19 ("the COVID-19 pandemic" or "the pandemic") Novel Coronavirus 2019 and its variants, including the Delta and Omicron

variants, and any other variant that may emerge
DE&I Diversity Equity and Inclusion
DPU    Department of Public Utilities
DSM    Demand Side Management
EPA    United States Environmental Protection Agency
EPS    Earnings per share
Equity Units Series A Equity Units
FAC    Fuel adjustment clause
FERC Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
FMCA Federally Mandated Cost Adjustment
GAAP    Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
GCA Gas cost adjustment
GHG    Greenhouse gases
HLBV Hypothetical Liquidation at Book Value
IRA Inflation Reduction Act
IRP    Infrastructure Replacement Program
IRS Internal Revenue Service
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DEFINED TERMS
IURC    Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission
JV Joint Venture
LDCs    Local distribution companies
LIBOR London InterBank Offered Rate
LIFO    Last-in, first-out
LIHEAP Low Income Heating Energy Assistance Programs
Massachusetts Business All of the assets sold to, and liabilities assumed by, Eversource pursuant to the

Asset Purchase Agreement
MGP    Manufactured Gas Plant
MISO    Midcontinent Independent System Operator
MMDth    Million dekatherms
MW Megawatts
MWh    Megawatt hours
NOL Net Operating Loss
NTSB National Transportation Safety Board
NYMEX The New York Mercantile Exchange
OPEB    Other Postretirement and Postemployment Benefits
PCB    Polychlorinated biphenyls
PHMSA Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration
PPA Power Purchase Agreement
PSC    Public Service Commission
PUC    Public Utilities Commission
ROE Return on Equity
ROU Right of Use
SAVE Steps to Advance Virginia's Energy Plan
Scope 1 GHG Emissions Direct emissions from sources owned or controlled by us (e.g., emissions

from our combustion of fuel, vehicles, and process emissions and fugitive
emissions)

Scope 2 GHG Emissions Indirect emissions from sources owned or controlled by us
SEC    Securities and Exchange Commission
SMRP    Safety Modification and Replacement Program
SMS Safety Management System
STRIDE Strategic Infrastructure Development and Enhancement
TCJA An Act to provide for reconciliation pursuant to titles II and V of the

concurrent resolution on the budget for fiscal year 2018 (commonly known as
the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017)

TDSIC Transmission, Distribution and Storage System Improvement Charge
U.S. Attorney's Office U.S. Attorney's Office for the District of Massachusetts
VIE Variable Interest Entity

Note regarding forward-looking statements
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains "forward-looking statements," within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
"Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Investors and prospective investors should
understand that many factors govern whether any forward-looking statement contained herein will be or can be realized. Any one of those factors could cause
actual results to differ materially from those projected. These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements concerning our plans,
strategies, objectives, expected performance, expenditures, recovery of expenditures through rates, stated on either a consolidated or segment basis, and any
and all underlying assumptions and other statements that are other than statements of historical fact. Expressions of future goals and expectations and similar
expressions, including "may," "will," "should," "could,"
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"would," "aims," "seeks," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "intends," "believes," "estimates," "predicts," "potential," "targets," "forecast," and "continue,"
reflecting something other than historical fact are intended to identify forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements are based on assumptions
that management believes to be reasonable; however, there can be no assurance that actual results will not differ materially.

Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the projections, forecasts, estimates and expectations discussed in this Annual Report on Form
10-K include, among other things, our ability to execute our business plan or growth strategy, including utility infrastructure investments; potential incidents
and other operating risks associated with our business; our ability to adapt to, and manage costs related to, advances in technology; impacts related to our aging
infrastructure; our ability to obtain sufficient insurance coverage and whether such coverage will protect us against significant losses; the success of our electric
generation strategy; construction risks and natural gas costs and supply risks; fluctuations in demand from residential and commercial customers; fluctuations
in the price of energy commodities and related transportation costs or an inability to obtain an adequate, reliable and cost-effective fuel supply to meet
customer demands; the attraction and retention of a qualified, diverse workforce and ability to maintain good labor relations; our ability to manage new
initiatives and organizational changes; the actions of activist stockholders; the performance of third-party suppliers and service providers; potential
cybersecurity attacks; increased requirements and costs related to cybersecurity; any damage to our reputation; any remaining liabilities or impact related to the
sale of the Massachusetts Business; the impacts of natural disasters, potential terrorist attacks or other catastrophic events; the physical impacts of climate
change and the transition to a lower carbon future; our ability to manage the financial and operational risks related to achieving our carbon emission reduction
goals, including our Net Zero Goal (as defined below); our debt obligations; any changes to our credit rating or the credit rating of certain of our subsidiaries;
any adverse effects related to our equity units; adverse economic and capital market conditions or increases in interest rates; inflation; recessions; economic
regulation and the impact of regulatory rate reviews; our ability to obtain expected financial or regulatory outcomes; continuing and potential future impacts
from the COVID-19 pandemic; economic conditions in certain industries; the reliability of customers and suppliers to fulfill their payment and contractual
obligations; the ability of our subsidiaries to generate cash; pension funding obligations; potential impairments of goodwill; the outcome of legal and regulatory
proceedings, investigations, incidents, claims and litigation; potential remaining liabilities related to the Greater Lawrence Incident; compliance with the
agreements entered into with the U.S. Attorney’s Office to settle the U.S. Attorney’s Office’s investigation relating to the Greater Lawrence Incident;
compliance with applicable laws, regulations and tariffs; compliance with environmental laws and the costs of associated liabilities; changes in taxation; and
other matters set forth in Item 1, "Business," Item 1A, "Risk Factors" and Part II, Item 7, "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations," of this report, some of which risks are beyond our control. In addition, the relative contributions to profitability by each business
segment, and the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements relating thereto, may change over time.

All forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their entirety by the foregoing cautionary statements. We undertake no obligation to, and expressly
disclaim any such obligation to, update or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated
events or changes to the future results over time or otherwise, except as required by law.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

NISOURCE INC.

NiSource Inc. is an energy holding company under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005 whose primary subsidiaries are fully regulated natural gas
and electric utility companies, serving approximately 3.7 million customers in six states. NiSource is the successor to an Indiana corporation organized in 1987
under the name of NIPSCO Industries, Inc., which changed its name to NiSource Inc. on April 14, 1999.

NiSource’s principal subsidiaries include NiSource Gas Distribution Group, Inc., a natural gas distribution holding company, and NIPSCO, a gas and electric
company. NiSource derives substantially all of its revenues and earnings from the operating results of these rate-regulated businesses.

Business Strategy
We focus our business strategy on providing safe and reliable service through our core, rate-regulated asset-based utilities, with the goal of adding value to all
stakeholders. Our utilities continue to make progress on core safety, infrastructure and environmental investment programs supported by complementary
regulatory and customer initiatives across all six states in which we operate. Our goal is to develop strategies that benefit all stakeholders as we (i) embark on
long-term infrastructure investment and safety programs to better serve our customers, (ii) align our tariff structures with our cost structure, and (iii) address
changing customer conservation patterns. These strategies focus on improving safety and reliability, enhancing customer service, pursuing regulatory and
legislative initiatives to increase accessibility for customers currently not on our gas and electric service, ensuring customer affordability and reducing
emissions while generating sustainable returns.

NiSource remains committed to the advancement of our SMS for the safety of our customers, communities and employees. Our SMS is the established
operating model within NiSource. In 2022, NiSource achieved conformance certification to the American Petroleum Institute Recommended Practice 1173,
which serves as the guiding practice for our SMS. This certification marks an important milestone for our SMS and NiSource’s journey towards operational
excellence. Moving forward, our focus shifts to maintaining, sustaining and continuously improving the process, procedures, capabilities and talent to enhance
safety and reduce operational risk. Additionally, we continue to pursue regulatory and legislative initiatives that will allow customers not currently on our
system to obtain gas and electric service in a cost effective manner.

NiSource has two reportable segments: Gas Distribution Operations and Electric Operations. The remainder of our operations, which are not significant enough
on a stand-alone basis to warrant treatment as an operating segment, are included as Corporate and Other. The activities occurring within this non-segment
consist of our centralized financing and treasury activities and are primarily comprised of interest expense on holding company debt and unallocated corporate
costs and activities. The following is a summary of the business for each reporting segment. Refer to Item  7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Note 21, "Business Segment Information," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information related to each segment.

Gas Distribution Operations
Our natural gas distribution operations serve approximately 3.3  million customers in six states. Through our wholly-owned subsidiary NiSource Gas
Distribution Group, Inc., we own five distribution subsidiaries that provide natural gas to approximately 2.4 million residential, commercial and industrial
customers in Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia, Kentucky, and Maryland. Additionally, we distribute natural gas to approximately 859,000 customers in northern
Indiana through our wholly-owned subsidiary NIPSCO. We operate approximately 54,800 miles of distribution main pipeline plus the associated individual
customer service lines and 1,000 miles of transmission main pipeline located in our service areas described below. Throughout our service areas we also have
gate stations and other operations support facilities.

Competition. Open access to natural gas supplies over interstate pipelines and the deregulation of the natural gas supply has led to tremendous change in the
energy markets and natural gas competition. Due to open access to natural gas supplies, LDC customers can purchase gas directly from producers and
marketers in an open, competitive market. This separation or “unbundling” of the transportation and other services offered by LDCs allows customers to
purchase the commodity independent of services provided by LDCs. LDCs continue to purchase gas and recover the associated costs from their customers.
Certain of our Gas Distribution Operations’ subsidiaries are involved in programs that provide our residential and commercial customers the opportunity to
purchase their natural gas requirements from third parties and use our Gas Distribution Operations’ subsidiaries for transportation services. As of December 31,
2022, 24.5% of our residential customers and 33.3% of our commercial customers participated in such programs.

Gas Distribution Operations competes with (i) investor-owned, municipal, and cooperative electric utilities throughout its service areas, (ii) other regulated and
unregulated natural gas intra and interstate pipelines and (iii) other alternate fuels, such as propane and fuel oil. Gas Distribution Operations continues to be a
strong competitor in the energy market as a result of strong
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NISOURCE INC.

customer preference for natural gas. Competition with providers of electricity has traditionally been the strongest in the residential and commercial markets of
Kentucky, southern Ohio, central Pennsylvania and western Virginia due to comparatively low electric rates.

Additionally, our gas distribution operations are subject to seasonal fluctuations in sales. Revenues from gas distribution operations are more significant during
the heating season, which is primarily from November through March. Please refer to Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations - Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Gas Distribution Operations," for additional information.

Electric Operations
We generate, transmit and distribute electricity through our subsidiary NIPSCO to approximately 486,000 customers in 20 counties in the northern part of
Indiana and also engage in wholesale electric and transmission transactions. We own and operate sources of generation as well as source power through PPAs.
We continue to transition our generation portfolio to primarily renewable sources. During 2021, we operated Rosewater for the full year, Indiana Crossroads
Wind went into service during December 2021, and in December of 2022 we closed on the Indiana Crossroads Solar project, which is expected to go into
service in 2023. In October 2021, NIPSCO completed the retirement of two coal-burning units with installed capacity of approximately 903 MW at Schahfer
Generating Station, located in Wheatfield, IN. We also purchased energy generated from renewable sources through PPAs in 2022. As of December 31, 2022
we have multiple PPAs that provide 500 MW of capacity, with contracts expiring between 2024 and 2040. See below for information on our owned operating
facilities:

Facility Name Location Fuel Type Generating Capacity (MW)
R.M. Schahfer Wheatfield, IN Steam - Coal 722 
Michigan City Michigan City, IN Steam - Coal 455 
Sugar Creek West Terre Haute, IN CCGT 563 
R.M. Schahfer Wheatfield, IN Natural Gas 155 
Oakdale Carroll County, IN Hydro 9 
Norway White County, IN Hydro 7 
Rosewater Wind Generation LLC White County, IN Wind 102 
Indiana Crossroads Wind Generation LLC White County, IN Wind 302 
Total MW Capacity 2,315 

Represents current net generating capability of each fossil fuel and hydro generating unit. Nameplate capacity is listed for wind generating units.
NIPSCO is the managing partner of these JVs. Refer to Note 4, "Variable Interest Entities," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

In November 2021, NIPSCO submitted its 2021 Integrated Resource Plan ("2021 Plan") with the IURC. The 2021 plan builds upon the 2018 Integrated
Resource Plan which outlined NIPSCO’s plan to retire its coal generating assets by 2028. The 2021 plan affirmed the 2018 retirement decisions and calls for
the replacement of the retiring units with a diverse portfolio of resources including demand side management resources, modest amounts of incremental solar,
stand-alone energy storage, new gas peaking resources and upgrades to existing facilities at the Sugar Creek Generating Station, among other steps. Refer to
Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” for further discussion of these plans.

NIPSCO’s transmission system, with voltages from 69,000 to 765,000 volts, consists of 3,016 circuit miles. NIPSCO is interconnected with eight neighboring
electric utilities.

NIPSCO participates in the MISO transmission service and wholesale energy market. MISO is a nonprofit organization created in compliance with FERC
regulations to improve the flow of electricity in the regional marketplace and to enhance electric reliability. Additionally, MISO is responsible for managing
energy markets, transmission constraints and the day-ahead, real-time, Financial Transmission Rights and ancillary markets. NIPSCO has transferred functional
control of its electric transmission assets to MISO, and transmission service for NIPSCO occurs under the MISO Open Access Transmission Tariff. NIPSCO
generating units are dispatched by MISO which takes into account economics, reliability of the MISO system and unit availability. During the year ended
December 31, 2022, NIPSCO generating units were dispatched to meet 41.65% of its load requirements, and NIPSCO purchased 58.35% from the MISO
market.

(1)

(2)

(2)

(1)

(2)
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NISOURCE INC.

Competition. Our electric utilities generally have exclusive service areas under Indiana regulations, and retail electric customers in Indiana do not have the
ability to choose their electric supplier. NIPSCO faces non-utility competition from other energy sources, such as self-generation by large industrial customers
and other distributed energy sources.

Our electric operations are subject to seasonal fluctuations in sales. Revenues from electric operations are more significant during the cooling season, which is
primarily from June through September. Please refer to Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations - Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Electric Operations," for additional information.

Political Action
The NiSource Political Action Committee ("NiPAC") provides our employees a voice in the political process. NiPAC is a voluntary, employee and director
driven and funded political action committee, and NiPAC makes bipartisan political contributions to local, state and federal candidates, where permitted and in
accordance with established guidelines. Consistent with our commitments and our approach to engagement, the NiPAC leadership committee members
evaluate candidates for support on issues important to our business.

Regulatory
The regulatory landscape applicable to our operations, including environmental regulations, at both the state and federal levels, continue to evolve. These
changes have had and will continue to have an impact on our operations, structure and profitability. Management continually seeks new ways to be more
competitive and profitable in this environment, while keeping service and affordability for customers at the forefront. We believe we are, in all material
respects, in compliance with such laws and regulations and do not expect continued compliance to have a material impact on our capital expenditures, earnings,
or competitive position. We continue to monitor existing and pending laws and regulations, and the impact of regulatory changes cannot be predicted with
certainty.

Rate Case Actions. The following table describes current rate case actions as applicable in each of our jurisdictions net of tracker impacts. See "Cost Recovery
and Trackers" below for further detail on trackers.
(in millions)

Company Proposed ROE Approved ROE

Requested
Incremental

Revenue

Approved
Incremental

Revenue Filed Status
Rates

Effective
Currently Approved in Current or Future Rates

Columbia of Pennsylvania 10.95 % None specified $ 82.2  $ 44.5  March 18, 2022
Approved
December 8, 2022 December 2022

Columbia of Maryland 10.85 % 9.65 % $ 5.8  $ 3.5  May 13, 2022
Approved
November 17, 2022 December 2022

Columbia of Kentucky 10.30 % 9.35 % $ 26.7  $ 18.3  May 28, 2021
Approved
December 28, 2021 January 2022

Columbia of Virginia 10.95 % None specified $ 14.2  $ 1.3  August 28, 2018
Approved
June 12, 2019 February 2019

Columbia of Ohio 10.95 % 9.60 % $ 221.4  $ 68.2  June 30, 2021
Approved
January 26, 2023 March 2023

NIPSCO - Gas 10.50 % 9.85 % $ 109.7  $ 71.8  September 29, 2021
Approved
July 27, 2022 September 2022

NIPSCO - Electric 10.80 % 9.75 % $ 21.4  $ (53.5) October 31, 2018
Approved
December 4, 2019 January 2020

Active Rate Cases

Columbia of Virginia 10.75 % In process $ 40.6  In process April 29, 2022 Order Expected Q1 2023
Interim Rates
October 2022

NIPSCO - Electric 10.40 % In process $ 291.8  In process September 19, 2022 Order Expected Q3 2023 September 2023

No approved ROE is identified for this matter since the approved revenue increase is the result of a black box settlement under which parties agree upon the amount of increase.
The approved ROE for natural gas capital riders (e.g.,SMRP) is 9.275%.
Columbia of Virginia's rate case resulted in a black box settlement, representing a settlement to a specific revenue increase but not a specified ROE. The settlement provides use of a 9.70% ROE for

future SAVE filings.
New rates are implemented in 2 steps, with implementation of Step 1 rates in September 2022. The Step 2 rates were filed on February 21, 2023, with rates effective March 2023.
 Beginning October 2022, interim rates are being billed subject to refund, pending a final commission order. On December 9, 2022, a Stipulation and Proposed Recommendation was filed with the

Virginia State Corporation Commission recommending approval of $25.8 million of incremental revenue.
New rates will be implemented in 2 steps, with implementation of Step 1 rates to be effective in September 2023 and Step 2 rates to be effective in March 2024. On February 16, 2023, NIPSCO filed

rebuttal updating the requested revenue requirement to $279.2 million.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(1) 

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)
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FERC. NiSource’s service companies and operating companies are subject to varying degrees of regulation by the FERC. NiSource Corporate Services files a
FERC Form 60 annual report with its financial information as a FERC jurisdictional centralized service company. NiSource also files an annual FERC Form 61
which contains a narrative description of the service company's functions during the prior calendar year.

As natural gas LDCs, Columbia of Maryland and Columbia of Ohio have limited jurisdictional certificates to transport gas in the respective service territories
into interstate commerce. NIPSCO and Columbia of Pennsylvania currently have applications pending at FERC for limited jurisdictional certificates.

As an electric company, NIPSCO has Market Based Rate authority and is a Transmission Owner subject to FERC jurisdiction. NIPSCO files the following
reports annually: FERC Form 1, which is a comprehensive financial and operating report, FERC Form 566, which is a list of its 20 largest purchases of
electricity over the past three years; FERC Form 715, which is its Annual Transmission Planning and Evaluation Report and the base case power flow data
from the Eastern Interconnection Reliability Assessment Group Multiregional Modeling Working Group, which was used by NIPSCO for transmission
planning; and FERC Form 730, which is NIPSCO’s Report of Transmission Investment Activity. As a Transmission Owner subject to the MISO Transmission
Owners Agreement and Tariff, NIPSCO has various FERC jurisdictional obligations such as maintaining its Attachment O formula rates and corresponding
protocols. NIPSCO also has FERC approvals to make affiliate transactions between itself and various JVs. NIPSCO’s officers, on the electric side, are also
subject to FERC’s interlocking directorate rules and reporting requirements.

Regulatory Framework. The Gas Distribution Operations utilities have pursued non-traditional revenue sources within the evolving natural gas marketplace.
These efforts include (i) the sale of products and services in the companies’ service territories, and (ii) gas supply cost incentive mechanisms for service to their
core markets. The on-system services are offered by us to customers and include products such as the transportation and balancing of gas on the Gas
Distribution Operations utility's system. The incentive mechanisms give the Gas Distribution Operations utilities an opportunity to share in the savings created
from such situations as gas purchase prices paid below an agreed upon benchmark and their ability to reduce pipeline capacity charges with their customers.

We recognize that energy efficiency reduces emissions, conserves natural resources and saves our customers money. Our gas distribution companies offer
programs such as energy efficiency upgrades, home checkups and weatherization services. The increased efficiency of natural gas appliances and
improvements in home building codes and standards contributes to a long-term trend of declining average use per customer. While we are looking to expand
offerings so the energy efficiency programs can benefit as many customers as possible, our Gas Distribution Operations have pursued changes in rate design to
more effectively match recoveries with costs incurred. Columbia of Ohio has adopted a straight fixed variable rate design that closely links the recovery of
fixed costs with fixed charges. Columbia of Maryland and Columbia of Virginia have regulatory approval for weather and revenue normalization adjustments
for certain customer classes, which adjust monthly revenues that exceed or fall short of approved levels. Columbia of Pennsylvania continues to operate its
pilot residential weather normalization adjustment and also has a fixed customer charge. This weather normalization adjustment only adjusts revenues when
actual weather compared to normal varies by more than 3%. Columbia of Kentucky incorporates a weather normalization adjustment for certain customer
classes and also has a fixed customer charge. In a prior gas base rate proceeding, NIPSCO implemented a higher fixed customer charge for residential and
small customer classes moving toward recovering more of its fixed costs through a fixed recovery charge, but has no weather or usage protection mechanism.

While increased efficiency of electric appliances and improvements in home building codes and standards has similarly impacted the average use per electric
customer in recent years, NIPSCO expects future growth in per customer usage as a result of increasing electric applications. Further growth is anticipated as
electric vehicles become more prevalent. These ongoing changes in use of electricity will likely lead to development of innovative rate designs, and NIPSCO
will continue efforts to design rates that increase the certainty of recovery of fixed costs.

Cost Recovery and Trackers. Comparability of our line item operating results is impacted by regulatory trackers that allow for the recovery in rates of certain
costs such as those described below. Increases in the expenses that are subject to approved regulatory tracker mechanisms generally lead to increased
regulatory assets, which ultimately result in a corresponding increase in operating revenues and, therefore, have essentially no impact on total operating income
results. Certain approved regulatory tracker mechanisms allow for abbreviated regulatory proceedings in order for the operating companies to quickly
implement revised rates and recover associated costs.

A portion of the Gas Distribution Operations revenue is related to the recovery of gas costs, the review and recovery of which occurs through standard
regulatory proceedings. All states in our operating area require periodic review of actual gas
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procurement activity to determine prudence and confirm the recovery of prudently incurred energy commodity costs supplied to customers.

A portion of the Electric Operations revenue is related to the recovery of fuel costs to generate power and the fuel costs related to purchased power. These costs
are recovered through a FAC, which is updated quarterly to reflect actual costs incurred to supply electricity to customers.

Environmental and Safety Matters

PHMSA Regulations
On December 27, 2020, the Protecting Our Infrastructure of Pipelines and Enhancing Safety (PIPES) Act of 2020 was signed into law, reauthorizing funding
for federal pipeline safety programs through September 30, 2023. Among other things, the PIPES Act requires that PHMSA revise the pipeline safety
regulations to require operators to update, as needed, their existing distribution integrity management plans, emergency response plans, and operation and
maintenance plans. The PIPES Act also requires PHMSA to adopt new requirements for managing records and updating, as necessary, existing district
regulator stations to eliminate common modes of failure that can lead to overpressurization. PHMSA must also require that operators implement and utilize
advanced leak detection and repair technologies that enable the location and categorization of all leaks that are hazardous, or potentially hazardous, to human
safety or the environment. Natural gas companies, including NiSource and our subsidiaries, may see increased costs depending on how PHMSA implements
the new mandates resulting from the PIPES Act.

Climate Change Issues
Physical Climate Risks. Increased frequency of severe and extreme weather events associated with climate change could materially impact our facilities,
energy sales, and results of operations. We are unable to predict these events. However, we perform ongoing assessments of physical risk, including physical
climate risk, to our business. More extreme and volatile temperatures, increased storm intensity and flooding, and more volatile precipitation leading to
changes in lake and river levels are among the weather events that are most likely to impact our business. Efforts to mitigate these physical risks continue to be
implemented on an ongoing basis.

Transition Climate Risks. Future legislative and regulatory programs, at both the federal and state levels, could significantly limit allowed GHG emissions or
impose a cost or tax on GHG emissions. Revised or additional future GHG legislation and/or regulation related to the generation of electricity or the extraction,
production, distribution, transmission, storage and end use of natural gas could materially impact our gas supply, financial position, financial results and cash
flows.

Regarding federal policies, we continue to monitor the implementation of any final and proposed climate change-related legislation and regulations, including
the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, signed into law in November 2021; the development of the Enhancement and Standardization of Climate-Related
Disclosures, proposed by the SEC in March 2022; the IRA, signed into law in August 2022; and the EPA's proposed methane regulations for the oil and natural
gas industry, but we cannot predict their impact on our business at this time. We have identified potential opportunities associated with the Infrastructure
Investment and Jobs Act and the IRA and are evaluating how they may align with our strategy going forward. The energy-related provisions of the
Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act include new federal funding for power grid infrastructure and resiliency investments, new and existing energy efficiency
and weatherization programs, electric vehicle infrastructure for public chargers and additional LIHEAP funding over the next five years. The IRA contains
climate and energy provisions, including funding to decarbonize the electric sector.

In February 2021, the United States rejoined the Paris Agreement, an international treaty through which parties set nationally determined contributions to
reduce GHG emissions, build resilience, and adapt to the impacts of climate change. Subsequently, the Biden Administration released a target for the United
States to achieve a 50%-52% GHG reduction from 2005 levels by 2030, which supports the President's goals to create a carbon-free power sector by 2035 and
net zero emissions economy no later than 2050. There are many pathways to reach these goals.

On June 30, 2022, the Supreme Court of the United States ruled for the petitioners in West Virginia v. EPA, which examined the authority of the EPA to
regulate GHG emissions from the power sector. We will continue to evaluate this matter, but we remain committed to our previously stated carbon reduction
goals.
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We also continue to monitor the implementation of any final and proposed state policy. The Virginia Clean Economy Act was signed into law in 2020. While
the Act does not establish any new mandates on Columbia of Virginia, certain natural gas customers may, over the long-term, reduce their use of natural gas to
meet the 100% renewable electricity requirement. Columbia of Virginia will continue to monitor this matter, but we cannot predict its final impact on our
business at this time. Separately, the Virginia Energy Innovation Act, enacted into law in April 2022, and effective July 1, 2022, allows natural gas utilities to
supply alternative forms of gas that meet certain standards and reduce emissions intensity. The Act also provides that the costs of enhanced leak detection and
repair may be added to a utility’s plan to identify proposed eligible infrastructure replacement projects and related cost recovery mechanisms, known as the
SAVE Plan. Furthermore, under the Act, utilities can recover eligible biogas supply infrastructure costs on an ongoing basis. The provisions of these laws may
provide opportunities for Columbia of Virginia as it participates in the transition to a lower carbon future.

The Climate Solutions Now Act of 2022 requires Maryland to reduce GHG emissions by 60% by 2031 (from 2006 levels), and it requires the state to reach net
zero emissions by 2045. The Maryland Department of the Environment is required to adopt a plan to achieve the 2031 goal by December 2023, and it is
required to adopt a plan for the net zero goal by 2030. The Act also enacts a state policy to move to broader electrification of both existing buildings and new
construction, and requires the Public Service Commission to complete a study assessing the capacity of gas and electric distribution systems to successfully
serve customers under a transition to a highly electrified building sector. Columbia of Maryland will continue to monitor this matter, but we cannot predict its
final impact on our business at this time.

NIPSCO, Columbia of Maryland, Columbia of Pennsylvania, Columbia of Virginia and Columbia of Kentucky each filed petitions to implement the Green
Path Rider, which will be a voluntary rider that allows customers to opt in and offset either 50% or 100% of their natural gas related emissions. To reduce the
emissions, the utilities will purchase RNG attributes and carbon offsets to match the usage for customers opting into the program. The program was approved
by the IURC at NIPSCO in November 2022 with a January 2023 start date. After reaching settlement with other parties in September 2022, NIPSCO agreed to
add a third tier to offset 25% of customer usage. Columbia of Maryland’s filing was denied by the PUC in January 2023. The filings for Columbia of
Pennsylvania, Columbia of Virginia and Columbia of Kentucky are still being evaluated. Additionally, NIPSCO has a voluntary Green Power Rider program in
place that allows customers to designate a portion or all their monthly electric usage to come from power generated by renewable energy sources.

Net Zero Goal. In response to these transition risks and opportunities, on November 7, 2022, we announced a goal of net zero greenhouse gas emissions by
2040 covering both Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions ("Net Zero Goal"). Our Net Zero Goal builds on greenhouse gas emission reductions achieved to-date and
demonstrates that continued execution of our long-term business plan will drive further greenhouse gas emission reductions. We remain on track to achieve
previously announced interim greenhouse gas emission reduction targets by reducing fugitive methane emissions from main and service lines by 50 percent
from 2005 levels by 2025 and reducing Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions from company-wide operations by 90 percent from 2005 levels by 2030. We plan to
achieve our Net Zero Goal primarily through continuation and enhancement of existing programs, such as retiring and replacing coal-fired electric generation
with low- or zero-emission electric generation, ongoing pipe replacement and modernization programs, and deployment of advanced leak-detection
technologies. In addition, we plan to advance other low- or zero-emission energy resources and technologies, such as hydrogen, renewable natural gas, and/or
deployment of carbon capture and utilization technologies, if and when these become technologically and economically feasible. Carbon offsets and renewable
energy credits may also be used to support achievement of our Net Zero Goal. As of the end of 2021, we had reduced Scope 1 GHG emissions by
approximately 58% from 2005 levels.

Our greenhouse gas emissions projections, including achieving a Net Zero Goal, are subject to various assumptions that involve risks and uncertainties.
Achievement of our Net Zero Goal by 2040 will require supportive regulatory and legislative policies, favorable stakeholder environments and advancement of
technologies that are not currently economical to deploy. Should such regulatory and legislative policies, stakeholder environments or technologies fail to
materialize, our actual results or ability to achieve our Net Zero Goal, including by 2040, may differ materially.

As discussed in Management's Discussion within "Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Electric Operations," NIPSCO continues to execute on an
electric generation transition consistent with the preferred pathways identified in its 2018 and 2021 Integrated Resource Plans. Additionally, as discussed in
Management's Discussion within "Liquidity and Capital Resources - Regulatory Capital Programs," our natural gas distribution companies are lowering
methane emissions by replacing aging infrastructure, which also increases safety and reliability for customers and communities.

Human Capital

Human Capital Management Governance and Organizational Practices. The Compensation and Human Capital Committee of our Board of Directors (the
"Board") is primarily responsible for assisting the Board in overseeing our human capital
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management practices. The Compensation and Human Capital Committee charter includes reviewing our human capital management function and programs,
including related procedures, programs, policies and practices, and making recommendations to management with respect to equal employment opportunity
and DE&I initiatives, employee engagement and corporate culture, and talent management.

In addition to overseeing our human capital management practices, in 2022 our Board was refreshed and is committed to ensuring that the Board is comprised
of directors with diverse skills, expertise, experience and demographics, including racial and gender diversity. Women and people of color ("POC") each
comprise 33% of our Board.

Human Capital Goals and Objectives. We have aligned our human capital goals to achieve overall company strategic and operational objectives by driving an
enhanced talent strategy, elevating support for front-line leaders, fostering a culture of rigor and accountability and strengthening our human resources
function. We aspire to be an employer of choice in the utility industry through accelerating and embedding DE&I throughout the enterprise and creating an
enviable employee experience.

Workforce Composition. As of December 31, 2022, we had 7,117 full-time and 45 part-time active employees. Thirty-five percent of our employees were
subject to collective bargaining agreements with various labor unions which expire between 2026 and 2027.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion. We are committed to accelerating and embedding DE&I throughout the enterprise to reflect the communities and customers
we serve. We have worked to develop diverse sourcing strategies to attract and increase our diverse representation. Our talent acquisition team hired 523
external candidates in 2022 across all business segments. Twenty-eight percent of external hires in 2022 were racially or ethnically diverse and 44% were
female.

In addition, we have focused on our implementation and development of programs to drive higher retention and engagement of our employees. Through our
efforts, we have been able to increase participation in our Targeted Development for Diverse Talent program in 2022. Participants in this program are either
female or POC. POC make up 49% of the participant population for 2022. In addition, we have implemented over 50 DE&I programs with a strong emphasis
on professional development and retention efforts within our seven Employee Resource Groups.

We plan to post our 2022 consolidated EEO-1 report data on our website by the end of the first quarter of 2023.

The following graph shows the percentage of total employees represented by gender overall and for our officers as of December 31, 2022:
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The following graph shows the percentage of total employees and officers represented by race/ethnicity as of December 31, 2022:

Talent Attraction. To recruit and hire individuals with a variety of skills, talents, backgrounds and experiences, we value and cultivate relationships with the
community and diverse outreach partners. We also target job fairs, including those focused on people of color, veterans and women candidates, and partner
with local colleges and universities to identify and recruit qualified applicants in the communities we serve.

We are focused on our future of work and creating a more flexible, agile model for roles that can be performed in a more remote setting to attract talent across
our footprint. In 2022, we introduced a hybrid-working model, which recognizes differing ways of working: onsite, hybrid and remote. As of December 31,
2022, 58% of our workforce is onsite, 35% are hybrid and 7% are remote. This new working model supports colleague connection, development and mentoring
as well as broader team building.

Talent Development and Retention. We offer leadership development programs to enhance the behaviors and skills of our existing and future leaders. In 2022,
we had participation from employees at all levels in our extensive technical and non-technical employee leadership development training programs.

We strive to provide promotion and advancement opportunities for employees. In 2022, for all leadership positions at the supervisor and above level posted
externally, we filled 69% with internal employees. We develop and implement targeted development action plans to increase succession candidate readiness for
leadership roles. Additionally, we monitor the risk and potential impact of talent loss and take action to increase retention of top talent. Retention in 2022 was
over 91%. We calculate retention as the total number of separations divided by the average headcount for the annual period. These separations include
involuntary separation (2%), resignation (5%), and retirement (2%).

Executive Succession Planning. We perform succession planning quarterly for officer level positions to ensure that we develop and sustain a strong bench of
talent capable of performing at the highest levels. Talent is identified, and potential paths of development are discussed to ensure that employees have an
opportunity to build their skills and are well-prepared for future roles. We maintain formal succession plans for our Chief Executive Officer ("CEO") and key
executive officers. The succession plan for our CEO is reviewed by the Environmental, Social, Nominating and Governance Committee of the Board and the
succession plans for executive officers (other than the CEO) and other critical roles are reviewed by the Compensation and Human Capital Committee annually
or more frequently as needed.
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Employee and Workplace Health and Safety. We have several programs to support employees, and their families’ physical, mental, and financial well-being.
These programs include a paid wellness day, telemedicine services, an Employee Assistance Program, Integrated Health Management navigation services,
employee paid sick/disability leave, parental leave, and paid illness in family days. We also offer competitive medical, dental, vision, life and long-term
disability programs, including employee health savings account company contributions.

We have a robust program to support employee, contractor and public safety, which is led by our Chief Safety Officer and is overseen by the Safety,
Operations, Regulatory and Policy Committee of our Board. As we will outline in our annual safety report on our corporate website, we continue to invest in
risk reduction activities and assets.

Culture and Engagement. Our culture is another important aspect of our ability to advance our strategic and operational objectives. In addition to our DE&I,
recruiting, development and retention programs described above, we also invest in internal communications programs, including in-person and virtual learning
and networking opportunities, as well as regular town hall communications with employees. We measure and monitor culture and employee engagement
through a variety of channels including employee lifecycle, pulse, and census surveys.

To instill and reinforce our values and culture, we require our employees to participate in regular trainings on ethics and compliance topics each year, including
raising concerns, treating others with respect, preventing discrimination in the workplace, anti-bribery and corruption, data protection, unconscious biases,
harassment, conflicts of interest, and how to use the anonymous ethics and compliance hotline. All employees receive training on our Code of Business
Conduct biannually or more frequently if there is a material change in content. Our business ethics program, including the employee training program, is
reviewed annually by our executive leadership team and the Audit Committee of our Board.

Our Compensation and Human Capital Committee reviews reports from our Chief Human Resources Officer and Chief Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Officer
on employee engagement and corporate culture. Our Board reviews results and action plans related to our enterprise-wide comprehensive employee
engagement survey. Our executive leadership team, including our Chief Executive Officer, communicates directly and regularly with all employees on timely
ethics topics through electronic messages, coffee chats, and all-employee town hall meetings. These communications emphasize the importance of our values
and culture in the workplace.

Other Relevant Business Information
Our customer base is broadly diversified, with no single customer accounting for a significant portion of revenues.

For a listing of material subsidiaries of NiSource, refer to Exhibit 21.

We electronically file various reports with the SEC, including annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to such reports, as well as our proxy statements for the Company's annual meetings of stockholders at http://www.sec.gov. Additionally, we make
all SEC filings available without charge to the public on our web site at http://www.nisource.com. The information contained on our website is not included in,
nor incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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The following is a list of our Executive Officers, including their names, ages, offices held and other recent business experience.

Name Age Office(s) Held in Past 5 Years
Lloyd M. Yates 62  President and Chief Executive Officer

Executive Vice President, Customer and Delivery Operations, and President, Carolinas Region, of Duke
Energy Corporation from 2014 to 2019.

Donald E. Brown 51  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Executive Vice President of NiSource since May 2015.
Chief Financial Officer of NiSource since July 2015.
President, NiSource Corporate Services since June 2020.

Melody Birmingham 51  Executive Vice President, Chief Innovation Officer
Senior Vice President and Chief Administrator Officer of Duke Energy Corporation from May 2021 to
June 2022.
Senior Vice President, Supply Chain and Chief Procurement Officer of Duke Energy Corporation from
November 2018 to April 2021.
President of Duke Energy Corporation from June 2015 to November 2018

William Jefferson, Jr 61  Executive Vice President, Operations and Chief Safety Officer
Station Director and Vice President at STPNOC, Wadsworth, Texas, from 2016 to May 2022.

Shawn Anderson 41  Senior Vice President,Strategy and Chief Risk Officer
Vice President, Strategy of NiSource from January 2019 to May 2020.
Vice President of NiSource from May 2018 to December 2018.
Treasurer and Chief Risk Officer of NiSource from June 2016 to December 2018.

Kimberly S. Cuccia 39  Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
Vice President General Counsel, Interim Corporate Secretary of NiSource from January 2022 to March
2022.
Vice President and Deputy General Counsel, Regulatory, of NiSource Corporate Services Company, from
January 2021 to December 2021.
Vice President and General Counsel, Columbia Gas of Massachusetts, NiSource Corporate Services
Company, from October 2019 to December 2020.
Vice President and General Counsel, Massachusetts Restoration, NiSource Corporate Services Company,
from October 2018 to October 2019.
Chief Counsel, Columbia Gas Companies from June 2015 to September 2018.

Melanie B. Berman 52  Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer
Executive Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer of The Michaels Companies, Inc. from
2020 to 2021.
Vice President, Human Resources of Anthem, Inc. from January 2018 to 2019.
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Our operations and financial results are subject to various risks and uncertainties, including those described below, that could adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, and the market price of our common stock.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

We may not be able to complete the sale of a minority interest in NIPSCO on the expected timeline or at all.

On November 7, 2022, we announced our intention to sell a minority interest in NIPSCO (the “NIPSCO Minority Interest Sale”). We intend to evaluate various
alternatives to determine the optimal transaction structure to maximize stakeholder value as a result of the NIPSCO Minority Interest Sale. A successful sale
will be dependent on factors such as regulatory approval(s) and negotiations with one or more counterparties. There can be no assurances that we will be able
to successfully complete the NIPSCO Minority Interest Sale on the anticipated timeline or at all. Furthermore, there can be no assurances that the NIPSCO
Minority Interest Sale will lead to the anticipated benefits to stockholders.

We may not be able to execute our business plan or growth strategy, including the NIPSCO Minority Interest Sale and utility infrastructure
investments.

Business or regulatory conditions may result in our inability to execute our business plan or growth strategy, including the NIPSCO Minority Interest Sale and
identified, planned and other utility infrastructure investments, which includes investments related to natural gas pipeline modernization and our renewable
energy projects, and the build-transfer execution goals within our business plan.

Our Enterprise Transformation Roadmap initiatives are designed to identify long-term sustainable capability enhancements, cost optimization improvements,
technology investments and work process optimization, has increased the volume and pace of change and may not be effective as it continues. Our customer
and regulatory initiatives may not achieve planned results. Utility infrastructure investments may not materialize, may cease to be achievable or economically
viable and may not be successfully completed. Natural gas may cease to be viewed as an economically and environmentally attractive fuel. Certain
environmental activist groups, investors and governmental entities continue to oppose natural gas delivery and infrastructure investments because of perceived
environmental impacts associated with the natural gas supply chain and end use. Energy conservation, energy efficiency, distributed generation, energy storage,
policies favoring electric heat over gas heat and other factors may reduce demand for natural gas and electricity. In addition, we consider acquisitions or
dispositions of assets or businesses, JVs, including in connection with the NIPSCO Minority Interest Sale, and mergers from time to time as we execute on our
business plan and growth strategy. Any of these circumstances could adversely affect our results of operations and growth prospects. Even if our business plan
and growth strategy are executed, there is still risk of, among other things, human error in maintenance, installation or operations, shortages or delays in
obtaining equipment, including as a result of transportation delays and availability, labor availability and performance below expected levels (in addition to the
other risks discussed in this section). We are currently experiencing, and expect to continue to experience, supply chain challenges, including labor availability
issues, impacting our ability to obtain materials for our gas and electric projects. Risks to our capital projects, including risks related to supply chain challenges
and labor availability, are described in a separate risk factor below.

Our gas distribution and transmission activities, as well as generation, transmission and distribution of electricity, involve a variety of inherent
hazards and operating risks, including potential public safety risks.

Our gas distribution and transmission activities, as well as generation, transmission and distribution of electricity, involve a variety of inherent hazards and
operating risks, including, but not limited to, gas leaks and over-pressurization, downed power lines, stray electrical voltage, excavation or vehicular damage to
our infrastructure, outages, environmental spills, mechanical problems and other incidents, which could cause substantial financial losses, as demonstrated in
part by the Greater Lawrence Incident. We also have distribution propane assets that involve similar risks. In addition, these hazards and risks have resulted and
may result in the future in serious injury or loss of life to employees and/or the general public, significant damage to property, environmental pollution,
impairment of our operations, adverse regulatory rulings and reputational harm, which in turn could lead to substantial losses for NiSource and its stockholders.
The location of pipeline facilities, including regulator stations, liquefied natural gas and underground storage, or generation, transmission, substation and
distribution facilities near populated areas, including residential areas, commercial business centers and industrial sites, could increase the level of damages
resulting from such incidents. As with the Greater Lawrence Incident, certain incidents have subjected and may in the future subject us to both civil and
criminal litigation or administrative or other legal proceedings from time to time, which could result in substantial monetary judgments, fines, or penalties
against us, be resolved on unfavorable terms, and require us to incur significant operational expenses. The occurrence of incidents has in certain instances
adversely affected and could in the
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future adversely affect our reputation, cash flows, financial position and/or results of operations. We maintain insurance against some, but not all, of these risks
and losses.

We may conduct certain operations, including in connection with the NIPSCO Minority Interest Sale, through a JV arrangement involving third-
party investors that may result in delays, litigation or operational impasses.

We may enter into JV arrangements involving third-party investors, including in connection with the NIPSCO Minority Interest Sale. As part of a JV
arrangement, third-party investors may hold certain protective rights that may impact our ability to make certain decisions. Any such third-party investors may
have interests and objectives which may differ from ours and, accordingly, disputes may arise that may result in delays, litigation or operational impasses.

Failure to adapt to advances in technology and manage the related costs could make us less competitive and negatively impact our results of
operations and financial condition.

A key element of our electric business model includes generating power at central station power plants to achieve economies of scale and produce power at a
competitive cost. We continue to transition our generation portfolio in order to implement new and diverse technologies including renewable energy, distributed
generation, energy storage, and energy efficiency designed to reduce regulated emissions. Advances in technology and potential competition supported by
changes in laws or regulations could reduce the cost of electric generation and provide retail alternatives causing power sales to decline and the value of our
generating facilities to decline.

Our natural gas business model depends on widespread utilization of natural gas for space heating as a core driver of revenues. Alternative energy sources, new
technologies or alternatives to natural gas space heating, including cold climate heat pumps and/or efficiency of other products, could reduce demand and
increase customer attrition, which could impact our ability to recover on our investments in our gas distribution assets.

Our future success will depend, in part, on our ability to anticipate and successfully adapt to technological changes, to offer services that meet customer
demands and evolving industry standards, including environmental impacts associated with our products and services, and to recover all, or a significant
portion of, remaining investments in retired assets. A failure by us to effectively adapt to changes in technology and manage the related costs could harm the
ability of our products and services to remain competitive in the marketplace and could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and
financial condition.

Aging infrastructure may lead to disruptions in operations and increased capital expenditures and maintenance costs, all of which could negatively
impact our financial results.

We have risks associated with aging electric and gas infrastructure. These risks can be driven by threats such as, but not limited to, electrical faults, mechanical
failure, internal corrosion, external corrosion, ground movement and stress corrosion and/or cracking. The age of these assets may result in a need for
replacement, a higher level of maintenance costs or unscheduled outages, despite efforts by us to properly maintain or upgrade these assets through inspection,
scheduled maintenance and capital investment. In addition, the nature of the information available on aging infrastructure assets, which in some cases is
incomplete, may make the operation of the infrastructure, inspections, maintenance, upgrading and replacement of the assets particularly challenging. Missing
or incorrect infrastructure data may lead to (1) difficulty properly locating facilities, which can result in excavator damage and operational or emergency
response issues, and (2) configuration and control risks associated with the modification of system operating pressures in connection with turning off or turning
on service to customers, which can result in unintended outages or operating pressures. Also, additional maintenance and inspections are required in some
instances to improve infrastructure information and records and address emerging regulatory or risk management requirements, resulting in increased costs.

Supply chain issues related to shortages of materials and transportation logistics may lead to delays in the maintenance and replacement of aging infrastructure,
which could increase the probability and/or impact of a public safety incident. We lack diversity in suppliers of some gas materials. While we have
implemented contractual protections with suppliers and stockpile some materials in inventory for such supply risks, we may not be effective in ensuring that we
can obtain adequate emergency supply on a timely basis in each state, that no compromises are being made on quality and that we have alternate suppliers
available. The failure to operate our assets as desired could result in interruption of electric service, major component failure at generating facilities and electric
substations, gas leaks and other incidents, and an inability to meet firm service and compliance
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obligations, which could adversely impact revenues, and could also result in increased capital expenditures and maintenance costs, which, if not fully recovered
from customers, could negatively impact our financial results.

We may be unable to obtain insurance on acceptable terms or at all, and the insurance coverage we do obtain may not provide protection against all
significant losses.

Our ability to obtain insurance, as well as the cost and coverage of such insurance, are affected by developments affecting our business; international, national,
state, or local events; and the financial condition and underwriting considerations of insurers. For example, some insurers are moving away from underwriting
certain carbon-intensive energy-related businesses such as those in the coal industry or those exposed to specific perils such as wildfires as well as gas
explosion events or other infrastructure-related or natural catastrophe risks. The utility insurance market continues to be impacted by a prevalence of severe
losses, and despite significant annual increases in rates over the past few years, markets are experiencing unacceptable loss ratios. Certain perils, such as cyber,
are now being excluded from some master policies for property and casualty insurance, requiring procurement of additional policies to be obtained to maintain
consistent coverage at an additional cost. Capacity limits insurers are willing to issue have decreased, requiring participation from more insurers to provide
adequate coverage. Insurance coverage may not continue to be available at limits, rates or terms acceptable to us. In addition, our insurance is not sufficient or
effective under all circumstances and against all hazards or liabilities to which we are subject. Certain types of damages, expenses or claimed costs, such as
fines and penalties, have been and in the future may be excluded under the policies. In addition, insurers providing insurance to us may raise defenses to
coverage under the terms and conditions of the respective insurance policies that could result in a denial of coverage or limit the amount of insurance proceeds
available to us. Any losses for which we are not fully insured or that are not covered by insurance at all could materially adversely affect our results of
operations, cash flows and financial position.

Aspects of the implementation of our electric generation strategy, including the retirement of our coal generation units, may be delayed and may not
achieve intended results.

As discussed in “Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Electric Operations,” in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, our 2018 Integrated Resource Plan (“2018 Plan”) outlines the path to retire the remaining two coal units at R.M. Schahfer by the end of
2025 and the remaining coal-fired generation by the end of 2028, to be replaced by lower-cost, reliable and cleaner options. Our 2021 Integrated Resource Plan
(“2021 Plan”) validated the activities underway pursuant to our 2018 Plan and calls for the retirement of the Michigan City Generating Station, replacement of
existing vintage gas peaking units at the R.M. Schahfer Generating Station and upgrades to the transmission system to enhance our electric generation
transition. Recent developments, including macro supply chain issues and U.S. federal policy actions, have created significant uncertainty around the
availability of key input material necessary to develop and place our renewable energy projects in service. In the U.S., solar industry supply chain issues
include the pending U.S. Department of Commerce investigation on Antidumping and Countervailing Duties Anti Circumvention Petition filed by a domestic
solar manufacturer (the “DOC Investigation”), the Uyghur Forced Labor Protection Act, Section 201 Tariffs and persistent general global supply chain and
labor availability issues. The most prominent effect of these issues is the significant curtailment of imported solar panels and other key components required to
complete utility scale solar projects in the U.S. Any available solar panels may not meet the cost and efficiency standards of our currently approved projects
and the incremental cost may not be recoverable through customer rates. As a result of the challenges in obtaining solar panels, many solar projects in the U.S.
have been delayed or canceled. As we are in the midst of a transition to an electric generation portfolio with more renewable resources, including solar, our
projects are subject to the effects of these issues.

Our expectation has been that solar energy sources would be one of the primary ways in which we will meet our electric generation capacity and reliability
obligations to the MISO market and reliably serve our customers when we retire our coal generation capacity. The high level of uncertainty surrounding the
completion of our solar renewable energy projects creates significant risks for us to reliably meet our capacity and energy obligations to MISO and to provide
reliable and affordable energy to our customers. Any additional delays to the completion dates of our ten planned and approved solar projects are expected to
impact our capacity position and our ability to meet our resource adequacy obligations to MISO. Delays to the completion dates of our projects could also
include delays in the financial return of certain investments and impact the overall timing of our electric generation transition.

As noted above, we expect our electric generation strategy to require additional investment to meet our MISO obligations and may require significant future
capital expenditures, operating costs and charges to earnings that may negatively impact our financial position, financial results and cash flows. An inability to
secure and deliver on renewable projects is negatively
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impacting our generation transition timeline and may negatively impact our achievement of decarbonization goals and reputation.

Our capital projects and programs subject us to construction risks and natural gas costs and supply risks, and are subject to regulatory oversight,
including requirements for permits, approvals and certificates from various governmental agencies.

Our business requires substantial capital expenditures for investments in, among other things, capital improvements to our electric generating facilities, electric
and natural gas distribution infrastructure, natural gas storage and other projects, including projects for environmental compliance. As we undertake these
projects and programs, we may be unable to complete them on schedule or at the anticipated costs due in part to shortages in materials as described more fully
below. Additionally, we may construct or purchase some of these projects and programs to capture anticipated future growth, which may not materialize, and
may cause the construction to occur over an extended period of time.

Our existing and planned capital projects require numerous permits, approvals and certificates from federal, state, and local governmental agencies. If there is a
delay in obtaining any required regulatory approvals or if we fail to obtain or maintain any required approvals or to comply with any applicable laws or
regulations, we may not be able to construct or operate our facilities, we may be forced to incur additional costs or we may be unable to recover any or all
amounts invested in a project. We also may not receive the anticipated increases in revenue and cash flows resulting from such projects and programs until after
their completion. Other construction risks include changes in the availability and costs of materials, equipment, commodities or labor (including changes to
tariffs on materials), delays caused by construction incidents or injuries, work stoppages, shortages in qualified labor, poor initial cost estimates, unforeseen
engineering issues, the ability to obtain necessary rights-of-way, easements and transmissions connections and general contractors and subcontractors not
performing as required under their contracts.

We are monitoring risks related to increasing order and delivery lead times for construction and other materials, increasing risk associated with the
unavailability of materials due to global shortages in raw materials and issues with transportation logistics, and risk of decreased construction labor
productivity in the event of disruptions in the availability of materials critical to our gas and electric operations. Our efforts to enhance our resiliency to supply
chain shortages may not be effective. We are also seeing increasing prices associated with certain materials, equipment and products, which impacts our ability
to complete major capital projects at the cost that was planned and approved. To the extent that delays occur or costs increase, customer affordability as well as
our business operations, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition could be materially adversely affected. In addition, to the extent that delays
occur on projects that target system integrity, the risk of an operational incident could increase. For more information on global availability of materials for our
renewable projects, see “ - Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Electric Operations - Electric Supply and Generation Transition.” To the extent that
delays occur, costs become unrecoverable or recovery is delayed, or we otherwise become unable to effectively manage and complete our capital projects, our
results of operations, cash flows, and financial condition may be adversely affected.

A significant portion of the gas and electricity we sell is used by residential and commercial customers for heating and air conditioning. Accordingly,
fluctuations in weather, gas and electricity commodity costs, inflation and economic conditions impact demand of our customers and our operating
results.

Energy sales are sensitive to variations in weather. Forecasts of energy sales are based on “normal” weather, which represents a long-term historical average.
Significant variations from normal weather resulting from climate change or other factors could have, and have had, a material impact on energy sales.
Additionally, residential usage, and to some degree commercial usage, is sensitive to fluctuations in commodity costs for gas and electricity, whereby usage
declines with increased costs, thus affecting our financial results. Commodity prices have been and may continue to be volatile. Rising gas costs could heighten
regulator and stakeholder sensitivity relative to the impact of base rate increases on customer affordability. Lastly, residential and commercial customers’ usage
is sensitive to economic conditions and factors such as recession, inflation, unemployment, consumption and consumer confidence. Therefore, prevailing
economic conditions affecting the demand of our customers may in turn affect our financial results.

Fluctuations in the price of energy commodities or their related transportation costs or an inability to obtain an adequate, reliable and cost-effective
fuel supply to meet customer demands may have a negative impact on our financial results.
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Our current electric generating fleet is dependent on coal and natural gas for fuel, and our gas distribution operations purchase and resell a portion of the
natural gas we deliver to our customers. These energy commodities are subject to price fluctuations and fluctuations in associated transportation costs. We use
physical hedging through the use of storage assets and use financial products in certain jurisdictions in order to offset fluctuations in commodity supply prices.
We rely on regulatory recovery mechanisms in the various jurisdictions in order to fully recover the commodity costs incurred in selling energy to our
customers. However, while we have historically been successful in the recovery of costs related to such commodity prices, there can be no assurance that such
costs will be fully recovered through rates in a timely manner.

In addition, we depend on electric transmission lines, natural gas pipelines, and other transportation facilities owned and operated by third parties to deliver the
electricity and natural gas we sell to wholesale markets, supply natural gas to our gas storage and electric generation facilities, and provide retail energy
services to our customers. If transportation is disrupted, if capacity is inadequate or if supply is interrupted due to issues at the wellhead, we may be unable to
sell and deliver our gas and electric services to some or all of our customers. As a result, we may be required to procure additional or alternative electricity
and/or natural gas supplies at then-current market rates, which, if recovery of related costs is disallowed, could have a material adverse effect on our
businesses, financial condition, cash flows, results of operations and/or prospects.

Failure to attract and retain an appropriately qualified workforce, and maintain good labor relations, could harm our results of operations.

We operate in an industry that requires many of our employees and contractors to possess unique technical skill sets. An aging workforce without appropriate
replacements, the mismatch of skill sets to future needs, the unavailability of talent for internal positions and the unavailability of contract resources may lead
to operating challenges or increased costs. These operating challenges include lack of resources, loss of knowledge and a lengthy time period associated with
skill development. For example, certain skills, such as those related to construction, maintenance and repair of transmission and distribution systems, are in
high demand and have a limited supply. Current and prospective employees may determine that they do not wish to work for us due to market, economic,
employment and other conditions, including those related to organizational changes as described in the risk factor below.

We face increased competition for talent in the current environment of sustained labor shortage and increased turnover rates. Incidents of any pandemic in our
workforce could increase the risk of worker illness and availability. These or other employee workforce factors could negatively impact our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

A significant portion of our workforce is subject to collective bargaining agreements. Our collective bargaining agreements are generally negotiated on an
operating company basis with some companies having multiple bargaining agreements, which may span different geographies. Any failure to reach an
agreement on new labor contracts or to renegotiate these labor contracts might result in strikes, boycotts or other labor disruptions. Our workforce continuity
plans may not be effective in avoiding work stoppages that may result from labor negotiations or mass resignations. Labor disruptions, strikes or significant
negotiated wage and benefit increases, whether due to union activities, employee turnover or otherwise, could have a material adverse effect on our businesses,
results of operations and/or cash flows.

Our strategic plan includes enhanced technology and transmission and distribution investments and a reduction in reliance on coal-fired generation. As part of
our strategic plan, we will need to attract and retain personnel that are qualified to implement our strategy and may need to retrain or re-skill certain employees
to support our long-term objectives.

Failure to hire and retain qualified employees, including the ability to transfer significant internal historical knowledge and expertise to the new employees,
may adversely affect our ability to manage and operate our business. If we are unable to successfully attract and retain an appropriately qualified workforce and
maintain satisfactory collective bargaining agreements, safety, service reliability, customer satisfaction and our results of operations could be adversely
affected.

If we cannot effectively manage new initiatives and organizational changes, we will be unable to address the opportunities and challenges presented by
our strategy and the business and regulatory environment.

In order to execute on our sustainable growth strategy and enhance our culture of ongoing continuous improvement, we must effectively manage the
complexity and frequency of new initiatives and organizational changes. The organizational changes from our transformation initiatives have put short-term
pressure on employees due to the volume and pace of change and, in some cases, loss of personnel. Front-line workers are being impacted by the variety of
process and technology changes that are currently in progress.
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If we are unable to make decisions quickly, assess our opportunities and risks, and successfully implement new governance, managerial and organizational
processes as needed to execute our strategy in this increasingly dynamic and competitive business and regulatory environment, our financial condition, results
of operations and relationships with our business partners, regulators, customers, employees and stockholders may be negatively impacted.

Actions of activist stockholders could negatively affect our business and stock price and cause us to incur significant expenses.

We may be subject to actions or proposals from activist stockholders or others that may not be aligned with our long-term strategy or the interests of our other
stockholders. We have had communications with an activist stockholder. Our response to suggested actions, proposals, director nominations and contests for
the election of directors by activist stockholders could disrupt our business and operations, divert the attention of our board of directors, management and
employees and be costly and time‐consuming. Potential actions by activist stockholders or others may interfere with our ability to execute our strategic plans;
create perceived uncertainties as to the future direction of our business or strategy; cause uncertainty with our regulators; make it more difficult to attract and
retain qualified personnel; and adversely affect our relationships with our existing and potential business partners. Any of the foregoing could adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results of operations. Also, we may be required to incur significant fees and other expenses related to responding to
stockholder activism, including for third-party advisors. Moreover, our stock price could be subject to significant fluctuation or otherwise be adversely affected
by the events, risks and uncertainties of any stockholder activism.

We outsource certain business functions to third-party suppliers and service providers, and substandard performance by those third parties could
harm our business, reputation and results of operations.

Utilities rely on extensive networks of business partners and suppliers to support critical enterprise capabilities across their organizations. Like other companies
in the utilities industry, we are seeing slowing deliveries from suppliers and in some cases materials and labor shortages for capital projects. We outsource
certain services to third parties in areas including construction services, information technology, materials, fleet, environmental, operational services, corporate
and other areas. In addition to delays and unavailability at times, outsourcing of services to third parties could expose us to inferior service quality or
substandard deliverables, which may result in non-compliance (including with applicable legal requirements and industry standards), interruption of service or
accidents or reputational harm, which could negatively impact our results of operations. We do not have full visibility into our supply chain, which may impact
our ability to serve customers in a safe, reliable and cost-effective manner. These risks include the risk of operational failure, reputation damage, disruption due
to new supply chain disruptions, exposure to significant commercial losses and fines and poorly positioned and distressed suppliers. If we continue to see
delayed deliveries and shortages or if any other difficulties in the operations of these third-party suppliers and service providers, including their systems, were
to occur, they could adversely affect our results of operations, or adversely affect our ability to work with regulators, unions, customers or employees.

A cyber-attack on any of our or certain third-party technology systems upon which we rely may adversely affect our ability to operate and could lead
to a loss or misuse of confidential and proprietary information or potential liability.

We are reliant on technology to run our business, which is dependent upon financial and operational technology systems to process critical information
necessary to conduct various elements of our business, including the generation, transmission and distribution of electricity; operation of our gas pipeline
facilities; and the recording and reporting of commercial and financial transactions to regulators, investors and other stakeholders. In addition to general
information and cyber risks that all large corporations face (e.g., ransomware, malware, unauthorized access attempts, phishing attacks, malicious intent by
insiders, third-party software vulnerabilities and inadvertent disclosure of sensitive information), the utility industry faces evolving and increasingly complex
cybersecurity risks associated with protecting sensitive and confidential customer and employee information, electric grid infrastructure, and natural gas
infrastructure. Deployment of new business technologies, along with maintaining legacy technology, represents a large-scale opportunity for attacks on our
information systems and confidential customer and employee information, as well as on the integrity of the energy grid and the natural gas infrastructure.
Additionally, the conflict between Russia and Ukraine, as well as increased surveillance activity from China, has increased the likelihood of a cyber-attack on
critical infrastructure systems.

Increasing large-scale corporate attacks in conjunction with more sophisticated threats continue to challenge power and utility companies. Any failure of our
technology systems, or those of our customers, suppliers or others with whom we do business,

21



Table of Contents

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

NISOURCE INC.

could materially disrupt our ability to operate our business and could result in a financial loss and possibly do harm to our reputation.

Additionally, our information systems experience ongoing, often sophisticated, cyber-attacks by a variety of sources, including foreign sources, with the
apparent aim to breach our cyber-defenses. While we have implemented and maintain a cybersecurity program designed to protect our information technology,
operational technology, and data systems from such attacks, our cybersecurity program does not prevent all breaches or cyberattack incidents. We have
experienced an increase in the number of attempts by external parties to access our networks or our company data without authorization. We have experienced,
and expect to continue to experience, cyber intrusions and attacks to our information systems and our operational technology. To our knowledge, none of these
intrusions or attacks have resulted in a material cybersecurity intrusion or data breach. The risk of a disruption or breach of our operational technology, or the
compromise of the data processed in connection with our operations, through cybersecurity breach or ransomware attack has increased as attempted attacks
have advanced in sophistication and number around the world. Technological complexities combined with advanced cyber-attack techniques, lack of cyber
hygiene and human error can result in a cybersecurity incident, such as a ransomware attack. Supplier non-compliance with cyber controls can also result in a
cybersecurity incident. Attacks can occur at any point in the supply chain or with any suppliers. In addition, unmanned aircraft systems (UAS) or drones are
used for various commercial and recreational purposes across the country. The Cybersecurity & Infrastructure Security Agency (CISA) released alerts
pertaining to UASs being used for malicious activities and the cybersecurity risk is continuing to increase.

In addition, we collect and retain personally identifiable information of our customers, stockholders and employees. Customers, stockholders and employees
expect that we will adequately protect their personal information. The regulatory environment surrounding information security and privacy is increasingly
demanding.

Although we attempt to maintain adequate defenses to these attacks and work through industry groups and trade associations to identify common threats and
assess our countermeasures, a security breach of our information systems and/or operational technology, or a security breach of the information systems of our
customers, suppliers or others with whom we do business, could (i) adversely impact our ability to safely and reliably deliver electricity and natural gas to our
customers through our generation, transmission and distribution systems and potentially negatively impact our compliance with certain mandatory reliability
and gas flow standards, (ii) subject us to reputational and other harm or liabilities associated with theft or inappropriate release of certain types of information
such as system operating information or information, personal or otherwise, relating to our customers or employees, (iii) impact our ability to manage our
businesses, and/or (iv) subject us to legal and regulatory proceedings and claims from third parties, in addition to remediation costs, any of which, in turn,
could have a material adverse effect on our businesses, cash flows, financial condition, results of operations and/or prospects. Although we do maintain cyber
insurance, it is possible that such insurance will not adequately cover any losses or liabilities we may incur as a result of a cybersecurity incident.

Compliance with and changes in cybersecurity requirements have a cost and operational impact on our business, and failure to comply with such laws
and regulations could adversely impact our reputation, results of operations, financial condition and/or cash flows.

As cyber-attacks are becoming more sophisticated, U.S. government warnings have indicated that critical infrastructure assets, including pipelines and electric
infrastructure, may be specifically targeted by certain groups. In 2021, the Transportation Security Administration (“TSA”) announced two new security
directives in response to a ransomware attack on the Colonial Pipeline that occurred earlier in the year. These directives require critical pipeline owners to
comply with mandatory reporting measures, designate a cybersecurity coordinator, provide vulnerability assessments, and ensure compliance with certain
cybersecurity requirements. Such directives or other requirements may require expenditure of significant additional resources to respond to cyberattacks, to
continue to modify or enhance protective measures, or to assess, investigate and remediate any critical infrastructure security vulnerabilities. Additionally, on
November 30, 2022, the TSA issued an advance notice of proposed rulemaking (ANPRM) seeking public comment on more comprehensive, formal
cybersecurity regulations for the pipeline industry. Any failure to comply with such government regulations or failure in our cybersecurity protective measures
may result in enforcement actions that may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. In addition, there is no
certainty that costs incurred related to securing against threats will be recovered through rates.

The impacts of natural disasters, acts of terrorism, acts of war, civil unrest, cyber-attacks, accidents, public health emergencies or other catastrophic
events may disrupt operations and reduce the ability to service customers.
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A disruption or failure of natural gas distribution systems, or within electric generation, transmission or distribution systems, in the event of a major hurricane,
tornado, or other major weather event, or terrorist attack, acts of war, including the political and economic disruption and uncertainty related to Russia’s
military invasion of Ukraine, civil unrest, cyber-attack (as further detailed above), accident, public health emergency, pandemic, or other catastrophic event
could cause delays in completing sales, providing services, or performing other critical functions. We have experienced disruptions in the past from hurricanes
and tornadoes and other events of this nature. Also, companies in our industry face a heightened risk of exposure to and have experienced acts of terrorism and
vandalism. Our electric and gas physical infrastructure may be targets of physical security threats or terrorist activities that could disrupt our operations. We
have increased security given the current environment and may be required by regulators or by the future threat environment to make investments in security
that we cannot currently predict. In addition, the supply chain constraints that we are experiencing could impact timely restoration of services. The occurrence
of such events could adversely affect our financial position and results of operations. In accordance with customary industry practice, we maintain insurance
against some, but not all, of these risks and losses.

We are exposed to significant reputational risks, which make us vulnerable to a loss of cost recovery, increased litigation and negative public
perception.

As a utility company, we are subject to adverse publicity focused on the reliability of our services, the speed with which we are able to respond effectively to
electric outages, natural gas leaks or events and related accidents and similar interruptions caused by storm damage, physical or cyber security incidents, or
other unanticipated events, as well as our own or third parties’ actions or failure to act. We are subject to prevailing labor markets and potential high attrition,
which may impact the speed of our customer service response. We are also facing supply chain challenges, the impacts of which may adversely impact our
reputation in several areas as described elsewhere in these risk factors. We are also subject to adverse publicity related to actual or perceived environmental
impacts. If customers, legislators or regulators have or develop a negative opinion of us, this could result in less favorable legislative and regulatory outcomes
or increased regulatory oversight, increased litigation and negative public perception. The adverse publicity and investigations we experienced as a result of the
Greater Lawrence Incident may have an ongoing negative impact on the public’s perception of us. It is difficult to predict the ultimate impact of this adverse
publicity. The foregoing may have continuing adverse effects on our business, results of operations, cash flow and financial condition.

The physical impacts of climate change and the transition to a lower carbon future are impacting our business and could materially adversely affect
our results of operations.

Climate change is exacerbating risks to our physical infrastructure by increasing the frequency of extreme weather, including heat stresses to power lines, cold
temperature stress to our electric and gas systems, and storms and floods that damage infrastructure. In addition, climate change is likely to cause lake and river
level changes that affect the manner in which services are currently provided and droughts or other limits on water used to supply services, and other extreme
weather conditions. We have adapted and will continue to evolve our infrastructure and operations to meet current and future needs of our stakeholders. With
higher frequency of these and other possible extreme weather events it may become more costly for us to safely and reliably deliver certain products and
services to our customers. Some of these costs may not be recovered. To the extent that we are unable to recover those costs, or if higher rates arising from
recovery of such costs result in reduced demand for services, our future financial results may be adversely impacted. Further, as the intensity and frequency of
significant weather events increases, insurers may reprice or remove themselves from insuring risks for which the company has historically maintained
insurance, resulting in increased cost or risk to us.

Our strategy may be impacted by policy and legal, technology, market and reputational risks and opportunities that are associated with the transition to a lower-
carbon economy, as disclosed in other risk factors in this section. As a result of increased awareness regarding climate change, coupled with adverse economic
conditions, availability of alternative energy sources, including private solar, microturbines, fuel cells, energy-efficient buildings and energy storage devices,
and new regulations restricting emissions, including potential regulations of methane emissions, some consumers and companies may use less energy, meet
their own energy needs through alternative energy sources or avoid expansions of their facilities, including natural gas facilities, which may result in less
demand for our services. As these technologies become a more cost-competitive option over time, whether through cost effectiveness or government incentives
and subsidies, certain customers may choose to meet their own energy needs and subsequently decrease usage of our systems and services, which may result in,
among other things, our generating facilities becoming less competitive and economical. Further, evolving investor sentiment related to the use of fossil fuels
and initiatives to restrict continued production of fossil fuels could result in a significant impact on our electric generation and natural gas businesses in the
future.
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Some of our baseload generation is dependent on natural gas and coal, and we pass through the costs for these energy sources to our customers. In addition, in
our gas distribution business, we procure natural gas on behalf of certain customers, and we pass through the actual cost of the gas consumed. Diminished
investor interest in funding fossil fuel development could reduce the amount of exploration and production of natural gas or coal, or investment in gas
transmission pipelines. Reduced production and transportation of natural gas could, in the long-term, lead to supply shortages leading to baseload generation
outages. Given that we pass through commodity costs to customers, this could also create the potential for regulatory questions resulting from increased
customer costs. We are unable to forecast the future of commodity markets, but reduced fossil fuel investment, due to evolving investor sentiment, could lead
to higher commodity prices and shortages impacting our generation and our reputation with regulators. Conversely, demand for our services may increase as a
result of customer changes in response to climate change. For example, as the utilization of electric vehicles increases, demand for electricity may increase,
resulting in increased usage of our systems and services.
Any negative views with respect to our environmental practices or our ability to meet the challenges posed by climate change from regulators, customers,
investors or legislators could harm our reputation and adversely affect the perceived value of our products and services. Changes in policy to combat climate
change, and technology advancement, each of which can also accelerate the implications of a transition to a lower carbon economy, may materially adversely
impact our business, financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. For example, in February 2023, the Maryland Office of People's Counsel filed a
petition with the Maryland Public Service Commission seeking an investigation regarding planning, practices, and future operations of natural gas suppliers in
the state.

We are subject to operational and financial risks and liabilities associated with the implementation and efforts to achieve our carbon emission
reduction goals.

On November 7, 2022, we announced our goal of reaching net zero Scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas emissions by 2040 (the “Net Zero Goal”). Achieving the Net
Zero Goal will require supportive regulatory and legislative policies, favorable stakeholder environments and advancement of technologies that are not
currently economical to deploy, the impacts and costs of which are not fully understood at this time. NIPSCO’s electric generation transition is a key element of
the Net Zero Goal. Our analysis and plan for execution, which is outlined in the NIPSCO 2021 Integrated Resource Plan, requires us to make a number of
assumptions. These goals and underlying assumptions involve risks and uncertainties and are not guarantees. Should one or more of our underlying
assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results and ability to achieve our emissions goal could differ materially from our expectations. Certain of the
assumptions that could impact our ability to meet our emissions goal include, but are not limited to: the accuracy of current emission measurements, service
territory size and capacity needs remaining in line with expectations; regulatory approval; impacts of future environmental regulations or legislation; impact of
future GHG pricing regulations or legislation, including a future carbon tax or methane fee; price, availability and regulation of carbon offsets; price of fuel,
such as natural gas; cost of energy generation technologies, such as wind and solar, natural gas and storage solutions; adoption of alternative energy by the
public, including adoption of electric vehicles; rate of technology innovation with regards to alternative energy resources; our ability to implement our
modernization plans for our pipelines and facilities; the ability to complete and implement generation alternatives to NIPSCO’s coal generation and retirement
dates of NIPSCO’s coal facilities by 2028; the ability to construct and/or permit new natural gas pipelines; the ability to procure resources needed to build at a
reasonable cost, the lack of scarcity of resources and labor, project cancellations, construction delays or overruns and the ability to appropriately estimate costs
of new generation; impact of any supply chain disruptions; and advancement of energy efficiencies. Any negative opinions with respect to these goals or our
environmental practices, including any inability to achieve, or a scaling back of these goals, formed by regulators, customers, investors or legislators could
harm our reputation and have an adverse effect on our financial condition.

FINANCIAL, ECONOMIC AND MARKET RISKS

We have substantial indebtedness which could adversely affect our financial condition.

Our business is capital intensive and we rely significantly on long-term debt to fund a portion of our capital expenditures and repay outstanding debt, and on
short-term borrowings to fund a portion of day-to-day business operations. We had total consolidated indebtedness of $11,315.5 million outstanding as of
December 31, 2022. Our substantial indebtedness could have important consequences. For example, it could:

• limit our ability to borrow additional funds or increase the cost of borrowing additional funds;

• reduce the availability of cash flow from operations to fund working capital, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes;
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• limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in the business and the industries in which we operate;

• lead parties with whom we do business to require additional credit support, such as letters of credit, in order for us to transact such business;

• place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to competitors that are less leveraged;

• increase vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions; and

• limit our ability to execute on our growth strategy, which is dependent upon access to capital to fund our substantial infrastructure investment
program.

Some of our debt obligations contain financial covenants related to debt-to-capital ratios and cross-default provisions. Our failure to comply with any of these
covenants could result in an event of default, which, if not cured or waived, could result in the acceleration of outstanding debt obligations.

A drop in our credit ratings could adversely impact our cash flows, results of operation, financial condition and liquidity.

The availability and cost of credit for our businesses may be greatly affected by credit ratings. The credit rating agencies periodically review our ratings, taking
into account factors such as our capital structure, earnings profile, and overall shifts in the economy or business environment. We are committed to maintaining
investment grade credit ratings; however, there is no assurance we will be able to do so in the future. Our credit ratings could be lowered or withdrawn entirely
by a rating agency if, in its judgment, the circumstances warrant. Any negative rating action could adversely affect our ability to access capital at rates and on
terms that are attractive. A negative rating action could also adversely impact our business relationships with suppliers and operating partners, who may be less
willing to extend credit or offer us similarly favorable terms as secured in the past under such circumstances.

Certain of our subsidiaries have agreements that contain “ratings triggers” that require increased collateral in the form of cash, a letter of credit or other forms
of security for new and existing transactions if our credit ratings (including the standalone credit ratings of certain of our subsidiaries) are dropped below
investment grade. These agreements are primarily for insurance purposes and for the physical purchase or sale of gas or power. As of December 31, 2022, the
collateral requirement that would be required in the event of a downgrade below the ratings trigger levels would amount to approximately $85.7 million. In
addition to agreements with ratings triggers, there are other agreements that contain “adequate assurance” or “material adverse change” provisions that could
necessitate additional credit support such as letters of credit and cash collateral to transact business.

If our or certain of our subsidiaries’ credit ratings were downgraded, especially below investment grade, financing costs and the principal amount of
borrowings would likely increase due to the additional risk of our debt and because certain counterparties may require additional credit support as described
above. Such amounts may be material and could adversely affect our cash flows, results of operations and financial condition. Losing investment grade credit
ratings may also result in more restrictive covenants and reduced flexibility on repayment terms in debt issuances, lower share price and greater stockholder
dilution from common equity issuances, in addition to reputational damage within the investment community.

Adverse economic and market conditions, including increased inflation, increases in interest rates, recession or changes in investor sentiment could
materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows, financial condition and liquidity.

Deteriorating, sluggish or volatile economic conditions in our operating jurisdictions could adversely impact our ability to maintain or grow our customer base
and collect revenues from customers, which could reduce our revenue or growth rate and increase operating costs. A continued economic downturn or
recession, or slowing or stalled recovery from such economic downturn or recession, may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, or
results of operations.

We rely on access to the capital markets to finance our liquidity and long-term capital requirements, including expenditures for our utility infrastructure and to
comply with future regulatory requirements, to the extent not satisfied by the cash flow generated by our operations. We have historically relied on long-term
debt and on the issuance of equity securities to fund a portion of our capital expenditures and repay outstanding debt, and on short-term borrowings to fund a
portion of day-to-day business operations. Actions to reduce inflation, including raising interest rates, increase our cost of borrowing, which in turn could make
it more difficult to obtain financing for our operations or investments on favorable terms. Successful implementation of our long-term business strategies,
including capital investment, is dependent upon our ability to access the
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capital and credit markets, including the banking and commercial paper markets, on competitive terms and rates. An economic downturn or uncertainty, market
turmoil, changes in interest rates, changes in tax policy, challenges faced by financial institutions, changes in our credit ratings, or a change in investor
sentiment toward us or the utilities industry generally could adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital or refinance debt. For example, because
NIPSCO’s current generating facilities substantially rely on coal for its operations, certain financial institutions may choose not to participate in our financing
arrangements. In addition, large institutional investors may choose to sell or choose not to purchase our stock due to environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) concerns or concerns regarding renewable energy supply chain challenges. Reduced access to capital markets, increased borrowing costs, and/or
lower equity valuation levels could reduce future earnings per share and cash flows. In addition, any rise in interest rates may lead to higher borrowing costs,
which may adversely impact reported earnings, cost of capital and capital holdings.

If, in the future, we face limits to the credit and capital markets or experience significant increases in the cost of capital or are unable to access the capital
markets, it could limit our ability to implement, or increase the costs of implementing, our business plan, which, in turn, could materially and adversely affect
our results of operations, cash flows, financial condition and liquidity.

The COVID-19 pandemic has adversely impacted and may continue to adversely impact our business, results of operations, financial condition,
liquidity and cash flows.

The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in widespread impacts on the global economy and financial markets. The duration and ultimate impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on our business, results of operations and financial condition, including liquidity, capital and financing resources, will depend on numerous evolving
factors and future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted at this time. Such factors and developments may include the severity and
duration of the COVID-19 pandemic, including whether there are periods of increased COVID-19 cases; the emergence of other new or more contagious
variants that may render vaccines ineffective or less effective; disruption to our operations resulting from employee illnesses or any inability to attract, retain or
motivate employees; the development, availability and administration of effective treatment or vaccines and the willingness of individuals to receive a vaccine;
the extent and duration of the impact on the U.S. or global economy, including the pace and extent of recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic; and the actions
that have been or may be taken by various governmental authorities in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Most of our revenues are subject to economic regulation and are exposed to the impact of regulatory rate reviews and proceedings.

Most of our revenues are subject to economic regulation at either the federal or state level. As such, the revenues generated by us are subject to regulatory
review by the applicable federal or state authority. These rate reviews determine the rates charged to customers and directly impact revenues. Our financial
results are dependent on frequent regulatory proceedings in order to ensure timely recovery of costs and investments. As described in more detail in the risk
factor below, the outcomes of these proceedings are uncertain, potentially lengthy and could be influenced by many factors, some of which may be outside of
our control, including the cost of providing service, the necessity of expenditures, the quality of service, regulatory interpretations, customer intervention,
economic conditions and the political environment. Further, the rate orders are subject to appeal, which creates additional uncertainty as to the rates that will
ultimately be allowed to be charged for services.

The actions of regulators and legislators could result in outcomes that may adversely affect our earnings and liquidity.

The rates that our electric and natural gas companies charge their customers are determined by their state regulatory commissions and by the FERC. These
commissions also regulate the companies’ accounting, operations, the issuance of certain securities and certain other matters. The FERC also regulates the
transmission of electric energy, the sale of electric energy at wholesale, accounting, issuance of certain securities and certain other matters, including reliability
standards through the North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC).

Under state and federal law, our electric and natural gas companies are entitled to charge rates that are sufficient to allow them an opportunity to recover their
prudently incurred operating and capital costs and a reasonable rate of return on invested capital, to attract needed capital and maintain their financial integrity,
while also protecting relevant public interests. Our electric and natural gas companies are required to engage in regulatory approval proceedings as a part of the
process of establishing the terms and rates for their respective services. Each of these companies prepares and submits periodic rate filings with their respective
regulatory commissions for review and approval, which allows for various entities to challenge our current or future rates, structures or mechanisms and could
alter or limit the rates we are allowed to charge our customers. These proceedings typically involve multiple parties, including governmental bodies and
officials, consumer advocacy groups, and various consumers of energy, who have differing concerns. Any change in rates, including changes in allowed rate of
return, are subject
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to regulatory approval proceedings that can be contentious, lengthy, and subject to appeal. This may lead to uncertainty as to the ultimate result of those
proceedings. Established rates are also subject to subsequent prudency reviews by state regulators, whereby various portions of rates could be adjusted, subject
to refund or disallowed, including cost recovery mechanisms. The ultimate outcome and timing of regulatory rate proceedings could have a significant effect
on our ability to recover costs or earn an adequate return. Adverse decisions in our proceedings could adversely affect our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

There can be no assurance that regulators will approve the recovery of all costs incurred by our electric and natural gas companies, including costs for
construction, operation and maintenance, and compliance with current and future changes in environmental, federal pipeline safety, critical infrastructure and
cyber security laws and regulations. Challenges arise with state regulators on inflationary pricing for electric and gas materials and potential price increases,
ensuring that updated pricing for electric and gas materials is included in plans and regulatory assumptions, and ensuring there is a regulatory recovery model
for emergency inventory stock. There is debate among state regulators and other stakeholders over how to transition to a decarbonized economy and prudency
arguments relative to investing in natural gas assets when the depreciable life of the assets may be shortened due to electrification. The inability to recover a
significant amount of operating costs could have an adverse effect on a company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Changes to rates may occur at times different from when costs are incurred. Additionally, catastrophic events at other utilities could result in our regulators and
legislators imposing additional requirements that may lead to additional costs for the companies.

In addition to the risk of disallowance of incurred costs, regulators may also impose downward adjustments in a company’s allowed ROE as well as assess
penalties and fines. Regulators may reduce ROE to mitigate potential customer bill increases due to items unrelated to capital investments such as potential
increases in taxes and incremental costs related to COVID-19. These actions would have an adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations and
cash flows.

Our electric business is subject to mandatory reliability and critical infrastructure protection standards established by NERC and enforced by the FERC. The
critical infrastructure protection standards focus on controlling access to critical physical and cybersecurity assets. Compliance with the mandatory reliability
standards could subject our electric utilities to higher operating costs. In addition, compliance with PHMSA regulations could subject our gas utilities to higher
operating costs. If our businesses are found to be in noncompliance, we could be subject to sanctions, including substantial monetary penalties, or damage to
our reputation.

Changes in tax laws, as well as the potential tax effects of business decisions, could negatively impact our business, results of operations (including our
expected project returns from our planned renewable energy projects), financial condition and cash flows.

Our business operations are subject to economic conditions in certain industries.

Business operations throughout our service territories have been and may continue to be adversely affected by economic events at the national and local level
where our businesses operate. In particular, sales to large industrial customers, such as those in the steel, oil refining, industrial gas and related industries, are
impacted by economic downturns and recession; geographic or technological shifts in production or production methods; and consumer demand for
environmentally friendly products and practices. The U.S. manufacturing industry continues to adjust to changing market conditions including international
competition, inflation and increasing costs, and fluctuating demand for its products. In addition, our results of operations are negatively impacted by lower
revenues resulting from higher bankruptcies, predominately focused on commercial and industrial customers not able to sustain operations through the
economic disruptions related to the pandemic.

We are exposed to risk that customers will not remit payment for delivered energy or services, and that suppliers or counterparties will not perform
under various financial or operating agreements.

Our extension of credit is governed by a Corporate Credit Risk Policy, involves considerable judgment by our employees and is based on an evaluation of a
customer or counterparty’s financial condition, credit history and other factors. We monitor our credit risk exposure by obtaining credit reports and updated
financial information for customers and suppliers, and by evaluating the financial status of our banking partners and other counterparties by reference to
market-based metrics such as credit default swap pricing levels, and to traditional credit ratings provided by the major credit rating agencies. Adverse economic
conditions result in an increase in defaults by customers, suppliers and counterparties.
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We are a holding company and are dependent on cash generated by our subsidiaries to meet our debt obligations and pay dividends on our stock.

We are a holding company and conduct our operations primarily through our subsidiaries, which are separate and distinct legal entities. Substantially all of our
consolidated assets are held by our subsidiaries. Accordingly, our ability to meet our debt obligations or pay dividends on our common stock and preferred
stock is largely dependent upon cash generated by these subsidiaries. In the event a major subsidiary is not able to pay dividends or transfer cash flows to us,
our ability to service our debt obligations or pay dividends could be negatively affected.

The trading prices for our Equity Units, initially consisting of Corporate Units, and related treasury units and Series C Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock, are expected to be affected by, among other things, the trading prices of our common stock, the general level of interest rates and our
credit quality.

The trading prices of the Equity Units, initially consisting of Corporate Units, which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange, and the related treasury units
and Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock in the secondary market, are expected to be affected by, among other things, the trading prices of our
common stock, the general level of interest rates and our credit quality. It is impossible to predict whether the price of our common stock or interest rates will
rise or fall. The price of our common stock could be subject to wide fluctuations in the future in response to many events or factors, including those discussed
in the risk factors herein, many of which events and factors are beyond our control. Fluctuations in interest rates may give rise to arbitrage opportunities based
upon changes in the relative value of the common stock underlying the purchase contracts and of the other components of the Equity Units. Any such arbitrage
could, in turn, affect the trading prices of the Corporate Units, treasury units, mandatory convertible preferred stock and our common stock.

The early settlement right triggered under certain circumstances and the supermajority rights of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock
following a fundamental change, could discourage a potential acquirer.

The fundamental change early settlement right with respect to the purchase contracts triggered under certain circumstances by a fundamental change and the
supermajority voting rights of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock in connection with certain fundamental change transactions jointly could
discourage a potential acquirer, including potential acquirers that would otherwise seek a transaction with us that would be attractive to our investors.

Our Equity Units, initially consisting of Corporate Units, and related Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, and the issuance and sale of
common stock in settlement of the purchase contracts and conversion of mandatory convertible preferred stock, may all adversely affect the market
price of our common stock and will cause dilution to our stockholders.

The market price of our common stock is likely to be influenced by our Equity Units, initially consisting of Corporate Units, and related mandatory convertible
preferred stock. For example, the market price of our common stock could become more volatile and could be depressed by:

• investors’ anticipation of the sale into the market of a substantial number of additional shares of our common stock issued upon settlement of the
purchase contracts or conversion of our mandatory convertible preferred stock;

• possible sales of our common stock by investors who view our Equity Units, initially consisting of Corporate Units, or related mandatory convertible
preferred stock as a more attractive means of equity participation in us than owning shares of our common stock; and

• hedging or arbitrage trading activity that may develop involving our Equity Units, initially consisting of Corporate Units, or related mandatory
convertible preferred stock and our common stock.

In addition, we cannot predict the effect that future issuances or sales of our common stock, if any, including those made upon the settlement of the purchase
contracts or conversion of the mandatory convertible preferred stock, may have on the market price for our common stock.

Our Equity Units, initially consisting of Corporate Units, and the issuance and sale of substantial amounts of common stock, including issuances and sales upon
the settlement of the purchase contracts or conversion of the mandatory convertible preferred stock, could adversely affect the market price of our common
stock and will cause dilution to our stockholders.

Capital market performance and other factors may decrease the value of benefit plan assets, which then could require significant additional funding
and impact earnings.
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The performance of the capital markets affects the value of the assets that are held in trust to satisfy future obligations under defined benefit pension and other
postretirement benefit plans. We have significant obligations in these areas and hold significant assets in these trusts. These assets are subject to market
fluctuations and may yield uncertain returns, which fall below our projected rates of return. A decline in the market value of assets may increase the funding
requirements of the obligations under the defined benefit pension plans. Additionally, changes in interest rates affect the liabilities under these benefit plans; as
interest rates decrease, the liabilities increase, which could potentially increase funding requirements. Further, the funding requirements of the obligations
related to these benefits plans may increase due to changes in governmental regulations and participant demographics, including increased numbers of
retirements or longer life expectancy assumptions, as well as voluntary early retirements. In addition, lower asset returns result in increased expenses.
Ultimately, significant funding requirements and increased pension or other postretirement benefit plan expense could negatively impact our results of
operations and financial position.

We have significant goodwill. Any future impairments of goodwill could result in a significant charge to earnings in a future period and negatively
impact our compliance with certain covenants under financing agreements.

In accordance with GAAP, we test goodwill for impairment at least annually and review our definite-lived intangible assets for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate its fair value might be below its carrying value. Goodwill is also tested for impairment when factors, examples of which
include reduced cash flow estimates, a sustained decline in stock price or market capitalization below book value, indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

A significant charge in the future could impact the capitalization ratio covenant under certain financing agreements. We are subject to a financial covenant
under our revolving credit facility and term credit agreement, which requires us to maintain a debt to capitalization ratio that does not exceed 70%. As of
December 31, 2022, the ratio was 58.9%.

LITIGATION, REGULATORY AND LEGISLATIVE RISKS

The outcome of legal and regulatory proceedings, investigations, inquiries, claims and litigation related to our business operations may have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or liquidity.

We are involved in legal and regulatory proceedings, investigations, inquiries, claims and litigation in connection with our business operations, including those
related to the Greater Lawrence Incident, the most significant of which are summarized in Note 19, "Other Commitments and Contingencies," in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Our insurance does not cover all costs and expenses that we have incurred relating to the Greater Lawrence Incident, and
does not fully cover incidents that could occur in the future. Due to the inherent uncertainty of the outcomes of such matters, there can be no assurance that the
resolution of any particular claim or proceeding would not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or liquidity.

The Greater Lawrence Incident has materially adversely affected and may continue to materially adversely affect our financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows and we may have continued financial liabilities related to the sale of the Massachusetts Business.

In connection with the Greater Lawrence Incident, we have incurred and will incur various costs and expenses. While we have recovered the full amount of our
liability insurance coverage available under our policies, total expenses related to the incident exceeded such amount. Expenses in excess of our liability
insurance coverage have materially adversely affected and may continue to materially adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial
position. We may also incur additional costs associated with the Greater Lawrence Incident, beyond the amount currently anticipated, including in connection
with civil litigation. Additionally, it may be difficult to determine whether a claim for damages from a third party related to the Massachusetts Business or the
Greater Lawrence Incident is our responsibility or Eversource’s, and we may expend substantial resources trying to determine whether we or Eversource has
responsibility for the claim. Further, state or federal legislation may be enacted that would require us to incur additional costs by mandating various changes,
including changes to our operating practice standards for natural gas distribution operations and safety. In addition, if it is determined in other matters that we
did not comply with applicable statutes, regulations or rules in connection with the operations or maintenance of our natural gas system, and we are ordered to
pay additional amounts in penalties, or other amounts, our financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Our settlement with the U.S. Attorney’s Office in respect of federal charges in connection with the Greater Lawrence Incident may expose us to
further penalties, liabilities and private litigation, and may impact our operations.

On February 26, 2020, the Company entered into a DPA and Columbia of Massachusetts entered into a plea agreement with the U.S. Attorney’s Office to
resolve the U.S. Attorney’s Office’s investigation relating to the Greater Lawrence Incident, which
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was subsequently approved by the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts. The agreements impose various compliance and remedial
obligations on the Company and Columbia of Massachusetts. Failure to comply with the terms of these agreements could result in further enforcement action
by the U.S. Attorney’s Office, expose the Company and Columbia of Massachusetts to penalties, financial or otherwise, and subject the Company to further
private litigation, each of which could impact our operations and have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our businesses are subject to various federal, state and local laws, regulations, tariffs and policies. We could be materially adversely affected if we fail
to comply with such laws, regulations, tariffs and policies or with any changes in or new interpretations of such laws, regulations, tariffs and policies.

Our businesses are subject to various federal, state and local laws, regulations, tariffs and policies, including, but not limited to, those relating to natural gas
pipeline safety, employee safety, the environment and our energy infrastructure. In particular, we are subject to significant federal, state and local regulations
applicable to utility companies, including regulations by the various utility commissions in the states where we serve customers. These regulations significantly
influence our operating environment, may affect our ability to recover costs from utility customers, and cause us to incur substantial compliance and other
costs. Existing laws, regulations, tariffs and policies may be revised or become subject to new interpretations, and new laws, regulations, tariffs and policies
may be adopted or become applicable to us and our operations. In some cases, compliance with new laws, regulations, tariffs and policies increases our costs or
risks of liability. Supply chain constraints may challenge our ability to remain in compliance if we cannot obtain the materials that we need to operate our
business in a compliant manner. If we fail to comply with laws, regulations and tariffs applicable to us or with any changes in or new interpretations of such
laws, regulations, tariffs or policies, our financial condition, results of operations, regulatory outcomes and cash flows may be materially adversely affected.

Our businesses are regulated under numerous environmental laws and regulations. The cost of compliance with these laws and regulations, and
changes to or additions to, or reinterpretations of the laws and regulations, could be significant, and the cost of compliance may not be recoverable.
Liability from the failure to comply with existing or changed laws and regulations could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our businesses are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws and rules that regulate, among other things, air emissions, water usage and
discharges, GHG and waste products such as CCR. Compliance with these legal obligations require us to make significant expenditures for installation of
pollution control equipment, remediation, environmental monitoring, emissions fees, and permits at many of our facilities. Furthermore, if we fail to comply
with environmental laws and regulations or are found to have caused damage to the environment or persons, that failure or harm may result in the assessment
of civil or criminal penalties and damages against us, injunctions to remedy the failure or harm, and the inability to operate facilities as designed and intended.

Existing environmental laws and regulations may be revised and new laws and regulations may be adopted or become applicable to us, with an increasing
focus on the impact of coal and natural gas facilities that may result in significant additional expense and operating restrictions on our facilities, which may not
be fully recoverable from customers and could materially affect the continued economic viability of our facilities.

An area of significant uncertainty and risk are potential changes to the laws concerning emission of GHG. While we continue to execute our plan to reduce our
Scope 1 GHG emissions through the retirement of coal-fired electric generation, increased sourcing of renewable energy, priority pipeline replacement, leak
detection and repair, and other methods, and while we have set a Net Zero Goal, GHG emissions are anticipated to be associated with energy delivery for many
years. Future GHG legislation and/or regulation related to the generation of electricity or the extraction, production, distribution, transmission, storage and end
use of natural gas could materially impact our gas supply, financial position, financial results and cash flows.

Another area of significant uncertainty and risk are the regulations concerning CCR. The EPA has issued regulations and plans to promulgate additional
regulations concerning the management, transformation, transportation and storage of CCRs. NIPSCO is also incurring or will incur costs associated with
closing, corrective action, and ongoing monitoring of certain CCR impoundments. We have two pending petitions at the Indiana Utility Regulatory
Commission (IURC) seeking recovery of ash pond closure costs related to federal regulations governing CCRs at the Michigan City and R.M. Schahfer
Generating Stations and believe there is supportive Indiana law authorizing such recovery. Further, a release of CCR to the environment could result in
remediation costs, penalties, claims, litigation, increased compliance costs, and reputational damage.

We currently have a pending application with the EPA to continue operation of a CCR impoundment that is tied to operation of R.M. Schahfer Generating
Station Units 17 and 18 to the end of 2025, with the CCR impoundment closing by October 2028. In
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proposed and final EPA actions denying continued operation of CCR impoundments at other utilities, EPA said that CCR impoundments should cease receipt of
CCRs within 135 days of final EPA action unless certain conditions are demonstrated, such as potential reliability issues. In the event that approval is not
obtained, future operations could be impacted.

The actual future expenditures to achieve environmental compliance depends on many factors, including the nature and extent of impact, the method of
improvement, the cost of raw materials, contractor costs, and requirements established by environmental authorities. Changes in costs and the ability to recover
under regulatory mechanisms could affect our financial position, financial results and cash flows.

Changes in taxation and the ability to quantify such changes as well as challenges to tax positions could adversely affect our financial results.

We are subject to taxation by the various taxing authorities at the federal, state and local levels where we do business. Legislation or regulation which could
affect our tax burden could be enacted by any of these governmental authorities. The IRA imposed a 15 percent minimum tax rate on book earnings for
corporations with higher than $1 billion of annual income, along with a 1 percent excise tax on corporate stock repurchases while providing tax incentives to
promote various clean energy initiatives. We are currently assessing the potential impact of these legislative changes. The outcome of regulatory proceedings
regarding the extent to which the effect of a change in corporate tax rate will impact customers and the time period over which the impact will occur could
significantly impact future earnings and cash flows. Separately, a challenge by a taxing authority, changes in taxing authorities’ administrative interpretations,
decisions, policies and positions, our ability to utilize tax benefits such as carryforwards or tax credits, or a deviation from other tax-related assumptions may
cause actual financial results to deviate from previous estimates.
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None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Discussed below are the principal properties held by us and our subsidiaries as of December 31, 2022.

Gas Distribution Operations
Refer to Item 1, "Business - Gas Distribution Operations," of this report for further information on Gas Distribution Operations properties.

Electric Operations
Refer to Item 1, "Business - Electric Operations," of this report for further information on Electric Operations properties.

Corporate and Other Operations
We own the Southlake Complex, our 325,000 square foot headquarters building located in Merrillville, Indiana.

Character of Ownership
Our principal properties and our subsidiaries' principal properties are owned free from encumbrances, subject to minor exceptions, none of which are of such a
nature as to impair substantially the usefulness of such properties. Many of our subsidiary offices in various communities served are occupied under leases. All
properties are subject to routine liens for taxes, assessments and undetermined charges (if any) incidental to construction. It is our practice to regularly pay such
amounts, as and when due, unless contested in good faith. In general, the electric lines, gas pipelines and related facilities are located on land not owned by us
or our subsidiaries, but are covered by necessary consents of various governmental authorities or by appropriate rights obtained from owners of private
property. We do not, however, generally have specific easements from the owners of the property adjacent to public highways over, upon or under which our
electric lines and gas distribution pipelines are located. At the time each of the principal properties was purchased, a title search was made. In general, no
examination of titles as to rights-of-way for electric lines, gas pipelines or related facilities was made, other than examination, in certain cases, to verify the
grantors’ ownership and the lien status thereof.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For a description of our legal proceedings, see Note 19, "Other Commitments and Contingencies - C. Legal Proceedings," in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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NiSource’s common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol "NI."

Holders of shares of NiSource’s common stock are entitled to receive dividends if and when declared by the Board out of funds legally available, subject to the
prior dividend rights of holders of our preferred stock or the depositary shares representing such preferred stock outstanding, and if full dividends have not
been declared and paid on all outstanding shares of preferred stock in any dividend period, no dividend may be declared or paid or set aside for payment on our
common stock. The policy of the Board has been to declare cash dividends on a quarterly basis payable on or about the 20th day of February, May, August, and
November. At its January 26, 2023 meeting, the Board declared a quarterly common dividend of $0.250 per share, payable on February 17, 2023 to holders of
record on February 7, 2023.

Although the Board currently intends to continue the payment of regular quarterly cash dividends on common shares, the timing and amount of future
dividends will depend on the earnings of NiSource’s subsidiaries, their financial condition, cash requirements, regulatory restrictions, any restrictions in
financing agreements and other factors deemed relevant by the Board. There can be no assurance that NiSource will continue to pay such dividends or the
amount of such dividends.

As of February 15, 2023, NiSource had 16,572 common stockholders of record and 412,507,944 shares outstanding.

The graph below compares the cumulative total shareholder return of NiSource’s common stock for the period commencing December 31, 2017 and ending
December 31, 2022 with the cumulative total return for the same period of the S&P 500 and the Dow Jones Utility indices.

The foregoing performance graph is being furnished as part of this annual report solely in accordance with the requirement under Rule 14a-3(b)(9) to furnish
stockholders with such information, and therefore, shall not be deemed to be filed or incorporated by reference into any filings by NiSource under the
Securities Act or the Exchange Act.

The total shareholder return for NiSource common stock and the two indices is calculated from an assumed initial investment of $100 and assumes dividend
reinvestment.

Purchases of Equity Securities by Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers. For the three months ended December 31, 2022, no equity securities that are registered by
NiSource Inc. pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 were purchased by or on behalf of us or any of our affiliated purchasers.
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Not applicable.
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("Management's Discussion") includes management’s analysis
of past financial results and certain potential factors that may affect future results, potential future risks and approaches that may be used to manage those risks.
See "Note regarding forward-looking statements" and Item 1A, "Risk Factors" at the beginning of this report for a list of factors that may cause results to differ
materially.

This Management's Discussion is designed to provide an understanding of our operations and financial performance and should be read in conjunction with our
Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this annual report.

We are an energy holding company under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2005 whose subsidiaries are fully regulated natural gas and electric utility
companies serving customers in six states. We generate substantially all of our operating income through these rate-regulated businesses, which are
summarized for financial reporting purposes into two primary reportable segments: Gas Distribution Operations and Electric Operations.

Refer to the "Business" section under Item 1 of this annual report and Note 21, "Business Segment Information," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion of our regulated utility business segments.

Our goal is to develop strategies that benefit all stakeholders as we (i) embark on long-term infrastructure investment and safety programs to better serve our
customers, (ii) align our tariff structures with our cost structure, and (iii) address changing customer conservation patterns. These strategies focus on improving
safety and reliability, enhancing customer service, ensuring customer affordability and reducing emissions while generating sustainable returns. The safety of
our customers, communities and employees remains our top priority. In 2022, NiSource achieved conformance certification to the American Petroleum Institute
Recommended Practice 1173, which serves as the guiding practice for our SMS. This certification marks an important milestone for our SMS and NiSource’s
journey towards operational excellence. Additionally, we continue to pursue regulatory and legislative initiatives that will allow residential customers not
currently on our system to obtain gas service in a cost effective manner.

2022 Overview: In 2022, we continued to make significant progress towards our strategic and financial goals and objectives. We completed the first full year
of operating Indiana Crossroads Wind, and construction is near completion for two of our solar projects. In 2022, we filed four rate cases and resolved three, in
Pennsylvania, Maryland, and the gas rate case in Indiana filed in 2021. In addition, the Ohio rate case was resolved in January 2023 and the Virginia rate case
is anticipated to be resolved in the first quarter of 2023. These cases represent balanced outcomes supporting all stakeholders. Between our Gas Distribution
and Electric Operating Segments, we added 25,000 customers. We also invested $1.6 billion in infrastructure modernization to enhance safe, reliable service,
including replacement of 410 miles of distribution main and service lines, 48 miles of underground cable and 1,352 electric poles.

We also made advancements in key strategic initiatives, described in further detail below.

Your Energy, Your Future: Our plan to replace our coal generation capacity by the end of 2028 with primarily renewable resources, initiated through our
2018 Integrated Resource Plan ("2018 Plan") is well underway, and we are continually adjusting to the dynamic renewable energy landscape. As of
December 31, 2022, we have executed and received IURC approval for BTAs and PPAs with a combined nameplate capacity of 1,950 MW and 1,380 MW,
respectively, under the 2018 Plan. During 2022, we made significant progress on our first two solar BTAs and anticipate completion of these projects and tax
equity financing in 2023. We have also taken contractual actions on a number of our other renewable projects to address the
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timing of these projects as well as consider the broad market issues facing the industry. We remain on track to retire R.M Schahfer's remaining two coal units
by the end of 2025. In August 2022, the IRA was signed into law. We are evaluating the impact of this legislation to our renewable projects with potential to
drive increased value to customers as part of our expansion of renewable projects and generation transition strategy. However, the leveraging of the IRA will be
considered on a project-by-project basis and evaluate several factors, both quantitative and qualitative, that results in the best position for project success as
well as customer and company considerations. For additional information, see "Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Electric Operations," in this
Management's Discussion.

In 2021, we announced and filed with the IURC the Preferred Energy Resource Plan associated with our 2021 Integrated Resource Plan ("2021 Plan"). The
2021 Plan lays out a timeline to retire the Michigan City Generating Station by the end of 2028. The 2021 Plan calls for the replacement of the retiring units
with a diverse portfolio of resources including demand side management resources, incremental solar, stand-alone energy storage and upgrades to existing
facilities at the Sugar Creek Generating Station, among other steps. Additionally, the 2021 Plan calls for a natural gas peaking unit to replace existing vintage
gas peaking units at the R.M. Schahfer Generating Station to support system reliability and resiliency, as well as upgrades to the transmission system to
enhance our electric generation transition. The planned retirement of the two vintage gas peaking units at the R.M. Schahfer Generating Station is also expected
to occur by the end of 2028. Final retirement dates for these units, as well as Michigan City, will be subject to MISO approval. We are continuing to evaluate
potential projects under the 2021 Plan given the responses to our Request for Proposal issued in August 2022.

Transformation: The NiNext initiative, which commenced in 2020, focused on optimizing our workforce and advancing our operations. NiNext has been
foundational in preparing for incremental, enterprise-wide investments to address inefficiencies in our current technology footprint, which stem primarily from
a complex array of legacy systems. We plan to address these inefficiencies through our Enterprise Transformation Roadmap with investments in technology
systems and infrastructure. As a result of these investments, we will deliver more modern, dependable, and secure IT systems backed with standardized
processes to reduce the operating risks of our business, increase workforce efficiencies, and increase visibility to data which will be leveraged to drive risk-
informed decisions. Our Enterprise Transformation Roadmap will position us to accomplish future strategic investments and aspirational goals.

Economic Environment: We are monitoring risks related to increasing order and delivery lead times for construction and other materials, increasing risk of
unavailability of materials due to global shortages in raw materials, and risk of decreased construction labor productivity in the event of disruptions in the
availability of materials. We are also seeing increasing prices associated with certain materials and supplies. To the extent that delays occur or our costs
increase, our business operations, results of operations, cash flows, and financial condition could be materially adversely affected. For more information on
supply chain impacts to our electric generation strategy, see "Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Electric Operations," in this Management's
Discussion.

Early in 2022, NIPSCO experienced a rail service shortage in deliveries of coal, particularly to its Michigan City Generating Station, and the primary rail
carrier for that generating station was unable to provide assurance of adequate future service to maintain coal inventory. A lack of adequate coal deliveries to
any of our coal-fired generating facilities for an extended period could deplete our inventories to a level that prevents the generating station from running, and
NIPSCO would need to rely on market purchases of replacement power, which could increase the cost of electricity for NIPSCO's customers. NIPSCO believes
these shortages have been resolved but continues to monitor deliveries of coal from its rail carriers. This did not have a material impact on our operations in
2022.

We are faced with increased competition for employee and contractor talent in the current labor market, which has resulted in increased costs to attract and
retain talent. We are ensuring that we use all internal human capital programs (development, leadership enablement programs, succession, performance
management) to promote retention of our current employees along with having a competitive and attractive appeal for potential recruits. With a focus on
workforce planning, we are anticipating to evaluate our talent footprint for the future by creating flexible work arrangements where we can, to ensure we have
the right people, in the right role, and at the right time. To the extent we are unable to execute on our workforce planning initiatives and experience increased
employee and contractor costs, our business operations, results of operations, cash flows, and financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

We experienced an increase in natural gas costs as the spot market for natural gas substantially increased throughout much of 2022, followed by a decrease in
the price of natural gas since November 2022. Nationally, levels of gas in storage were lower in 2022 compared to 2021, liquified natural gas exports to Europe
continued at a steady pace, and domestic production saw a recent decline in demand. These factors drove increased volatility in the marketplace, which
influenced customer bills
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throughout 2022. While production was increasing towards the end of 2022, weather changes have limited demand and decreased withdrawals, causing
inventory balances to be higher compared to 2021. With this decline in price, we expect to see lower volatility and declining customer bills. For the year ended
December 31, 2022, we did not see this volatility have a material impact on our results of operations. For more information on our commodity price impacts,
see "Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Gas Distribution Operations," and "Market Risk Disclosures."

Due to rising interest rates, we experienced higher interest expense in 2022 compared to 2021 associated with short-term borrowings. We continue to evaluate
our financing plan to manage interest expense and exposure to rates. For more information on interest rate risk, see "Market Risk Disclosures".

For more information on global availability of materials for our renewable projects, see "Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Electric Operations -
Electric Supply and Generation Transition."

Summary of Consolidated Financial Results

A summary of our consolidated financial results for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, are presented below:

Favorable (Unfavorable)
Year Ended December 31,
(in millions, except per share amounts) 2022 2021 2020 2022 vs. 2021 2021 vs. 2020
Operating Revenues $ 5,850.6  $ 4,899.6  $ 4,681.7  $ 951.0  $ 217.9 
Operating Expenses

Cost of energy 2,110.5  1,392.3  1,109.3  (718.2) (283.0)
Other Operating Expenses 2,474.3  2,500.4  3,021.6  26.1  521.2 

Total Operating Expenses 4,584.8  3,892.7  4,130.9  (692.1) 238.2 
Operating Income 1,265.8  1,006.9  550.8  258.9  456.1 
Total Other Deductions, Net (309.4) (300.3) (582.1) (9.1) 281.8 
Income Taxes 164.6  117.8  (17.1) (46.8) (134.9)
Net Income (Loss) 791.8  588.8  (14.2) 203.0  603.0 
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest (12.3) 3.9  3.4  16.2  (0.5)
Net Income (Loss) attributable to NiSource 804.1  584.9  (17.6) 219.2  602.5 
Preferred dividends (55.1) (55.1) (55.1) —  — 
Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholders 749.0  529.8  (72.7) 219.2  602.5 
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share $ 1.84  $ 1.35  $ (0.19) $ 0.49  $ 1.54 
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share $ 1.70  $ 1.27  $ (0.19) $ 0.43  $ 1.46 

The majority of the costs of energy in both segments are tracked costs that are passed through directly to the customer, resulting in an equal and offsetting
amount reflected in operating revenues.

The increase in net income available to common shareholders during 2022 was primarily due to higher revenues from outcomes of gas base rate proceedings
and regulatory capital programs, as well as an insurance settlement related to the Greater Lawrence Incident, offset by higher income taxes in 2022 compared
to 2021.

For additional information on operating income variance drivers see "Results and Discussion of Segment Operations" for Gas and Electric Operations in this
Management's Discussion.

Other Deductions, Net
The change in Other deductions, net in 2022 compared to 2021 is primarily driven by higher long-term and short-term debt interest in 2022 and lower non-
service pension benefits partially offset by the interest rate swap settlement gain in 2022 and charitable contributions in 2021. See Note 15, "Long-Term Debt,"
Note 16, "Short-Term Borrowings," and Note 12, "Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information.
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Income Taxes
The increase in income tax expense in 2022 compared to the same period in 2021 is primarily attributable to higher pre-tax income, offset by higher state flow
through and the reduction of the Pennsylvania corporate income tax rate.

Refer to Note 11, "Income Taxes," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information on income taxes and the change in the effective
tax rate.

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION OF OPERATIONS

Presentation of Segment Information
Our operations are divided into two primary reportable segments: Gas Distribution Operations and Electric Operations. The remainder of our operations, which
are not significant enough on a stand-alone basis to warrant treatment as an operating segment, are presented as "Corporate and Other" within the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements and primarily are comprised of interest expense on holding company debt, and unallocated corporate costs and activities.
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Financial and operational data for the Gas Distribution Operations segment for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, are presented below:

Favorable (Unfavorable)
Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020 2022 vs. 2021 2021 vs. 2020
Operating Revenues $ 4,019.8  $ 3,183.5  $ 3,140.1  $ 836.3  $ 43.4 
Operating Expenses

Cost of energy 1,534.8  962.7  794.2  (572.1) (168.5)
Operation and maintenance 1,045.3  993.8  1,138.0  (51.5) 144.2 
Depreciation and amortization 415.9  383.0  363.1  (32.9) (19.9)
Loss (gain) on sale of fixed assets and impairments, net (103.9) 8.7  412.4  112.6  403.7 
Other taxes 211.9  217.8  233.3  5.9  15.5 

Total Operating Expenses 3,104.0  2,566.0  2,941.0  (538.0) 375.0 
Operating Income $ 915.8  $ 617.5  $ 199.1  $ 298.3  $ 418.4 

Revenues
Residential $ 2,609.6  $ 2,143.4  $ 2,110.6  $ 466.2  $ 32.8 
Commercial 942.4  731.0  679.7  211.4  51.3 
Industrial 221.5  197.2  213.8  24.3  (16.6)
Off-System 192.9  71.3  41.0  121.6  30.3 
Other 53.4  40.6  95.0  12.8  (54.4)

Total $ 4,019.8  $ 3,183.5  $ 3,140.1  $ 836.3  $ 43.4 
Sales and Transportation (MMDth)

Residential 249.0  231.2  249.5  17.8  (18.3)
Commercial 181.3  167.0  170.5  14.3  (3.5)
Industrial 490.7  507.1  538.1  (16.4) (31.0)
Off-System 32.3  21.6  23.3  10.7  (1.7)
Other 0.3  0.3  0.3  —  — 

Total 953.6  927.2  981.7  26.4  (54.5)
Heating Degree Days 5,436  5,002  5,097  434  (95)
Normal Heating Degree Days 5,347  5,427  5,485  (80) (58)
% Colder (Warmer) than Normal 2 % (8)% (7)%
% Colder (Warmer) than Prior Year 9 % (2)% (5)%
Gas Distribution Customers

Residential 2,991,913 2,970,157 2,954,478 21,756  15,679 
Commercial 254,436 253,987 253,184 449  803 
Industrial 4,870 4,921 4,968 (51) (47)
Other 3 4 3 (1) 1 

Total 3,251,222 3,229,069 3,212,633 22,153  16,436 
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Gas Distribution Operations (continued)

Comparability of operation and maintenance expenses, depreciation and amortization, and other taxes may be impacted by regulatory, depreciation and tax
trackers that allow for the recovery in rates of certain costs.

The underlying reasons for changes in our operating revenues and expenses from 2022 to 2021 are presented in the respective tables below. Please refer to Part
II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Gas
Distribution Operations," of the Company's 2021 Annual Report on Form 10-K for discussion of underlying reasons for changes in our operating revenues and
expenses for 2021 versus 2020.

Favorable (Unfavorable)
Changes in Operating Revenues (in millions) 2022 vs 2021
New rates from base rate proceedings and regulatory capital programs $ 169.7 
The effects of weather in 2022 compared to 2021 31.1 
Higher revenue related to off system sales 8.8 
The effects of customer growth 4.9 
Higher revenue due to the effects of resuming common credit mitigation practices 3.5 
Increased customer usage 2.3 
Other 4.7 
Change in operating revenues (before cost of energy and other tracked items) $ 225.0 
Operating revenues offset in operating expense
Higher cost of energy billed to customers 572.1 
Higher tracker deferrals within operation and maintenance, depreciation, and tax 39.2 
Total change in operating revenues $ 836.3 

Weather
In general, we calculate the weather-related revenue variance based on changing customer demand driven by weather variance from normal heating degree
days, net of weather normalization mechanisms. Our composite heating degree days reported do not directly correlate to the weather-related dollar impact on
the results of Gas Distribution Operations. Heating degree days experienced during different times of the year or in different operating locations may have
more or less impact on volume and dollars depending on when and where they occur. When the detailed results are combined for reporting, there may be
weather-related dollar impacts on operations when there is not an apparent or significant change in our aggregated composite heating degree day comparison.

Throughput
The increase in total volumes sold and transported in 2022 compared to 2021 of 26.4 MMDth is primarily attributable to the effects of colder weather.

Commodity Price Impact
Cost of energy for the Gas Distribution Operations segment is principally comprised of the cost of natural gas used while providing transportation and
distribution services to customers. All of our Gas Distribution Operations companies have state-approved recovery mechanisms that provide a means for full
recovery of prudently incurred gas costs. These are tracked costs that are passed through directly to the customer, and the gas costs included in revenues are
matched with the gas cost expense recorded in the period. The difference is recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as under-recovered or over-recovered
gas cost to be included in future customer billings. Therefore, increases in these tracked operating expenses are offset by increases in operating revenues and
have essentially no impact on net income.

Certain Gas Distribution Operations companies continue to offer choice opportunities, where customers can choose to purchase gas from a third-party supplier,
through regulatory initiatives in their respective jurisdictions.
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Favorable (Unfavorable)
Changes in Operating Expenses (in millions) 2022 vs 2021
Property insurance settlement related to the Greater Lawrence Incident $ 105.0 
Lower NiSource Next program expenses 20.0 
Lower other than income taxes primarily related to property tax expense 17.8 
Loss on sale and expenses related to the Massachusetts Business in 2021 16.6 
Higher depreciation and amortization expense (35.1)
Higher outside services expenses (12.2)
Higher employee and administrative related expenses (10.0)
Higher fleet expenses (5.5)
Rate case settlement impacts (3.7)
Higher unrecoverable environmental remediation costs (2.7)
Higher materials and supplies expense (2.7)
Earnings test reserve adjustment in 2021 (2.5)
Other (11.7)
Change in operating expenses (before cost of energy and other tracked items) $ 73.3 
Operating expenses offset in operating revenue
Higher cost of energy billed to customers (572.1)
Higher tracker deferrals within operation and maintenance, depreciation, and tax (39.2)
Total change in operating expense $ (538.0)

Columbia of Massachusetts Asset Sale
On October 9, 2020, we completed the sale of our Massachusetts Business. In March 2021, we reached an agreement with Eversource regarding the final
purchase price, including net working capital adjustments. This resulted in a pre-tax loss for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 of zero and $6.8
million, respectively, based on asset and liability balances as of the close of the transaction on October 9, 2020, transaction costs and the final purchase price.
The pre-tax loss is presented as "Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net" on the Statements of Consolidated Income (Loss).
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Financial and operational data for the Electric Operations segment for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, are presented below:

Favorable (Unfavorable)
Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020 2022 vs. 2021 2021 vs. 2020
Operating Revenues $ 1,831.7  $ 1,697.1  $ 1,536.6  $ 134.6  $ 160.5 
Operating Expenses

Cost of energy 575.8  429.7  315.2  (146.1) (114.5)
Operation and maintenance 486.2  493.6  497.6  7.4  4.0 
Depreciation and amortization 362.9  329.4  321.3  (33.5) (8.1)
Gain on sale of fixed assets and impairments, net —  (0.9) —  (0.9) 0.9 
Other taxes 44.4  57.5  53.7  13.1  (3.8)

Total Operating Expenses 1,469.3  1,309.3  1,187.8  (160.0) (121.5)
Operating Income $ 362.4  $ 387.8  $ 348.8  $ (25.4) $ 39.0 

Revenues
Residential $ 592.4  $ 568.0  $ 527.8  $ 24.4  $ 40.2 
Commercial 571.0  534.9  480.3  36.1  54.6 
Industrial 561.4  494.1  412.9  67.3  81.2 
Wholesale 13.5  15.7  12.3  (2.2) 3.4 
Other 93.4  84.4  103.3  9.0  (18.9)

Total $ 1,831.7  $ 1,697.1  $ 1,536.6  $ 134.6  $ 160.5 
Sales (Gigawatt Hours)

Residential 3,482.9  3,546.8  3,484.0  (63.9) 62.8 
Commercial 3,682.4  3,698.0  3,550.0  (15.6) 148.0 
Industrial 7,915.3  8,253.7  7,480.3  (338.4) 773.4 
Wholesale 50.0  124.7  83.6  (74.7) 41.1 
Other 89.5  108.5  106.0  (19.0) 2.5 

Total 15,220.1  15,731.7  14,703.9  (511.6) 1,027.8 
Cooling Degree Days 942  1,020  900  (78) 120 
Normal Cooling Degree Days 831  803  803  28  — 
% Warmer than Normal 13 % 27 % 12 %
% Warmer (Colder) than prior year (8)% 13 %
Electric Customers

Residential 424,735  422,436  418,871  2,299  3,565 
Commercial 58,374  58,010  57,435  364  575 
Industrial 2,130  2,137  2,154  (7) (17)
Wholesale 710  714  722  (4) (8)
Other 3  2  2  1  — 

Total 485,952  483,299  479,184  2,653  4,115 
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Electric Operations (continued)

Comparability of operation and maintenance expenses and depreciation and amortization may be impacted by regulatory and depreciation trackers that allow
for the recovery in rates of certain costs.

The underlying reasons for changes in our operating revenues and expenses from 2022 to 2021 are presented in the respective tables below. Please refer to Part
II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Results and Discussion of Segment Operations - Electric
Operations," of the Company's 2021 Annual Report on Form 10-K for discussion of underlying reasons for changes in our operating revenues and expenses for
2021 versus 2020.

Favorable (Unfavorable)
Changes in Operating Revenues (in millions) 2022 vs 2021
PPA revenue from renewable JV projects, fully offset by JV operating expenses and noncontrolling interest net income (loss) $ 27.5 
The effects of customer growth 4.6 
Decreased fuel handling costs 4.0 
New rates from regulatory capital and DSM programs 2.8 
Decreased customer usage (18.5)
Reduction in gross receipts tax, offset in operating expenses (10.3)
FAC adjustment (8.0)
FAC over earnings reserve (5.8)
The effects of weather in 2022 compared to 2021 (5.0)
Other (2.4)
Change in operating revenues (before cost of energy and other tracked items) $ (11.1)
Operating revenues offset in operating expense
Higher cost of energy billed to customers 146.1 
Lower tracker deferrals within operation and maintenance, depreciation and tax (0.4)
Total change in operating revenues $ 134.6 

See Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Weather
In general, we calculate the weather-related revenue variance based on changing customer demand driven by weather variance from normal heating or cooling
degree days. Our composite heating or cooling degree days reported do not directly correlate to the weather-related dollar impact on the results of Electric
Operations. Heating or cooling degree days experienced during different times of the year may have more or less impact on volume and dollars depending on
when they occur. When the detailed results are combined for reporting, there may be weather-related dollar impacts on operations when there is not an apparent
or significant change in our aggregated composite heating or cooling degree day comparison.

Sales
NIPSCO's Electric Segment results remains closely linked to the performance of the steel industry. MWh sales to steel-related industries accounted for
approximately 47.4% and 48.1% of the total industrial MWh sales for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Commodity Price Impact
Cost of energy for the Electric Operations segment is principally comprised of the cost of coal, natural gas purchased for internal generation of electricity at
NIPSCO, and the cost of power purchased from generators of electricity. NIPSCO has a state-approved recovery mechanism that provides a means for full
recovery of prudently incurred costs of energy. The majority of these costs of energy are passed through directly to the customer, and the costs of energy
included in operating revenues are matched with the cost of energy expense recorded in the period. The difference is recorded on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets as under-recovered or over-recovered fuel cost to be included in future customer billings. Therefore, increases in these tracked operating expenses are
offset by increases in operating revenues and have essentially no impact on net income.

(1)

(1)
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Favorable (Unfavorable)
Changes in Operating Expenses (in millions) 2022 vs 2021
Renewable JV project expenses, offset by JV operating revenues $ (25.5)
Higher depreciation and amortization expense driven by the JV depreciation adjustment (15.7)
Effects of environmental recoveries in 2021 (6.5)
Higher outside services expenses (5.7)
Expenses related to the accelerated retirement of the R.M. Schahfer Generating Station's coal Units 14 and 15 in 2021 13.2 
Reduction in gross receipts tax, offset in operating revenues 10.3 
Lower NiSource Next program expenses 8.1 
Lower employee and administrative expenses 5.6 
Other 1.9 
Change in operating expenses (before cost of energy and other tracked items) $ (14.3)
Operating expenses offset in operating revenue
Higher cost of energy billed to customers (146.1)
Lower tracker deferrals within operation and maintenance, depreciation and tax 0.4 
Total change in operating expense $ (160.0)

See Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Electric Supply and Generation Transition
NIPSCO continues to execute on an electric generation transition consistent with the 2018 Plan, which outlines the path to retire the remaining two coal units at
Schahfer by the end of 2025 and the remaining coal-fired generation by the end of 2028, to be replaced by lower-cost, reliable and cleaner options. See "Project
Status" discussion, below, and "Liquidity and Capital Resources" in this Management's Discussion for anticipated barriers to the success of our electric
generation transition and additional information on our capital investment spend.

NIPSCO continues to work with the EPA and the Indiana Department of Environmental Management to obtain administrative approvals associated with the
operation of R.M. Schahfer’s remaining two coal units beyond 2023. In the event that the approvals are not obtained, future operations could be impacted. We
cannot estimate the financial impact on us if these approvals are not obtained.

The current replacement plan primarily includes renewable sources of energy, including wind, solar, and battery storage to be obtained through a combination
of NIPSCO ownership and PPAs. NIPSCO has sold, and may in the future sell, renewable energy credits from this generation to third parties to offset customer
costs. NIPSCO has executed several PPAs to purchase 100% of the output from renewable generation facilities at a fixed price per MWh. Each facility
supplying the energy will have an associated nameplate capacity, and payments under the PPAs will not begin until the associated generation facility is
constructed by the owner/seller. NIPSCO has also executed several BTAs with developers to construct renewable generation facilities.

Three wind projects have been placed into service, totaling approximately 804 MW of nameplate capacity. All announced projects below have received IURC
approval. During 2022, NIPSCO amended certain of its BTAs and PPAs. NIPSCO is discussing potentially amending other BTAs and PPAs. Any amendments
that result in increased project costs may require additional approval by the IURC in order to obtain recovery for increased costs. Our current replacement
program will be augmented by the Preferred Energy Resource Plan outlined in our 2021 Integrated Resource Plan. See "Executive Summary - Your Energy,
Your Future" in this Management's Discussion for additional information.

(1)

(1)
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Project Name Transaction Type Technology
Nameplate

Capacity (MW)
Storage

Capacity (MW)
Dunn's Bridge I BTA Solar 265 —
Indiana Crossroads Solar BTA Solar 200 —
Dunn's Bridge II BTA Solar & Storage 435 75
Cavalry BTA Solar & Storage 200 60
Fairbanks BTA Solar 250 —
Elliott BTA Solar 200 —
Indiana Crossroads II 15 year PPA Wind 204 —
Brickyard 20 year PPA Solar 200 —
Greensboro 20 year PPA Solar & Storage 100 30
Gibson 22 year PPA Solar 280 —
Green River 20 year PPA Solar 200 —

Ownership of the facilities will be transferred to JVs whose members are expected to include NIPSCO and an unrelated tax equity partner.

Project Status. Our contract amendments with certain solar agreements will result in the majority of our remaining projects, and investments, being placed in
service between 2023 and 2025. These amendments also formally address inflationary cost pressures communicated from the developers of our solar and
storage projects that are primarily due to (i) unavailability of solar panels and other uncertainties related to the pending U.S. Department of Commerce
investigation on Antidumping and Countervailing Duties petition filed by a domestic solar manufacturer (the "DOC Investigation"), (ii) the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security's June 2021 Withhold Release Order on silica-based products made by Hoshine Silicon Industry Co., Ltd./Uyghur Forced Labor Prevention
Act, (iii) Section 201 Tariffs and (iv) persistent general global supply chain and labor availability issues. We are also monitoring the developers of our
renewable energy projects related to local permitting processes and obtaining interconnection rights. Preliminary findings from the DOC Investigation were
released in December 2022, with a final decision expected in May 2023. The resolution of these issues, including the final conclusion of the DOC Investigation
will determine which, if any, of our solar projects will be subject to any tariffs imposed.

In June 2022, the Biden Administration announced a 24-month tariff relief on solar panels subject to the ongoing U.S. Department of Commerce investigation
and authorized the use of the Defense Production Act, to accelerate domestic production of clean energy technologies, including solar panel parts.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1) 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We continually evaluate the availability of adequate financing to fund our ongoing business operations, working capital and core safety and infrastructure
investment programs. Our financing is sourced through cash flow from operations and the issuance of debt and/or equity. External debt financing is provided
primarily through the issuance of long-term debt, accounts receivable securitization programs and our $1.5 billion commercial paper program, which is
backstopped by our committed revolving credit facility with a total availability from third-party lenders of $1.85 billion. On December 20, 2022, we entered
into a $1.0 billion term credit agreement that matures on December 19, 2023. On February 18, 2022, we amended our revolving credit agreement to, among
other things, extend its term to February 18, 2027. The commercial paper program and credit facility provide cost-effective, short-term financing until it can be
replaced with a balance of long-term debt and equity financing that achieves our desired capital structure. On June 10, 2022, we completed the issuance and
sale of $350.0 million of 5.00% senior unsecured notes maturing in 2052, which resulted in approximately $344.6 million of net proceeds after discount and
debt issuance costs. We intend to disburse an amount equal to the net proceeds of the notes to finance, in whole or in part, the acquisition of our 302 MW
Indiana Crossroads Wind project and 102 MW Rosewater Wind project from the project developer. On November 7, 2022, we announced that we intend to
pursue the sale of a minority interest in our NIPSCO business unit. We utilize an ATM equity program that allows us to issue and sell shares of our common
stock up to an aggregate issuance of $750.0 million through December 31, 2023. As of December 31, 2022, the ATM program had approximately $300.0
million of equity available for issuance. We also expect to remarket the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock prior to December 1, 2023, which
could result in additional cash proceeds. See Note 13, "Equity," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on our ATM program
and Equity Units.

We believe these sources provide adequate capital to fund our operating activities and capital expenditures in 2023 and beyond.

Greater Lawrence Incident. As discussed in Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors," and in Note 19, "Other Commitments and Contingencies," in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, due to the inherent uncertainty of litigation, there can be no assurance that the outcome or resolution of any particular claim
related to the Greater Lawrence Incident will not continue to have an adverse impact on our cash flows. Through income generated from operating activities,
amounts available under the short-term revolving credit facility, and our ability to access capital markets, we believe we have adequate capital available to
settle remaining anticipated claims associated with the Greater Lawrence Incident.

Operating Activities
Net cash from operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $1,409.4 million, an increase of $191.5 million from 2021. This increase was
primarily driven by a year over year increase in revenue and collection of under-recovered gas and fuel cost from the prior year. This was offset by increased
cash outflows related to inventory purchases year over year due to higher gas costs.

Investing Activities
Net cash used for investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $2,570.2 million, an increase of $365.3 million from 2021. Our current year
investing activities were comprised of increased capital expenditures related to system growth and reliability as well as payments to renewable generation asset
developers related to Dunn's Bridge I and Indiana Crossroads Solar milestone payments. This was offset by the property insurance settlement related to the
Greater Lawrence Incident.
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Capital Expenditures. The table below reflects actual capital expenditures and certain other investing activities by segment for 2022.

Actual
(in millions) 2022
Gas Distribution Operations

System Growth and Tracker $ 1,266.1 
Maintenance 329.7 

Total Gas Distribution Operations 1,595.8 
Electric Operations

System Growth and Tracker 345.0 
Maintenance 164.2 
Generation Transition Investments 31.4 

Total Electric Operations 540.6 
Corporate and Other Operations - Maintenance 161.6 
Total Capital Expenditures $ 2,298.0 

Amounts differ from those presented in Note 21, "Business Segment Information," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements due to the allocation of Corporate and Other Maintenance Costs
to the Gas Distribution and Electric Operations segments.

Amounts differ from those presented on the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows primarily due to the capitalized portion of the Corporate Incentive Plan payout, inclusion of capital expenditures
included in current liabilities and AFUDC Equity.

In addition to these capital expenditures, we made $323.9 million of capital investments in the form of milestone payments to the renewable generation asset
developer.

We expect to make capital investments totaling approximately $15 billion during the 2023-2027 period related to infrastructure modernization, generation
transition and renewables and customer growth for the next five years:

(in billions) 2022 Actual 2023 Estimated 2024 Estimated 2025 Estimated 2026 Estimated 2027 Estimated
Capital Investments $2.6 $3.3 - 3.6 $2.6 - 2.9 $3.1 - 3.4 $2.7 - 3.0 $ 2.7 - 3.0

Regulatory Capital Programs. We replace pipe and modernize our gas infrastructure to enhance safety and reliability and reduce leaks. An ancillary benefit of
these programs is the reduction of GHG emissions. In 2022, we continued to move forward on core infrastructure and environmental investment programs
supported by complementary regulatory and customer initiatives across all six states of our operating area.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)
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The following table describes the most recent vintage of our regulatory programs to recover infrastructure replacement and other federally mandated
compliance investments currently in rates or pending commission approval:

(in millions)

Company Program
Incremental

Revenue
Incremental

Capital Investment
Investment

Period Costs Covered
Rates

Effective

Columbia of Ohio IRP - 2022 $ 25.0  $ 232.9  1/21-12/21

Replacement of (1) hazardous service lines, (2) cast iron, wrought
iron, uncoated steel, and bare steel pipe, (3) natural gas risers
prone to failure and (4) installation of AMR devices. May 2022

Columbia of Ohio CEP - 2022 $ 32.2  $ 253.5  1/21-12/21 Assets not included in the IRP. September 2022

NIPSCO - Gas TDSIC 4 $ 0.5  $ 77.5  7/21-12/21
New or replacement projects undertaken for the purpose of safety,
reliability, system modernization or economic development. July 2022

NIPSCO - Gas FMCA 1 $ 1.5  $ 14.1  10/21-3/22 Project costs to comply with federal mandates. October 2022
NIPSCO - Gas FMCA 2 $ 5.3  $ 38.2  4/22-9/22 Project costs to comply with federal mandates. April 2023

Columbia of Virginia SAVE - 2023 $ 4.5  $ 45.9  1/23-12/23
Replacement projects that (1) enhance system safety or reliability,
or (2) reduce, or potentially reduce, greenhouse gas emissions. January 2023

Columbia of Kentucky SMRP - 2023 $ 1.6  $ 41.6  1/23-12/23
Replacement of mains and inclusion of system safety
investments. January 2023

Columbia of Maryland STRIDE - 2023 $ 1.3  $ 18.0  1/23-12/23
Pipeline upgrades designed to improve public safety or
infrastructure reliability. January 2023

NIPSCO - Electric TDSIC - 1 $ 10.4  $ 148.5  6/21-1/22
New or replacement projects undertaken for the purpose of safety,
reliability, system modernization or economic development. August 2022

NIPSCO - Electric TDSIC - 2 $ 6.6  $ 143.5  2/22-7/22
New or replacement projects undertaken for the purpose of safety,
reliability, system modernization or economic development. February 2023

Programs do not include any costs already included in base rates.
The January through March 2021 investments included in these filings are also included in the pending Columbia of Ohio rate case. The infrastructure filings will be adjusted to reflect the final rate

case outcome.
NIPSCO Gas program incremental revenue decreased because of revisions for the rate case compliance filings amounts included in base rates.
NIPSCO received approval for a new certificate of public convenience and necessity on December 28, 2022 for an additional Pipeline Safety III Compliance Plan, including $235.3M in capital and

$34.1M in operation and maintenance expense project investments.
 Columbia of Virginia received a final order on November 1, 2022 modifying the SAVE filing incremental revenue and investments.
Columbia of Kentucky received an Order on December 28, 2022, modifying its 2023 SMRP filing by removing recovery of the 2022 investment not recovered as part of the most recently approved

rate case. This modification lowered incremental revenue recovered through SMRP to $1.6M, a reduction of $3.2M from the original filing.
NIPSCO filed for a new electric TDSIC plan on June 1, 2021. An order approving NIPSCO's new electric TDSIC plan was received on December 28, 2021.

On March 30, 2022, NIPSCO Electric filed a petition with the IURC seeking approval of NIPSCO's federally mandated costs for closure of Michigan City
Generating Station's CCR ash ponds. The project includes a total estimated $40.0 million of federally mandated retirement costs. A final order is expected in
the first quarter of 2023. On November 2, 2022, NIPSCO Electric filed a petition with the IURC seeking approval of NIPSCO's federally mandated costs for
closure of R.M. Schahfer Generation Station's multi-cell unit. The project includes a total estimated $53.0 million of federally mandated retirement costs.
NIPSCO is requesting all associated accounting and ratemaking relief, including establishment of a periodic rate adjustment through the FMCA mechanism.
On February 21, 2023, the Indiana Court of Appeals issued a decision in a case filed by an Indiana utility company interpreting a statute authorizing recovery
of federally mandated costs, finding that such costs incurred prior to issuance of an order by the IURC are not recoverable as federally mandated costs. If any
of NIPSCO’s CCR costs were determined to be not eligible for recovery under the federal mandate mechanism, NIPSCO would seek recovery through
depreciation within base rates. Refer to Note 19, "Other Commitments and Contingencies - E. Environmental Matters," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion of the CCRs.

Refer to Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a further discussion of regulatory developments during 2022.

(1)

(2)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(4)
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Financing Activities
Common Stock, Preferred Stock and Equity Unit Sale. Refer to Note 13, "Equity," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information on
common stock, preferred stock and equity units activity.

Short-term Debt. Refer to Note 16, "Short-Term Borrowings," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information on short-term debt.

Long-term Debt. Refer to Note 15, "Long-Term Debt," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information on long-term debt.

Non-controlling Interest. Refer to Note 4, "Variable Interest Entities," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information on contributions from
noncontrolling interest activity.

Sources of Liquidity
The following table displays our liquidity position as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:
Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021
Current Liquidity

Revolving Credit Facility $ 1,850.0  $ 1,850.0 
Accounts Receivable Programs 447.2  251.2 

Less:
Commercial Paper 415.0  560.0 
Accounts Receivable Programs Utilized 347.2  — 
Letters of Credit Outstanding Under Credit Facility 10.2  18.9 

Add:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 40.8  84.2 

Net Available Liquidity $ 1,565.6  $ 1,606.5 
Represents the lesser of the seasonal limit or maximum borrowings supportable by the underlying receivables.

Debt Covenants. We are subject to a financial covenant under our revolving credit facility and term credit agreement, which requires us to maintain a debt to
capitalization ratio that does not exceed 70%. As of December 31, 2022, the ratio was 58.9%.

Credit Ratings. The credit rating agencies periodically review our ratings, taking into account factors such as our capital structure and earnings profile. The
following table includes our and NIPSCO's credit ratings and ratings outlook as of December 31, 2022. There have been no changes to our credit ratings or
outlooks since February 2020.

A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities, and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating
organization.

S&P Moody's Fitch
Rating Outlook Rating Outlook Rating Outlook

NiSource BBB+ Stable Baa2 Stable BBB Stable
NIPSCO BBB+ Stable Baa1 Stable BBB Stable
Commercial Paper A-2 Stable P-2 Stable F2 Stable

Certain of our subsidiaries have agreements that contain “ratings triggers” that require increased collateral if our credit ratings or the credit ratings of certain of
our subsidiaries are below investment grade. These agreements are primarily for insurance purposes and for the physical purchase or sale of power. As of
December  31, 2022, a collateral requirement of approximately $85.7 million would be required in the event of a downgrade below investment grade. In
addition to agreements with ratings triggers, there are other agreements that contain “adequate assurance” or “material adverse change” provisions that could
necessitate additional credit support such as letters of credit and cash collateral to transact business.

Equity. Our authorized capital stock consists of 620,000,000 shares, $0.01 par value, of which 600,000,000 are common stock and 20,000,000 are preferred
stock. As of December  31, 2022, 412,142,602 shares of common stock and 1,302,500 shares of preferred stock were outstanding. For more information
regarding our common and preferred stock, see Note 13, "Equity," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(1)

(1)
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Contractual Obligations, Cash Requirements and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have certain contractual obligations requiring payments at specified periods. Our material cash requirements are detailed below. We intend to use funds
from the liquidity sources referenced above to meet these cash requirements.

At December  31, 2022, we had $1,761.9 million in short-term borrowings outstanding. Refer to Note 15, "Long-Term Debt," and Note 16, "Short-Term
Borrowings," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on long-term debt and short-term borrowings, respectively.

During 2023 and 2024, we expect to make cash payments of $642.2 million and $556.9 million, respectively, related to pipeline service obligations including
demand for gas transportation, gas storage and gas purchases.

Our expected payments include employer contributions to pension and other postretirement benefits plans expected to be made in 2023. Plan contributions
beyond 2023 are dependent upon a number of factors, including actual returns on plan assets, which cannot be reliably estimated at this time. In 2023, we
expect to make contributions of approximately $2.6 million to our pension plans and approximately $23.7 million to our postretirement medical and life plans.
Refer to Note 12, "Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

We cannot reasonably estimate the settlement amounts or timing of cash flows related to certain of our long-term obligations classified as "Total Other
Liabilities" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

We have uncertain income tax positions for which we are unable to predict when the matters will be resolved. Refer to Note 11, "Income Taxes," in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

NIPSCO has executed several PPAs to purchase 100% of the output from renewable generation facilities at a fixed price per MWh. NIPSCO has also executed
several BTAs with developers to construct renewable generation facilities. See Note 19, "Other Commitments and Contingencies - A. Contractual Obligations,"
and Note 19, "Other Commitments and Contingencies," - F. "Other Matters - Generation Transition," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information.

In addition, we, along with certain of our subsidiaries, enter into various agreements providing financial or performance assurance to third parties on behalf of
certain subsidiaries. Such agreements include guarantees and stand-by letters of credit.

Refer to Note 19, "Other Commitments and Contingencies," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding our
contractual obligations over the next 5 years and thereafter and our off-balance sheet arrangements.

Market Risk Disclosures

Risk is an inherent part of our businesses. The extent to which we properly and effectively identify, assess, monitor and manage each of the various types of
risk involved in our businesses is critical to our profitability. We seek to identify, assess, monitor and manage, in accordance with defined policies and
procedures, the following principal market risks that are involved in our businesses: commodity price risk, interest rate risk and credit risk. We manage risk
through a multi-faceted process with oversight by the Risk Management Committee that requires constant communication, judgment and knowledge of
specialized products and markets. Our senior management takes an active role in the risk management process and has developed policies and procedures that
require specific administrative and business functions to assist in the identification, assessment and control of various risks. These may include, but are not
limited to market, operational, financial, compliance and strategic risk types. In recognition of the increasingly varied and complex nature of the energy
business, our risk management process, policies and procedures continue to evolve and are subject to ongoing review and modification.

Commodity Price Risk
Our Gas and Electric Operations have commodity price risk primarily related to the purchases of natural gas and power. To manage this market risk, our
subsidiaries use derivatives, including commodity futures contracts, swaps, forwards and options. We do not participate in speculative energy trading activity.

Commodity price risk resulting from derivative activities at our rate-regulated subsidiaries is limited and does not bear signification exposure to earnings risk,
since our current regulatory mechanisms allow recovery of prudently incurred purchased power, fuel and gas costs through the rate-making process, including
gains or losses on these derivative instruments. These changes are included in the GCA and FAC regulatory rate-recovery mechanisms. If these mechanisms
were to be adjusted or eliminated, these subsidiaries may begin providing services without the benefit of the traditional rate-making process and may be more
exposed to commodity price risk. For additional information, see "Results and Discussion of Segment Operations" in this Management's Discussion.
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Our subsidiaries are required to make cash margin deposits with their brokers to cover actual and potential losses in the value of outstanding exchange traded
derivative contracts. The amount of these deposits, some of which is reflected in our restricted cash balance, may fluctuate significantly during periods of high
volatility in the energy commodity markets.

Refer to Note 10, "Risk Management Activities," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on our commodity price risk assets
and liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Interest Rate Risk
We are exposed to interest rate risk as a result of changes in interest rates on borrowings under our revolving credit agreement, commercial paper program,
term credit agreement and accounts receivable programs, which have interest rates that are indexed to short-term market interest rates. Based upon average
borrowings and debt obligations subject to fluctuations in short-term market interest rates, an increase (or decrease) in short-term interest rates of 100 basis
points (1%) would have increased (or decreased) interest expense by $8.7 million and $3.1 million for 2022 and 2021, respectively. We are also exposed to
interest rate risk as a result of changes in benchmark rates that can influence the interest rates of future debt issuances. From time to time we may enter into
forward interest rate instruments to lock in long term interest costs and/ or rates.

Refer to Note 10, "Risk Management Activities," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on our interest rate risk assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021. 

Credit Risk
Due to the nature of the industry, credit risk is embedded in many of our business activities. Our extension of credit is governed by a Corporate Credit Risk
Policy. In addition, our Risk Management Committee has put guidelines in place which document management approval levels for credit limits, evaluation of
creditworthiness, and credit risk mitigation efforts. Exposures to credit risks are monitored by the risk management function, which is independent of
commercial operations. Credit risk arises due to the possibility that a customer, supplier or counterparty will not be able or willing to fulfill its obligations on a
transaction on or before the settlement date. For derivative-related contracts, credit risk arises when counterparties are obligated to deliver or purchase defined
commodity units of gas or power to us at a future date per execution of contractual terms and conditions. Exposure to credit risk is measured in terms of both
current obligations and the market value of forward positions net of any posted collateral such as cash and letters of credit.

We evaluate the financial status of our banking partners through the use of market-based metrics such as credit default swap pricing levels, and also through
traditional credit ratings provided by major credit rating agencies.

Other Information

Critical Accounting Estimates
We apply certain accounting policies in accordance with GAAP, which require that we make estimates and judgments that have had, and may continue to have,
significant impacts on our operations and Consolidated Financial Statements. We evaluate our estimates on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. We
believe the following represent the more significant items requiring the use of judgment in preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements:

Basis of Accounting for Rate-Regulated Subsidiaries. ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operations, provides that rate-regulated subsidiaries account for and report
assets and liabilities consistent with the economic effect of the way in which regulators establish rates, if the rates established are designed to recover the costs
of providing the regulated service and if the competitive environment makes it probable that such rates can be charged and collected. Certain expenses and
credits subject to utility regulation or rate determination normally reflected in income are deferred on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are recognized in
income as the related amounts are included in service rates and recovered from or refunded to customers. The total amounts of regulatory assets and liabilities
reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets were $2,580.8 million and $2,012.6 million at December 31, 2022, and $2,492.2 million and $1,980.0 million at
December 31, 2021, respectively. For additional information, refer to Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In the event that regulation significantly changes the opportunity for us to recover our costs in the future, all or a portion of our regulated operations may no
longer meet the criteria for the application of ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operations. In such event, a write-down of all or a portion of our existing regulatory
assets and liabilities could result. If transition cost recovery is approved by the appropriate regulatory bodies that would meet the requirements under GAAP for
continued accounting as
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regulatory assets and liabilities during such recovery period, the regulatory assets and liabilities would be reported at the recoverable amounts. If we were
unable to continue to apply the provisions of ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operations, we would be required to apply the provisions of ASC Topic 980-20,
Discontinuation of Rate-Regulated Accounting. In management’s opinion, our regulated subsidiaries will be subject to ASC Topic 980, Regulated Operations
for the foreseeable future.

Certain of the regulatory assets reflected on our Consolidated Balance Sheets require specific regulatory action in order to be included in future service rates.
Although recovery of these amounts is not guaranteed, we believe that these costs meet the requirements for deferral as regulatory assets. If we determine that
the amounts included as regulatory assets are no longer probable of recovery, a charge to income would immediately be required to the extent of the
unrecoverable amounts.

One of the more significant items recorded through the application of this accounting guidance is the regulatory overlay for JV accounting. The application of
HLBV to consolidated VIEs generally results in the recognition of profit from the related JVs over a time frame that is different from when the regulatory
return is earned. In accordance with the principles of ASC 980, we have recognized a regulatory deferral of certain amounts representing the timing difference
between the profit earned from the JVs and the amount included in regulated rates to recover our approved investments in consolidated JVs. For additional
information, refer to Note 1, "Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - S. VIEs and Allocation of Earnings," in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Equity Unit Transaction. We record the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and forward purchase contracts that comprise the Corporate Units as
a single unit of account and classify the Corporate Units as equity under the provisions of ASC 480 and ASC 815. Significant judgments regarding the
economic linkage between the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and the forward purchase contracts, as well as the substance of the terms and
conditions of the Corporate Units, were required by management in making these determinations.

The initial classification of the Corporate Units, whether viewed as a single unit of account or as two freestanding financial instruments, would affect our
financial results. If determined to be two units of account, the forward purchase contracts underlying the Corporate Units would be classified as a derivative
and result in impacts to net income through the recognition of interest expense and mark-to-market adjustments. If determined to be one unit of account, the
equity classification of the Corporate Units would have no material impact on net income. Each classification has differing impacts to the numerator in the
computation of EPS.

We consider that there are a small number of similar equity hosted unit structures and that our unit structure is unique. We also consider that the provisions of
ASC 480 and ASC 815 that govern the determination of unit of account are highly complex and that alternate conclusions reached under this guidance would
result in materially different financial results. See Note 13, "Equity," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional details of the equity unit
transaction.

Pension and Postretirement Benefits. We have defined benefit plans for both pension and other postretirement benefits. The calculation of the net obligations
and annual expense related to the plans requires a significant degree of judgment regarding the discount rates to be used in bringing the liabilities to present
value, expected long-term rates of return on plan assets, health care trend rates, and mortality rates, among other assumptions. Due to the size of the plans and
the long-term nature of the associated liabilities, changes in the assumptions used in the actuarial estimates could have material impacts on the measurement of
the net obligations and annual expense recognition. Differences between actuarial assumptions and actual plan results are deferred into AOCI or a regulatory
balance sheet account, depending on the jurisdiction of our entity. These deferred gains or losses are then amortized into the income statement when the
accumulated differences exceed 10% of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the fair value of plan assets (known in GAAP as the “corridor”
method) or when settlement accounting is triggered.

The discount rates, expected long-term rates of return on plan assets, health care cost trend rates and mortality rates are critical assumptions. Methods used to
develop these assumptions are described below. While a third party actuarial firm assists with the development of many of these assumptions, we are ultimately
responsible for selecting the final assumptions.

The discount rate is utilized principally in calculating the actuarial present value of  pension  and other postretirement benefit obligations and net
periodic pension and other postretirement benefit plan costs. Our discount rates for both pension and other postretirement benefits are determined using spot
rates along an AA-rated above median yield curve with cash flows matching the expected duration of benefit payments to be made to plan participants.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is a component utilized in calculating annual pension and other
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postretirement benefit plan costs.  We estimate the expected return on plan assets by evaluating expected bond returns, equity risk premiums, target asset
allocations, the effects of active plan management, the impact of periodic plan asset rebalancing and historical performance. We also consider the guidance
from our investment advisors in making a final determination of our expected rate of return on assets. For measurement of 2022 net periodic benefit cost, we
selected a weighted-average assumption of the expected pre-tax long-term rate of return of 4.80% and 5.72% for our pension and other postretirement benefit
plan assets, respectively. For measurement of 2023 net periodic benefit cost, we selected a weighted-average assumption of the expected pre-tax long-term rate
of return of 7.00% and 6.69% for our pension and other postretirement benefit plan assets, respectively.

We estimate the assumed health care cost trend rate, which is used in determining our other postretirement benefit net expense, based upon our actual health
care cost experience, the effects of recently enacted legislation, third-party actuarial surveys and general economic conditions.

We utilize a full yield curve approach to estimate the service and interest components of net periodic benefit cost for pension and other postretirement benefits
by applying the specific spot rates along the yield curve used in the determination of the benefit obligation to the relevant projected cash flows. For further
discussion of our pension and other postretirement benefits, see Note 12, "Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Typically, we use the Society of Actuaries’ most recently published mortality data in developing a best estimate of mortality as part of the calculation of
the pension and other postretirement benefit obligations. We adopted Aon's U.S. Endemic Mortality Improvement scale MP-2021, accounting for both the near-
term and long-term COVID-19 impacts.

The following tables illustrate the effects of changes in these actuarial assumptions while holding all other assumptions constant:

Impact on December 31, 2022 Projected Benefit Obligation
Increase/(Decrease)

Change in Assumptions (in millions) Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
+50 basis points change in discount rate $ (52.6) $ (19.2)
-50 basis points change in discount rate 56.7  20.8 

Impact on 2022 Expense Increase/(Decrease)
Change in Assumptions (in millions) Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
+50 basis points change in discount rate $ (1.7) $ 0.5 
-50 basis points change in discount rate 1.9  0.8 
+50 basis points change in expected long-term rate of return on plan assets (9.2) (1.5)
-50 basis points change in expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 9.2  1.5 

Before labor capitalization and regulatory deferrals.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. We have six goodwill reporting units, comprised of the six state operating companies within the Gas Distribution
Operations reportable segment. Our goodwill assets at December 31, 2022 were $1,486 million, most of which resulted from the acquisition of Columbia on
November 1, 2000.

As required by GAAP, we test for impairment of goodwill on an annual basis and on an interim basis when events or circumstances indicate that a potential
impairment may exist. Our annual goodwill test takes place in the second quarter of each year and was performed on May 1, 2022. A qualitative ("step 0") test
was completed on May 1, 2022 for all reporting units. In the Step 0 analysis, we assessed various assumptions, events and circumstances that would have
affected the estimated fair value of the applicable reporting units as compared to the baseline "step 1" fair value measurement performed May 1, 2020. The
results of this assessment indicated that it was more likely than not that the estimated fair value of the reporting units substantially exceeded the related
carrying values of our reporting units; therefore, no "step 1" analysis was required and no impairment charges were indicated. Since the annual evaluation,
there have been no indications that the fair values of the goodwill reporting units have decreased below the carrying values.

(1)

(1)
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As noted above, application of the qualitative goodwill impairment test requires evaluating various events and circumstances to determine whether it is not
more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Although we believe all relevant factors were considered in the
qualitative impairment analysis to reach the conclusion that goodwill is not impaired, significant changes in any one of the assumptions could potentially result
in the recording of an impairment that could have significant impacts on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

See Note 7, "Goodwill," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

Unbilled Revenue. We record utility operating revenues when energy is delivered to our customers. However, the determination of energy sales to individual
customers is based upon the reading of their meters, which occurs on a systematic basis throughout the month. At the end of each month, amounts of energy
delivered to customers since the date of their last meter reading are estimated and corresponding unbilled revenues are calculated. This unbilled revenue is
estimated each month based upon historical usage, customer rates and weather. As of December 31, 2022 we recorded $453.0 million of customer accounts
receivable for unbilled revenue. Significant fluctuations in energy demand for the unbilled period or changes in the composition of customer classes could
impact the accuracy of the unbilled revenue estimate. Refer to Note 3, "Revenue Recognition," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information regarding our significant judgments and estimates related to unbilled revenue recognition.

Income Taxes. The consolidated income tax provision and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, as well as any unrecognized tax benefits and valuation
allowances, require use of estimates and significant management judgement. Although we believe that current estimates for deferred tax assets and liabilities
are reasonable, actual results could differ from these estimates for a variety of reasons, including reasonable projections of taxable income, the ability and
intent to implement tax planning strategies if necessary, and interpretations of applicable tax laws and regulations across multiple taxing jurisdictions. Ultimate
resolution or clarification of income tax matters may result in favorable or unfavorable impacts to net income and cash flows, and adjustments to tax-related
assets and liabilities could be material.

We account for uncertain income tax positions using a benefit recognition model with a two-step approach including a more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold and a measurement approach based on the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. We
evaluate each position based solely on the technical merits and facts and circumstances of the position, assuming the position will be examined by a taxing
authority having full knowledge of all relevant information. Significant judgment is required to determine whether the recognition threshold has been met and,
if so, the appropriate amount of tax benefits to be recorded in the consolidated financial statements. At December  31, 2022 we had $21.7 million of
unrecognized tax benefits. Changes in these unrecognized tax benefits may result from remeasurement of amounts expected to be realized, settlements with tax
authorities and expiration of statutes of limitations.

Valuation allowances against deferred tax assets are recorded when we conclude it is more likely than not such asset will not be realized in future periods.
Accounting for income taxes also requires that only tax benefits for positions taken or expected to be taken on tax returns that meet the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold can be recognized or continue to be recognized. We evaluate each position solely on the technical merits and facts and circumstances of
the position, assuming that the position will be examined by a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. Significant judgment is
required to determine recognition thresholds and the related amount of tax benefits to be recognized. At December 31, 2022, we had established $7.8 million of
valuation allowances related to certain state NOL carryforwards. Refer to Note 11, "Income Taxes," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2, "Recent Accounting Pronouncements," in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk are reported in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations – Market Risk Disclosures.”
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

NISOURCE INC.
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of NiSource Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NiSource Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the
related statements of consolidated income (loss), comprehensive income (loss), stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes and the schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our
opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 22, 2023, expressed an unqualified opinion on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to
assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to
be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on
the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Impact of Rate Regulation on the Financial Statements - Refer to Notes 1 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company’s subsidiaries are fully regulated natural gas and electric utility companies serving customers in six states. These rate-regulated subsidiaries
account for and report assets and liabilities consistent with the economic effect of the manner in which regulators establish rates, if the rates established are
designed to recover the costs of providing the regulated service and it is probable that such rates can be charged to and collected from customers. Certain
expenses and credits subject to utility regulation or rate determination normally reflected in income are deferred on the consolidated balance sheets and are
later recognized in income as the related amounts are included in customer rates and recovered from or refunded to customers.

The Company’s subsidiaries’ rates are subject to regulatory rate-setting processes. Rates are determined and approved in regulatory proceedings based on an
analysis of the subsidiaries’ costs to provide utility service and a return on, and recovery of, the subsidiaries’ investment in the utility business. Regulatory
decisions can have an impact on the recovery of costs, the rate of return earned on investment, and the timing and amount of assets to be recovered by rates.
The respective commission’s regulation of rates is premised on the full recovery of prudently incurred costs and a reasonable rate of return on invested
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

NISOURCE INC.
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

capital. Decisions to be made by the commission in the future will impact the accounting for regulated operations, including decisions about the amount of
allowable costs and return on invested capital included in rates and any refunds that may be required. While the Company has indicated it expects to recover
costs from customers through regulated rates, there is a risk that the commission will not approve: (1) full recovery of the costs of providing utility service, or
(2) full recovery of all amounts invested in the utility business and a reasonable return on that investment.

We identified the accounting for rate-regulated subsidiaries as a critical audit matter due to the significant judgments made by management to support its
assertions about impacted account balances and disclosures and the high degree of subjectivity involved in assessing the impact of future regulatory orders on
the financial statements. Management judgments include assessing the likelihood of (1) recovery in future rates of incurred costs and (2) refunds of amounts
previously collected from customers. Given that management’s accounting judgments are based on assumptions about the outcome of future decisions by
regulatory commissions, auditing these judgments required specialized knowledge of accounting for rate regulation and the rate making process due to its
inherent complexities.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the uncertainty of future decisions by the commissions focused on the ongoing Columbia Gas of Ohio base rate case and the
Northern Indiana Public Service Company electric base rate case proceedings and included the following, among others:

• We tested the effectiveness of management’s controls over the evaluation of the likelihood of (1) the recovery in future rates of costs incurred as
property, plant, and equipment and deferred as regulatory assets, and (2) a refund or a future reduction in rates that should be reported as regulatory
liabilities. We also tested the effectiveness of management’s controls over the initial recognition of amounts as property, plant, and equipment;
regulatory assets or liabilities; and the monitoring and evaluation of regulatory developments, that may affect the likelihood of recovering costs in
future rates or of a future reduction in rates.

• We evaluated the Company’s disclosures related to the impacts of rate regulation, including the balances recorded and regulatory developments.
• We read relevant regulatory orders issued by the commissions for the Company, regulatory statutes, interpretations, procedural memorandums, filings

made by interveners, and other publicly available information to assess the likelihood of recovery in future rates or of a future reduction in rates based
on precedents of the commissions’ treatment of similar costs under similar circumstances. We evaluated the external information and compared to
management’s recorded regulatory asset and liability balances for completeness.

• For regulatory matters in process, we inspected the Company’s and intervenors’ filings with the commissions that may impact the Company’s future
rates, for any evidence that might contradict management’s assertions related to recoverability of recorded assets. Additionally, we evaluated the joint
stipulation filed by Columbia Gas of Ohio with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

• We inquired of management about property, plant, and equipment that may be abandoned with an emphasis on the generation strategy related to Northern
Indiana Public Service Company’s R.M. Schahfer and Michigan City Generating Stations. We inspected minutes of the board of directors and
regulatory orders and other filings with the commissions to identify evidence that may contradict management’s assertion regarding probability of an
abandonment.

• We read the relevant regulatory orders issued by the Commission for the Company’s renewable energy investments. We evaluated the appropriateness of
recognizing a regulatory liability or asset representing timing differences between the profit allocated under the Hypothetical Liquidation at Book
Value (HLBV) method related to the consolidated joint ventures and the allowed earnings included in regulatory rates. We also evaluated the
appropriateness of the offset to the regulatory liability or asset recorded in depreciation expense.

• We evaluated the Company’s disclosures related to the application of ASC Topic 980 to consolidated joint venture accounting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Columbus, Ohio
February 22, 2023

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2002.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

NISOURCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME (LOSS)

Year Ended December 31, (in millions, except per share amounts) 2022 2021 2020
Operating Revenues

Customer revenues $ 5,738.6  $ 4,731.3  $ 4,473.2 
Other revenues 112.0  168.3  208.5 

Total Operating Revenues 5,850.6  4,899.6  4,681.7 
Operating Expenses

Cost of energy 2,110.5  1,392.3  1,109.3 
Operation and maintenance 1,489.4  1,456.0  1,585.9 
Depreciation and amortization 820.8  748.4  725.9 
Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net (104.2) 7.7  410.6 
Other taxes 268.3  288.3  299.2 

Total Operating Expenses 4,584.8  3,892.7  4,130.9 
Operating Income 1,265.8  1,006.9  550.8 
Other Income (Deductions)

Interest expense, net (361.6) (341.1) (370.7)
Other, net 52.2  40.8  32.1 
Loss on early extinguishment of long-term debt —  —  (243.5)

Total Other Deductions, Net (309.4) (300.3) (582.1)
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes 956.4  706.6  (31.3)
Income Taxes 164.6  117.8  (17.1)
Net Income (Loss) 791.8  588.8  (14.2)
Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interest (12.3) 3.9  3.4 
Net Income (Loss) attributable to NiSource 804.1  584.9  (17.6)
Preferred dividends (55.1) (55.1) (55.1)
Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholders 749.0  529.8  (72.7)
Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share $ 1.84  $ 1.35  $ (0.19)
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share $ 1.70  $ 1.27  $ (0.19)

Basic Average Common Shares Outstanding 407.1  393.6  384.3 
Diluted Average Common Shares 442.7  417.3  384.3 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

NISOURCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Year Ended December 31, (in millions, net of taxes) 2022 2021 2020
Net Income (Loss) $ 791.8  $ 588.8  $ (14.2)

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Net unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities (13.3) (3.9) 2.7 
Net unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges 109.9  25.4  (70.7)
Unrecognized pension and OPEB benefit (costs) (6.9) 8.4  3.9 

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 89.7  29.9  (64.1)
Total Comprehensive Income (Loss) $ 881.5  $ 618.7  $ (78.3)

Net unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities, net of $3.5 million tax benefit, $1.0 million tax benefit and $0.7 million tax expense in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
Net unrealized gain (loss) on derivatives qualifying as cash flow hedges, net of $36.4 million tax expense, $8.4 million tax expense and $23.4 million tax benefit in 2022, 2021 and 2020,

respectively.
Unrecognized pension and OPEB benefit (costs), net of $2.3 million tax benefit, $3.8 million tax expense and $0.1 million tax benefit in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

NISOURCE INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in millions)
December 31,

2022 December 31, 2021
ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant $ 27,551.3  $ 25,171.3 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (7,708.7) (7,289.5)

Net Property, Plant and Equipment 19,842.6  17,881.8 
Investments and Other Assets

Unconsolidated affiliates 1.6  0.8 
Available-for-sale debt securities (amortized cost of $166.7 and $169.3, allowance for credit losses of $0.9 and
$0.2, respectively) 151.6  171.8 
Other investments 71.0  87.1 

Total Investments and Other Assets 224.2  259.7 
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 40.8  84.2 
Restricted cash 34.6  10.7 
Accounts receivable 1,065.8  849.1 

Allowance for credit losses (23.9) (23.5)
Accounts receivable, net 1,041.9  825.6 

Gas inventory 531.7  327.4 
Materials and supplies, at average cost 151.4  139.1 
Electric production fuel, at average cost 68.8  32.2 
Exchange gas receivable 128.1  99.6 
Regulatory assets 233.2  206.2 
Deposits to renewable generation asset developer 143.8  — 
Prepayments and other 210.0  195.8 

Total Current Assets 2,584.3  1,920.8 
Other Assets

Regulatory assets 2,347.6  2,286.0 
Goodwill 1,485.9  1,485.9 
Deferred charges and other 252.0  322.7 

Total Other Assets 4,085.5  4,094.6 
Total Assets $ 26,736.6  $ 24,156.9 

Includes $978.5 million and $695.9 million in 2022 and 2021, respectively, of net property, plant and equipment assets and $25.7 million and $14.3 million in 2022 and 2021, respectively, of current
assets of consolidated VIEs that may be used only to settle obligations of the consolidated VIEs. Refer to Note 4, "Variable Interest Entities," for additional information.

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

(1)

(1)

(1)
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

NISOURCE INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in millions, except share amounts)
December 31,

2022 December 31, 2021
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitalization
Stockholders’ Equity

Common stock - $0.01 par value, 600,000,000 shares authorized; 412,142,602 and 405,303,023 shares
outstanding, respectively $ 4.2  $ 4.1 
Preferred stock - $0.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized; 1,302,500 and 1,302,500 shares outstanding,
respectively 1,546.5  1,546.5 
Treasury stock (99.9) (99.9)
Additional paid-in capital 7,375.3  7,204.3 
Retained deficit (1,213.6) (1,580.9)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (37.1) (126.8)

Total NiSource Stockholders' Equity 7,575.4  6,947.3 
Noncontrolling interest in consolidated subsidiaries 326.4  325.6 
Total Stockholders’ Equity 7,901.8  7,272.9 
Long-term debt, excluding amounts due within one year 9,523.6  9,183.4 
Total Capitalization 17,425.4  16,456.3 
Current Liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt 30.0  58.1 
Short-term borrowings 1,761.9  560.0 
Accounts payable 899.5  697.8 
Customer deposits and credits 324.7  237.9 
Taxes accrued 246.2  277.1 
Interest accrued 138.4  105.5 
Exchange gas payable 147.6  107.7 
Regulatory liabilities 236.8  137.4 
Accrued compensation and employee benefits 167.5  182.7 
Obligations to renewable generation asset developer 347.2  — 
Other accruals 360.7  382.0 

Total Current Liabilities 4,660.5  2,746.2 
Other Liabilities

Deferred income taxes 1,854.5  1,659.4 
Accrued liability for postretirement and postemployment benefits 245.5  292.5 
Regulatory liabilities 1,775.8  1,842.6 
Asset retirement obligations 478.1  469.7 
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits 296.8  690.2 

Total Other Liabilities 4,650.7  4,954.4 
Commitments and Contingencies (Refer to Note 19, "Other Commitments and Contingencies")
Total Capitalization and Liabilities $ 26,736.6  $ 24,156.9 

Includes $128.2 million and $10.0 million in 2022 and 2021, respectively, of current liabilities and $30.6 million and $20.5 million in 2022 and 2021, respectively, of other liabilities of consolidated
VIEs that creditors do not have recourse to our general credit. Refer to Note 4, "Variable Interest Entities," for additional information.

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

(1)

(1)

(1)
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

NISOURCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Operating Activities

Net Income (Loss) $ 791.8  $ 588.8  $ (14.2)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash from Operating Activities:

Loss on early extinguishment of debt —  —  243.5 
Depreciation and amortization 820.8  748.4  725.9 
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 156.9  111.9  (29.0)
Stock compensation expense and 401(k) profit sharing contribution 24.9  24.3  17.4 
Loss (gain) on sale of assets (105.3) 5.6  409.8 
Other adjustments 5.7  (0.7) (0.3)

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts receivable (216.3) (40.3) (3.9)
Inventories (258.9) (112.9) (1.5)
Accounts payable 165.0  54.9  (29.7)
Exchange gas receivable/payable 57.8  (114.2) (6.9)
Other accruals 73.4  43.0  (175.1)
Prepayments and other current assets (9.8) (36.6) (5.9)
Regulatory assets/liabilities (129.4) 76.8  70.8 
Postretirement and postemployment benefits 84.7  (96.4) (103.6)
Deferred charges and other noncurrent assets (4.1) (4.7) (15.0)
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits (47.8) (30.0) 21.7 

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 1,409.4  1,217.9  1,104.0 
Investing Activities

Capital expenditures (2,203.1) (1,838.0) (1,758.1)
Insurance Recoveries 105.0  —  — 
Cost of removal (151.7) (121.1) (138.2)
Proceeds from disposition of assets —  0.7  1,115.9 
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (73.5) (102.9) (144.7)
Sales of available-for-sale securities 75.7  97.8  131.4 
Payment to renewable generation asset developer (323.9) (240.4) (85.3)
Other investing activities 1.3  (1.0) (0.1)

Net Cash Flows used for Investing Activities (2,570.2) (2,204.9) (879.1)
Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 345.6  —  2,974.0 
Repayments of long-term debt and finance lease obligations (60.3) (25.7) (1,622.0)
Issuance of short-term debt (maturity > 90 days) 1,000.0  —  1,350.0 
Repayment of short-term debt (maturity > 90 days) —  —  (2,200.0)
Change in short-term debt (maturity ≤ 90 days) 202.2  57.0  (420.1)
Issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 154.3  299.6  211.4 
Equity costs, premiums and other debt related costs (13.0) (18.2) (246.5)
Contributions from noncontrolling interest 21.2  245.1  82.2 
Distributions to noncontrolling interest (6.0) (0.6) — 
Issuance of equity units, net of underwriting costs —  839.9  — 
Dividends paid - common stock (381.5) (345.2) (321.6)
Dividends paid - preferred stock (55.1) (55.1) (55.1)
Contract liability payment (66.1) (40.5) — 

Net Cash Flows from (used for) Financing Activities 1,141.3  956.3  (247.7)
Change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (19.5) (30.7) (22.8)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 94.9  125.6  148.4 
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash at End of Period $ 75.4  $ 94.9  $ 125.6 

Reconciliation to Balance Sheet 2022 2021 2020
Cash and cash equivalents 40.8 84.2 116.5
Restricted Cash 34.6 10.7 9.1

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 75.4 94.9 125.6

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

NISOURCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in millions)
Common

Stock
Preferred
Stock

Treasury
Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Noncontrolling
Interest in

Consolidated
Subsidiaries Total

Balance as of January 1, 2020 $ 3.8  $ 880.0  $ (99.9) $ 6,666.2  $ (1,370.8) $ (92.6) $ —  $ 5,986.7 
Comprehensive Loss:

Net Income (Loss) —  —  —  —  (17.6) —  3.4  (14.2)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax —  —  —  —  —  (64.1) —  (64.1)

Dividends:
Common stock ($0.84 per share) —  —  —  —  (321.7) —  —  (321.7)
Preferred stock (See Note 13) —  —  —  —  (55.1) —  —  (55.1)

Contributions from noncontrolling interest —  —  —  —  —  —  82.2  82.2 
Stock issuances:

Employee stock purchase plan —  —  —  5.7  —  —  —  5.7 
Long-term incentive plan —  —  —  8.4  —  —  —  8.4 
401(k) and profit sharing —  —  —  13.4  —  —  —  13.4 
ATM Program 0.1  —  —  196.4  —  —  —  196.5 

Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ 3.9  $ 880.0  $ (99.9) $ 6,890.1  $ (1,765.2) $ (156.7) $ 85.6  $ 5,837.8 
Comprehensive Income:

Net Income —  —  —  —  584.9  —  3.9  588.8 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax —  —  —  —  —  29.9  —  29.9 

Dividends:
Common stock ($0.88 per share) —  —  —  —  (345.5) —  —  (345.5)
Preferred stock (See Note 13) —  —  —  —  (55.1) —  —  (55.1)

Contributions from noncontrolling interest —  —  —  —  —  —  236.7  236.7 
Distributions to noncontrolling interest —  —  —  —  —  —  (0.6) (0.6)
Stock issuances:

Equity Units —  666.5  —  —  —  —  —  666.5 
Employee stock purchase plan —  —  —  5.0  —  —  —  5.0 
Long-term incentive plan —  —  —  11.8  —  —  —  11.8 
401(k) and profit sharing —  —  —  9.5  —  —  —  9.5 
ATM Program 0.2  —  —  287.9  —  —  —  288.1 

Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 4.1  $ 1,546.5  $ (99.9) $ 7,204.3  $ (1,580.9) $ (126.8) $ 325.6  $ 7,272.9 
Comprehensive Income:

Net Income (Loss) —  —  —  —  804.1  —  (12.3) 791.8 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax —  —  —  —  —  89.7  —  89.7 

Dividends:
Common stock ($0.94 per share) —  —  —  —  (381.7) —  —  (381.7)
Preferred stock (See Note 13) —  —  —  —  (55.1) —  —  (55.1)

Contributions from noncontrolling interest —  —  —  —  —  —  19.1  19.1 
Distributions to noncontrolling interest —  —  —  —  —  —  (6.0) (6.0)
Stock issuances:

Employee stock purchase plan —  —  —  5.2  —  —  —  5.2 
Long-term incentive plan —  —  —  14.3  —  —  —  14.3 
401(k) and profit sharing —  —  —  9.7  —  —  —  9.7 
ATM Program 0.1  —  —  141.8  —  —  —  141.9 

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 4.2  $ 1,546.5  $ (99.9) $ 7,375.3  $ (1,213.6) $ (37.1) $ 326.4  $ 7,901.8 

Series A, Series B, and Series C shares have an aggregate liquidation preference of $400M, $500M, and $863M, respectively. See Note 13, "Equity," for additional information.

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

(1)

(1)
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

NISOURCE INC.
STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)

Preferred Common
(in thousands) Shares Shares Treasury Outstanding
Balance as of January 1, 2020 440  386,099  (3,963) 382,136 
Issued:

Employee stock purchase plan —  236  —  236 
Long-term incentive plan —  385  —  385 
401(k) and profit sharing plan —  544  —  544 
ATM Program —  8,459  —  8,459 

Balance as of December 31, 2020 440  395,723  (3,963) 391,760 
Issued:

Equity Units 863  —  —  — 
Employee stock purchase plan —  209  —  209 
Long-term incentive plan —  418  —  418 
401(k) and profit sharing plan —  391  —  391 
ATM Program —  12,525  —  12,525 

Balance as of December 31, 2021 1,303  409,266  (3,963) 405,303 
Issued:

Employee stock purchase plan —  186  —  186 
Long-term incentive plan —  375  —  375 
401(k) and profit sharing plan —  337  —  337 
ATM Program —  5,942  —  5,942 

Balance as of December 31, 2022 1,303  416,106  (3,963) 412,143 

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these statements.

64



Table of Contents
NISOURCE INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

1.     Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A.       Company Structure and Principles of Consolidation. We are an energy holding company incorporated in Delaware and headquartered in Merrillville,
Indiana. Our subsidiaries are fully regulated natural gas and electric utility companies serving approximately 3.7 million customers in six states. We generate
substantially all of our operating income through these rate-regulated businesses. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of us, our
majority-owned subsidiaries, and VIEs of which we are the primary beneficiary after the elimination of all intercompany accounts and transactions.

B.       Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

C.       Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash. We consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. We report amounts deposited in brokerage accounts for margin requirements as restricted cash. In addition, we have amounts deposited in trusts to
satisfy requirements for the provision of various property, liability, workers compensation, and long-term disability insurance, which is classified as restricted
cash on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and disclosed with cash and cash equivalents on the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows.

D. Accounts Receivable and Unbilled Revenue. Accounts receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets includes both billed and unbilled amounts. Unbilled
amounts of accounts receivable relate to a portion of a customer’s consumption of gas or electricity from the last cycle billing date through the last day of the
month (balance sheet date). Factors taken into consideration when estimating unbilled revenue include historical usage, customer rates, weather and reasonable
and supportable forecasts. Accounts receivable fluctuates from year to year depending in large part on weather impacts and price volatility. Our accounts
receivable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets include unbilled revenue, less reserves. The reserve for uncollectible receivables is our best estimate of the
amount of probable credit losses in the existing accounts receivable. We determined the reserve based on historical collection experience, current market
conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Account balances are charged against the allowance when it is anticipated the receivable will not be
recovered. Refer to Note 3, "Revenue Recognition," for additional information on customer-related accounts receivable, including amounts related to unbilled
revenues.

E.       Investments in Debt Securities. Our investments in debt securities are carried at fair value and are designated as available-for-sale. These investments
are included within “Available-for-sale debt securities” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Unrealized gains and losses, net of deferred income taxes, are
recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income or loss. At each reporting period these investments are qualitatively and quantitatively assessed to
determine whether a decline in fair value below the amortized cost basis has resulted from a credit loss or other factors. Impairments related to credit loss are
recorded through an allowance for credit losses. Impairments that are not related to credit losses are included in other comprehensive income and are reflected
in the Statements of Consolidated Income (Loss). No material impairment charges were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 or 2020. Refer
to Note 18, "Fair Value," for additional information.

F.               Basis of Accounting for Rate-Regulated Subsidiaries. Rate-regulated subsidiaries account for and report assets and liabilities consistent with the
economic effect of the way in which regulators establish rates, if the rates established are designed to recover the costs of providing the regulated service and it
is probable that such rates can be charged and collected. Certain expenses and credits subject to utility regulation or rate determination normally reflected in
income are deferred on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are later recognized in income as the related amounts are included in customer rates and recovered
from or refunded to customers.

We continually evaluate whether or not our operations are within the scope of ASC 980 and rate regulations. As part of that analysis, we evaluate probability of
recovery for our regulatory assets. In management’s opinion, our regulated subsidiaries will be subject to regulatory accounting for the foreseeable future.
Refer to Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," for additional information.

G.       Plant and Other Property and Related Depreciation and Maintenance. Property, plant and equipment (principally utility plant) is stated at cost. Our
rate-regulated subsidiaries record depreciation using composite rates on a straight-line basis over the remaining service lives of the electric, gas and common
properties, as approved by the appropriate regulators.
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Non-utility property includes renewable generation assets owned by JVs of which we are the primary beneficiary and is generally depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the life of the associated assets. Refer to Note 6, "Property, Plant and Equipment," for additional information related to depreciation expense.

For rate-regulated companies where provided for in rates, AFUDC is capitalized on all classes of property except organization costs, land, autos, office
equipment, tools and other general property purchases. The allowance is applied to construction costs for that period of time between the date of the
expenditure and the date on which such project is placed in service. Our consolidated pre-tax rate for AFUDC was 3.4% in 2022, 3.3% in 2021 and 2.6% in
2020.

Generally, our subsidiaries follow the practice of charging maintenance and repairs, including the cost of removal of minor items of property, to expense as
incurred. When our subsidiaries retire regulated property, plant and equipment, original cost plus the cost of retirement, less salvage value, is charged to
accumulated depreciation. However, when it becomes probable a regulated asset will be retired substantially in advance of its original expected useful life or is
abandoned, the cost of the asset and the corresponding accumulated depreciation is recognized as a separate asset. If the asset is still in operation, the gross
amounts are classified as "Non-Utility and Other " as described in Note 6, "Property, Plant and Equipment." If the asset is no longer operating but still subject
to recovery, the net amount is classified in "Regulatory assets" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. If we are able to recover a full return of and on investment,
the carrying value of the asset is based on historical cost. If we are not able to recover a full return on investment, a loss on impairment is recognized to the
extent the net book value of the asset exceeds the present value of future revenues discounted at the incremental borrowing rate.

External and internal costs associated with on-premise computer software developed for internal use are capitalized. Capitalization of such costs commences
upon the completion of the preliminary stage of each project. Once the installed software is ready for its intended use, such capitalized costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis generally over a period of five years. External and internal up-front implementation costs associated with cloud computing arrangements that
are service contracts are deferred on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Once the installed software is ready for its intended use, such deferred costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis to "Operation and maintenance," over the minimum term of the contract plus contractually-provided renewal periods that are
reasonable, expected to be exercised.

H.        Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Substantially all of our goodwill relates to the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets acquired in
the Columbia acquisition on November 1, 2000. We test our goodwill for impairment annually as of May 1, or more frequently if events and circumstances
indicate that goodwill might be impaired. Fair value of our reporting units is determined using a combination of income and market approaches. See Note 7,
"Goodwill," for additional information.

I.        Accounts Receivable Transfer Programs. Certain of our subsidiaries have agreements with third parties to transfer certain accounts receivable without
recourse. These transfers of accounts receivable are accounted for as secured borrowings. The entire gross receivables balance remains on the December 31,
2022 and 2021 Consolidated Balance Sheets. When amounts are securitized, the short-term debt is recorded in the amount of proceeds received from the
transferees involved in the transactions. Refer to Note 16, "Short-Term Borrowings," for further information.

J.        Gas Cost and Fuel Adjustment Clause. Our regulated subsidiaries defer most differences between gas and fuel purchase costs and the recovery of such
costs in revenues and adjust future billings for such deferrals on a basis consistent with applicable state-approved tariff provisions. These deferred balances are
recorded as "Regulatory assets" or "Regulatory liabilities," as appropriate, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Refer to Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," for
additional information.

K.           Inventory. Both the LIFO inventory methodology and the weighted average cost methodology are used to value natural gas in storage, as approved
by regulators for all of our regulated subsidiaries. Inventory valued using LIFO was $43.0 million and $44.9 million at December  31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. Based on the average cost of gas using the LIFO method, the estimated replacement cost of gas in storage was greater than the stated LIFO cost
by $7.7 million at December 31, 2022 and was less than the stated LIFO cost by $13.6 million at December 31, 2021. As all LIFO inventory costs are collected
from customers through our rate-regulated subsidiaries, no inventory impairment has been recorded. Gas inventory valued using the weighted average cost
methodology was $488.7 million at December 31, 2022 and $282.4 million at December 31, 2021.

Electric production fuel is valued using the weighted average cost inventory methodology, as approved by NIPSCO's regulator.

Materials and supplies are valued using the weighted average cost inventory methodology.
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L.               Accounting for Exchange and Balancing Arrangements of Natural Gas.  Our Gas Distribution Operations segment enters into balancing and
exchange arrangements of natural gas as part of its operations and off-system sales programs. We record a receivable or payable for any of our respective
cumulative gas imbalances, as well as for any gas inventory borrowed or lent under a Gas Distribution Operations exchange agreement. Exchange gas is valued
based on individual regulatory jurisdiction requirements (for example, historical spot rate, spot at the beginning of the month). These receivables and payables
are recorded as “Exchange gas receivable” or “Exchange gas payable” on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, as appropriate.

M.         Accounting for Risk Management Activities. We account for our derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with ASC 815. We recognize all
derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value, unless such contracts are exempted as a normal purchase normal sale
under the provisions of the standard. The accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative and resulting
designation.

We do not offset the fair value amounts recognized for any of our derivative instruments against the fair value amounts recognized for the right to reclaim cash
collateral or obligation to return cash collateral for derivative instruments executed with the same counterparty under a master netting arrangement. See Note
10, "Risk Management Activities," for additional information.

N.        Income Taxes and Investment Tax Credits. We record income taxes to recognize full interperiod tax allocations. Under the asset and liability method,
deferred income taxes are provided for the tax consequences of temporary differences by applying enacted statutory tax rates applicable to future years to
differences between the financial statement carrying amount and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. Investment tax credits associated with regulated
operations are deferred and amortized as a reduction to income tax expense over the estimated useful lives of the related properties.

To the extent certain deferred income taxes of the regulated companies are recoverable or payable through future rates, regulatory assets and liabilities have
been established. Regulatory assets for income taxes are primarily attributable to property-related tax timing differences for which deferred taxes had not been
provided in the past when regulators did not recognize such taxes as costs in the rate-making process. Regulatory liabilities for income taxes are primarily
attributable to the regulated companies’ obligation to refund to ratepayers deferred income taxes provided at rates higher than the current Federal income tax
rate. Such property-related amounts are credited to ratepayers using either the average rate assumption method or the reverse South Georgia method. Non
property-related amounts are credited to ratepayers consistent with state utility commission direction.

Pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code and relevant state taxing authorities, we and our subsidiaries file consolidated income tax returns for federal and certain
state jurisdictions. We and our subsidiaries are parties to a tax sharing agreement. Income taxes recorded by each party represent amounts that would be owed
had the party been separately subject to tax.

O.       Pension Remeasurement. We utilize a third-party actuary for the purpose of performing actuarial valuations of our defined benefit plans. Annually, as
of December 31, we perform a remeasurement for our pension plans. Quarterly, we monitor for significant events, and if a significant event is identified, we
perform a qualitative and quantitative assessment to determine if the resulting remeasurement would materially impact the NiSource financial statements. If
material, an interim remeasurement is performed. We had one such interim remeasurement in the second quarter of 2022. See Note 12, "Pension and Other
Postemployment Benefits," for additional information.

P. Environmental Expenditures.  We accrue for costs associated with environmental remediation obligations, including expenditures related to asset
retirement obligations and cost of removal, when the incurrence of such costs is probable and the amounts can be reasonably estimated, regardless of when the
expenditures are actually made. The undiscounted estimated future expenditures are based on currently enacted laws and regulations, existing technology and
estimated site-specific costs where assumptions may be made about the nature and extent of site contamination, the extent of cleanup efforts, costs of
alternative cleanup methods and other variables. The liability is adjusted as further information is discovered or circumstances change. The accruals for
estimated environmental expenditures are recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets in “Other accruals” for short-term portions of these liabilities and
“Other noncurrent liabilities” for the respective long-term portions of these liabilities. Rate-regulated subsidiaries applying regulatory accounting establish
regulatory assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets to the extent that future recovery of environmental remediation costs is probable through the regulatory
process. Refer to Note 8, "Asset Retirement Obligations," and Note 19, "Other Commitments and Contingencies," for further information.
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Q.        Excise Taxes. As an agent for some state and local governments, we invoice and collect certain excise taxes levied by state and local governments on
customers and record these amounts as liabilities payable to the applicable taxing jurisdiction. Such balances are presented within "Other accruals" on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. These types of taxes collected from customers, comprised largely of sales taxes, are presented on a net basis affecting neither
revenues nor cost of sales. We account for excise taxes for which we are liable by recording a liability for the expected tax with a corresponding charge to
“Other taxes” expense on the Statements of Consolidated Income (Loss).

R.               Accrued Insurance Liabilities. We accrue for insurance costs related to workers compensation, automobile, property, general and employment
practices liabilities based on the most probable value of each claim. In general, claim values are determined by professional, licensed loss adjusters who
consider the facts of the claim, anticipated indemnification and legal expenses, and respective state rules. Claims are reviewed by us at least quarterly and an
adjustment is made to the accrual based on the most current information.

S.                VIEs and Allocation of Earnings. We fund a significant portion of our renewable generation assets through JVs with tax equity partners. We
consolidate these JVs in accordance with ASC 810 as they are VIEs in which we hold a variable interest, and we control decisions that are significant to the
JVs' ongoing operations and economic results (i.e., we are the primary beneficiary).

These JVs are subject to profit sharing arrangements in which the allocation of the JVs' cash distributions and tax benefits to members is based on factors other
than members' relative ownership percentages. As such, we utilize the HLBV method to allocate proceeds to each partner at the balance sheet date based on the
liquidation provisions of the related JV's operating agreement and adjusts the amount of the VIE's net income attributable to us and the noncontrolling tax
equity member during the period.

In each reporting period, the application of HLBV to our consolidated VIEs results in a difference between the amount of profit from the consolidated JVs and
the amount included in regulated rates. As discussed above in "F. Basis of Accounting for Rate-Regulated Subsidiaries," we are subject to the accounting and
reporting requirements of ASC 980. In accordance with these principles, we recognize a regulatory liability or asset for amounts representing the timing
difference between the profit earned from the JVs and the amount included in regulated rates to recover our approved investments in consolidated JVs. The
amounts recorded in income will ultimately reflect the amount allowed in regulated rates to recover our investments over the useful life of the projects. The
offset to the regulatory liability or asset associated with our renewable investments included in regulated rates is recorded in "Depreciation expense" on the
Statements of Consolidated Income (Loss).

2.     Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

We have evaluated recently issued accounting pronouncements and do not believe any pronouncements will have a significant impact on our Consolidated
Financial Statements or Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial
Reporting and in January 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-01, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Scope. These pronouncements provide temporary optional
expedients and exceptions for applying GAAP principles to contract modifications and hedging relationships to ease the financial reporting burdens of the
expected market transition from LIBOR and other interbank offered rates to alternative reference rates. These pronouncements were effective upon issuance on
March 12, 2020 through December 31, 2022. In December 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-06, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Deferral of the Sunset
Date of Topic 848, to extend the temporary accounting rules under Topic 848 from December 31, 2022 to December 31, 2024, after which entities will no
longer be permitted to apply the relief in Topic
848. During the third quarter of 2022, the company applied the practical expedient under Topic 848 which allowed for the continuation of cash flow hedge
accounting for interest rate derivative contracts upon the transition from LIBOR to alternative reference rates. The application of this expedient had no material
impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In November 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-10, Government Assistance (Topic 832): Disclosures by Business Entities about Government Assistance. This
pronouncement requires certain annual disclosures for transactions with a government that are accounted for by applying a grant or contribution accounting
model by analogy to other accounting guidance. This pronouncement is effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2021. The company
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adopted this pronouncement in the fourth quarter of 2022. The adoption of this pronouncement did not have an impact on the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In September 2022, the FASB issued ASU 2022-04, Liabilities-Supplier Finance Programs (Topic 405-50) - Disclosure of Supplier Finance Program
Obligations. This pronouncement requires that a buyer in a supplier finance program disclose sufficient information to allow a user of financial statements to
understand the program’s nature, activity during the period, changes from period to period, and potential magnitude. This pronouncement is expected to
improve financial reporting by requiring new disclosures about supplier finance programs, thereby allowing financial statement users to better consider the
effect of such programs on an entity’s working capital, liquidity, and cash flows. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2022. The company adopted this pronouncement as of January 1, 2023. We had no active supplier finance programs as of December 31, 2022.

3.     Revenue Recognition

Customer Revenues. Substantially all of our revenues are tariff-based. Under ASC 606, the recipients of our utility service meet the definition of a customer,
while the operating company tariffs represent an agreement that meets the definition of a contract, which creates enforceable rights and obligations. Customers
in certain of our jurisdictions participate in programs that allow for a fixed payment each month regardless of usage. Payments received that exceed the value
of gas or electricity actually delivered are recorded as a liability and presented in "Customer Deposits and Credits" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Amounts in this account are reduced and revenue is recorded when customer usage exceeds payments received.

We have identified our performance obligations created under tariff-based sales as 1) the commodity (natural gas or electricity, which includes generation and
capacity) and 2) delivery. These commodities are sold and / or delivered to and generally consumed by customers simultaneously, leading to satisfaction of our
performance obligations over time as gas or electricity is delivered to customers. Due to the at-will nature of utility customers, performance obligations are
limited to the services requested and received to date. Once complete, we generally maintain no additional performance obligations.

Transaction prices for each performance obligation are generally prescribed by each operating company’s respective tariff. Rates include provisions to adjust
billings for fluctuations in fuel and purchased power costs and cost of natural gas. Revenues are adjusted for differences between actual costs, subject to
reconciliation, and the amounts billed in current rates. Under or over recovered revenues related to these cost recovery mechanisms are included in "Regulatory
Assets" or "Regulatory Liabilities" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are recovered from or returned to customers through adjustments to tariff rates. As
we provide and deliver service to customers, revenue is recognized based on the transaction price allocated to each performance obligation. Distribution
revenues are generally considered daily or "at-will" contracts as customers may cancel their service at any time (subject to notification requirements), and
revenue generally represents the amount we are entitled to bill customers.

In addition to tariff-based sales, our Gas Distribution Operations segment enters into balancing and exchange arrangements of natural gas as part of our
operations and off-system sales programs. Performance obligations for these types of sales include transportation and storage of natural gas and can be satisfied
at a point in time or over a period of time, depending on the specific transaction. For those transactions that span a period of time, we record a receivable or
payable for any cumulative gas imbalances, as well as for any gas inventory borrowed or lent under a Gas Distributions Operations exchange agreement.

Revenue Disaggregation and Reconciliation. We disaggregate revenue from contracts with customers based upon reportable segment as well as by customer
class.

69



Table of Contents
NISOURCE INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

The tables below reconcile revenue disaggregation by customer class to segment revenue, as well as to revenues reflected on the Statements of Consolidated
Income (Loss):

Year Ended December 31, 2022 (in millions)
Gas Distribution

Operations Electric Operations
Corporate and

Other Total
Customer Revenues

Residential $ 2,609.7  $ 592.4  $ —  $ 3,202.1 
Commercial 939.6  571.0  —  1,510.6 
Industrial 220.6  560.6  —  781.2 
Off-system 192.9  —  —  192.9 
Miscellaneous 40.3  11.5  —  51.8 

Total Customer Revenues $ 4,003.1  $ 1,735.5  $ —  $ 5,738.6 
Other Revenues 4.1  95.4  12.5  112.0 
Total Operating Revenues $ 4,007.2  $ 1,830.9  $ 12.5  $ 5,850.6 
Customer revenue amounts exclude intersegment revenues. See Note 21, "Business Segment Information," for discussion of intersegment revenues.
Other revenues related to the Transition Services Agreement entered into in connection with the sale of the Massachusetts Business, which was substantially completed as of June 30, 2022.

Year Ended December 31, 2021 (in millions)
Gas Distribution

Operations Electric Operations
Corporate and

Other Total
Customer Revenues

Residential $ 2,109.4  $ 567.9  $ —  $ 2,677.3 
Commercial 722.4  534.9  —  1,257.3 
Industrial 195.7  493.4  —  689.1 
Off-system 71.3  —  —  71.3 
Miscellaneous 27.3  8.2  0.8  36.3 

Total Customer Revenues $ 3,126.1  $ 1,604.4  $ 0.8  $ 4,731.3 
Other Revenues 45.1  91.9  31.3  168.3 
Total Operating Revenues $ 3,171.2  $ 1,696.3  $ 32.1  $ 4,899.6 
Customer revenue amounts exclude intersegment revenues. See Note 21, "Business Segment Information," for discussion of intersegment revenues.
Other revenues related to the Transition Services Agreement entered into in connection with the sale of the Massachusetts Business.

Year Ended December 31, 2020 (in millions)
Gas Distribution

Operations Electric Operations
Corporate and

Other Total
Customer Revenues

Residential $ 2,075.0  $ 527.8  $ —  $ 2,602.8 
Commercial 670.5  480.3  —  1,150.8 
Industrial 212.8  412.1  —  624.9 
Off-system 41.0  —  —  41.0 
Miscellaneous 32.7  20.2  0.8  53.7 

Total Customer Revenues $ 3,032.0  $ 1,440.4  $ 0.8  $ 4,473.2 
Other Revenues 96.1  95.5  16.9  208.5 
Total Operating Revenues $ 3,128.1  $ 1,535.9  $ 17.7  $ 4,681.7 

Customer revenue amounts exclude intersegment revenues. See Note 21, "Business Segment Information," for discussion of intersegment revenues.
Other revenues related to the Transition Services Agreement entered into in connection with the sale of the Massachusetts Business.

Other Revenues. As permitted by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, regulated utilities have the ability to earn certain types of
revenue that are outside the scope of ASC 606. These revenues primarily represent revenue earned under alternative revenue programs. Alternative revenue
programs represent regulator-approved mechanisms that allow for the adjustment of billings and revenue for certain approved programs. We maintain a variety
of these programs, including

(2)

(1)

(1)

(2)

(2)

(1)

(1)

(2)

(2)

(1)

(1)

(2)
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demand side management initiatives that recover costs associated with the implementation of energy efficiency programs, as well as normalization programs
that adjust revenues for the effects of weather or other external factors. Additionally, we maintain certain programs with future test periods that operate
similarly to FERC formula rate programs and allow for recovery of costs incurred to replace aging infrastructure. When the criteria to recognize alternative
revenue have been met, we establish a regulatory asset and present revenue from alternative revenue programs on the Statements of Consolidated Income
(Loss) as “Other revenues”. When amounts previously recognized under alternative revenue accounting guidance are billed, we reduce the regulatory asset and
record a customer account receivable.

Customer Accounts Receivable.  Accounts receivable on our Consolidated Balance Sheets includes both billed and unbilled amounts, as well as certain
amounts that are not related to customer revenues. Unbilled amounts of accounts receivable relate to a portion of a customer’s consumption of gas or electricity
from the date of the last cycle billing through the last day of the month (balance sheet date). Factors taken into consideration when estimating unbilled revenue
include historical usage, customer rates and weather. A significant portion of our operations are subject to seasonal fluctuations in sales. During the heating
season, primarily from November through March, revenues and receivables from gas sales are more significant than in other months. The opening and closing
balances of customer receivables for the year ended December 31, 2022, are presented in the table below. We had no significant contract assets or liabilities
during the period. Additionally, we have not incurred any significant costs to obtain or fulfill contracts.

(in millions)

Customer Accounts
Receivable, Billed (less

reserve)

Customer Accounts
Receivable, Unbilled (less

reserve)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 459.6  $ 337.0 
Balance as of December 31, 2022 560.5  453.0 

Utility revenues are billed to customers monthly on a cycle basis. We expect that substantially all customer accounts receivable will be collected following
customer billing, as this revenue consists primarily of periodic, tariff-based billings for service and usage. We maintain common utility credit risk mitigation
practices, including requiring deposits and actively pursuing collection of past due amounts. Our regulated operations also utilize certain regulatory
mechanisms that facilitate recovery of bad debt costs within tariff-based rates, which provides further evidence of collectibility. It is probable that substantially
all of the consideration to which we are entitled from customers will be collected upon satisfaction of performance obligations.

Allowance for Credit Losses. To evaluate for expected credit losses, customer account receivables are pooled based on similar risk characteristics, such as
customer type, geography, payment terms, and related macro-economic risks. Expected credit losses are established using a model that considers historical
collections experience, current information, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Internal and external inputs are used in our credit model including, but
not limited to, energy consumption trends, revenue projections, actual charge-offs data, recoveries data, shut-offs, customer delinquencies, final bill data, and
inflation. We continuously evaluate available information relevant to assessing collectability of current and future receivables. We evaluate creditworthiness of
specific customers periodically or following changes in facts and circumstances. When we become aware of a specific commercial or industrial customer's
inability to pay, an allowance for expected credit losses is recorded for the relevant amount. We also monitor other circumstances that could affect our overall
expected credit losses; including, but not limited to, creditworthiness of overall population in service territories, adverse conditions impacting an industry
sector, and current economic conditions.
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At each reporting period, we record expected credit losses to an allowance for credit losses account. When deemed to be uncollectible, customer accounts are
written-off. A rollforward of our allowance for credit losses as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, are presented in the tables below:

(in millions)
Gas Distribution

Operations Electric Operations
Corporate and

Other Total
Balance as of January 1, 2022 $ 18.9  $ 3.8  $ 0.8  $ 23.5 

Current period provisions 29.1  6.9  —  36.0 
Write-offs charged against allowance (52.1) (5.3) —  (57.4)
Recoveries of amounts previously written off 21.3  0.5  —  21.8 

Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 17.2  $ 5.9  $ 0.8  $ 23.9 

(in millions)
Gas Distribution

Operations Electric Operations
Corporate and

Other Total
Balance as of January 1, 2021 $ 41.8  $ 9.7  $ 0.8  $ 52.3 

Current period provisions 5.8  1.4  —  7.2 
Write-offs charged against allowance (46.7) (7.7) —  (54.4)
Recoveries of amounts previously written off 18.0  0.4  —  18.4 

Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 18.9  $ 3.8  $ 0.8  $ 23.5 

In connection with the COVID-19 pandemic, certain state regulatory commissions instituted regulatory moratoriums that impacted our ability to pursue our
standard credit risk mitigation practices. Following the issuance of these moratoriums, certain of our regulated operations have been authorized to recognize a
regulatory asset for bad debt costs above levels currently recovered in rates. At the balance sheet date, in addition to our evaluation of the allowance for credit
losses discussed above, we considered benefits available under governmental COVID-19 relief programs, the impact of unemployment benefits initiatives, and
flexible payment plans being offered to customers affected by or experiencing hardship as a result of the pandemic, which could help to mitigate the potential
for increasing customer account delinquencies. We also considered the on-time bill payment promotion and robust customer marketing strategy for energy
assistance programs that we have implemented. Based upon this evaluation, we have concluded that the allowance for credit losses as of December 31, 2022
adequately reflected the collection risk and net realizable value of our receivables. See Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," for additional information on regulatory
moratoriums and regulatory assets.

4.    Variable Interest Entities

A VIE is an entity in which the controlling interest is determined through means other than a majority voting interest. Refer to Note 1, "Nature of Operations
and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - S. VIEs and Allocation of Earnings," for information on our accounting policy for the VIEs.

NIPSCO owns and operates two wind facilities, Rosewater and Indiana Crossroads Wind, which have 102 MW and 302 MW of nameplate capacity,
respectively. NIPSCO also owns one solar facility, which is expected to go into service in 2023, Indiana Crossroads Solar, which has 200 MW of nameplate
capacity. We control decisions that are significant to these entities' ongoing operations and economic results. Therefore, we have concluded that we are the
primary beneficiary and have consolidated all three entities.

Members of the respective JVs are NIPSCO (who is the managing member) and tax equity partners. Earnings, tax attributes and cash flows are allocated to
both NIPSCO and the tax equity partner in varying percentages by category and over the life of the partnership. NIPSCO and each tax equity partner
contributed cash, and NIPSCO also assumed an obligation to the developers of the wind facilities representing the remaining economic interest. The developers
of the wind facilities are not a partner in the JV for federal income tax purposes and do not receive any share of earnings, tax attributes, or cash flows of each
JV. Once the tax equity partner has earned their negotiated rate of return and we have reached the agreed upon contractual date, NIPSCO has the option to
purchase at fair market value from the tax equity partner the remaining interest in the respective JV. NIPSCO has an obligation to purchase, through a PPA at
established market rates, 100% of the electricity generated by the JVs.
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The following table displays the total contributions paid and obligations incurred in the periods presented:

(in millions) December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
NIPSCO Cash Contributions $ 151.8  $ 2.8  $ 0.7 
Tax Equity Partner Cash Contributions 21.2  245.1  86.1 
NIPSCO's Obligation to Developer —  277.5  69.7 
Total Contributions $ 173.0  $ 525.4  $ 156.5 

 Outstanding amounts in "Obligations to renewable generation asset developer" in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

We did not provide any financial or other support during the year that was not previously contractually required, nor do we expect to provide such support in
the future.

Our Consolidated Balance Sheets included the following assets and liabilities associated with VIEs.

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Net Property, Plant and Equipment $ 978.5  $ 695.9 
Current assets 25.7  14.3 

Total assets 1,004.2  710.2 
Current liabilities 128.2  10.0 
Asset retirement obligations 30.6  20.5 

Total liabilities $ 158.8  $ 30.5 
The assets of each VIE represent assets of a consolidated VIE that can be used only to settle obligations of the respective consolidated VIE. The creditors of the liabilities of the VIEss do not have

recourse to the general credit of the primary beneficiary.

5.    Earnings Per Share

The calculations of basic and diluted EPS are based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock and potential common stock outstanding
during the period. For the purposes of determining diluted EPS, the shares underlying the purchase contracts included within the Equity Units were included in
the calculation of potential common stock outstanding for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 using the if-converted method under US GAAP. This
method assumes conversion at the beginning of the reporting period, or at time of issuance, if later. For the purchase contracts, the number of shares of our
common stock that would be issuable at the end of each reporting period will be reflected in the denominator of our diluted EPS calculation. If the stock price
falls below the initial reference price of $24.51, subject to anti-dilution adjustments, the number of shares of our common stock used in calculating diluted EPS
will be the maximum number of shares per the contract as described in Note 13, "Equity." Conversely, if the stock price is above the initial reference price of
$24.51, subject to anti-dilution adjustments, a variable number of shares of our common stock will be used in calculating diluted EPS. A numerator adjustment
was reflected in the calculation of diluted EPS for interest expense incurred in 2022 and 2021, net of tax, related to the purchase contracts.

We adopted ASU 2020-06 on January 1, 2022, which resulted in additional dilution from our Equity Units by requiring us to assume share settlement of the
remaining purchase contract payment balance based on the average share price during the period.

The shares underlying the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock included within the Equity Units are contingently convertible as the conversion is
contingent on a successful remarketing as described in Note 13, "Equity." Contingently convertible shares where conversion is not tied to a market price trigger
are excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS until such time as the contingency has been resolved under the if-converted method. As of December 31, 2022
and 2021, the contingency was not resolved and thus no shares were reflected in the denominator in the calculation of diluted EPS for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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Diluted EPS also includes the incremental effects of the various long-term incentive compensation plans and the open ATM forward agreements during the
period under the treasury stock method when the impact would be dilutive. Refer to Note 13, "Equity," for more information on our ATM forward agreements.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, we had a net loss on the Statements of Consolidated Income (Loss) during the period, and any potentially dilutive
shares would have had an anti-dilutive impact on EPS. The following table presents the calculation of our basic and diluted EPS:

Year Ended December 31, (in millions, except per share amounts) 2022 2021 2020
Numerator:
Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholders - Basic $ 749.0  $ 529.8  $ (72.7)
Dilutive effect of Equity Units 2.0  1.6  — 
Net Income (Loss) Available to Common Shareholders - Diluted $ 751.0  $ 531.4  $ (72.7)
Denominator:
Average common shares outstanding - Basic 407.1  393.6  384.3 

Dilutive potential common shares:
Equity Units purchase contracts 30.2  22.0  — 
Equity Units purchase contract payment balance 3.2  —  — 
Shares contingently issuable under employee stock plans 0.9  0.8  — 
Shares restricted under employee stock plans 0.5  0.3  — 
ATM Forward agreements 0.8  0.6  — 

Average Common Shares - Diluted 442.7  417.3  384.3 
Earnings per common share:

Basic $ 1.84  $ 1.35  $ (0.19)
Diluted $ 1.70  $ 1.27  $ (0.19)
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6.    Property, Plant and Equipment

Our property, plant and equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are classified as follows: 

At December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021
Property, Plant and Equipment

Gas Distribution Utility $ 16,576.4  $ 15,240.6 
Electric Utility 7,162.4  6,754.9 
Corporate 271.7  217.8 
Construction Work in Process 1,398.2  808.0 
Renewable Generation Assets 702.2  702.4 
Non-Utility and Other 1,440.4  1,447.6 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment $ 27,551.3  $ 25,171.3 
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization

Gas Distribution Utility $ (3,678.1) $ (3,490.2)
Electric Utility (2,557.4) (2,433.1)
Corporate (160.0) (132.2)
Renewable Generation Assets (29.7) (6.5)
Non-Utility and Other (1,283.5) (1,227.5)

Total Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization $ (7,708.7) $ (7,289.5)
Net Property, Plant and Equipment $ 19,842.6  $ 17,881.8 

NIPSCO’s common utility plant and associated accumulated depreciation and amortization are allocated between Gas Distribution Utility and Electric Utility Property, Plant and Equipment.
Our renewable generation assets are part of our electric segment and represent Non-Utility Property, owned and operated by JVs between NIPSCO and unrelated tax equity partners, and depreciated

straight-line over 30 years. Refer to Note 4, "Variable Interest Entities," for additional information.

On October 1, 2021, NIPSCO retired R.M. Schahfer Generating Station Units 14 and 15. The net book value of the retired units was reclassified from "Net
Property, Plant and Equipment," to current and long-term ''Regulatory Assets.'' The estimated net book value of R.M. Schahfer Generating Station's coal Units
14 and 15 and other associated plant retired was approximately $600.0 million. See Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," for additional details regarding the recovery
of the regulatory assets associated with retired generating stations.

The weighted average depreciation provisions for utility plant, as a percentage of the original cost, for the periods ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020
were as follows:

2022 2021 2020
Electric Operations 3.1 % 3.4 % 3.4 %
Gas Distribution Operations 2.3 % 2.2 % 2.3 %

We recognized depreciation expense of $685.0 million, $672.1 million and $655.6 million for the years ended 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The 2022 and
2021 depreciation expense amounts include an $11.0 million and $5.3 million increase related to the regulatory deferral of income (loss) associated with our
JVs, which is not included in current rates. See Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," for additional details.

Amortization of on-premise Software Costs. We amortized $53.1 million, $49.4 million and $56.7 million in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, related to
software recorded as intangible assets. Our unamortized software balance was $190.1 million and $181.8 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Amortization of Cloud Computing Costs. We amortized $11.1 million, $10.0 million and $3.4 million in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, related to cloud
computing costs to "Operation and maintenance" expense. Our unamortized cloud computing balance was $45.7 million and $42.4 million at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively.

(1)

(1)

(2)

(1)

(1)

(2)
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7.    Goodwill

Substantially all of our goodwill relates to the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets acquired in the Columbia acquisition on November 1, 2000.
Our goodwill balance was $1,485.9 million as of December  31, 2022 and 2021. All our goodwill has been allocated to our Gas Distribution Operations
segment.

For our annual goodwill impairment analysis performed as of May 1, 2022, we completed a qualitative "step 0" assessment and determined that it was more
likely than not that the estimated fair value of the reporting unit substantially exceeded the related carrying value of our reporting unit. For this test, we
assessed various assumptions, events and circumstances that would have affected the estimated fair value of the reporting units as compared to the baseline
"step 1" fair value measurement performed May 1, 2020.

8.    Asset Retirement Obligations

We have recognized asset retirement obligations associated with various legal obligations including costs to remove and dispose of certain construction
materials located within many of our facilities (including our JV facilities), certain costs to retire pipeline, removal costs for certain underground storage tanks,
removal of certain pipelines known to contain PCB contamination, closure costs for certain sites including ash ponds, solid waste management units and a
landfill, as well as some other nominal asset retirement obligations. We also have an obligation associated with the decommissioning of our two hydro facilities
located in Indiana. These hydro facilities have an indeterminate life, and as such, no asset retirement obligation has been recorded.

Changes in our liability for asset retirement obligations for the years 2022 and 2021 are presented in the table below:
(in millions) 2022 2021
Beginning Balance $ 512.4  $ 495.6 

Accretion recorded as a regulatory asset/liability 17.1  16.0 
Additions 9.5  23.2 
Settlements (22.3) (11.2)
Change in estimated cash flows (3.2) (11.2)

Ending Balance $ 513.5  $ 512.4 

Certain non-legal costs of removal that have been, and continue to be, included in depreciation rates and collected in the customer rates of the rate-regulated
subsidiaries are classified as "Regulatory liabilities" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

9.    Regulatory Matters

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities
We follow the accounting and reporting requirements of ASC Topic 980, which provides that regulated entities account for and report assets and liabilities
consistent with the economic effect of regulatory rate-making procedures when the rates established are designed to recover the costs of providing the regulated
service and it is probable that such rates will be charged and collected from customers. Certain expenses and credits subject to utility regulation or rate
determination normally reflected in income or expense are deferred on the balance sheet and are recognized in the income statement as the related amounts are
included in customer rates and recovered from or refunded to customers. We assess the probability of collection for all of our regulatory assets each period.
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Regulatory assets were comprised of the following items:

At December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021
Regulatory Assets

Unrecognized pension and other postretirement benefit costs (see Note 12) $ 607.5  $ 512.1 
Deferred pension and other postretirement benefit costs (see Note 12) 72.2  74.8 
Environmental costs (see Note 19-E.) 41.4  45.8 
Regulatory effects of accounting for income taxes (see Note 1-N. and Note 11) 158.0  194.8 
Under-recovered gas and fuel costs (see Note 1-J.) 85.5  73.6 
Depreciation 191.3  177.5 
Post-in-service carrying charges 251.5  237.9 
Safety activity costs 200.7  171.9 
DSM programs 37.5  39.2 
Retired coal generating stations 744.0  803.9 
Losses on commodity price risk programs (See Note 10) 10.0  9.6 
Deferred property taxes 68.5  65.1 
Renewable energy investments (See Note 1-S. and Note 4) 37.7  18.5 
Other 75.0  67.5 

Total Regulatory Assets $ 2,580.8  $ 2,492.2 
Less: Current Portion 233.2  206.2 
Total Noncurrent Regulatory Assets $ 2,347.6  $ 2,286.0 

Regulatory liabilities were comprised of the following items:
At December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021
Regulatory Liabilities

Over-recovered gas and fuel costs (see Note 1-J.) $ 20.6  $ 5.4 
Cost of removal (see Note 8) 675.9  749.5 
Regulatory effects of accounting for income taxes (see Note 1-N. and Note 11) 996.3  1,040.8 
Deferred pension and other postretirement benefit costs (see Note 12) 66.8  75.9 
Gains on commodity price risk programs (See Note 10) 90.0  34.2 
Customer Assistance Programs 32.9  13.2 
Rate Refunds 51.4  8.2 
Other 78.7  52.8 

Total Regulatory Liabilities $ 2,012.6  $ 1,980.0 
Less: Current Portion 236.8  137.4 
Total Noncurrent Regulatory Liabilities $ 1,775.8  $ 1,842.6 

Regulatory assets, including under-recovered gas and fuel costs and depreciation, of approximately $1,324.7 million and $1,207.0 million as of December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively, are not earning a return on investment. These costs are recovered over a remaining life, the longest of which is 50 years.

Assets:

Unrecognized pension and other postretirement benefit costs. Represents the deferred other comprehensive income or loss of the actuarial gains or losses and
the prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but that are not immediately recognized as components of net periodic benefit costs by certain
subsidiaries that will ultimately be recovered through base rates.
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Deferred pension and other postretirement benefit costs. Primarily relates to the difference between defined benefit plan expense recorded by certain
subsidiaries due to regulatory orders and the corresponding expense that would otherwise be recorded in accordance with GAAP. The majority of these
amounts are driven by Columbia of Ohio. On January 26, 2023, the PUCO approved the joint stipulation in Columbia of Ohio's rate case. In the stipulation,
Columbia agreed to forego the continuation of its pension and OPEB deferral prospectively as of March 31, 2021. Amounts deferred as of March 31, 2021 will
be included in base rates.

Environmental costs. Includes certain recoverable costs related to gas plant sites, disposal sites or other sites onto which material may have migrated, the
recovery of which is to be addressed in future base rates, billing riders or tracking mechanisms of certain of our subsidiaries.

Regulatory effects of accounting for income taxes. Represents the deferral and under collection of deferred taxes in the rate making process.

Under-recovered gas and fuel costs. Represents the difference between the costs of gas and fuel and the recovery of such costs in revenue and is used to adjust
future billings for such deferrals on a basis consistent with applicable state-approved tariff provisions. Recovery of these costs is achieved through tracking
mechanisms.

Depreciation. Represents differences between depreciation expense incurred on a GAAP basis and that prescribed through regulatory order. The majority of
this balance is driven by Columbia of Ohio's IRP and CEP deferrals, however, starting in March 2023, the majority of these costs will be in base rates.

Post-in-service carrying charges. Represents deferred debt-based carrying charges incurred on certain assets placed into service but not yet included in
customer rates. The majority of this balance is driven by Columbia of Ohio's IRP and CEP deferrals, however, starting in March 2023, the majority of these
costs will be in base rates.

Safety activity costs. Represents the difference between costs incurred by certain of our subsidiaries in eligible safety programs in compliance with PHMSA
regulations in excess of those being recovered in rates. The majority of this balance is driven by Columbia of Ohio, which will begin recovery in March 2023
through base rates.

DSM programs. Represents costs associated with Gas Distribution Operations and Electric Operations segments' energy efficiency and conservation programs.
Costs are recovered through tracking mechanisms.

Retired coal generating stations. Represents the net book value of Units 7 and 8 of Bailly Generating Station that was retired during 2018 and the net book
value of Units 14 and 15 of R.M. Schahfer Generating Station retired in 2021. These amounts are currently being amortized at a rate consistent with their
inclusion in customer rates. The December 2019 NIPSCO electric rate case order allows for the recovery of, and on, the net book value of the stations by the
end of 2032 and implements a revenue credit for the retired units. The credit is based on the difference between the net book value of Units 14 and 15 upon
retirement and the last base rate case proceeding. The credit will be reset when new base rates are determined. See Note 6, "Property, Plant and Equipment," for
further details.

Losses on commodity price risk programs. Represents the unrealized losses related to certain of our subsidiary's commodity price risk programs. These
programs help to protect against the volatility of commodity prices and these amounts are collected from customers through their inclusion in customer rates.

Deferred property taxes. Represents the deferral and under collection of property taxes in the rate making process for Columbia of Ohio and is driven by the
IRP and CEP deferrals, however, starting in March 2023, the majority of these costs will be in base rates.

Renewable energy investments. Represents the regulatory deferral of certain amounts representing the timing difference between the profit earned from the
JVs and the amount included in regulated rates to recover our approved investments in consolidated JVs. These amounts will be collected through base rates
over the life of the renewable generating assets to which they relate. Refer to Note 1, "Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies -
S. VIEs and Allocation of Earnings," for additional information. Renewable energy formation and developer costs are also included in this regulatory asset.

 Liabilities:
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Over-recovered gas and fuel costs. Represents the difference between the cost of gas and fuel and the recovery of such costs in revenues and is the basis to
adjust future billings for such refunds on a basis consistent with applicable state-approved tariff provisions. Refunding of these revenues is achieved through
tracking mechanisms.

Cost of removal. Represents anticipated costs of removal for utility assets that have been collected through depreciation rates for future costs to be incurred.

Regulatory effects of accounting for income taxes. Represents amounts owed to customers for deferred taxes collected at a higher rate than the current
statutory rates and liabilities associated with accelerated tax deductions owed to customers. Balance includes excess deferred taxes recorded upon
implementation of the TCJA in December 2017, net of amounts amortized through 2022.

Deferred pension and other postretirement benefit costs. Primarily represents cash contributions in excess of postretirement benefit expense that is deferred
by certain subsidiaries.

Gains on commodity price risk programs. Represents the unrealized gains related to certain of our subsidiary's commodity price risk programs. These
programs help to protect against the volatility of commodity prices, and these amounts are passed back to customers through their inclusion in customer rates.

Customer Assistance Programs. Represents the difference between the eligible customer assistance program costs and collections, which will be refunded to
customers.

Rate Refunds. Represents supplier refunds received by the company that are owed to customers and will be remitted.

NIPSCO change in accounting estimate
As part of the NIPSCO Gas Settlement and Stipulation Agreement filed on March 2, 2022, NIPSCO Gas agreed to change the depreciation methodology for its
calculation of depreciation rates, which reduces depreciation expense and subsequent revenues and cash flows. An order was received on July 27, 2022
approving the rate case and rates were effective as of September 1, 2022. NIPSCO has proposed a similar change in depreciation methodology in its pending
electric base rate case.

Columbia of Ohio regulatory filing update
On Wednesday, April 6, 2022, the PUCO Staff issued its Staff Report in Columbia of Ohio's base rate case, filed on June 21, 2021, which was filed in
conjunction with applications for an alternative rate plan, approval of certain deferral authority, and updates to certain riders. Columbia of Ohio's application
requested a net rate increase approximating a 21.3% or $221.4 million increase in revenue per year. On October 31, 2022, Columbia of Ohio filed a joint
stipulation and recommendation with certain parties to settle the base rate case. The joint stipulation and recommendation includes a rate increase of 7.97%, or
$68.2 million and includes adjustments to plant assets, pension expenses, environmental remediation costs and other operations and maintenance expenses. The
joint stipulation and recommendation also proposes to extend both of Columbia of Ohio's capital investment riders, the IRP and CEP, for capital invested
through the 2026 calendar year. Columbia of Ohio recorded the material effects of the joint stipulation in the fourth quarter. On January 26, 2023, the PUCO
approved the joint stipulation and recommendation.

Regulatory deferral related to renewable energy investments
The offset to the regulatory liability or asset associated with our renewable investments included in regulated rates is recorded in "Depreciation expense" on the
Statements of Consolidated Comprehensive Income (Loss). Refer to Note 4, "Variable Interest Entities," and Note 6, "Property, Plant and Equipment," for
additional information.

FAC Adjustment
As ordered by the IURC on June 15, 2022, NIPSCO is required to refund to customers $8.0 million of over-collected fuel costs. The remaining refund is
recorded as a regulatory liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and is expected to be refunded in 2023.
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COVID-19 Regulatory Filings

In response to COVID-19, we received approvals or directives from the regulatory commissions in the states in which we operate. The ongoing impacts of
these approvals or directives are described in the table below:

Jurisdiction

Regulatory Asset
balance as of

December 31, 2022
(in millions)

Regulatory Asset
balance as of

December 31, 2021
(in millions) Deferred COVID-19 Costs

Columbia of Ohio $ —  $ 2.1  Incremental operation and maintenance expenses

NIPSCO $ 2.1  $ 2.2 
Incremental bad debt expense and the costs to implement the
requirements of the COVID-19 related order

Columbia of Pennsylvania
$ 2.8  $ 5.2 

Incremental bad debt expense incurred from March 13, 2020 through
December 29, 2021, above levels currently in rates

Columbia of Virginia $ 1.9  $ 1.5  Incremental incurred costs, including incremental bad debt expense

Columbia of Maryland

$ 1.3  $ 0.9 

Incremental costs (including incremental bad debt expense) incurred
to ensure that customers have essential utility service during the state
of emergency in Maryland. Such incremental costs must be offset by
any benefit received in connection with the pandemic

On January 26, 2023, the PUCO approved the joint stipulation in Columbia of Ohio's rate case. As part of this stipulation, Columbia agreed to forego recovery
of its deferred COVID-19 costs.

The Pennsylvania PUC lifted its prior pandemic-related moratorium on service terminations for non-payments of utility bills beginning April 1, 2021. In CPA's
recent rate case order, total COVID-19 deferrals were updated with the remaining balance being amortized over a four-year period.

For Columbia of Virginia, the moratorium on non-residential disconnections ended on October 6, 2020, and the moratorium on residential disconnections and
late payment fees ended on August 30, 2021.

In connection with the Maryland Relief Act and the order issued by the PSC of Maryland on June 15, 2021, Columbia of Maryland received approximately
$0.8 million of assistance that was applied to customer accounts in August 2021. Columbia of Maryland's recent rate case order includes continued
amortization of operation and maintenance expenses. All termination moratoriums will be lifted after April 1, 2023 and normal collections procedures will be
resumed.

Unless otherwise noted above, all other pandemic-related regulatory actions have expired or been lifted.
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10.     Risk Management Activities

We are exposed to certain risks related to our ongoing business operations; namely commodity price risk and interest rate risk. We recognize that the prudent
and selective use of derivatives may help to lower our cost of debt capital, manage interest rate exposure and limit volatility in the price of natural gas.

Risk management assets and liabilities on our derivatives are presented on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as shown below:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

(in millions) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Current

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 136.4 
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 18.8 1.1 10.6 0.4

Total $ 18.8  $ 1.1  $ 10.6  $ 136.8 
Noncurrent

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 66.0 1.9 13.8 7.4

Total $ 66.0  $ 1.9  $ 13.8  $ 7.4 
 Presented in "Prepayments and other" and "Other accruals", respectively, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
 Presented in "Deferred charges and other" and "Other noncurrent liabilities", respectively, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Our derivative instruments are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements. No collateral was either received or posted related to
our outstanding derivative positions at December 31, 2022. If the above gross asset and liability positions were presented net of amounts owed or receivable
from counterparties, we would report a net asset position of $81.8 million and $16.6 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments
Commodity price risk management. We, along with our utility customers, are exposed to variability in cash flows associated with natural gas purchases and
volatility in natural gas prices. We purchase natural gas for sale and delivery to our retail, commercial and industrial customers, and for most customers the
variability in the market price of gas is passed through in their rates. Some of our utility subsidiaries offer programs whereby variability in the market price of
gas is assumed by the respective utility. The objective of our commodity price risk programs is to mitigate the gas cost variability, for us or on behalf of our
customers, associated with natural gas purchases or sales by economically hedging the various gas cost components using a combination of futures, options,
forwards or other derivative contracts. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had 99.0 MMDth and 124.5 MMDth, respectively, of net energy derivative
volumes outstanding related to our natural gas hedges.

NIPSCO has received IURC approval to lock in a fixed price for its natural gas customers using long-term forward purchase instruments and is limited to 20%
of NIPSCO’s average annual GCA purchase volume. As of December 31, 2022, the remaining terms of these instruments range from one to five years.

All gains and losses on these derivative contracts are deferred as regulatory liabilities or assets and are remitted to or collected from customers through
NIPSCO’s quarterly GCA mechanism. These instruments are not designated as hedging instruments. Refer to Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," for additional
information.

Derivatives Designated as Hedging Instruments
Interest rate risk management. As of December 31, 2022, we have no forward-starting interest rate swaps outstanding.

On June 7, 2022, we settled a $250.0 million forward-starting interest rate swap agreement contemporaneously with the issuance of $350.0 million of 5.00%
senior unsecured notes maturing in 2052. The derivative contract was accounted for as a cash flow hedge. As part of the transaction, the associated net
unrealized gain position of $10.2 million is being amortized from AOCI into interest expense over the life of the associated debt. Refer to Note 15, "Long-Term
Debt," for additional information.

On December 21, 2022, we settled a $250.0 million forward-starting interest rate swap agreement that was designated as a cash flow hedge. As part of the
transaction, the associated net unrealized gain position of $10.0 million was recognized immediately

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)
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in "Other, net" on the Statements of Consolidated Income (Loss) due to the probability that the forecasted borrowing transaction would no longer occur.

Cash flow hedges included in "Accumulated other comprehensive loss" on the Consolidated Balance Sheets were:

(in millions) AOCI

Gain Expected to be
Reclassified to Earnings

During the Next 12 Months Maximum Term
Interest Rate $ (12.6) (0.3) 353 months

 All amounts are net of tax.

The net gain related to these swaps are recorded to AOCI. We amortize the net gain over the life of the debt associated with these swaps as we recognize
interest expense. These amounts are immaterial in 2022, 2021 and 2020 and are recorded in "Interest expense, net" on the Statements of Consolidated Income
(Loss).

There were no amounts excluded from effectiveness testing for derivatives in cash flow hedging relationships at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Our derivative instruments measured at fair value as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 did not contain any credit-risk-related contingent features. Cash flows for
derivative financial instruments are generally classified as operating activities.

11.    Income Taxes

Income Tax Expense. The components of income tax expense (benefit) were as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Income Taxes
Current

Federal $ 0.4  $ (0.1) $ 0.2 
State 7.3  6.0  11.7 

Total Current 7.7  5.9  11.9 
Deferred

Federal 181.0  99.2  (0.4)
State (23.0) 13.8  (27.4)

Total Deferred 158.0  113.0  (27.8)
Deferred Investment Credits (1.1) (1.1) (1.2)
Income Taxes $ 164.6  $ 117.8  $ (17.1)

(1) (1)

(1)
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Statutory Rate Reconciliation. The following table represents a reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory federal income tax rate to the actual
income tax expense from continuing operations:

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Book income (loss) before income taxes $ 956.4  $ 706.6  $ (31.3)
Tax expense (benefit) at statutory federal income tax rate 200.8  21.0 % 148.3  21.0 % (6.6) 21.0 %
Increases (reductions) in taxes resulting from:

State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 4.5  0.5  14.1  2.0  (11.7) 37.4 
Amortization of regulatory liabilities (38.5) (4.0) (39.1) (5.5) (38.4) 122.7 
Fines and penalties 0.3  —  —  —  11.8  (37.7)
Employee stock ownership plan dividends and other compensation (1.2) (0.1) (1.2) (0.2) (1.3) 4.2 
Deferred taxes on TCJA regulatory liability divested —  —  —  —  23.3  (74.5)
Tax accrual adjustments 0.2  —  (0.1) —  8.9  (28.4)
Federal tax credits (2.3) (0.2) (2.1) (0.3) (2.5) 8.0 
Other adjustments 0.8  —  (2.1) (0.3) (0.6) 1.9 

Income Taxes $ 164.6  17.2 % $ 117.8  16.7 % $ (17.1) 54.6 %

The difference in tax expense year-over-year has a relative impact on the effective tax rate proportional to pretax income or loss. The 0.5% increase in effective
tax rate in 2022 versus 2021 was primarily due to decreased amortization of excess deferred income taxes, offset by the state jurisdictional mix of pre-tax
income in 2022 tax effected at statutory tax rates, and the reduction of the Pennsylvania corporate income tax rate.

The 37.9% decrease in effective tax rate in 2021 versus 2020 was primarily the result of higher pre-tax income, state jurisdictional mix of pre-tax income in
2021 tax effected at statutory tax rates and increased amortization of excess deferred federal income taxes in 2021 compared to 2020. These items were offset
by decreased deferred tax expense recognized on the sale of Columbia of Massachusetts' regulatory liability in 2020, established due to TCJA in 2017, that
would have otherwise been recognized over the amortization period, 2020 non-deductible penalties and valuation allowance related to Columbia of
Massachusetts and 2020 one-time tax accrual adjustments.
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Net Deferred Income Tax Liability Components. Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. The principal components of our net deferred tax liability were as follows:

At December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021
Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated depreciation and other property differences $ 2,527.9  $ 2,454.4 
Other regulatory assets 348.4  308.6 

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 2,876.3  2,763.0 
Deferred tax assets

Other regulatory liabilities and deferred investment tax credits (including TCJA) 294.3  284.7 
Pension and other postretirement/postemployment benefits 124.7  104.8 
Net operating loss carryforward and AMT credit carryforward 491.0  545.9 
Environmental liabilities 20.7  22.2 
Other accrued liabilities 55.9  42.1 
Other, net 43.0  111.7 

Total Deferred Tax Assets 1,029.6  1,111.4 
Valuation Allowance (7.8) (7.8)

Net Deferred Tax Assets 1,021.8  1,103.6 
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities $ 1,854.5  $ 1,659.4 

At December 31, 2022, we have federal net operating loss carryforwards of $410.0 million (tax effected). The federal net operating loss carryforwards are
available to offset taxable income and will begin to expire in 2036. We believe it is more likely than not that we will realize the benefit from the federal net
operating loss carryforwards.

We also have $73.2 million (tax effected, net of federal benefit) of state net operating loss carryforwards. Depending on the jurisdiction in which the state net
operating loss was generated, the carryforwards will begin to expire in 2028.

We believe it is more likely than not that a portion of the benefit from certain state NOL carryforwards will not be realized. In recognition of this risk, we have
provided a valuation allowance of $7.8 million (net) on the deferred tax assets related to sale of Massachusetts Business assets reflected in the state net
operating loss carryforward presented above.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

At December 31, 2022, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Opening Balance $ 21.7  $ 21.7  $ 23.2 
Gross decreases - tax positions in prior period —  —  (1.5)
Gross increases - current period tax positions —  —  — 
Ending Balance $ 21.7  $ 21.7  $ 21.7 
Offset for net operating loss carryforwards (21.7) (21.7) (21.7)
Balance, Less Net Operating Loss Carryforwards $ —  $ —  $ — 

We present accrued interest on unrecognized tax benefits, accrued interest on other income tax liabilities and tax penalties in "Income Taxes" on our Statements
of Consolidated Income (Loss). Interest expense recorded on unrecognized tax benefits and other income tax liabilities was immaterial for all periods
presented. There were no accruals for penalties recorded in the Statements of Consolidated Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and
2020, and there were no balances for accrued penalties recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

We are subject to income taxation in the United States and various state jurisdictions, primarily Indiana, Pennsylvania, Kentucky, Massachusetts, Maryland and
Virginia.
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We participate in the IRS CAP, which provides the opportunity to resolve tax matters with the IRS before filing each year's consolidated federal income tax
return. As of December 31, 2022, tax years through 2021 have been audited and are effectively closed to further assessment. The Company has transitioned to
the Bridge Phase of the IRS CAP for the year ended December 31, 2022, which will remain open until an audit is completed or the statute of limitation expires.

The statute of limitations in each of the state jurisdictions in which we operate remains open between 3-4 years from the date the state income tax returns are
filed. As of December 31, 2022, there were no state income tax audits in progress that would have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

12.     Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits

We provide defined contribution plans and noncontributory defined benefit retirement plans that cover certain of our employees. Benefits under the defined
benefit retirement plans reflect the employees’ compensation, years of service and age at retirement. Additionally, we provide health care and life insurance
benefits for certain retired employees. The majority of employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement age while working for us. The
expected cost of such benefits is accrued during the employees’ years of service. Current rates of rate-regulated companies include postretirement benefit costs,
including amortization of the regulatory assets that arose prior to inclusion of these costs in rates. For most plans, cash contributions are remitted to grantor
trusts.

Our Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans’ Asset Management. The Board has delegated oversight of the pension and other postretirement benefit
plans’ assets to the NiSource Benefits Committee (“the Committee”). The Committee has adopted investment policy statements for the pension and other
postretirement benefit plans’ assets. For the pension plans, we employ a liability-driven investing strategy. A total return approach is utilized for the other
postretirement benefit plans’ assets. A mix of diversified investments are used to maximize the long-term return of plan assets and hedge the liabilities at a
prudent level of risk. The investment portfolio includes U.S. and non-U.S. equities, real estate, long-term and intermediate-term fixed income and alternative
investments. Risk tolerance is established through careful consideration of plan liabilities, funded status, and asset class volatility. Investment risk is measured
and monitored on an ongoing basis through quarterly investment portfolio reviews, annual liability measurements, and periodic asset/liability studies.

In determining the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets, historical markets are studied, relationships between equities and fixed income are analyzed
and current market factors, such as inflation and interest rates are evaluated with consideration of diversification and rebalancing. Our expected long-term rate
of return on assets is based on assumptions regarding target asset allocations and corresponding long-term capital market assumptions for each asset class. The
pension plans’ investment policy calls for a gradual reduction in the allocation of return-seeking assets (equities, real estate and private equity) and a
corresponding increase in the allocation of liability-hedging assets (fixed income) as the funded status of the plans’ increase.

As of December  31, 2022 and December  31, 2021, the acceptable minimum and maximum ranges established by the policy for the pension and other
postretirement benefit plans are as follows:

December 31, 2022 Defined Benefit Pension Plan Postretirement Benefit Plan
Asset Category Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum
Domestic Equities 7% 27% 0% 55%
International Equities 3% 13% 0% 25%
Fixed Income 69% 81% 20% 100%
Real Estate 0% 3% 0% 0%
Private Equity 0% 3% 0% 0%
Short-Term Investments 0% 10% 0% 10%
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December 31, 2021 Defined Benefit Pension Plan Postretirement Benefit Plan
Asset Category Minimum Maximum Minimum Maximum
Domestic Equities 7% 27% 0% 55%
International Equities 3% 13% 0% 25%
Fixed Income 69% 81% 20% 100%
Real Estate 0% 3% 0% 0%
Private Equity 0% 3% 0% 0%
Short-Term Investments 0% 10% 0% 10%

The actual Pension Plan and Postretirement Plan Asset Mix at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Defined Benefit
Pension Assets

December 31,
2022

Postretirement
Benefit Plan Assets

December 31,
2022

Asset Class (in millions) Asset Value % of Total Assets Asset Value % of Total Assets
Domestic Equities $ 231.1  16.2 % $ 86.9  38.6 %
International Equities 119.0  8.4 % 36.6  16.3 %
Fixed Income 1,004.3  70.6 % 94.7  42.1 %
Real Estate 5.0  0.3 % —  — 
Cash/Other 63.4  4.5 % 6.7  3.0 %
Total $ 1,422.8  100.0 % $ 224.9  100.0 %
       

Defined Benefit
Pension Assets

December 31,
2021

Postretirement
Benefit Plan Assets

December 31,
2021

Asset Class (in millions) Asset Value % of Total Assets Asset Value % of Total Assets
Domestic Equities $ 324.3  16.4 % $ 118.6  40.4 %
International Equities 150.9  7.6 % 50.5  17.2 %
Fixed Income 1,382.3  69.7 % 118.8  40.4 %
Real Estate 37.2  1.9 % —  — 
Cash/Other 87.0  4.4 % 5.8  2.0 %
Total $ 1,981.7  100.0 % $ 293.7  100.0 %

Total includes accrued dividends and pending trades with brokers.

The categorization of investments into the asset classes in the tables above are based on definitions established by the Committee.

Fair Value Measurements. The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the pension and other postretirement benefits investment
assets at fair value as of December 31, 2022 and 2021. Assets are classified in their entirety based on the observability of inputs used in determining the fair
value measurement. There were no investment assets in the pension and other postretirement benefits trusts classified within Level 3 for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

(1)

(1)

(1)

86



Table of Contents
NISOURCE INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (continued)

We use the following valuation techniques to determine fair value. For the year ended December 31, 2022, there were no significant changes to valuation
techniques to determine the fair value of our pension and other postretirement benefits' assets.

Level 1 Measurements
Most common and preferred stocks are traded in active markets on national and international securities exchanges and are valued at closing prices on the last
business day of each period presented. Cash is stated at cost, which approximates fair value, with the exception of cash held in foreign currencies which
fluctuates with changes in the exchange rates. Short-term bills and notes are priced based on quoted market values.

Level 2 Measurements
Most U.S. Government Agency obligations, mortgage/asset-backed securities, and corporate fixed income securities are generally valued by benchmarking
model-derived prices to quoted market prices and trade data for identical or comparable securities. To the extent that quoted prices are not available, fair value
is determined based on a valuation model that includes inputs such as interest rate yield curves and credit spreads. Securities traded in markets that are not
considered active are valued based on quoted market prices, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price
transparency. Other fixed income includes futures and options which are priced on bid valuation or settlement pricing.

Level 3 Measurements
Investments with unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets and liabilities are
classified as level 3 investments.

Not Classified
Commingled funds, private equity limited partnerships and real estate partnerships are not classified within the fair value hierarchy. Instead, these assets are
measured at estimated fair value using the net asset value per share of the investments. Commingled funds' underlying assets are principally marketable equity
and fixed income securities. Units held in commingled funds are valued at the unit value as reported by the investment managers. Private equity funds invest
capital in non-public companies and real estate funds invest in commercial and distressed real estate directly or through related debt instruments. The fair value
of these investments is determined by reference to the funds’ underlying assets.
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2022: 

(in millions)
December 31,

2022

Quoted Prices in  Active
Markets for

 Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs (Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable Inputs

 (Level 3)
Pension plan assets:
Cash $ 2.5  $ 2.0  $ 0.5  $ — 
Equity securities

International equities 0.5  0.5  —  — 
Fixed income securities

Government 316.3  —  316.3  — 
Corporate 407.8  —  407.8  — 
Mortgages/ Asset Backed Securities 2.3  —  2.3  — 
Other fixed income 1.9  1.9  —  — 

Mutual Funds
U.S. multi-strategy 97.4  97.4  —  — 
International equities 29.0  29.0  —  — 
Fixed income 0.2  0.2  —  — 

Private equity limited partnerships
U.S. multi-strategy 6.3  —  —  — 
International multi-strategy 2.3  —  —  — 
Distressed opportunities 0.1  —  —  — 

Real estate 5.0  —  —  — 
Commingled funds

Short-term money markets 46.2  —  —  — 
U.S. equities 133.7  —  —  — 
International equities 89.6  —  —  — 
Fixed income 275.9  —  —  — 

Pension plan assets subtotal $ 1,417.0  $ 131.0  $ 726.9  $ — 
Other postretirement benefit plan assets:
Mutual funds

U.S. multi-strategy 76.2  76.2  —  — 
International equities 16.3  16.3  —  — 
Fixed income 94.7  94.7  —  — 

Commingled funds
Short-term money markets 17.4  —  —  — 
U.S. equities 10.7  —  —  — 
International equities 20.3  —  —  — 

Other postretirement benefit plan assets subtotal $ 235.6  $ 187.2  $ —  $ — 
Due to brokers, net (2.0) —  (2.0) — 
Receivables/payables (10.7) —  (10.7) — 
Accrued income/dividends 7.8  7.8  —  — 
Total pension and other postretirement benefit
plan assets $ 1,647.7  $ 326.0  $ 714.2  $ — 

This class includes limited partnerships/fund of funds that invest in a diverse portfolio of private equity strategies, including buy-outs, growth capital, special situations and secondary markets,
primarily inside the United States. 

This class includes limited partnerships/fund of funds that invest a in diverse portfolio of private equity strategies, including buy-outs, growth capital, special situations and secondary markets,
primarily outside the United States.

(3)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(3)

(3)

(4)

(1)

(2)
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This class of investments is measured at fair value using the net asset value per share and has not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.
This class represents pending trades with brokers.

The table below sets forth a summary of unfunded commitments, redemption frequency and redemption notice periods for certain investments that are
measured at fair value using the net asset value per share for the year ended December 31, 2022:

(in millions) Fair Value
Unfunded

Commitments
Redemption
Frequency

Redemption Notice
Period

Commingled Funds
Short-term money markets $ 63.6  $ —  Daily 1 day
U.S. equities 144.4  —  Daily 1 day - 5 days
International equities 109.9  —  Monthly 10 days-30 days
Fixed income 275.9  —  Daily 3 days

Private Equity and Real Estate Limited Partnerships 13.7  11.6  N/A N/A
Total $ 607.5  $ 11.6 

Private equity and real estate limited partnerships typically call capital over a 3-5 year period and pay out distributions as the underlying investments are liquidated. The typical expected life of these
limited partnerships is 0-15 years, and these investments typically cannot be redeemed prior to liquidation.

(3)

(4)

(1)

(1)
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Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2021: 

(in millions)
December 31,

2021

Quoted Prices in Active
Markets for Identical Assets

(Level 1)
Significant Other

Observable Inputs (Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable Inputs 

(Level 3)
Pension plan assets:
Cash $ 10.3  $ 9.7  $ 0.6  $ — 
Equity securities

International equities 0.5  0.5  —  — 
Fixed income securities

Government 387.3  —  387.3  — 
Corporate 645.9  —  645.9  — 

Mutual Funds
U.S. multi-strategy 128.4  128.4  —  — 
International equities 38.7  38.7  —  — 

Private equity limited partnerships
U.S. multi-strategy 10.9  —  —  — 
International multi-strategy 4.5  —  —  — 
Distressed opportunities 0.1  —  —  — 

Real estate 37.2  —  —  — 
Commingled funds

Short-term money markets 55.0  —  —  — 
U.S. equities 195.9  —  —  — 
International equities 111.7  —  —  — 
Fixed income 349.1  —  —  — 

Pension plan assets subtotal $ 1,975.5  $ 177.3  $ 1,033.8  $ — 
Other postretirement benefit plan assets:
Mutual funds

U.S. multi-strategy 103.8  103.8  —  — 
International equities 24.4  24.4  —  — 
Fixed income 118.5  118.5  —  — 

Commingled funds
Short-term money markets 5.8  —  —  — 
U.S. equities 14.8  —  —  — 
International equities 26.1  —  —  — 

Other postretirement benefit plan assets subtotal $ 293.4  $ 246.7  $ —  $ — 
Due to brokers, net (1.8) —  (1.8) — 
Receivables/payables 0.3  —  0.3  — 
Accrued income/dividends 8.0  8.0  —  — 
Total pension and other postretirement benefit
plan assets $ 2,275.4  $ 432.0  $ 1,032.3  $ — 

This class includes limited partnerships/fund of funds that invest in a diverse portfolio of private equity strategies, including buy-outs, venture capital, growth capital, special situations and
secondary markets, primarily inside the United States. 

This class includes limited partnerships/fund of funds that invest in diverse portfolio of private equity strategies, including buy-outs, venture capital, growth capital, special situations and secondary
markets, primarily outside the United States.

This class of investments is measured at fair value using the net asset value per share and has not been classified in the fair value hierarchy.
This class represents pending trades with brokers.
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The table below sets forth a summary of unfunded commitments, redemption frequency and redemption notice periods for certain investments that are
measured at fair value using the net asset value per share for the year ended December 31, 2021:

(in millions) Fair Value
Unfunded

Commitments
Redemption
Frequency Redemption Notice Period

Commingled Funds
Short-term money markets $ 60.8  $ —  Daily 1 day
U.S. equities 210.7  —  Daily 1 day -5 days
International equities 137.8  —  Monthly 10 days - 30 days
Fixed income 349.1  —  Daily 3 days

Private Equity and Real Estate Limited Partnerships 20.4  12.1  N/A N/A
Total $ 778.8  $ 12.1 

Private equity and real estate limited partnerships typically call capital over a 3-5 year period and pay out distributions as the underlying investments are liquidated. The typical expected life of these
limited partnerships is 0-15 years, and these investments typically cannot be redeemed prior to liquidation.

 

(1)

(1)
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Our Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans’ Funded Status and Related Disclosure. The following table provides a reconciliation of the plans’
funded status and amounts reflected in our Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31 based on a December 31 measurement date:
  Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
(in millions) 2022 2021 2022 2021
Change in projected benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 1,852.4  $ 2,058.4  $ 556.2  $ 590.8 
Service cost 27.8  30.2  6.5  6.2 
Interest cost 40.5  31.4  12.0  9.9 
Plan participants’ contributions —  —  4.1  4.2 
Plan amendments 0.2  —  2.1  0.1 
Actuarial gain (318.7) (68.7) (89.9) (14.8)
Benefits paid (174.8) (198.9) (42.3) (40.6)
Estimated benefits paid by incurred subsidy —  —  0.3  0.4 
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 1,427.4  $ 1,852.4  $ 449.0  $ 556.2 
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 1,981.7  $ 2,117.7  $ 293.7  $ 286.4 
Actual return on plan assets (386.8) 58.9  (51.9) 23.9 
Employer contributions 2.7  4.0  21.3  19.8 
Plan participants’ contributions —  —  4.1  4.2 
Benefits paid (174.8) (198.9) (42.3) (40.6)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 1,422.8  $ 1,981.7  $ 224.9  $ 293.7 
Funded Status at end of year $ (4.6) $ 129.3  $ (224.1) $ (262.5)
Amounts recognized in the statement of
financial position consist of:
Noncurrent assets 18.3  159.3  —  — 
Current liabilities (2.6) (2.8) (1.0) (1.0)
Noncurrent liabilities (20.3) (27.2) (223.1) (261.5)
Net amount recognized at end of year $ (4.6) $ 129.3  $ (224.1) $ (262.5)
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income
or regulatory asset/liability
Unrecognized prior service credit $ 0.4  $ 0.3  $ (3.4) $ (7.8)
Unrecognized actuarial loss 564.2  438.0  64.0  88.5 
 Net amount recognized at end of year $ 564.6  $ 438.3  $ 60.6  $ 80.7 

The change in benefit obligation for Pension Benefits represents the change in Projected Benefit Obligation while the change in benefit obligation for Other Postretirement Benefits represents the
change in accumulated postretirement benefit obligation.

The pension actuarial gain was primarily driven by the increase in discount rate. The postretirement benefit gain was also primarily driven by an increase in discount rates.
We recognize our Consolidated Balance Sheets underfunded and overfunded status of our various defined benefit postretirement plans, measured as the difference between the fair value of the plan

assets and the benefit obligation.
We determined that for certain rate-regulated subsidiaries the future recovery of pension and other postretirement benefits costs is probable. These rate-regulated subsidiaries recorded regulatory

assets and liabilities of $607.5 million and zero, respectively, as of December 31, 2022, and $512.1 million and zero, respectively, as of December 31, 2021 that would otherwise have been recorded to
accumulated other comprehensive loss.

Our accumulated benefit obligation for our pension plans was $1,416.8 million and $1,834.4 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The
accumulated benefit obligation at each date is the actuarial present value of benefits attributed by the pension benefit formula to employee service rendered
prior to that date and based on current and past compensation levels. The accumulated benefit obligation differs from the projected benefit obligation disclosed
in the table above in that it includes no assumptions about future compensation levels. 

We are required to reflect the funded status of our pension and postretirement benefit plans on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The funded status of the plans is
measured as the difference between the plan assets' fair value and the projected benefit obligation. We present the noncurrent aggregate of all underfunded
plans within "Accrued liability for postretirement and postemployment benefits." The portion of the amount by which the actuarial present value of benefits
included in the projected

(1)
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benefit obligation exceeds the fair value of plan assets, payable in the next 12 months, is reflected in "Accrued compensation and other benefits." We present
the aggregate of all overfunded plans within "Deferred charges and other."

Information for pension plans with a projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:

December 31,
2022 2021

Accumulated Benefit Obligation $ 22.9  $ 30.0 
Funded Status

Projected Benefit Obligation 22.9  30.0 
Funded Status of Underfunded Pension Plans at End of Year $ (22.9) $ (30.0)
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, only our nonqualified plans were underfunded. These plans have no assets as they are not funded until benefits are paid.

Information for pension plans with plan assets in excess of the projected benefit obligation:

December 31,
2022 2021

Accumulated Benefit Obligation $ 1,393.8  $ 1,804.3 
Funded Status

Projected Benefit Obligation 1,404.5  1,822.4 
Fair Value of Plan Assets 1,422.8  1,981.7 

Funded Status of Overfunded Pension Plans at End of Year $ 18.3  $ 159.3 

Our pension plans were underfunded, in aggregate, by $4.6 million at December 31, 2022 compared to being overfunded by $129.3 million at December 31,
2021. The decline in the funded status was primarily due to unfavorable asset returns offset by an increase in discount rates. We contributed $2.7 million and
$4.0 million to our pension plans in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Our other postretirement benefit plans were underfunded by $224.1 million at December  31, 2022 compared to being underfunded by $262.5 million at
December 31, 2021. The improvement in funded status was primarily due to increased discount rates offset by unfavorable asset returns. We contributed $21.3
million and $19.8 million to our other postretirement benefit plans in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

In 2022 and 2021, some of our qualified pension plans paid lump sum payouts in excess of the respective plan's service cost plus interest cost, thereby meeting
the requirement for settlement accounting. We recorded settlement charges of $12.4 million and $11.4 million in 2022 and 2021, respectively. Net periodic
pension benefit cost increased by $5.7 million and $4.0 million in 2022 and 2021, respectively, as the result of the remeasurement.

(1)

(1)
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The following table provides the key assumptions that were used to calculate the pension and other postretirement benefits obligations for our various plans as
of December 31:
  Pension Benefits Other Postretirement  Benefits
   2022 2021 2022 2021
Weighted-average assumptions to Determine Benefit Obligation

Discount Rate 5.14 % 2.76 % 5.17 % 2.85 %
Rate of Compensation Increases 4.00 % 4.00 % N/A N/A
Interest Crediting Rates 4.00 % 4.00 % N/A N/A
Health Care Trend Rates

Trend for Next Year N/A N/A 6.69 % 6.20 %
Ultimate Trend N/A N/A 4.75 % 4.50 %
Year Ultimate Trend Reached N/A N/A 2032 2030

We expect to make contributions of approximately $2.6 million to our pension plans and approximately $23.7 million to our postretirement medical and life
plans in 2023.

The following table provides benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five fiscal years, and in the aggregate for the five fiscal years thereafter. The
expected benefits are estimated based on the same assumptions used to measure our benefit obligation at the end of the year and include benefits attributable to
the estimated future service of employees:

(in millions) Pension Benefits

Other
Postretirement

Benefits
Federal

Subsidy Receipts
Year(s)
2023 $ 150.5  $ 38.9  $ 0.4 
2024 145.2  38.5  0.2 
2025 141.2  37.8  0.2 
2026 133.8  36.9  0.2 
2027 128.1  36.4  0.2 
2028-2032 563.2  172.0  0.9 

The following table provides the components of the plans’ actuarially determined net periodic benefits cost for each of the three years ended December 31,
2022, 2021 and 2020:

  Pension Benefits
Other Postretirement

Benefits
(in millions) 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020
Components of Net Periodic Benefit (Income)
Cost
Service cost $ 27.8  $ 30.2  $ 32.0  $ 6.5  $ 6.2  $ 6.6 
Interest cost 40.5  31.4  51.6  12.0  9.9  15.4 
Expected return on assets (90.8) (101.6) (111.6) (16.2) (15.3) (14.4)
Amortization of prior service cost (credit) 0.1  0.1  0.7  (2.2) (2.2) (2.1)
Recognized actuarial loss 20.3  21.7  33.8  2.6  4.6  4.9 
Settlement/curtailment loss 12.4  11.4  10.5  —  —  1.5 
Total Net Periodic Benefits (Income) Cost $ 10.3  $ (6.8) $ 17.0  $ 2.7  $ 3.2  $ 11.9 

Service cost is presented in "Operation and maintenance" on the Statements of Consolidated Income (Loss). Non-service cost components are presented within "Other, net."

(1)

(1)
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The following table provides the key assumptions that were used to calculate the net periodic benefits cost for our various plans:

  Pension Benefits
 Other Postretirement

Benefits
   2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020
Weighted-average Assumptions to Determine
Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Discount rate - service cost 3.08 % 2.81 % 3.39 % 3.21 % 3.00 % 3.52 %
Discount rate - interest cost 2.11 % 1.57 % 2.65 % 2.24 % 1.73 % 2.76 %
Expected Long-Term Rate of Return on Plan
Assets 4.80 % 5.20 % 5.70 % 5.72 % 5.50 % 5.67 %
Rate of Compensation Increases 4.00 % 4.00 % 4.00 % N/A N/A N/A
Interest Crediting Rates 4.00 % 4.00 % 4.00 % N/A N/A N/A

We assumed a 4.80% and 5.72% rate of return on pension and other postretirement plan assets, respectively, for our calculation of 2022 pension benefits and
other postretirement benefits costs. These rates were primarily based on asset mix and historical rates of return and were adjusted in 2022 due to anticipated
changes in asset allocation and projected market returns.

The following table provides other changes in plan assets and projected benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income or regulatory asset or
liability:

   Pension Benefits
Other Postretirement

Benefits
(in millions) 2022 2021 2022 2021
Other Changes in Plan Assets and Projected Benefit Obligations 
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or Regulatory Asset 
or Liability

Net prior service cost $ 0.2  $ —  $ 2.1  $ 0.1 
Net actuarial loss (gain) 158.9  (26.0) (21.8) (23.3)
Settlements/curtailments (12.4) (11.4) —  — 
Less: amortization of prior service cost (0.1) (0.1) 2.2  2.2 
Less: amortization of net actuarial loss (20.3) (21.7) (2.6) (4.6)

Total Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or Regulatory 
Asset or Liability $ 126.3  $ (59.2) $ (20.1) $ (25.6)
Amount Recognized in Net Periodic Benefits Cost and Other 
Comprehensive Income or Regulatory Asset or Liability $ 136.6  $ (66.0) $ (17.4) $ (22.4)

13.     Equity

Holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to receive dividends when, as, and if declared by the Board out of funds legally available. The policy of the
Board has been to declare cash dividends on a quarterly basis payable on or about the 20th day of February, May, August and November. We have certain debt
covenants that could potentially limit the amount of dividends we could pay in order to maintain compliance with these covenants. Refer to Note 15, "Long-
Term Debt," for more information. As of December 31, 2022, these covenants did not restrict the amount of dividends that were available to be paid.

Dividends paid to preferred shareholders vary based on the series of preferred stock owned. Holders of our shares of common stock are subject to the prior
dividend rights of holders of our preferred stock or the depositary shares representing such preferred stock outstanding, and if full dividends have not been
declared and paid on all outstanding shares of preferred stock in any dividend period, no dividend may be declared or paid or set aside for payment on our
common stock.

Common and preferred stock activity for 2022, 2021 and 2020 is described further below.
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ATM Program. On November 1, 2018, we entered into five separate equity distribution agreements pursuant to which we were able to sell up to an aggregate
of $500.0 million of our common stock. Four of these agreements were then amended on August 1, 2019 and one was terminated, pursuant to which we were
able to sell up to an aggregate of $434.4 million of our common stock. These equity distribution agreements impacting fiscal year 2020 expired on December
31, 2020.

On February 22, 2021, we entered into six separate equity distribution agreements pursuant to which we are able to sell up to an aggregate of $750.0 million of
our common stock.

On August 9, 2021, under the ATM program, we executed a forward sale agreement, which allowed us to issue a fixed number of shares at a price to be settled
in the future. From August 9, 2021 to September 1, 2021, the forward purchaser under our forward sale agreement borrowed 5,941,598 shares from third
parties, which the forward purchaser sold, through its affiliated agent, at a weighted average price of $25.25 per share. On November 16, 2022, the forward sale
agreement was settled for $23.90 per share, resulting in $142.0 million of net proceeds.

As of December 31, 2022, the ATM program had approximately $300.0 million of equity available for issuance. The program expires on December 31, 2023.

The following table summarizes our activity under the ATM program.
Year Ending December 31, 2022 2021 2020
Number of shares issued 5,941,598  12,525,215  8,459,430 
Average price per share $ 25.25  $ 23.95  $ 23.60 
Proceeds, net of fees (in millions) $ 141.9  $ 288.1  $ 196.5 

Preferred Stock. On June 11, 2018, we completed the sale of 400,000 shares of 5.650% Series A Fixed-Rate Reset Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred
Stock (the "Series A Preferred Stock") at a price of $1,000 per share. The transaction resulted in $400.0 million of gross proceeds or $393.9 million of net
proceeds, after deducting commissions and sale expenses. The Series A Preferred Stock was issued in a private placement pursuant to SEC Rule 144A. On
December 13, 2018, we filed a registration statement with the SEC enabling holders to exchange their unregistered shares of Series A Preferred Stock for
publicly registered shares with substantially identical terms.

Dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock accrue and are cumulative from the date the shares of Series A Preferred Stock were originally issued to, but not
including, June 15, 2023 at a rate of 5.650% per annum of the $1,000 liquidation preference per share. On and after June 15, 2023, dividends on the Series A
Preferred Stock will accumulate for each five year period at a percentage of the $1,000 liquidation preference equal to the five-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus
(i) in respect of each five year period commencing on or after June 15, 2023 but before June 15, 2043, a spread of 2.843% (the “Initial Margin”), and (ii) in
respect of each five year period commencing on or after June 15, 2043, the Initial Margin plus 1.000%. The Series A Preferred Stock may be redeemed by us at
our option on June 15, 2023, or on each date falling on the fifth anniversary thereafter, or in connection with a ratings event (as defined in the Certificate of
Designation of the Series A Preferred Stock).

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, Series A Preferred Stock had $1.0 million of cumulative preferred dividends in arrears, or $2.51 per share.

Holders of Series A Preferred Stock generally have no voting rights, except for limited voting rights with respect to (i) potential amendments to our certificate
of incorporation that would have a material adverse effect on the existing preferences, rights, powers or duties of the Series A Preferred Stock, (ii) the creation
or issuance of any security ranking on a parity with the Series A Preferred Stock if the cumulative dividends payable on then outstanding Series A Preferred
Stock are in arrears, or (iii) the creation or issuance of any security ranking senior to the Series A Preferred Stock. The Series A Preferred Stock does not have a
stated maturity and is not subject to mandatory redemption or any sinking fund. The Series A Preferred Stock will remain outstanding indefinitely unless
repurchased or redeemed by us. Any such redemption would be effected only out of funds legally available for such purposes and will be subject to compliance
with the provisions of our outstanding indebtedness.

On December 5, 2018, we completed the sale of 20,000,000 depositary shares with an aggregate liquidation preference of $500,000,000 under the Company’s
registration statement on Form S-3. Each depositary share represents 1/1,000th ownership interest in a share of our 6.500% Series B Fixed-Rate Reset
Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock, liquidation preference $25,000 per share (equivalent to $25 per depositary share) (the “Series B Preferred
Stock"). The transaction resulted in $500.0 million of gross proceeds or $486.1 million of net proceeds, after deducting commissions and sale expenses.
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Dividends on the Series B Preferred Stock accrue and are cumulative from the date the shares of Series B Preferred Stock were originally issued to, but not
including, March 15, 2024 at a rate of 6.500% per annum of the $25,000 liquidation preference per share. On and after March 15, 2024, dividends on the Series
B Preferred Stock will accumulate for each five year period at a percentage of the $25,000 liquidation preference equal to the five-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus
(i) in respect of each five year period commencing on or after March 15, 2024 but before March 15, 2044, a spread of 3.632% (the “Initial Margin”), and (ii) in
respect of each five year period commencing on or after March 15, 2044, the Initial Margin plus 1.000%. The Series B Preferred Stock may be redeemed by us
at our option on March 15, 2024, or on each date falling on the fifth anniversary thereafter, or in connection with a ratings event (as defined in the Certificate of
Designation of the Series B Preferred Stock).

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, Series B Preferred Stock had $1.4 million of cumulative preferred dividends in arrears, or $72.23 per share.

In addition, 20,000 shares of Series B–1 Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, were outstanding as of December  31, 2022. Holders of Series B–1
Preferred Stock are not entitled to receive dividend payments and have no conversion rights. The Series B–1 Preferred Stock is paired with the Series B
Preferred Stock and may not be transferred, redeemed or repurchased except in connection with the simultaneous transfer, redemption or repurchase of the
underlying Series B Preferred Stock.

Holders of Series B Preferred Stock generally have no voting rights, except for limited voting rights with respect to (i) potential amendments to our certificate
of incorporation that would have a material adverse effect on the existing preferences, rights, powers or duties of the Series B Preferred Stock, (ii) the creation
or issuance of any security ranking on a parity with the Series B Preferred Stock if the cumulative dividends payable on then outstanding Series B Preferred
Stock are in arrears, or (iii) the creation or issuance of any security ranking senior to the Series B Preferred Stock. In addition, if and whenever dividends on
any shares of Series B Preferred Stock shall not have been declared and paid for at least six dividend periods, whether or not consecutive, the number of
directors then constituting our Board of Directors shall automatically be increased by two until all accumulated and unpaid dividends on the Series B Preferred
Stock shall have been paid in full, and the holders of Series B-1 Preferred Stock, voting as a class together with the holders of any outstanding securities
ranking on a parity with the Series B-1 Preferred Stock and having like voting rights that are exercisable at the time and entitled to vote thereon, shall be
entitled to elect the two additional directors. The Series B Preferred Stock does not have a stated maturity and is not subject to mandatory redemption or any
sinking fund. The Series B Preferred Stock will remain outstanding indefinitely unless repurchased or redeemed by us. Any such redemption would be effected
only out of funds legally available for such purposes and will be subject to compliance with the provisions of our outstanding indebtedness.

The following table summarizes preferred stock by outstanding series of shares:

Year ended December 31, December 31, December 31,
2022 2021 2020 2022 2021

(in millions except shares and per
share amounts)

Liquidation Preference Per
Share Shares Dividends Declared Per Share Outstanding

5.650% Series A $ 1,000.00  400,000  $ 56.50  $ 56.50  $ 56.50  $ 393.9  $ 393.9 
6.500% Series B 25,000.00  20,000  1,625.00  1,625.00  1,625.00  486.1  486.1 
Series C $ 1,000.00  862,500  —  —  —  $ 666.5  $ 666.5 

The Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock initially will not bear any dividends. We recorded the initial present value of the purchase contract payments as a liability with a corresponding
reduction to preferred stock.

Equity Units. On April 19, 2021, we completed the sale of 8.625 million Equity Units, initially consisting of Corporate Units, each with a stated amount of
$100. The offering generated net proceeds of $835.5 million, after underwriting and issuance expenses. Each Corporate Unit consists of a forward contract to
purchase shares of our common stock in the future and a 1/10th, or 10%, undivided beneficial ownership interest in one share of Series C Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, with a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share.

(1)

(1) 
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Selected information about the Equity Units is presented below:

(in millions except contract rate) Issuance Date Units Issued
Total Net

Proceeds
Purchase Contract

Annual Rate
Purchase Contract

Liability
Equity Units April 19, 2021 8.625 $ 835.5  7.75 % $ 168.8 

Issuance costs of $27.0 million were recorded on a relative fair value basis as a reduction to preferred stock of $22.5 million and a reduction to the purchase contract liability of $4.5 million.

The purchase contract obligates holders to purchase shares of our common stock on December 1, 2023, subject to early settlement in certain situations. The
purchase price paid under the purchase contract is $100 and the number of shares to be purchased will be determined under a settlement rate formula based on
the volume-weighted average share price of our common stock near the settlement date, subject to a maximum settlement rate. The Series C Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock will initially be pledged upon issuance as collateral to secure the purchase of common stock under the related purchase contracts.

The Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock is expected to be remarketed prior to December 1, 2023, and each share, unless previously converted, will
automatically convert to common stock based on a conversion rate on the mandatory conversion date, which is expected to be on or about March 1, 2024. The
conversion rate will be determined based on the volume-weighted average share price of our common stock near the conversion date, subject to a minimum
and maximum conversion rate. Prior to December 1, 2023, the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock will not bear any dividends and the liquidation
preference will not accrete. Following a successful remarketing, dividends may become payable on the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and/or
the minimum conversion rate of the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock may be increased. If no successful remarketing of the Series C Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock has previously occurred, effective as of December 1, 2023, the conversion rate will be zero, no shares of our common stock will be
delivered upon automatic conversion and each share of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock will be automatically transferred to us on the
mandatory conversion date without any payment of cash or shares of our common stock thereon. In the event of such a remarketing failure, any shares of Series
C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock held as part of Corporate Units will be automatically delivered to us on December 1, 2023 in full satisfaction of the
relevant holder's obligation under the related purchase contracts.

We will pay quarterly contract adjustment payments at the rate of 7.75% per year on the stated amount of $100 per Equity Unit. The contract adjustment
payments are payable in cash, shares of our common stock or a combination thereof, at our election. The payment of contract adjustment payments may also be
deferred until the purchase contract settlement date, December 1, 2023, at our election. If we exercise our option to defer the payment of contract adjustment
payments, then until the deferred contract adjustment payments have been paid, we will not declare or pay any dividends on, or make any distributions on, or
redeem, purchase or acquire, or make a liquidation payment with respect to, any shares of our capital stock; make any payment of principal of, or interest or
premium, if any, on, or repay, repurchase or redeem any of our debt securities that rank on parity with, or junior to, the contract adjustment payments; or make
any guarantee payments under any guarantee by us of securities of any of our subsidiaries if our guarantee ranks on parity with, or junior to, the contract
adjustment payments. As of December  31, 2022, no contract adjustment payments have been deferred with quarterly cash payments being remitted to the
holders. As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 the purchase contract liability was $65.0 million and $129.4 million, respectively. Purchase contract
payments are recorded against this liability. Accretion of the purchase contract liability is recorded as interest expense. Cash payments of $66.8 million and
$41.2 million were made during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock and forward purchase contracts are legally detachable and separately exercisable, however, due to the
economic linkage between the forward purchase contract and the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, we have concluded that the ability to
separate the Corporate Units is non-substantive. Accordingly, we are accounting for the Corporate Units as a single unit of account. We recorded the initial
present value of the purchase contract payments as a liability with a corresponding reduction to preferred stock. This liability is included in "Other accruals"go
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Refer to Note 5, "Earnings Per Share," for additional information regarding our treatment of the Equity Units for diluted EPS. Under the terms of the Equity
Units, assuming no anti-dilution or other adjustments such as a fundamental change, the maximum number of shares of common stock we will issue under the
purchase contracts is 35.2 million and maximum number

(1)
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of shares of common stock we will issue under the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock is 35.2 million. Had we settled the remaining purchase
contract payment balance in shares at December 31, 2022, we would have issued approximately 2.5 million shares.

Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Subsidiaries. As of December  31, 2022 and 2021, NIPSCO and tax equity partners have completed their cash
contributions into the Indiana Crossroads Wind and Rosewater JVs and made initial cash contributions into the Indiana Crossroads Solar JV. Earnings, tax
attributes and cash flows are allocated to both NIPSCO and the respective tax equity partners in varying percentages by category and over the life of the
partnership. The tax equity partner's contributions, net of these allocations, is represented as a noncontrolling interest within total equity on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Refer to Note 4, "Variable Interest Entities," for more information.

14.     Share-Based Compensation

Prior to May 19, 2020, we issued share-based compensation to employees and non-employee directors under the NiSource Inc. 2010 Omnibus Plan ("2010
Omnibus Plan"), which was most recently approved by stockholders at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on May 12, 2015. The 2010 Omnibus Plan
provided for awards to employees and non-employee directors of incentive and nonqualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted
stock units, performance shares, performance units, cash-based awards and other stock-based awards and superseded the Director Stock Incentive Plan
(“Director Plan”) with respect to grants made after the effective date of the 2010 Omnibus Plan.

The stockholders approved and adopted the NiSource Inc. 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan ("2020 Omnibus Plan") at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held
on May 19, 2020. The 2020 Omnibus Plan provides for awards to employees and non-employee directors of incentive and nonqualified stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares, performance units, cash-based awards and other stock-based awards and
supersedes the 2010 Omnibus Plan with respect to grants made after the effective date of the 2020 Omnibus Plan.

The 2020 Omnibus Plan provides that the number of shares of common stock of NiSource available for awards is 10,000,000 plus the number of shares subject
to outstanding awards that expire or terminate for any reason that were granted under the 2020 Omnibus Plan, the 2010 Omnibus Plan or any other equity plan
under which awards were outstanding as of May 19, 2020. At December 31, 2022, there were 8,704,201 shares available for future awards under the 2020
Omnibus Plan.

We recognized stock-based employee compensation expense of $19.0 million, $16.7 million and $13.5 million, during 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, as
well as related tax benefits of $3.6 million, $4.0 million and $3.3 million, respectively. We recognized related excess tax benefit from the distribution of vested
share-based employee compensation of $0.4 million in 2022 and 2021, and excess tax expense of $0.4 million in 2020.

As of December  31, 2022, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested awards amounted to $27.0 million, which will be
amortized over the weighted-average remaining requisite service period of 1.8 years.

Restricted Stock Units and Restricted Stock. We granted 477,292, 285,755, and 235,100 restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock to employees,
subject to service conditions in 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively. The total grant date fair value of the restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock
during 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively, was $12.5 million, $5.7 million, and $6.1 million based on the average market price of our common stock at the
date of each grant less the present value of any dividends not received during the vesting period, which will be expensed over the vesting period which is
generally three years. As of December 31, 2022, 444,646, 218,465, and 135,404 non-vested restricted stock units and shares of restricted stock granted in 2022,
2021, and 2020, respectively, were outstanding.

If an employee terminates employment before the service conditions lapse under the 2020, 2021 or 2022 awards due to (1) retirement or disability (as defined
in the award agreement), or (2) death, the service conditions will lapse on the date of such termination with respect to a pro rata portion of the restricted stock
units and shares of restricted stock based upon the percentage of the service period satisfied between the grant date and the date of the termination of
employment. In the event of a change in control (as defined in the award agreement), all unvested shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units awarded
will immediately vest upon termination of employment occurring in connection with a change in control. Termination due to any other reason will result in all
unvested shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units awarded being forfeited effective on the employee’s date of termination.
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A summary of our restricted stock unit award transactions for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows:

(shares)
Restricted Stock

Units

Weighted Average
Award Date Fair 
Value Per Unit ($)

Non-vested at December 31, 2021 572,154  22.72 
Granted 477,292  26.29 
Forfeited (133,367) 23.48 
Vested (117,564) 24.44 

Non-vested at December 31, 2022 798,515  24.48 

Employee Performance Shares. We granted 566,086 performance shares subject to service, performance and/or market-based vesting conditions in 2022. The
performance conditions for these shares are based on the achievement of one non-GAAP financial measure, and/or achievement of relative total shareholder
return, outlined below. The number of shares that are eligible to vest based on these performance conditions will be adjusted based on performance of the
magnifier framework for 2022 awards, outlined below. The operational magnifier framework for 2022 performance shares consists of three areas of focus,
including safety, environment, and DE&I, representing 20%, 10% and 10%, respectively.

The financial measure is cumulative net operating earnings per share ("NOEPS"), which we define as income from continuing operations adjusted for certain
items. Relative total shareholder return, a market-based vesting condition, which we define as the annualized growth in dividends and share price of a share of
our common stock (calculated using a 20 trading day average of our closing price over the performance period, approximately) compared to the total
shareholder return of a predetermined peer group of companies. A relative shareholder return result within the first quartile will result in an increase in the
NOEPS shares of 25%, while a relative shareholder return result within the fourth quartile will result in a decrease of 25%. A Monte Carlo analysis was used to
value the portion of these awards dependent on the market-based vesting condition. The grant date fair value of the NOEPS shares is based on the closing stock
price of our common stock at the date of each grant, which will be expensed over the requisite service period of three years. See table below for further details
on these awards.

In 2021, we granted 973,885 performance shares subject to service, performance and/or market-based vesting conditions. With respect to 390,941 performance
shares granted, the performance conditions are based on the achievement of relative total shareholder return. The number of shares that are eligible to vest
based on the Company's relative total shareholder return performance will be adjusted based on a performance magnifier related to safety. A Monte Carlo
analysis was used to value the portion of these awards dependent on the market-based vesting condition. The grant date fair value of the NOEPS shares is based
on the closing stock price of our common stock at the date of each grant, which will be expensed over the requisite service period of three years. See table
below for further details on these awards.

With respect to the remaining 582,944 performance shares granted in 2021, the performance conditions are based on the achievement of one non-GAAP
financial measure, and/or achievement of relative total shareholder return. The number of shares that are eligible to vest based on these performance conditions
will be adjusted based on performance of the magnifier framework for 2021 awards. The operational magnifier framework for 2021 performance shares
consists of three areas of focus including safety, environment, and DE&I, representing 20%, 10% and 10%, respectively.

We granted 528,729 performance shares subject to service, performance and market-based vesting conditions in 2020. The performance conditions are based
on the achievement of one non-GAAP financial measure, relative total shareholder return and additional operational measures as outlined below.

If a threshold level of cumulative NOEPS financial performance is achieved, additional operational measures, which we refer to as the customer value
framework and which consists of equally weighted areas of focus, apply. Each area of focus represents an equal portion of the customer value framework
shares, and the targets for all areas of focus must be met for the customer value framework shares to vest at 100%. The grant date fair value of the customer
value framework shares is based on the average market price of our common stock on the grant date of each award less the present value of dividends not
received during the vesting period, which will be expensed over the requisite service period of three years for those customer value framework shares that are
granted. See table below for further details on these awards.

For the 2020 awards, the customer value framework consists of four equally weighted areas of focus including safety, customer satisfaction, culture and
environmental, each representing 25% of the customer value framework shares.
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The following table presents details of the performance awards described above.

Award Year
Service Conditions Lapse

date Performance Period Award Conditions

Shares outstanding at
12/31/2022

(shares)
Grant Date Fair Value

(in millions)

2022 02/28/25 01/01/2022-
12/31/2024

Non-GAAP Financial
Measure 245,445  $ 7.4 
Relative Total
Shareholder Return 245,445  $ 10.6 

2021
02/28/24 01/01/2021-

12/31/2023

Non-GAAP Financial
Measure 192,119  $ 6.5 
Relative Total
Shareholder Return 192,119  $ 6.7 
Relative Total
Shareholder Return 88,541  $ 3.2 

02/28/23 01/01/2021- 12/31/2022 Relative Total
Shareholder Return 179,703  $ 4.8 

2020 02/28/23 01/01/2020- 12/31/2022
Non-GAAP Financial
Measure 294,424  $ 11.7 

Operational Measures 67,943  $ 2.6 

A summary of our performance award transactions for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows:

(shares)
Performance

Awards

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair 

Value Per Unit ($)
Non-vested at December 31, 2021 1,798,151  23.78 

Granted 566,086  31.65 
Forfeited (427,607) 24.34 
Vested (430,890) 25.44 

Non-vested at December 31, 2022 1,505,740  26.10 

Non-employee Director Awards. As of May 19, 2020, awards to non-employee directors may be made only under the 2020 Omnibus Plan. Currently, restricted
stock units are granted annually to non-employee directors, subject to a non-employee director’s election to defer receipt of such restricted stock unit award.
The non-employee director’s annual award of restricted stock units vest on the first anniversary of the grant date subject to special pro-rata vesting rules in the
event of retirement or disability (as defined in the award agreement), or death. The vested restricted stock units are payable as soon as practicable following
vesting except as otherwise provided pursuant to the non-employee director’s deferral election. Certain restricted stock units remain outstanding from the 2010
Omnibus Plan and the Director Plan. All such awards are fully vested and shall be distributed to the directors upon their separation from the Board.

As of December 31, 2022, 228,604 restricted stock units are outstanding to non-employee directors under either the 2020 Omnibus Plan, the 2010 Omnibus
Plan or the Director Plan. Of this amount, 63,215 restricted stock units are unvested and expected to vest.

401(k) Match, Profit Sharing and Company Contribution. Eligible salaried employees hired after January 1, 2010 and hourly and union employees hired after
January 1, 2013 receive a non-elective company contribution of 3% of eligible pay payable in cash or shares of NiSource common stock. We also have a
voluntary 401(k) savings plan covering eligible union and nonunion employees that allows for periodic discretionary matches as a percentage of each
participant’s contributions payable in cash or shares. Further, we have a retirement savings plan that provides for discretionary profit sharing contributions to
eligible employees. For the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, we recognized 401(k) match, profit sharing and non-elective contribution expense
of $39.1 million, $39.1 million and $37.8 million, respectively.
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15.     Long-Term Debt

Our long-term debt as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

Long-term debt type Maturity as of December 31, 2022
Weighted average
interest rate (%)

Outstanding balance as of
December 31, (in millions)

2022 2021
Senior notes:

NiSource August 2025 0.95 % $ 1,250.0  1,250.0 
NiSource May 2027 3.49 % 1,000.0  1,000.0 
NiSource December 2027 6.78 % 3.0  3.0 
NiSource September 2029 2.95 % 750.0  750.0 
NiSource May 2030 3.60 % 1,000.0  1,000.0 
NiSource February 2031 1.70 % 750.0  750.0 
NiSource December 2040 6.25 % 152.6  152.6 
NiSource June 2041 5.95 % 347.4  347.4 
NiSource February 2042 5.80 % 250.0  250.0 
NiSource February 2043 5.25 % 500.0  500.0 
NiSource February 2044 4.80 % 750.0  750.0 
NiSource February 2045 5.65 % 500.0  500.0 
NiSource May 2047 4.38 % 1,000.0  1,000.0 
NiSource March 2048 3.95 % 750.0  750.0 
NiSource June 2052 5.00 % 350.0  $ — 

Total senior notes $ 9,353.0  $ 9,003.0 
Medium term notes:

NiSource May 2027 7.99 % $ 29.0  $ 49.0 
NIPSCO June 2027 to August 2027 7.64 % 58.0  68.0 
Columbia of Massachusetts December 2025 to February 2028 6.37 % 15.0  15.0 

Total medium term notes $ 102.0  $ 132.0 
Finance leases:

NiSource Corporate Services December 2022 to December 2026 2.34 % $ 48.6  51.4 
NIPSCO December 2027 to November 2035 1.87 % 16.5  18.7 
Columbia of Ohio December 2025 to March 2044 6.15 % 83.5  87.8 
Columbia of Virginia July 2029 to November 2039 6.26 % 17.0  17.7 
Columbia of Kentucky May 2027 3.79 % 0.2  0.2 
Columbia of Pennsylvania July 2027 to May 2035 6.28 % 8.9  9.8 

Total finance leases $ 174.7  185.6 
Unamortized issuance costs and discounts $ (76.1) $ (79.1)
Total Long-Term Debt $ 9,553.6  $ 9,241.5 

Details of our 2022 long-term debt related activity are summarized below:

• On April 1, 2022, we repaid $20.0 million of 7.99% medium term notes at maturity.

• On June 10, 2022, we completed the issuance and sale of $350.0 million of 5.00% senior unsecured notes maturing in 2052, which resulted in
approximately $344.6 million of net proceeds after discount and debt issuance costs.

• On August 30, 2022, NIPSCO repaid $10.0 million of 7.40% medium term notes at maturity.

There was no long-term debt activity during 2021.

See Note 19, "Other Commitments and Contingencies - A. Contractual Obligations," for the outstanding long-term debt maturities at December 31, 2022.

Unamortized debt expense, premium and discount on long-term debt applicable to outstanding bonds are being amortized over the life of such bonds.
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We are subject to a financial covenant under our revolving credit facility and term credit agreement which requires us to maintain a debt to capitalization ratio
that does not exceed 70%. As of December 31, 2022, the ratio was 58.9%.

We are also subject to certain other non-financial covenants under the revolving credit facility. Such covenants include a limitation on the creation or existence
of new liens on our assets, generally exempting liens on utility assets, purchase money security interests, preexisting security interests and an additional subset
of assets equal to $200 million. An asset sale covenant generally restricts the sale, conveyance, lease, transfer or other disposition of our assets to those
dispositions that are for a price not materially less than fair market of such assets, that would not materially impair our ability to perform obligations under the
revolving credit facility, and that together with all other such dispositions, would not have a material adverse effect. The covenant also restricts dispositions to
no more than 15% of our consolidated total assets on December 31, 2020. The revolving credit facility also includes a cross-default provision, which triggers
an event of default under the credit facility in the event of an uncured payment default relating to any indebtedness of us or any of our subsidiaries in a
principal amount of $75.0 million or more.

Our indentures generally do not contain any financial maintenance covenants. However, our indentures are generally subject to cross-default provisions ranging
from uncured payment defaults of $5 million to $50 million, and limitations on the incurrence of liens on our assets, generally exempting liens on utility assets,
purchase money security interests, preexisting security interests and an additional subset of assets capped at 10% of our consolidated net tangible assets.

16.     Short-Term Borrowings

We generate short-term borrowings from our revolving credit facility, commercial paper program, accounts receivable transfer programs, and term credit
agreement. Each of these borrowing sources is described further below.

Revolving Credit Facility. We maintain a revolving credit facility to fund ongoing working capital requirements, including the provision of liquidity support
for our commercial paper program, provide for issuance of letters of credit, and also for general corporate purposes. Our revolving credit facility has a program
limit of $1.85 billion and is comprised of a syndicate of banks. On February 18, 2022, we extended the termination date of our revolving credit facility to
February 18, 2027. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had no outstanding borrowings under this facility.

Commercial Paper Program. Our commercial paper program has a program limit of up to $1.5 billion. We had $415.0 million and $560.0 million of
commercial paper outstanding with weighted-average interest rates of 4.60% and 0.24% as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Accounts Receivable Transfer Programs. Columbia of Ohio, NIPSCO, and Columbia of Pennsylvania each maintain a receivables agreement whereby they
transfer their customer accounts receivables to third party financial institutions through wholly-owned and consolidated special purpose entities. The three
agreements expire between May 2023 and October 2023 and may be further extended if mutually agreed to by the parties thereto.

All receivables transferred to third parties are valued at face value, which approximates fair value due to their short-term nature. The amount of the undivided
percentage ownership interest in the accounts receivables transferred is determined in part by required loss reserves under the agreements.

Transfers of accounts receivable are accounted for as secured borrowings resulting in the recognition of short-term borrowings on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. As of December 31, 2022, the maximum amount of debt that could be recognized related to our accounts receivable programs is $500.0 million.

We had $347.2 million and no short-term borrowings related to the securitization transactions as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, $347.2 million and zero, respectively, were recorded as cash flows from financing activities related to the
change in short-term borrowings due to securitization transactions. For the accounts receivable transfer programs, we pay used facility fees for amounts
borrowed, unused commitment fees for amounts not borrowed, and upfront renewal fees. Fees associated with the securitization transactions were $2.5 million,
$1.4 million, and $2.6 million for the years ended December  31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Columbia of Ohio, NIPSCO and Columbia of
Pennsylvania remain responsible for collecting on the receivables securitized, and the receivables cannot be transferred to another party.
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Term Credit Agreement. On December 20, 2022, we entered into a $1.0 billion term credit agreement with a syndicate of banks. The agreement matures on
December 19, 2023 and interest charged on the borrowings depends on the variable rate structure elected at the time of each borrowing. The available variable
rate structures from which we can choose are defined in the agreement. Under the agreement, we borrowed $1.0 billion on December 20, 2022 with an interest
rate of SOFR plus 105 basis points. We had $1.0 billion outstanding with an interest rate of 5.37% as of December 31, 2022.

Items listed above, excluding the term credit agreement, are presented net in the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows as their maturities are less than 90
days.

17.    Leases

Lease Descriptions. We are the lessee for substantially all of our leasing activity, which includes operating and finance leases for corporate and field offices,
railcars, fleet vehicles and certain IT assets. Our corporate and field office leases have remaining lease terms between 1 and 21 years with options to renew the
leases for up to 25 years. We lease railcars to transport coal to and from our electric generation facilities in Indiana. Our railcars are specifically identified in the
lease agreements which have remaining lease terms between 1 and 5 years with options to renew for 1 year. Our fleet vehicles include trucks, trailers and
equipment that have been customized specifically for use in the utility industry. We lease fleet vehicles for 1 year terms, after which we have the option to
extend on a month-to-month basis or terminate with written notice. We elected the short-term lease practical expedient, allowing us to not recognize ROU
assets or lease liabilities for all leases with a term of 12 months or less. ROU assets and liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets do not include
obligations for possible fleet vehicle lease renewals beyond the initial lease term. While we have the ability to renew these leases beyond the initial term, we
are not reasonably certain to do so. We lease the majority of our IT assets under 4 year lease terms. Ownership of leased IT assets is transferred to us at the end
of the lease term.

We have not provided material residual value guarantees for our leases, nor do our leases contain material restrictions or covenants. Lease contracts containing
renewal and termination options are mostly exercisable at our sole discretion. Certain of our real estate and railcar leases include renewal periods in the
measurement of the lease obligation if we have deemed the renewals reasonably certain to be exercised.

With respect to service contracts involving the use of assets, if we have the right to direct the use of the asset and obtain substantially all economic benefits
from the use of an asset, we account for the service contract as a lease. Unless specifically provided to us by the lessor, we utilize NiSource's collateralized
incremental borrowing rate commensurate to the lease term as the discount rate for all of our leases. ASC 842 permits a lessee, by class of underlying asset, not
to separate nonlease components from lease components. Our policy is to apply this expedient for our leases of fleet vehicles, IT assets and railcars when
calculating their respective lease liabilities.

Lease costs for the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 are presented in the table below. These costs include both amounts recognized in
expense and amounts capitalized as part of the cost of another asset. Income statement presentation for these costs (when ultimately recognized on the income
statement) is also included:

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) Income Statement Classification 2022 2021
Finance lease cost

Amortization of right-of-use assets Depreciation and amortization $ 31.9  $ 28.8 
Interest on lease liabilities Interest expense, net 8.5  9.4 

Total finance lease cost 40.4  38.2 
Operating lease cost Operation and maintenance 10.4  15.6 
Total lease cost $ 50.8  $ 53.8 
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Our right-of-use assets and liabilities are presented in the following lines on the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

At December 31, (in millions) Balance Sheet Classification 2022 2021
Assets

Finance leases Net Property, Plant and Equipment $ 153.4  $ 165.7 
Operating leases Deferred charges and other 35.7  33.8

Total leased assets $ 189.1  199.5
Liabilities
Current

Finance leases Current portion of long-term debt $ 30.0  28.1
Operating leases Other accruals 4.8  6.7

Noncurrent
Finance leases Long-term debt, excluding amounts due within one year 144.7  157.5
Operating leases Other noncurrent liabilities 31.9  27.9

Total lease liabilities $ 211.4  $ 220.2 

Other pertinent information related to leases was as follows:

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities

Operating cash flows used for finance leases $ 8.6  $ 9.4 
Operating cash flows used for operating leases 10.3  15.4
Financing cash flows used for finance leases 30.3  25.7

Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations
Finance leases 19.3  22.4
Operating leases $ 8.8  $ 6.0 

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Weighted-average remaining lease term (years)

Finance leases 9.9 10.6
Operating leases 7.7 8.5

Weighted-average discount rate
Finance leases 5.1 % 5.0 %
Operating leases 4.0 % 3.7 %
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Maturities of our lease liabilities as of December 31, 2022 were as follows:

As of December 31, 2022, (in millions) Total Finance Leases Operating Leases
2023 $ 46.8  $ 38.9  $ 7.9 
2024 37.3  30.9  6.4 
2025 30.3  24.5  5.8 
2026 24.7  19.4  5.3 
2027 19.9  15.4  4.5 
Thereafter 110.8  97.4  13.4 

Total lease payments 269.8  226.5  43.3 
Less: Imputed interest (58.4) (51.8) (6.6)

Total $ 211.4  $ 174.7  $ 36.7 
Reported as of December 31, 2022
Short-term lease liabilities 34.8  30.0  4.8 
Long-term lease liabilities 176.6  144.7  31.9 

Total lease liabilities $ 211.4  $ 174.7  $ 36.7 

18.    Fair Value

A. Fair Value Measurements

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following tables present financial assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value on our Consolidated Balance Sheets on a recurring basis and
their level within the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021:
 

Recurring Fair Value Measurements
December 31, 2022 (in millions)

Quoted Prices
in Active Markets

for Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Balance as of
December 31, 2022

Assets
Risk management assets $ —  $ 84.8  $ —  $ 84.8 
Available-for-sale debt securities —  151.6  —  151.6 

Total $ —  $ 236.4  $ —  $ 236.4 
Liabilities

Risk management liabilities —  3.0  —  3.0 
Total $ —  $ 3.0  $ —  $ 3.0 
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Recurring Fair Value Measurements
December 31, 2021 (in millions)

Quoted Prices
in Active Markets

for Identical Assets
(Level 1)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Balance as of
December 31, 2021

Assets
Risk management assets $ —  $ 24.4  $ —  $ 24.4 
Available-for-sale debt securities —  171.8  —  171.8 

Total $ —  $ 196.2  $ —  $ 196.2 
Liabilities

Risk management liabilities $ —  $ 144.2  $ —  $ 144.2 
Total $ —  $ 144.2  $ —  $ 144.2 

Risk Management Assets and Liabilities. Risk management assets and liabilities include interest rate swaps, exchange-traded NYMEX futures and NYMEX
options and non-exchange-based forward purchase contracts.

Level 1- When utilized, exchange-traded derivative contracts are based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets and are classified within Level 1. These
financial assets and liabilities are secured with cash on deposit with the exchange; therefore, nonperformance risk has not been incorporated into these
valuations. These financial assets and liabilities are deemed to be cleared and settled daily by NYMEX as the related cash collateral is posted with the
exchange. As a result of this exchange rule, NYMEX derivatives are considered to have no fair value at the balance sheet date for financial reporting purposes,
and are presented in Level 1 net of posted cash; however, the derivatives remain outstanding and are subject to future commodity price fluctuations until they
are settled in accordance with their contractual terms.

Level 2- Certain non-exchange-traded derivatives are valued using broker or over-the-counter, on-line exchanges. In such cases, these non-exchange-traded
derivatives are classified within Level 2. Non-exchange-based derivative instruments include swaps, forwards, and options. In certain instances, these
instruments may utilize models to measure fair value. We use a similar model to value similar instruments. Valuation models utilize various inputs that include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, other
observable inputs for the asset or liability and market-corroborated inputs, (i.e., inputs derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means). Where observable inputs are available for substantially the full term of the asset or liability, the instrument is categorized within
Level 2.

Level 3- Certain derivatives trade in less active markets with a lower availability of pricing information and models may be utilized in the valuation. When such
inputs have a significant impact on the measurement of fair value, the instrument is categorized within Level 3.

Credit risk is considered in the fair value calculation of derivative instruments that are not exchange-traded. Credit exposures are adjusted to reflect collateral
agreements that reduce exposures. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no material transfers between fair value hierarchies. Additionally, there were
no changes in the method or significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of our financial instruments.

NIPSCO has entered into long-term forward natural gas purchase instruments to lock in a fixed price for its natural gas customers. We value these contracts
using a pricing model that incorporates market-based information when available, as these instruments trade less frequently and are classified within Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy. For additional information, see Note 10, “Risk Management Activities.”

Available-for-Sale Debt Securities. Available-for-sale debt securities are investments pledged as collateral for trust accounts related to our wholly-owned
insurance company. We value U.S. Treasury, corporate debt and mortgage-backed securities using a matrix pricing model that incorporates market-based
information. These securities trade less frequently and are classified within Level 2.

Our available-for-sale debt securities impairments are recognized periodically using an allowance approach. At each reporting date, we utilize a quantitative
and qualitative review process to assess the impairment of available-for-sale debt securities at the individual security level. For securities in a loss position, we
evaluate our intent to sell or whether it is more-likely-than-not that
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we will be required to sell the security prior to the recovery of its amortized cost. If either criteria is met, the loss is recognized in earnings immediately, with
the offsetting entry to the carrying value of the security. If both criteria are not met, we perform an analysis to determine whether the unrealized loss is related
to credit factors. The analysis focuses on a variety of factors that include, but are not limited to, downgrade on ratings of the security, defaults in the current
reporting period or projected defaults in the future, the security's yield spread over treasuries, and other relevant market data. If the unrealized loss is not related
to credit factors, it is included in other comprehensive income. If the unrealized loss is related to credit factors, the loss is recognized as credit loss expense in
earnings during the period, with an offsetting entry to the allowance for credit losses. The amount of the credit loss recorded to the allowance account is limited
by the amount at which the security's fair value is less than its amortized cost basis. If certain amounts recorded in the allowance for credit losses are deemed
uncollectible, the allowance on the uncollectible portion will be charged off, with an offsetting entry to the carrying value of the security. Subsequent
improvements to the estimated credit losses of available-for-sale debt securities will be recognized immediately in earnings. As of December 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021, we recorded $0.9 million and $0.2 million, respectively, as an allowance for credit losses on available-for-sale debt securities as a result of
the analysis described above. Continuous credit monitoring and portfolio credit balancing mitigates our risk of credit losses on our available-for-sale debt
securities.

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, allowance for credit losses, and fair value of available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2022 and 2021
were: 

December 31, 2022 (in millions)
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Allowance for
Credit Losses Fair Value

Available-for-sale debt securities
U.S. Treasury debt securities $ 67.7  $ —  $ (4.5) $ —  $ 63.2 
Corporate/Other debt securities 99.0  —  (9.7) (0.9) 88.4 

Total $ 166.7  $ —  $ (14.2) $ (0.9) $ 151.6 

December 31, 2021 (in millions)
Amortized

Cost

Gross
Unrealized

Gains

Gross
Unrealized

Losses
Allowance for
Credit Losses Fair Value

Available-for-sale debt securities
U.S. Treasury debt securities $ 52.8  $ 0.1  $ (0.4) $ —  $ 52.5 
Corporate/Other debt securities 116.5  3.7  (0.7) (0.2) 119.3 

Total $ 169.3  $ 3.8  $ (1.1) $ (0.2) $ 171.8 
Fair value of U.S. Treasury debt securities and Corporate/Other debt securities in an unrealized loss position without an allowance for credit losses is $61.0 and $85.5 million, respectively, at

December 31, 2022.
Fair value of U.S. Treasury debt securities and Corporate/Other debt securities in an unrealized loss position without an allowance for credit losses is $36.2 million and $35.4 million, respectively, at

December 31, 2021.

Realized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities were immaterial for the year-ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

The cost of maturities sold is based upon specific identification. At December  31, 2022, approximately $5.2 million of U.S. Treasury debt securities and
approximately $5.8 million of Corporate/Other debt securities have maturities of less than a year.

There are no material items in the fair value reconciliation of Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements

We measure the fair value of certain assets, including goodwill, on a non-recurring basis, typically when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

Purchase Contract Liability. On April 19, 2021, we recorded the purchase contract liability at fair value using a discounted cash flow method and observable,
market-corroborated inputs. This estimate was made at April 19, 2021, and will not be remeasured at each subsequent balance sheet date. It has been
categorized within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Refer to Note 13, "Equity," for additional information.

(1)

(2)

(1) 

(2) 
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B.                Other Fair Value Disclosures for Financial Instruments. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, notes receivable,
customer deposits and short-term borrowings is a reasonable estimate of fair value due to their liquid or short-term nature. Our long-term borrowings are
recorded at historical amounts.

The following method and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments.

Long-term debt. The fair value of outstanding long-term debt is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same or similar securities. Certain
premium costs associated with the early settlement of long-term debt are not taken into consideration in determining fair value. These fair value measurements
are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, there was no change in the method or significant
assumptions used to estimate the fair value of long-term debt.

The carrying amount and estimated fair values of these financial instruments were as follows: 

At December 31, (in millions)

Carrying
Amount

2022

Estimated
Fair Value

2022

Carrying
Amount

2021

Estimated
Fair Value

2021
Long-term debt (including current portion) $ 9,553.6  $ 8,479.4  $ 9,241.5  $ 10,415.7 
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19.    Other Commitments and Contingencies

A.              Contractual Obligations. We have certain contractual obligations requiring payments at specified periods. The obligations include long-term debt,
lease obligations, energy commodity contracts and obligations for various services including pipeline capacity and outsourcing of IT services. The total
contractual obligations in existence at December 31, 2022 and their maturities were:

(in millions) Total 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 After
Long-term debt $ 9,455.0  $ —  $ —  $ 1,260.0  $ —  $ 1,090.0  $ 7,105.0 
Interest payments on long-term debt 5,890.4  351.6  351.6  351.6  339.1  319.7  4,176.8 
Finance leases 226.5  38.9  30.9  24.5  19.4  15.4  97.4 
Operating leases 43.3  7.9  6.4  5.8  5.3  4.5  13.4 
Energy commodity contracts 231.7  119.7  76.0  36.0  —  —  — 
Service obligations:

Pipeline service obligations 2,484.9  642.2  556.9  410.5  337.2  328.8  209.3 
IT service obligations 177.4  71.9  50.0  41.3  11.4  2.8  — 

Other liabilities 654.2  612.5  6.2  5.9  5.2  5.2  19.2 
Total contractual obligations $ 19,163.4  $ 1,844.7  $ 1,078.0  $ 2,135.6  $ 717.6  $ 1,766.4  $ 11,621.1 

 Long-term debt balance excludes unamortized issuance costs and discounts of $76.1 million.
 Finance lease payments shown above are inclusive of interest totaling $51.8 million.
Operating lease payments shown above are inclusive of interest totaling $6.6 million. Operating lease balances do not include obligations for possible fleet vehicle lease renewals beyond the initial

lease term. While we have the ability to renew these leases beyond the initial term, we are not reasonably certain to do so as they are renewed month-to-month after the first year.
Other liabilities shown above are inclusive of the Rosewater, Indiana Crossroads Wind, and Indiana Crossroads Solar Developer payments due in 2023 and Equity Unit purchase contract liability

payments to be made in 2023.

Purchase and Service Obligations. We have entered into various purchase and service agreements whereby we are contractually obligated to make certain
minimum payments in future periods. Our purchase obligations are for the purchase of physical quantities of natural gas, electricity and coal. Our service
agreements encompass a broad range of business support and maintenance functions which are generally described below.

Our subsidiaries have entered into various energy commodity contracts to purchase physical quantities of natural gas, electricity and coal. These amounts
represent the minimum quantity of these commodities we are obligated to purchase at both fixed and variable prices. To the extent contractual purchase prices
are variable, obligations disclosed in the table above are valued at market prices as of December 31, 2022.

NIPSCO has power purchase arrangements representing a total of 500 MW of wind power, with contracts expiring between 2024 and 2040. No minimum
quantities are specified within these agreements due to the variability of electricity generation from wind, so no amounts related to these contracts are included
in the table above. Upon early termination of one of these agreements by NIPSCO for any reason (other than material breach by the counterparties), NIPSCO
may be required to pay a termination charge that could be material depending on the events giving rise to termination and the timing of the termination.

We have pipeline service agreements that provide for pipeline capacity, transportation and storage services. These agreements, which have expiration dates
ranging from 2023 to 2038, require us to pay fixed monthly charges.

NIPSCO has contracts with three major rail operators providing coal transportation services for which there are certain minimum payments. These service
contracts extend for various periods through 2028.

We have executed agreements with multiple IT service providers. The agreements extend for various periods through 2028.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(1)

(2)

(3) 

(4)
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B.        Guarantees and Indemnities. We and certain of our subsidiaries enter into various agreements providing financial or performance assurance to third
parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries as part of normal business. Such agreements include guarantees and stand-by letters of credit. These agreements are
entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise attributed to a subsidiary on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension
of sufficient credit to accomplish the subsidiaries’ intended commercial purposes. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, we issued stand-by letters of credit of $10.2
million and $18.9 million, respectively, for the benefit of third parties.

We provide guarantees related to our future performance under BTAs for our renewable generation projects. At December 31, 2022 and 2021, our guarantees
for multiple BTAs totaled $841.6 million and $288.9 million, respectively. The amount of each guaranty will decrease upon the substantial completion of the
construction of the facilities. See “- F. Other Matters - Generation Transition,” below for more information.

C.        Legal Proceedings. On September 13, 2018, a series of fires and explosions occurred in Lawrence, Andover, and North Andover, Massachusetts related
to the delivery of natural gas by Columbia of Massachusetts (the "Greater Lawrence Incident").

We have been subject to inquiries and investigations by government authorities and regulatory agencies regarding the Greater Lawrence Incident. On February
26, 2020, the Company and Columbia of Massachusetts entered into agreements with the U.S. Attorney's Office for the District of Massachusetts to resolve the
U.S. Attorney's Office’s investigation relating to the Greater Lawrence Incident, as described below. The Company and Columbia of Massachusetts entered
into an agreement with the Massachusetts Attorney General’s Office (among other parties) to resolve the Massachusetts DPU and the Massachusetts Attorney
General’s Office investigations, that was approved by the Massachusetts DPU on October 7, 2020 as part of the sale of the Massachusetts Business to
Eversource.

U.S. Department of Justice Investigation. On February 26, 2020, the Company and Columbia of Massachusetts entered into agreements with the U.S.
Attorney's Office to resolve the U.S. Attorney's Office's investigation relating to the Greater Lawrence Incident. Columbia of Massachusetts agreed to plead
guilty in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts (the "Court") to violating the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act (the “Plea
Agreement”), and the Company entered into a Deferred Prosecution Agreement (the "DPA").

On March 9, 2020, Columbia of Massachusetts entered its guilty plea pursuant to the Plea Agreement. The Court sentenced Columbia of Massachusetts on June
23, 2020, in accordance with the terms of the Plea Agreement (as modified). On June 23, 2021, the Court terminated Columbia of Massachusetts' period of
probation under the Plea Agreement, which marked the completion of all terms of the Plea Agreement.

Under the DPA, the U.S. Attorney's Office agreed to defer prosecution of the Company in connection with the Greater Lawrence Incident for a three-year
period ending on February 26, 2023 (which three-year period may be extended for twelve (12) months upon the U.S. Attorney's Office's determination of a
breach of the DPA) subject to certain obligations of the Company, including, but not limited to, the Company's agreement, as to each of the Company's
subsidiaries involved in the distribution of gas through pipeline facilities in Massachusetts, Indiana, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Maryland, Kentucky and Virginia to
implement and adhere to each of the recommendations from the NTSB stemming from the Greater Lawrence Incident. Pursuant to the DPA, if the Company
complies with all of its obligations under the DPA, the U.S. Attorney's Office will not file any criminal charges against the Company related to the Greater
Lawrence Incident.

Private Actions. Various lawsuits, including several purported class action lawsuits, were filed by various affected residents or businesses in Massachusetts
state courts against the Company and/or Columbia of Massachusetts in connection with the Greater Lawrence Incident.

On March 12, 2020, the Court granted final approval of the settlement of the consolidated class action. With respect to claims not included in the consolidated
class action, many of the asserted wrongful death and bodily injury claims have been settled, and we continue to discuss potential settlements with remaining
claimants. The outcomes and impacts of such private actions are uncertain at this time.

FERC Investigation. In April 2022, NIPSCO was notified that the FERC Office of Enforcement (“OE”) is conducting an investigation of an industrial
customer for allegedly manipulating the MISO Demand Response (“DR”) market. The customer and NIPSCO are cooperating with the investigation. If the OE
ultimately were to seek to require the customer to repay any portion of the DR revenue received from MISO, it is reasonably possible that the OE would also
seek to require NIPSCO to
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disgorge administrative fees and foregone margin charges that NIPSCO collected pursuant to its own IURC-approved tariff. NIPSCO currently estimates the
maximum amount of its disgorgement exposure to be $9.7 million, and the investigation is still ongoing. NIPSCO intends to seek indemnification under its
agreements with the customer for any liability NIPSCO incurs related to this matter.

Other Claims and Proceedings. We are also party to certain other claims, regulatory and legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business in each
state in which we have operations, none of which we believe to be individually material at this time.

Due to the inherent uncertainty of litigation, there can be no assurance that the resolution of any particular claim, proceeding or investigation would not have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial position or liquidity. If one or more other matters were decided against us, the effects could be
material to our results of operations in the period in which we would be required to record or adjust the related liability and could also be material to our cash
flows in the periods that we would be required to pay such liability.

D.        Other Greater Lawrence Incident Matters. In connection with the Greater Lawrence Incident, Columbia of Massachusetts, in cooperation with the
Massachusetts Governor’s office, replaced the entire affected pipeline system. We invested approximately $258 million of capital spend for the pipeline
replacement; this work was completed in 2019. We maintain property insurance for gas pipelines and other applicable property. Columbia of Massachusetts
filed a proof of loss with its property insurer for the pipeline replacement. In January 2020, we filed a lawsuit against the property insurer, seeking payment of
our property claim. On October 27, 2021, NiSource and the property insurer filed cross motions for summary judgment, each asking the court to determine
whether there was coverage under the policy. After the cross motions for summary judgment were fully briefed, we reached an agreement to settle the coverage
dispute for $105.0 million. After settlement payment was made, NiSource and its property insurer stipulated to the dismissal of the lawsuit on March 16, 2022.

E.        Environmental Matters. Our operations are subject to environmental statutes and regulations related to air quality, water quality, hazardous waste and
solid waste. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the environmental regulations currently applicable to our operations.

It is management's continued intent to address environmental issues in cooperation with regulatory authorities in such a manner as to achieve mutually
acceptable compliance plans. However, there can be no assurance that fines and penalties will not be incurred. Management expects the majority of
environmental assessment and remediation costs and asset retirement costs, further described below, to be recoverable through rates. See Note 9, "Regulatory
Matters," for additional detail.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had recorded a liability of $86.5 million and $91.1 million, respectively, to cover environmental remediation at various
sites. This liability is included in "Other accruals" and "Other noncurrent liabilities" in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. We recognize costs associated with
environmental remediation obligations when the incurrence of such costs is probable and the amounts can be reasonably estimated. The original estimates for
remediation activities may differ materially from the amount ultimately expended. The actual future expenditures depend on many factors, including laws and
regulations, the nature and extent of impact and the method of remediation. These expenditures are not currently estimable at some sites. We periodically adjust
our liability as information is collected and estimates become more refined. See Note 8, "Asset Retirement Obligations," for a discussion of all obligations,
including those discussed below.

CERCLA. Our subsidiaries are potentially responsible parties at waste disposal sites under the CERCLA and similar state laws. Under CERCLA, each
potentially responsible party can be held jointly, severally and strictly liable for the remediation costs as the EPA, or state, can allow the parties to pay for
remedial action or perform remedial action themselves and request reimbursement from the potentially responsible parties. Our affiliates have retained
CERCLA environmental liabilities, including remediation liabilities, associated with certain current and former operations. At this time, NIPSCO cannot
estimate the full cost of remediating properties that have not yet been investigated, but it is possible that the future costs could be material to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

MGP. We maintain a program to identify and investigate former MGP sites where Gas Distribution Operations subsidiaries or predecessors may have liability.
The program has identified 53 such sites where liability is probable. Remedial actions at many of these sites are being overseen by state or federal
environmental agencies through consent agreements or voluntary remediation agreements.
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We utilize a probabilistic model to estimate our future remediation costs related to MGP sites. The model was prepared with the assistance of a third party and
incorporates our experience and general industry experience with remediating MGP sites. We complete an annual refresh of the model in the second quarter of
each fiscal year. No material changes to the estimated future remediation costs were noted as a result of the refresh completed as of June 30, 2022. Our total
estimated liability related to the facilities subject to remediation was $81.0 million and $85.1 million at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The liability
represents our best estimate of the probable cost to remediate the MGP sites. We believe that it is reasonably possible that remediation costs could vary by as
much as $17 million in addition to the costs noted above. Remediation costs are estimated based on the best available information, applicable remediation
standards at the balance sheet date, and experience with similar facilities.

CCRs. We continue to meet the compliance requirements established in the EPA's final rule for the regulation of CCRs. The CCR rule also resulted in revisions
to previously recorded legal obligations associated with the retirement of certain NIPSCO facilities. The actual asset retirement costs related to the CCR rule
may vary substantially from the estimates used to record the increased asset retirement obligation due to the uncertainty about the requirements that will be
established by environmental authorities, compliance strategies that will be used and the preliminary nature of available data used to estimate costs. As allowed
by the rule, NIPSCO will continue to collect data over time to determine the specific compliance solutions and associated costs and, as a result, the actual costs
may vary.

F.         Other Matters

Generation Transition. NIPSCO has executed several PPAs to purchase 100% of the output from renewable generation facilities at a fixed price per MWh.
Each facility supplying the energy will have an associated nameplate capacity, and payments under the PPAs will not begin until the associated generation
facility is constructed by the owner/seller. NIPSCO has also executed several BTAs with developers to construct renewable generation facilities. NIPSCO's
purchase obligation under each respective BTA is dependent on satisfactory approval of the BTA by the IURC, successful execution by NIPSCO of an
agreement with a tax equity partner and timely completion of construction. NIPSCO has received IURC approval for all of its BTAs and PPAs. NIPSCO and
the tax equity partner, for each respective BTA, are obligated to make cash contributions to the JV that acquires the project at the date construction is
substantially complete. Certain agreements require NIPSCO to make partial payments upon the developer's completion of significant construction milestones.
Once the tax equity partner has earned its negotiated rate of return and we have reached the agreed upon contractual date, NIPSCO has the option to purchase
at fair market value the remaining interest in the JV from the tax equity partner.

Employee Separation Benefits. In the third quarter of 2020, we launched a program to evaluate our organizational structure under the auspices of NiSource
Next, which continued into 2021. We recognized the majority of the related severance expense in 2020 when the employees accepted severance offers, absent a
retention period. For employees that have a retention period, expense will be recognized over the remaining service period. The total severance expense for
employees was approximately $38 million, with substantially all of it incurred and paid to date.
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20.     Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following table displays the activity of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss, net of tax:

(in millions)
Gains and Losses on

Securities
Gains and Losses on
Cash Flow Hedges

Pension and OPEB
Items

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Balance as of January 1, 2020 $ 3.3  $ (77.2) $ (18.7) $ (92.6)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications 3.3  (70.8) 2.9  (64.6)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss (0.6) 0.1  1.0  0.5 

Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss) 2.7  (70.7) 3.9  (64.1)
Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ 6.0  $ (147.9) $ (14.8) $ (156.7)

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications (3.5) 25.3  6.6  28.4 
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss (0.4) 0.1  1.8  1.5 

Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss) (3.9) 25.4  8.4  29.9 
Balance as of December 31, 2021 $ 2.1  $ (122.5) $ (6.4) $ (126.8)

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications (13.7) 109.7  (8.9) 87.1 
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss 0.4  0.2  2.0  2.6 

Net current-period other comprehensive income (loss) (13.3) 109.9  (6.9) 89.7 
Balance as of December 31, 2022 $ (11.2) $ (12.6) $ (13.3) $ (37.1)

  All amounts are net of tax. Amounts in parentheses indicate debits.

21.     Business Segment Information

At December 31, 2022, our operations are divided into two primary reportable segments, the Gas Distribution Operations and the Electric Operations segments.
The remainder of our operations, which are not significant enough on a stand-alone basis to warrant treatment as an operating segment, are presented as
"Corporate and Other" and primarily are comprised of interest expense on holding company debt and unallocated corporate costs and activities. Refer to Note
3, "Revenue Recognition," for additional information on our segments and their sources of revenues. The following table provides information about our
reportable segments. We use operating income as our primary measurement for each of the reported segments and make decisions on finance, dividends and
taxes at the corporate level on a consolidated basis. Segment revenues include intersegment sales to affiliated subsidiaries, which are eliminated in
consolidation. Affiliated sales are recognized on the basis of prevailing market, regulated prices or at levels provided for under contractual agreements.
Operating income is derived from revenues and expenses directly associated with each segment.

(1) (1) (1) (1)

(1)
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Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Operating Revenues
Gas Distribution Operations

Unaffiliated $ 4,007.2  $ 3,171.2  $ 3,128.1 
Intersegment 12.6  12.3  12.1 

Total 4,019.8  3,183.5  3,140.2 
Electric Operations

Unaffiliated 1,830.9  1,696.3  1,535.9 
Intersegment 0.8  0.8  0.7 

Total 1,831.7  1,697.1  1,536.6 
Corporate and Other

Unaffiliated 12.5  32.1  17.7 
Intersegment 465.0  460.3  449.8 

Total 477.5  492.4  467.5 
Eliminations (478.4) (473.4) (462.6)

Consolidated Operating Revenues $ 5,850.6  $ 4,899.6  $ 4,681.7 

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Operating Income (Loss)

Gas Distribution Operations $ 915.8  $ 617.5  $ 199.1 
Electric Operations 362.4  387.8  348.8 
Corporate and Other (12.4) 1.6  2.9 

Consolidated Operating Income $ 1,265.8  $ 1,006.9  $ 550.8 
Depreciation and Amortization

Gas Distribution Operations $ 415.9  $ 383.0  $ 363.1 
Electric Operations 362.9  329.4  321.3 
Corporate and Other 42.0  36.0  41.5 

Consolidated Depreciation and Amortization $ 820.8  $ 748.4  $ 725.9 
Assets

Gas Distribution Operations $ 16,986.5  $ 15,153.7  $ 13,433.0 
Electric Operations 7,992.6  7,178.9  6,443.1 
Corporate and Other 1,757.5  1,824.3  2,164.4 

Consolidated Assets $ 26,736.6  $ 24,156.9  $ 22,040.5 
Capital Expenditures

Gas Distribution Operations $ 1,682.3  $ 1,406.4  $ 1,266.9 
Electric Operations 574.5  517.4  422.8 
Corporate and Other 41.2  16.6  31.1 

Consolidated Capital Expenditures $ 2,298.0  $ 1,940.4  $ 1,720.8 

In 2020, Gas Distribution Operations reflects the loss of $412.4 million on the sale of the Massachusetts Business.
Amounts differ from those presented on the Statements of Consolidated Cash Flows primarily due to the inclusion of capital expenditures in current liabilities, the capitalized portion of the

Corporate Incentive Plan payout, and AFUDC Equity.

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)
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22.     Other, Net

The following table displays the components of Other, Net included on the Statements of Consolidated Income (Loss):
Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Interest income $ 4.3  $ 4.0  $ 5.5 
AFUDC equity 15.1  13.1  9.9 
Charitable contributions (4.4) (11.5) (1.5)
Pension and other postretirement non-service cost 27.6  35.5  9.3 
Sale of emission reduction credits —  —  4.6 
Interest rate swap settlement gain 10.0  —  — 
Miscellaneous (0.4) (0.3) 4.3 
Total Other, net $ 52.2  $ 40.8  $ 32.1 

See Note 12, "Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits," for additional information.
 See Note 10, "Risk Management Activities," for additional information.

23.     Interest Expense, Net

The following table displays the components of Interest Expense, Net included on the Statements of Consolidated Income (Loss):

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Interest on long-term debt $ 344.5  $ 336.4  $ 354.2 
Interest on short-term borrowings 22.7  0.6  14.7 
Debt discount/cost amortization 11.7  11.0  9.1 
Accounts receivable securitization fees 2.5  1.4  2.6 
Allowance for borrowed funds used and interest capitalized during construction (6.7) (4.6) (7.0)
Debt-based post-in-service carrying charges (21.1) (14.7) (14.6)
Other 8.0  11.0  11.7 
Total Interest Expense, net $ 361.6  $ 341.1  $ 370.7 

(1)

(2)

(1) 

(2)
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24.     Supplemental Cash Flow Information

The following table provides additional information regarding our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and
2020:

Year Ended December 31, (in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Non-cash transactions:

Capital expenditures included in current liabilities $ 275.1  $ 245.7  $ 170.4 
Assets acquired under a finance lease 19.3  22.4  59.3 
Assets acquired under an operating lease 8.8  6.0  10.9 
Reclassification of other property to regulatory assets —  607.6  — 
Assets recorded for asset retirement obligations 6.3  12.0  91.5 
Obligation to developer at formation of JV —  277.5  69.7 
Purchase contract liability, net of fees and payments 65.0  129.4  — 

Schedule of interest and income taxes paid:
Cash paid for interest on long-term debt, net of interest capitalized amounts $ 343.8  $ 322.4  $ 349.0 
Cash paid for interest on finance leases 8.5  9.4  11.1 
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds 7.2  5.4  (1.0)

See Note 9, "Regulatory Matters," for additional information.
See Note 8, "Asset Retirement Obligations," for additional information.
Represents investing non-cash activity. See Note 4, "Variable Interest Entities," for additional information.
Refer to Note 13, "Equity," for additional information.
Amount of refunds in 2020 was greater than the amount of tax payments due to overpayments in 2019.

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)
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SCHEDULE II – VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Twelve months ended December 31, 2022

     Additions  

($ in millions)
Balance

Jan. 1, 2022
Charged to Costs

and Expenses
Charged to Other

Account 

Deductions for
Purposes for

which Reserves were
Created

Balance
Dec. 31, 2022

Reserves Deducted in Consolidated Balance Sheet from Assets to Which They
Apply:
Reserve for accounts receivable $ 23.5  $ 20.6  $ 36.4  $ 56.6  $ 23.9 
Reserve for deferred charges and other 2.3  —  (1.3) —  1.0 

Twelve months ended December 31, 2021
    Additions  

($ in millions)
Balance

Jan. 1, 2021
Charged to Costs

and Expenses
Charged to Other

Account 

Deductions for
Purposes for

which Reserves were
Created

Balance
Dec. 31, 2021

Reserves Deducted in Consolidated Balance Sheet from Assets to Which They
Apply:
Reserve for accounts receivable $ 52.3  $ 18.3  $ 6.4  $ 53.5  $ 23.5 
Reserve for deferred charges and other —  —  2.3  —  2.3 

Twelve months ended December 31, 2020
    Additions  

($ in millions)
Balance

Jan. 1, 2020
Charged to Costs

and Expenses
Charged to Other

Account 

Deductions for
Purposes for which

Reserves were
Created

Balance
Dec. 31, 2020

Reserves Deducted in Consolidated Balance Sheet from Assets to Which They
Apply:
Reserve for accounts receivable $ 19.2  $ 31.6  $ 33.0  $ 31.5  $ 52.3 
Reserve for other investments 3.0  —  —  3.0  — 

 Charged to Other Accounts reflects the deferral of bad debt expense to a regulatory asset or the movement of the reserve between short term and long term.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our chief executive officer and chief financial officer are responsible for evaluating the effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)). Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information
required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that are filed or submitted under the Exchange Act are accumulated and communicated to management,
including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC. Based upon that evaluation, our chief executive officer
and chief financial officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide
reasonable assurance that financial information was processed, recorded and reported accurately.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(f) or Rule 15d-15(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act. However, management would note
that a control system can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Our management has adopted the
2013 framework set forth in the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission report, Internal Control - Integrated Framework, the
most commonly used and understood framework for evaluating internal control over financial reporting, as its framework for evaluating the reliability and
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. During 2022, we conducted an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting. Based on
this evaluation, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of the end of the period covered by this annual report.

Deloitte & Touche LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, issued an attestation report on our internal controls over financial reporting which is
included herein.

Changes in Internal Controls

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the most recently completed quarter covered by this report that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of NiSource Inc.

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of NiSource Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, of the Company and our report dated February 22, 2023, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Columbus, Ohio
February 22, 2023
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NISOURCE INC.

Not applicable.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

Not applicable.
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ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except for the information required by this item with respect to our executive officers included at the end of Part I of this report on Form 10-K, the information
required by this Item 10 is incorporated herein by reference to the discussion in "Proposal 1 Election of Directors," "Corporate Governance - Board Committee
Composition," "Corporate Governance - Code of Business Conduct," and "Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports" of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be held on May 23, 2023.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the discussion in "Corporate Governance - Compensation Committee Interlocks
and Insider Participation," "2022 Director Compensation," "2022 Executive Compensation," "Compensation Discussion and Analysis (CD&A)," and
"Compensation and Human Capital Committee Report" of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 23, 2023.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the discussion in "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management," and "Equity Compensation Plan Information" of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 23, 2023.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the discussion in "Corporate Governance - Policies and Procedures with
Respect to Transactions with Related Persons" and "Corporate Governance - Director Independence" of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be held on May 23, 2023.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to the discussion in "Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees" of the
Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on May 23, 2023.
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PART IV

NISOURCE INC.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statements and financial statement schedules filed as a part of the Annual Report on Form 10-K are included in Item 8, "Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data."

Page
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Statements of Consolidated Stockholders’ Equity 63
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 65
Schedule II 118

Exhibits
The exhibits filed herewith as a part of this report on Form 10-K are listed on the Exhibit Index below. Each management contract or compensatory plan or
arrangement of ours, listed on the Exhibit Index, is separately identified by an asterisk.

Pursuant to Item 601(b), paragraph (4)(iii)(A) of Regulation S-K, certain instruments representing long-term debt of our subsidiaries have not been included as
Exhibits because such debt does not exceed 10% of the total assets of ours and our subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. We agree to furnish a copy of any such
instrument to the SEC upon request.

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF ITEM
(1.1) Form of Equity Distribution Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on February 22, 2021).
(1.2) Form of Master Forward Sale Confirmation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on February 22,

2021).
(2.1) Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2015, by and between NiSource Inc. and Columbia Pipeline Group, Inc.

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on July 2, 2015).
(2.2) Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 26, 2020, by and among NiSource Inc., Bay State Gas Company d/b/a Columbia Gas of

Massachusetts and Eversource Energy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on February 27, 2020).
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 17, 2021).

(3.1) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10-Q, filed with the
Commission on August 3, 2015).

(3.2) Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of NiSource dated May 7, 2019 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on May 8, 2019).

(3.3) Bylaws of NiSource Inc., as amended and restated through August 9, 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the NiSource Inc.
Form 8-K filed on August 10, 2022).

(3.4) Certificate of Designations of 5.65% Series A Fixed-Rate Reset Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on June 12, 2018).

(3.5) Certificate of Designations of 6.50% Series B Fixed-Rate Reset Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Stock (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2018).

(3.6) Certificate of Designations of Series B-1 Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on
December 27, 2018).

(3.7) Certificate of Designations with respect to the Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock, dated April 19, 2021 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on April 19, 2021).
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(4.1) Indenture, dated as of March 1, 1988, by and between Northern Indiana Public Service Company ("NIPSCO") and Manufacturers Hanover
Trust Company, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to the NIPSCO Registration Statement (Registration No. 33-44193)).

(4.2) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 1991, by and between Northern Indiana Public Service Company and Manufacturers
Hanover Trust Company, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NIPSCO Registration Statement (Registration No. 33-
63870)).

(4.3) Indenture Agreement, dated as of February 14, 1997, by and between NIPSCO Industries, Inc., NIPSCO Capital Markets, Inc. and Chase
Manhattan Bank as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NIPSCO Industries, Inc. Registration Statement (Registration No.
333-22347)).

(4.4) Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2000, by and among NiSource Capital Markets, Inc., NiSource Inc., New NiSource
Inc., and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.45 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K for the period
ended December 31, 2000).

(4.5) Indenture, dated November 14, 2000, among NiSource Finance Corp., NiSource Inc., as guarantor, and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form S-3, dated November 17, 2000 (Registration No. 333-49330)).

(4.6) Form of 3.490% Notes due 2027 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on May 17, 2017).
(4.7) Form of 4.375% Notes due 2047 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on May 17, 2017).
(4.8) Form of 3.950% Notes due 2048 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on September 8, 2017).
(4.9) Form of 2.650% Notes due 2022 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on November 14, 2017).
(4.10) Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 30, 2017, between NiSource Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Form S-3 filed November 30, 2017 (Registration No. 333-
214360)).

(4.11) Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 30, 2017, between NiSource Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on December 1, 2017).

(4.12) Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 12, 2018, between Northern Indiana Public Service Company and The Bank of New
York Mellon, solely as successor trustee under the Indenture dated as of March 1, 1988 between the Company and Manufacturers Hanover
Trust Company, as original trustee. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on May 2, 2018).

(4.13) Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 11, 2018, by and between NiSource Inc. and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee
(including form of 3.650% Notes due 2023) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on June 12, 2018).

(4.14) Deposit Agreement, dated as of December  5, 2018, among NiSource, Inc., Computershare Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A.,
acting jointly as depositary, and the holders from time to time of the depositary receipts described therein (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2018).

(4.15) Form of Depositary Receipt (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2018).

(4.16) Amended and Restated Deposit Agreement, dated as of December  27, 2018, among NiSource, Inc., Computershare Inc. and Computershare
Trust Company, N.A., acting jointly as depositary, and the holders from time to time of the depositary receipts described therein (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on December 27, 2018).

(4.17) Form of Depositary Receipt (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on December 27, 2018).

(4.18) Form of 2.950% Notes due 2029 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on August 12, 2019).
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(4.19) Amended and Restated NiSource Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to the Registrant’s Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the Commission on April 1, 2019).

(4.20) Description of NiSource Inc.’s Securities Registered Under Section 12 of the Exchange Act. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.20 of the
NiSource Form 10-K filed on February 28, 2020)

(4.21) Form of 3.600% Notes due 2030 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on April 8, 2020).
(4.22) Form of 0.950% Notes due 2025 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on August 18, 2020).
(4.23) Form of 1.700% Notes due 2031(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on August 18, 2020).

(4.24) Purchase Contract and Pledge Agreement, dated April 19, 2021, between NiSource Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, in its capacity as
the purchase contract agent, collateral agent, custodial agent and securities intermediary (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the
NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on April 19, 2021).

(4.25) Form of Series A Corporate Units Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on April 19,
2021).

(4.26) Form of Series A Treasury Units Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on April 19, 2021).
(4.27) Form of Series A Cash Settled Units Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on April 19,

2021).
(4.28) Form of Series C Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K

filed on April 19, 2021).
(4.29) Form of 5.000% Notes due 2052 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on June 10, 2022).

(10.1) 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to the NiSource Inc. Definitive Proxy Statement to Stockholders for the
Annual Meeting held on May 11, 2010, filed on April 2, 2010).*

(10.2) First Amendment to the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on
February 18, 2014.)*

(10.3) 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit C to the NiSource Inc. Definitive Proxy Statement to Stockholders for the
Annual Meeting held on May 12, 2015, filed on April 7, 2015).*

(10.4) Second Amendment to the NiSource Inc. 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form
8-K filed October 23, 2015.)*

(10.5) Form of Amended and Restated 2013 Performance Share Agreement effective on implementation of the spin-off on July 1, 2015, (under the
2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on November 3, 2015).*

(10.6) Form of Amended and Restated 2014 Performance Share Agreement effective on the implementation of the spin-off on July 1, 2015, (under
the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan)(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on November 3, 2015).*

(10.7) Form of Amendment to Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement related to Vested but Unpaid NiSource Restricted Stock Unit Awards for
Nonemployee Directors of NiSource entered into as of July 13, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the NiSource Inc. Form
10-Q filed on November 3, 2015).*

(10.8) NiSource Inc. Nonemployee Director Retirement Plan, as amended and restated effective May 13, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2009).*

(10.9) Supplemental Life Insurance Plan effective January 1, 1991, as amended, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 to the NIPSCO Industries,
Inc. Form 8-K filed on March 25, 1992).*
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(10.10) Revised Form of Change in Control and Termination Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K
filed on October 23, 2015.)*

(10.11) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the NiSource Inc.
Form 10-K filed on February 28, 2011).*

(10.12) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Non-employee directors under the Non-employee Director Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 28, 2011).*

(10.13) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Nonemployee Directors under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on August 2, 2011).*

(10.14) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the
NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 22, 2017).*

(10.15) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Nonemployee Directors under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 22, 2017). *

(10.16) Amended and Restated NiSource Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan effective November 1, 2012 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.21 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 19, 2013).*

(10.17) NiSource Inc. Executive Severance Policy, as amended and restated, effective January 1, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to
the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 18, 2015).*

(10.18) Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 23, 2005, by and among NiSource Finance Corp., as issuer, NiSource Inc., as guarantor, and
the purchasers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the NiSource Inc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 26,
2005).

(10.19) Amendment No. 1, dated as of November 10, 2008, to the Note Purchase Agreement by and among NiSource Finance Corp., as issuer,
NiSource Inc., as guarantor, and the purchasers whose names appear on the signature page thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30
to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 27, 2009).

(10.20) Letter Agreement, dated as of March 17, 2015, by and between NiSource Inc. and Donald Brown. (incorporated by reference Exhibit 10.1 to
the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on April 30, 2015).*

(10.21) Letter Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2016, by and between NiSource Inc. and Pablo A. Vegas. (incorporated by reference Exhibit 10.29
to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 22, 2017).*

(10.22) Employee Matters Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2015, by and between NiSource Inc. and Columbia Pipeline Group, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on July 2, 2015).

(10.23) Form of Change in Control and Termination Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on
August 2, 2017).*

(10.24) Form of Performance Share Award Agreement under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to the
NiSource Form 10-K filed on February 20, 2018).*

(10.25) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the
NiSource Form 10-K filed on February 20, 2018).*

(10.26) Common Stock Subscription Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2018, by and among NiSource Inc. and the purchasers named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on May 2, 2018).

(10.27) Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 2, 2018, by and among NiSource Inc. and the purchasers named therein (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on May 2, 2018).

(10.28) Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2018, by and among NiSource Inc. and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities
LLC, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and MUFG Securities Americas Inc., as representatives, relating to the 5.650% Series A Preferred Stock
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on June 12, 2018).
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(10.29) Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 6, 2018, by and among NiSource Inc. and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities
LLC, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and MUFG Securities Americas Inc., as representatives, relating to the 3.650% Notes due 2023
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on June 12, 2018).

(10.30) Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 11, 2018, by and among NiSource Inc. and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and MUFG Securities Americas Inc., as representatives, relating to the 5.650% Series A
Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on June 12, 2018).

(10.31) Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 11, 2018, by and among NiSource Inc. and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC and MUFG Securities Americas Inc., as representatives, relating to the 3.650% Notes due 2023
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on June 12, 2018).

(10.32) Form of 2019 Performance Share Award Agreement under the 2010 Omnibus Incentive Plan. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 of
the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on February 20, 2019).*

(10.33) Amended and Restated NiSource Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan adopted as of February 1, 2019 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit C
to the NiSource Inc. Definitive Proxy Statement to Stockholders for the Annual Meeting to be held on May 7, 2019, filed on April 1, 2019).

(10.34) Form of Performance Share Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 of the NiSource Form 10-K filed on February 28,
2020).*

(10.35) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 of the NiSource Form 10-K filed on February
28, 2020). *

(10.36) Form of Cash-Based Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 of the NiSource Form 10-K filed on February 28, 2020).
*

(10.37) Columbia Gas of Massachusetts Plea Agreement dated February 26, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the NiSource Inc.
Form 8-K filed on February 27, 2020).

(10.38) NiSource Deferred Prosecution Agreement dated February 26, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-
K filed on February 27, 2020).

(10.39) 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to the NiSource Inc. Definitive Proxy Statement to Stockholders for the
Annual Meeting held on May 19, 2020, filed on April 13, 2020).*

(10.40) Settlement Agreement, dated July 2, 2020, by and among Bay State Gas Company d/b/a Columbia Gas of Massachusetts, NiSource Inc.,
Eversource Gas Company of Massachusetts, Eversource Energy, the Massachusetts Attorney General’s Office, the Massachusetts Department
of Energy Resources the Low-Income Weatherization and Fuel Assistance Program Network (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on July 6, 2020).

(10.41) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for Nonemployee Directors under the 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on August 5, 2020).*

(10.42) Addendum to Plea Agreement filed on or about June 21, 2020 in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on August 5, 2020).

(10.43) Letter Agreement by and among NiSource Inc., Bay State Gas Company d/b/a Columbia Gas of Massachusetts and Eversource Energy
Relating to Asset Purchase Agreement, dated October 9, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q
filed on November 2, 2020).***

(10.44) NiSource Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as amended and restated effective November 1, 2020 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on November 2, 2020).*

(10.45) Pension Restoration Plan for NiSource Inc. and Affiliates, as amended and restated effective November 1, 2020 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on November 2, 2020).

(10.46) Savings Restoration Plan for NiSource Inc. and Affiliates, as amended and restated effective November 1, 2020 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on November 2, 2020).*
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(10.47) NiSource Inc. Executive Severance Policy, as amended and restated effective October 19, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to
the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on November 2, 2020).*

(10.48) NiSource Next Voluntary Separation Program, effective as of August 5, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the NiSource Inc.
Form 10-Q filed on November 2, 2020).*

(10.49) Letter Agreement dated October 19, 2020 by and between NiSource Inc. and Carrie Hightman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to
the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on November 2, 2020).*

(10.50) Amendment to Settlement Agreement by and among Bay State Gas Company d/b/a Columbia Gas of
Massachusetts, NiSource Inc., Eversource Gas Company of Massachusetts, Eversource Energy, the Massachusetts Attorney General’s Office,
the Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources and the Low-Income Weatherization and Fuel Assistance Program Network, dated
September 29, 2020 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-Q filed on November 2, 2020).

(10.51) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.53 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on
February 17, 2021).*

(10.52) Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.54 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed on
February 17, 2021).*

(10.53) Form of Special Performance Share Unit Award Agreement. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.55 to the NiSource Inc. Form 10-K filed
on February 17, 2021).*

(10.54) Sixth Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of February 18, 2022, among NiSource Inc., as Borrower, the Lenders
party thereto, Barclays Bank PLC, as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and MUFG Bank, Ltd., as Co-Syndication Agents,
Credit Suisse AG, New York Branch, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and Bank of America, National Association, as Co-
Documentation Agents, Barclays Bank PLC and MUFG Bank, Ltd., as Co-Sustainability Structuring Agents, and Barclays Bank PLC,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. MUFG Bank, Ltd., Credit Suisse Loan Funding LLC, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, and BofA Securities, Inc.,
as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on February
18, 2022).

(10.55) First Amendment to the NiSource Inc. 2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form
10-Q filed on May 4, 2022)

(10.56) Credit Agreement, dated as of December 20, 2022, among NiSource Inc., as Borrower, the lenders party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, PNC Capital Markets LLC, as Syndication Agent, Bank of America, N.A. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as Co-
Documentation Agents and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., PNC Capital Markets LLC, Bank of America, N.A. and Wells Fargo Securities,
LLC, as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Bookrunners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the NiSource Inc. Form 8-K filed on
December 20, 2022)

(10.57) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement.* **
(10.58) Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement.* **
(10.59) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement.* **
(10.60) Form of Performance Share Unit Award Agreement.* **
(21) List of Subsidiaries.**
(23) Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.**
(31.1) Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**
(31.2) Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**
(32.1) Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished herewith).**
(32.2) Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished herewith).**
(101.INS) Inline XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded

within the Inline XBRL document. **
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(101.SCH) Inline XBRL Schema Document.**
(101.CAL) Inline XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document.**
(101.LAB) Inline XBRL Labels Linkbase Document.**
(101.PRE) Inline XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document.**
(101.DEF) Inline XBRL Definition Linkbase Document.**
(104) Cover page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL, and contained in Exhibit 101.)

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement of NiSource Inc.

** Exhibit filed herewith.

*** Schedules and exhibits have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. NiSource agrees to furnish supplementally a copy of any
omitted schedules or exhibits to the SEC upon request.

References made to NIPSCO filings can be found at Commission File Number 001-04125. References made to NiSource Inc. filings made prior to
November 1, 2000 can be found at Commission File Number 001-09779.
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ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, hereunto duly
authorized.
 

NiSource Inc.
(Registrant)

Date:                 February 22, 2023               By: /s/                          LLOYD M. YATES
Lloyd M. Yates

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates
indicated.

/s/ LLOYD M. YATES President, Chief Date: February 22, 2023
Lloyd M. Yates Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ DONALD E. BROWN Executive Vice President and Date: February 22, 2023
Donald E. Brown Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ GUNNAR J. GODE Vice President and Date: February 22, 2023
Gunnar J. Gode Chief Accounting Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ KEVIN T. KABAT Chairman of the Board Date: February 22, 2023
Kevin T. Kabat

/s/  PETER A. ALTABEF Director Date: February 22, 2023
 Peter A. Altabef

/s/ SONDRA L. BARBOUR Director Date: February 22, 2023
Sondra L. Barbour

/s/ THEODORE H. BUNTING, JR. Director Date: February 22, 2023
Theodore H. Bunting, Jr.

/s/ ERIC L. BUTLER Director Date: February 22, 2023
Eric L. Butler

/s/ ARISTIDES S. CANDRIS Director Date: February 22, 2023
Aristides S. Candris

/s/ DEBORAH A. HENRETTA Director Date: February 22, 2023
Deborah A. Henretta

/s/ DEBORAH A.P. HERSMAN   Director Date: February 22, 2023
Deborah A. P. Hersman

/s/ MICHAEL E. JESANIS     Director Date: February 22, 2023
Michael E. Jesanis

/s/ WILLIAM D. JOHNSON Director Date: February 22, 2023
William D. Johnson

/s/ CASSANDRA S. LEE Director Date: February 22, 2023
Cassandra S. Lee
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Exhibit 10.57
NiSource Inc.

2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan

2023 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement

This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the “Agreement”), is made and entered into as of [DATE] (the
“Grant Date”), by and between NiSource Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and [NAME], an
Employee of the Company or an Affiliate (the “Grantee”), pursuant to the terms of the NiSource Inc. 2020
Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended (the “Plan”). Any term capitalized but not defined in this Agreement shall
have the meaning set forth in the Plan.

              Section 1.  Restricted Stock Unit Award. The Company hereby grants to the Grantee, on the terms and
conditions hereinafter set forth, an Award of [NUMBER] Restricted Stock Units. The Restricted Stock Units shall
be represented by a bookkeeping entry (the “RSU Account”) of the Company, and each Restricted Stock Unit
shall be equivalent to one share of the Company’s common stock.
    Section 2. Grantee Accounts. The number of Restricted Stock Units granted pursuant to this Agreement shall
be credited to the Grantee’s RSU Account. Each RSU Account shall be maintained on the books of the Company
until full payment of the balance thereof has been made to the Grantee (or the Grantee’s beneficiaries or estate if
the Grantee is deceased) in accordance with Section 1 above. No funds shall be set aside or earmarked for any
RSU Account, which shall be purely a bookkeeping device.
    Section 3.  Vesting and Lapse of Restrictions.

(a)       Vesting. Subject to the forfeiture conditions described later in this Agreement, the Restricted Stock
Units shall vest on February 27, 2026 (the “Vesting Date”), at which date they shall become 100%
vested, provided that the Grantee is continuously employed by the Company through and including
the Vesting Date. Except as set forth in subsection (b) hereof, if Grantee’s Service is terminated for
any reason prior to the Vesting Date, the unvested Restricted Stock Units subject to this Agreement
shall immediately terminate and be automatically forfeited by Grantee.

(b)    Effect of Termination of Service Prior to Vesting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the
Grantee’s Service terminates prior to the Vesting Date as a result of (i) the Grantee’s Retirement, (ii)
the Grantee’s death, or (iii) the Grantee’s Disability, the restrictions set forth in subsection (a) above
shall lapse with respect to a pro rata portion of such Restricted Stock Units on the date of
termination of Service. Such pro rata lapse of restrictions shall be determined using a fraction, where
the numerator shall be the number of full or partial calendar months elapsed between the Grant Date
and the date the
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Grantee terminates Service, and the denominator shall be the number of full or partial calendar
months between the Grant Date and the Vesting Date. For purposes of this Agreement, “Retirement”
means the Grantee’s termination from Service at or after attainment of age 55 and completion of at
least 10 years of continuous Service measured from the Grantee’s most recent date of hire with the
Company or an Affiliate.

(c)    Change in Control. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, in the event of a Change in Control, the
Restricted Stock Units under this Agreement shall be subject to the Change in Control provisions set
forth in the Plan. In the event of any conflict between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan shall
control. Notwithstanding any other agreement between the Company and the Grantee, the “Good
Reason” definition set forth in the Plan shall govern this award. Notwithstanding the foregoing or
anything herein to the contrary, in the event the Restricted Stock Units do not become Alternative
Awards under the Plan, then the Restricted Stock Units shall be settled within 60 days following the
Change in Control; provided, however, in the event the Restricted Stock Units constitute
nonqualified deferred compensation subject to Code Section 409A and the Change in Control is not a
“change in control event” within the meaning of Code Section 409A, then, to the extent required to
comply with Code Section 409A, the vested Restricted Stock Units shall be settled within 60 days
following the Vesting Date or, if earlier and subject to Section 4, upon Grantee’s termination of
Service.

        Section 4. Delivery of Shares. Once Restricted Stock Units have vested under this Agreement, the Company
shall convert the Restricted Stock Units in the Grantee’s RSU Account into Shares and issue or deliver the total
number of Shares due to the Grantee within 60 days following the Vesting Date or, if earlier, Grantee’s
termination of Service in accordance with Section 3(b). Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent any portion
of the Restricted Stock Units are subject to Code Section 409A, if any Restricted Stock Units vest prior to the
Vesting Date in connection with a Grantee’s “separation from service” within the meaning of Code Section 409A
and the Grantee is a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code Section 409A at the time of such
separation from service, the Shares represented by the vested Restricted Stock Units shall be issued and delivered
on the first business day after the date that is six (6) months following the date of the Grantee’s separation from
service (or if earlier, the Grantee’s date of death). The delivery of the Shares shall be subject to payment of the
applicable withholding tax liability and the forfeiture provisions of this Agreement. If the Grantee dies before the
Company has distributed any portion of the vested Restricted Stock Units, the Company shall transfer any Shares
payable with respect to the vested Restricted Stock Units in accordance with the Grantee’s written beneficiary
designation or to the Grantee’s estate if no written beneficiary designation is provided.
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       Section 5.   Withholding of Taxes. As a condition precedent to the delivery to Grantee of any Shares upon
vesting of the Restricted Stock Units or the payment of any cash pursuant to Section 9 hereof, Grantee shall, upon
request by the Company, pay to the Company such amount of cash as the Company may be required, under all
applicable federal, state, local or other laws or regulations, to withhold and pay over as income or other
withholding taxes (the “Required Tax Payments”) with respect to the Restricted Stock Units and any such cash
payments. If Grantee shall fail to advance the Required Tax Payments after request by the Company, the
Company may, in its discretion, deduct any Required Tax Payments from any amount then or thereafter payable
by the Company to Grantee or withhold Shares. Grantee may elect to satisfy his or her obligation to advance the
Required Tax Payments with respect to Restricted Stock Units by any of the following means: (a) a cash payment
to the Company; (b) delivery to the Company (either actual delivery or by attestation procedures established by
the Company) of previously owned whole Shares having a Fair Market Value, determined as of the date the
obligation to withhold or pay taxes first arises in connection with the Restricted Stock Units (the “Tax Date”),
equal to the Required Tax Payments; (c) authorizing the Company to withhold from the Shares otherwise to be
delivered to Grantee upon the vesting of the Restricted Stock Units, a number of whole Shares having a Fair
Market Value, determined as of the Tax Date, equal to the Required Tax Payments; or (d) any combination of (a),
(b) and (c). Shares to be delivered or withheld may not have a Fair Market Value in excess of the minimum
amount of the Required Tax Payments. Any fraction of a Share which would be required to satisfy such an
obligation shall be disregarded and the remaining amount due shall be paid in cash by Grantee. No Shares shall be
delivered until the Required Tax Payments have been satisfied in full. For any cash payments made pursuant to
Section 9 hereof, the Company shall withhold from such cash payments the Required Tax Payments.
        Section 6.    Compliance with Applicable Law. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary,
the Company’s obligation to issue or deliver certificates evidencing the Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to
all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national
securities exchanges as may be required. The delivery of all or any Shares that relate to the Restricted Stock Units
shall be effective only at such time that the issuance of such Shares shall not violate any state or federal securities
or other laws. The Company is under no obligation to effect any registration of Shares under the Securities Act of
1933 or to effect any state registration or qualification of the Shares that may be issued under this Agreement.
Subject to Code Section 409A, the Company may, in its sole discretion, delay the delivery of Shares or place
restrictive legends on Shares in order to ensure that the issuance of any Shares shall be in compliance with federal
or state securities laws and the rules of any exchange upon which the Company’s Shares are traded. If the
Company delays the delivery of Shares in order to ensure compliance with any state or federal securities or other
laws, the Company shall deliver the Shares at the earliest date at which the Company reasonably believes that
such delivery shall not cause such violation, or at such later date that may be permitted under Code Section 409A.
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        Section 7. Restriction on Transferability. Except as otherwise provided under the Plan, until the Restricted
Stock Units have vested under this Agreement, the Restricted Stock Units granted herein and the rights and
privileges conferred hereby may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or
hypothecated (by operation of law or otherwise), other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution. Any
attempted transfer in violation of the provisions of this paragraph shall be void, and the purported transferee shall
obtain no rights with respect to such Restricted Stock Units.
               Section 8. Grantee’s Rights Unsecured. The right of the Grantee or his or her beneficiary to receive a
distribution hereunder shall be an unsecured claim against the general assets of the Company, and neither the
Grantee nor his or her beneficiary shall have any rights in or against any amounts credited to the Grantee’s RSU
Account or any other specific assets of the Company. All amounts credited to the Grantee’s RSU Account shall
constitute general assets of the Company and may be disposed of by the Company at such time and for such
purposes, as it may deem appropriate.

Section 9.  No Rights as Stockholder or Employee; Dividend Equivalent Cash Payments.

(a)    Unless and until Shares have been issued to the Grantee, the Grantee shall not have any privileges of a
stockholder of the Company with respect to any Restricted Stock Units subject to this Agreement, nor
shall the Company have any obligation to issue any dividends or otherwise afford any rights to which
Shares are entitled with respect to any such Restricted Stock Units. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in
the event that the Company declares a cash dividend or cash distribution on Shares, on the payment
date of the dividend or distribution, the Grantee will be entitled to receive a cash payment equal to the
amount of the cash dividend or distribution per Share multiplied by the number of Restricted Stock
Units granted by this Agreement and held by the Grantee on the dividend’s or distribution's record
date (as adjusted for any proration due to the Grantee’s retirement, death, or disability). The cash
payable to the Grantee under the preceding sentence, less any taxes required to be withheld under
Section 5 hereof, will be distributed to the Grantee as soon as practicable after the date on which the
respective cash dividend or distribution is paid to holders of Shares.

(b)       Nothing in this Agreement or the Award shall confer upon the Grantee any right to continue as an
Employee of the Company or any Affiliate or to interfere in any way with the right of the Company
or any Affiliate to terminate the Grantee’s Service at any time.

    Section 10.  Adjustments. If at any time while the Award is outstanding, the number of outstanding Restricted
Stock Units is changed by reason of a reorganization, recapitalization, stock split or any of the other events
described in
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the Plan, the number and kind of Restricted Stock Units shall be adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the
Plan. In the event of certain corporate events specified in the Change in Control provisions of the Plan, any
Restricted Stock Units may be replaced by Alternative Awards or forfeited in exchange for payment of cash in
accordance with the Change in Control procedures and provisions of the Plan.
            Section 11.  Notices. Any notice hereunder by the Grantee shall be given to the Company in writing and
such notice shall be deemed duly given only upon receipt thereof at the following address: Corporate Secretary,
NiSource Inc., 801 East 86  Avenue, Merrillville, IN 46410-6271, or at such other address as the Company may
designate by notice to the Grantee. Any notice hereunder by the Company shall be given to the Grantee in writing
and such notice shall be deemed duly given only upon receipt thereof at such address as the Grantee may have on
file with the Company.
                Section 12.   Administration. The administration of this Agreement, including the interpretation and
amendment or termination of this Agreement, shall be performed in accordance with the Plan. All determinations
and decisions made by the Committee, the Board, or any delegate of the Committee as to the provisions of this
Agreement shall be conclusive, final, and binding on all persons. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if subsequent
guidance is issued under Code Section 409A that would impose additional taxes, penalties, or interest to either the
Company or the Grantee, the Company may administer this Agreement in accordance with such guidance and
amend this Agreement without the consent of the Grantee to the extent such actions, in the reasonable judgment
of the Company, are considered necessary to avoid the imposition of such additional taxes, penalties, or interest.
        Section 13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws
of the State of Indiana, without giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof.
    Section 14. Entire Agreement; Agreement Subject to Plan. This Agreement and the Plan contain all of the
terms and conditions with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede any previous agreements, written or
oral, relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement at all times shall be governed by the Plan, which is
incorporated in this Agreement by reference, and in no way alter or modify the Plan. To the extent a conflict
exists between this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall govern. This Agreement is pursuant
to the terms of the Plan.
       Section 15. Code Section 409A Compliance. This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with Code
Section 409A including the rules related to payment timing for “specified employees” within the meaning of
Code Section 409A. This Agreement shall be deemed to be modified to the maximum extent necessary to be in
compliance with Code Section 409A’s rules. If the Grantee is unexpectedly required to include in the Grantee’s
current year’s income any amount of compensation relating to the Restricted Stock Units because of a failure to
meet the requirements of Code Section 409A, then to the extent permitted by Code Section

th
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409A, the Grantee may receive a distribution of cash or Shares in an amount not to exceed the amount required to
be included in income as a result of the failure to comply with Code Section 409A.

    Section 16.    Restrictive Covenant.

a)        The Grantee understands the nature of the Company's business and the significant time and expense the
Company and its Affiliates (collectively referred to in this Section as “NiSource”) have expended and
continue to expend in attracting, developing, recruiting and training employees and that the loss of
employees would cause significant and irreparable harm to NiSource. Accordingly, the Grantee agrees that
the scope and duration of the restriction described in this Section 16 is reasonable and necessary to protect
the legitimate business interests of NiSource. The Grantee agrees that during the period of the Grantee's
Service and for a period of one (1) year following the Grantee's separation from Service, the Grantee shall
not, without the express written approval of NiSource's Chief Human Resources Officer, directly or
indirectly solicit, hire, recruit, or attempt to solicit, hire, or recruit, any then-current employee of NiSource
or any employee who has been employed by NiSource in the six (6) months preceding such solicitation,
hiring, or recruitment (“Covered Employee”). Soliciting, recruiting, or hiring Covered Employees with
whom Grantee did not work or have direct contact while at NiSource to work as an employee, contractor,
consultant or otherwise, shall not be considered a violation of this Section 16(a), provided, however, that
Grantee does not solicit, employ or hire such employee with an intent to compete with NiSource in
violation of this Section 16(a). Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section shall restrict or
preclude the Grantee from soliciting or hiring any employee who responds to a general employment
solicitation or advertisement or contact by a recruiter that is not specifically focused or targeted on
employees or former employees of NiSource, provided that the Grantee has not encouraged or advised
such.

b)    If the final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction declares that any term or provision of this Section is
invalid or unenforceable, the parties agree that (a) the court making the determination of invalidity or
unenforceability shall have the power to reduce the scope, duration, or geographic area of the term or
provision, to delete specific words or phrases, or to replace any invalid or unenforceable term or provision
with a term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes closest to expressing the intention of
the invalid or unenforceable term or provision, (b) the parties shall request that the court exercise that
power, and (c) this Agreement in its revised form shall be enforceable.

c)    Grantee agrees that in the event of a breach or threatened breach of the covenants contained in Section 16(a),
in addition to any other damages or restrictions that may apply under any employment agreement, state
law, or
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otherwise, the Grantee shall forfeit, upon written notice to such effect from the Company, any and all
Awards granted to the Grantee under this Agreement, including vested Awards and including any proceeds
thereof. The forfeiture provisions of this Section shall continue to apply, in accordance with their terms,
after the provisions of any employment or other agreement between the Company and the Grantee have
lapsed. Grantee expressly acknowledges that any breach or threatened breach of any of the terms and/or
conditions of this Section 16 may result in substantial, continuing, and irreparable injury to NiSource, and
therefore agrees that, in addition to any other remedy that may be available to NiSource, NiSource shall be
entitled to seek injunctive relief, specific performance, or other equitable relief (without the requirement to
post bond) by a court of appropriate jurisdiction in the event of any breach or threatened breach of the
terms of this Section 16 without the necessity of proving irreparable harm or injury as a result of such
breach or threatened breach. Grantee expressly acknowledges that Grantee’s violation of this Section 16
will entitle NiSource to other equitable and legal remedies, including damages, attorney's fees, and costs, as
allowed by law. The provisions of this Section 16 shall continue to apply, in accordance with their terms,
after the Grantee's Service has terminated and regardless of whether the provisions of any employment or
other agreement between the Company and the Grantee have lapsed.

d)    In the event the Grantee is required to forfeit outstanding vested Shares as a result of breaching the Grantee's
obligations under this Section 16, the Grantee agrees to promptly execute such stock powers or other
instruments of transfer in such forms as are acceptable to the Company without payment or other
consideration therefor.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Award to be granted, and the Grantee has accepted this
Award, as of the date first above written.

NISOURCE INC.

____________________________________________
By: Melanie Berman
Its: Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer
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Exhibit 10.58
NiSource Inc.

2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan
2023 Performance Share Unit Award Agreement

        This Performance Share Unit Award Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of
[DATE] (the “Grant Date”), by and between NiSource Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and
[NAME], an Employee of the Company or an Affiliate (the “Grantee”), pursuant to the terms of the NiSource Inc.
2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended (the “Plan”). Any term capitalized but not defined in this Agreement
shall have the meaning set forth in the Plan.

Section 1.     Performance Share Unit Award. The Company hereby grants to the Grantee, on the terms
and conditions hereinafter set forth, a target award of [Grant Custom Field 3] Performance Share Units (the
“Target Total Award” or “TTA”). The Performance Share Units shall be represented by a bookkeeping entry with
respect to the Grantee (the “PSU Account”), and each Performance Share Unit shall be settled in one Share, to the
extent provided under this Agreement and the Plan. This Agreement and the award shall be null and void unless
the Grantee accepts this Agreement electronically within the Grantee’s stock plan account with the Company’s
stock plan administrator according to the procedures then in effect.

Section 2. Performance-Based Vesting Conditions.
(a) General. Subject to the remainder of this Agreement, the TTA shall vest pursuant to the terms of this

Agreement and the Plan based on the achievement of the performance goals set forth in this Section 2 over the
performance period beginning on January 1, 2023 and ending on December 31, 2025 (the “Performance Period”),
provided that the Grantee remains in continuous Service through February 27, 2026 (the “Vesting Date”).
Attainment of the performance goals shall be determined and certified by the Compensation and Human Capital
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) prior to the settlement of the TTA.

(b) Relative Total Shareholder Return (RTSR) Performance Goal. Subject to the terms of this Agreement
and the Plan, [Grant Custom Field 1] Performance Share Units (twenty-five percent (25%) of the TTA) shall be
eligible to vest based on the Company’s achievement of RTSR during the Performance Period, as follows:
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Performance Level(1) RTSR Percentage of the 25% of the TTA Eligible for
Vesting

Trigger 30  Percentile 25%

Target 50  Percentile 100%

Stretch 80  Percentile and above 200%

(1)The vesting percentage for performance between performance levels shall be determined
based on linear interpolation.

(c) NOEPS, Process Safety, Workforce, and Sustainability Performance Goals.

(1) Subject to the terms of this Agreement and the Plan, [Grant Custom Field 2] of the Performance
Share Units (seventy-five percent (75%) of the TTA) shall be eligible to vest based on the Company’s
achievement of Cumulative NOEPS (50% of the TTA), Supplier Diversity Spend (5% of the TTA),
Operations or Process Safety (10% of the TTA), Employee Engagement Index Score (5% of the TTA), and
Environmental Green House Gas Reduction (5% of the TTA) goals during the Performance Period, as
follows:

th

th
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LTI Metrics-Measure TTA Weighting Trigger Target Stretch
Cumulative NOEPS 50% $4.71 $4.96 $5.21 or greater
Economic Inclusion
(Supplier Diversity
Spend as a percentage of
total supplier spend)

5% 22% 25% 30%

Operations or Process
Failure 10% NA 0 NA

Employee Engagement
Index Score 5% 77% 79% 81%

Environmental GHG
Reduction 5%

Achieve goal
AND reduce NI

LDC fugitive and
vented menthane
emissions by less

than 15.3%

Retire Schahfer
Generating Station

coal units AND
reduce LDC

fugitive and vented
methane emissions

by 15.3%

Achieve goal
AND reduce NI

LDC fugitive and
vented menthane
emissions by 34%

(2) The total of the weighted levels of achievement for the performance measures described in Section
2(c)(1) above shall be aggregated and the percentage of Performance Share Units eligible to vest under
Section 2(c) shall vest in the respective percentages set forth below, as applicable.

Performance Levels(1) Percentage of the 75% of TTA
Vesting Based on Achievement

Trigger 50%
Target 100%
Stretch 200%
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(1) The vesting percentage for performance between performance levels shall be determined
based on linear interpolation.

(d) Definitions.
(1) “Cumulative NOEPS” means the Company’s cumulative net operating earnings per share, as

reported in the Company’s annual financial statements. Additional adjustments to cumulative net
operating earnings per share shall be made to the targets and results for: (x) transactions that the
Company discloses on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including
merger, acquisition, divestiture, consolidation or corporate restructuring, any recapitalization,
reorganization, spin-off, split-up, combination, liquidation, dissolution, sale of assets or similar
corporate transactions that meet the Company’s disclosure thresholds; (y) pending transactions as
a result of requirements to present operations as “held for sale” under Accounting Standard
Codification 205; and (z) changes in law or accounting principles, in each case, as determined by
the Committee.

(2) “Operations or Process Failure” means no fatalities or PHMSA reportable incidents due to
process safety failures.

(3) “RTSR” means the annualized growth in the dividends and share price of a Share, calculated
using a 20 day trading average of the Company’s closing price beginning on January 1, 2023 and
ending December 31, 2025 compared to the TSR performance of the TSR Peer Group. The
starting and ending share prices for the computation of RTSR shall equal the average closing
price of each company’s common stock over the 20 trading days immediately preceding the first
and last day of the performance period.

(4) “TSR Peer Group” means the peer group of companies approved by the Committee at its meeting
on January [__], 2023, as adjusted to reflect corporate transactions with respect to peer group
companies as approved by the Committee at such meeting or from time to time thereafter.

Section 3.     Termination of Employment.
(a)       Termination of Service Prior to Vesting Date. Except as set forth below, if the Grantee’s Service is
terminated for any reason prior to the Vesting Date, then the Grantee shall forfeit the Performance Share
Units credited to the Grantee’s PSU Account.
(b)    Retirement, Disability or Death.
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(1)        Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Grantee’s Service terminates prior to the
Vesting Date as a result of the Grantee’s (i) Retirement, (ii) Disability, or (iii) death and such
death occurs with less than or equal to twelve months remaining in the Performance Period, then
the Grantee (or the Grantee’s beneficiary or estate in the case of the Grantee’s death) shall vest in
a pro rata portion of the Performance Share Units, based on the actual performance results for the
Performance Period. Such pro rata portion of the Performance Share Units shall be determined
by multiplying the number of Performance Share Units earned based on actual performance by a
fraction, where the numerator shall equal the number of calendar months (including partial
calendar months) that have elapsed from the Grant Date through the date of the Grantee’s
termination of Service, and the denominator shall be the number of calendar months (including
partial calendar months) that have elapsed between the Grant Date and the Vesting Date.

(2)        If the Grantee terminates Service due to death prior to the Vesting Date and with more than 12
months remaining in the Performance Period, then the Grantee’s beneficiary or estate shall vest,
on the date of termination, in a pro rata portion of the target Performance Share Units. Such pro
rata portion of the Performance Share Units shall be determined by multiplying the number of
target Performance Share Units by a fraction, where the numerator shall equal the number of
calendar months (including partial calendar months) that have elapsed from the Grant Date
through the date of the Grantee’s termination of Service, and the denominator shall be the number
of calendar months (including partial calendar months) that have elapsed between the Grant Date
and the Vesting Date.

(3)     “Retirement” means the Grantee’s termination from Service at or after attainment of age 55 and
completion of at least 10 years of continuous Service measured from the Grantee’s most recent
date of hire with the Company or an Affiliate.

(c)    Change in Control. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, in the event of a Change in Control, the
Performance Share Units under this Agreement shall be subject to the Change in Control provisions
set forth in the Plan. In the event of any conflict between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan shall
control. Notwithstanding any other agreement between the Company and the Grantee, the “Good
Reason” definition set forth in the Plan shall govern this award.

Section 4. Delivery of Shares. Subject to the terms of this Agreement and except as otherwise provided for
herein, the Company shall convert the Performance Share Units in the Grantee’s PSU Account into Shares and
issue or deliver the total number of Shares due to the Grantee within 60 days following the Vesting Date (but in
any event no later than the March 15th immediately following the year in which the substantial risk of forfeiture
with respect to the Performance Share Units lapses) or, if
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earlier, within 30 days following (a) the Grantee’s death in accordance with Section 3(b)(2), (b) Grantee’s
termination of Service without Cause or due to Good Reason in accordance with the Change in Control
provisions of the Plan or (c) a Change in Control in the event the Performance Share Units do not become
Alternative Awards under the Plan. The delivery of the Shares shall be subject to payment of the applicable
withholding tax liability and the forfeiture provisions of this Agreement. If the Grantee dies before the Company
has issued or distributed the vested Performance Share Units, the Company shall transfer any Shares with respect
to the vested Performance Share Units in accordance with the Grantee’s written beneficiary designation or to the
Grantee’s estate if no written beneficiary designation is provided. The issuance or delivery of the Shares
hereunder shall be evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the Company or of a duly authorized
transfer agent of the Company. The Company shall pay all original issue or transfer taxes and all fees and
expenses incident to such issuance or delivery, except as otherwise provided in Section 5.

       Section 5. Withholding of Taxes. As a condition precedent to the delivery to Grantee of any Shares
upon vesting of the Performance Share Units, Grantee shall, upon request by the Company, pay to the Company
such amount of cash as the Company may be required, under all applicable federal, state, local or other laws or
regulations, to withhold and pay over as income or other withholding taxes (the “Required Tax Payments”) with
respect to the Performance Share Units. If Grantee shall fail to advance the Required Tax Payments after request
by the Company, the Company may, in its discretion, deduct any Required Tax Payments from any amount then
or thereafter payable by the Company to Grantee or withhold Shares. Grantee may elect to satisfy his or her
obligation to advance the Required Tax Payments by any of the following means: (a) a cash payment to the
Company; (b) delivery to the Company (either actual delivery or by attestation procedures established by the
Company) of previously owned whole Shares having a Fair Market Value, determined as of the date the
obligation to withhold or pay taxes first arises in connection with the Performance Share Units (the “Tax Date”),
equal to the Required Tax Payments; (c) authorizing the Company to withhold from the Shares otherwise to be
delivered to Grantee upon the vesting of the Performance Share Units, a number of whole Shares having a Fair
Market Value, determined as of the Tax Date, equal to the Required Tax Payments; or (d) any combination of (a),
(b) and (c). Shares to be delivered or withheld may not have a Fair Market Value in excess of the minimum
amount of the Required Tax Payments. Any fraction of a Share which would be required to satisfy such an
obligation shall be disregarded and the remaining amount due shall be paid in cash by Grantee. No Shares shall be
delivered until the Required Tax Payments have been satisfied in full.

        Section 6. Compliance with Applicable Law. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary, the Company’s obligation to issue or deliver certificates evidencing the Performance Share Units shall
be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or
national securities exchanges as may be required. The delivery of all or any Shares that relate to the Performance
Share Units shall be effective only at such time that the issuance of such Shares shall not violate any state or
federal securities or other laws. The Company is under no obligation to effect any registration of Shares under the
Securities Act of 1933 or to effect any state registration or qualification of the Shares
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that may be issued under this Agreement. Subject to Code Section 409A, the Company may, in its sole discretion,
delay the delivery of Shares or place restrictive legends on Shares in order to ensure that the issuance of any
Shares shall be in compliance with federal or state securities laws and the rules of any exchange upon which the
Company’s Shares are traded. If the Company delays the delivery of Shares in order to ensure compliance with
any state or federal securities or other laws, the Company shall deliver the Shares at the earliest date at which the
Company reasonably believes that such delivery shall not cause such violation, or at such later date that may be
permitted under Code Section 409A.

        Section 7. Restriction on Transferability. Except as otherwise provided under the Plan, until the
Performance Share Units have vested under this Agreement, the Performance Share Units granted herein and the
rights and privileges conferred hereby may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or
hypothecated (by operation of law or otherwise), other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution. Any
attempted transfer in violation of the provisions of this paragraph shall be void, and the purported transferee shall
obtain no rights with respect to such Performance Share Units.

    Section 8. Grantee’s Rights Unsecured. The right of the Grantee or his or her beneficiary to receive a
distribution hereunder shall be an unsecured claim against the general assets of the Company, and neither the
Grantee nor his or her beneficiary shall have any rights in or against any amounts credited to the Grantee’s PSU
Account, any Shares or any other specific assets of the Company. All amounts credited to the Grantee’s PSU
Account shall constitute general assets of the Company and may be disposed of by the Company at such time and
for such purposes as it may deem appropriate.

    Section 9. No Rights as Stockholder or Employee; Dividend Equivalent Rights.

(a)    Unless and until Shares have been issued to the Grantee, the Grantee shall not have any privileges of a
stockholder of the Company with respect to any Performance Share Units subject to this Agreement,
nor shall the Company have any obligation to issue any dividend or otherwise afford any rights to
which Shares are entitled with respect to any such Performance Share Units. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in the event that the Company declares a cash dividend or distribution on Shares, the
Grantee will be credited with Dividend Equivalent Rights equal to the amount of the cash dividend or
distribution per Share multiplied by the number of Performance Share Units granted by this
Agreement and held by the Grantee on the dividend’s or distribution's record date (as adjusted for any
proration due to the Grantee’s retirement, death or disability). The Dividend Equivalent Rights
credited to the Grantee under the preceding sentence will be deemed to be reinvested in additional
Performance Share Units, which will be subject to the same terms regarding vesting, forfeiture, and
Dividend Equivalent Rights as Performance Share Units awarded to the Grantee
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under this Agreement. Following the Performance Period, the Grantee will be entitled to receive a
cash payment equal to the value of the accrued Dividend Equivalent Rights multiplied by the vested
percentage of the TTA determined under Sections 2(b), 2(c) and 2(d) above.

(b)       Nothing in this Agreement or the Award shall confer upon the Grantee any right to continue as an
Employee of the Company or any Affiliate or to interfere in any way with the right of the Company or
any Affiliate to terminate the Grantee’s Service at any time.

        Section 10. Adjustments. If at any time while the Award is outstanding, the number of outstanding
Performance Share Units is changed by reason of a reorganization, recapitalization, stock split or any of the other
events described in the Plan (in each case as determined by the Committee), the number and kind of Performance
Share Units and the performance goals, as applicable, shall be adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the
Plan. In the event of certain corporate events specified in the Change in Control provisions of the Plan, any
Performance Share Units may be replaced by Alternative Awards or forfeited in exchange for payment of cash in
accordance with the Change in Control procedures and provisions of the Plan, as determined by the Committee.

Section 11. Notices. Any notice hereunder by the Grantee shall be given to the Company in writing, and
such notice shall be deemed duly given only upon receipt thereof at the following address: Corporate Secretary,
NiSource Inc., 801 East 86th Avenue, Merrillville, IN 46410-6271 (or at such other address as the Company may
designate by notice to the Grantee). Any notice hereunder by the Company shall be given to the Grantee in
writing, and such notice shall be deemed duly given only upon receipt thereof at such address as the Grantee may
have on file with the Company.

        Section 12. Administration. The administration of this Agreement, including the interpretation and
amendment or termination of this Agreement, shall be performed in accordance with the Plan. All determinations
and decisions made by the Committee, the Board, or any delegate of the Committee as to the provisions of this
Agreement shall be conclusive, final, and binding on all persons. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if subsequent
guidance is issued under Code Section 409A that would impose additional taxes, penalties, or interest to either the
Company or the Grantee, the Company may administer this Agreement in accordance with such guidance and
amend this Agreement without the consent of the Grantee to the extent such actions, in the reasonable judgment
of the Company, are considered necessary to avoid the imposition of such additional taxes, penalties, or interest.

       Section 13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of Indiana, without giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof.

    Section 14. Entire Agreement; Agreement Subject to Plan. This Agreement and the Plan contain all of
the terms and conditions with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede any previous agreements, written
or oral, relating to
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the subject matter hereof. This Agreement is subject to the provisions of the Plan and shall be interpreted in
accordance therewith. In the event that the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan conflict, the Plan shall
control. The Grantee hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan.

    Section 15. Code Section 409A Compliance. This Agreement and the Performance Share Units granted
hereunder are intended to be exempt from Code Section 409A to the maximum extent possible, and shall be
interpreted and construed accordingly.

    Section 16.    Restrictive Covenant.

(a)    The Grantee understands the nature of the Company's business and the significant time and expense
the Company and its Affiliates (collectively referred to in this Section as “NiSource”) have expended
and continue to expend in attracting, developing, recruiting and training employees and that the loss
of employees would cause significant and irreparable harm to NiSource. Accordingly, the Grantee
agrees that the scope and duration of the restriction described in this Section 16 is reasonable and
necessary to protect the legitimate business interests of NiSource. The Grantee agrees that during the
period of the Grantee's Service and for a period of one (1) year following the Grantee's separation
from Service, the Grantee shall not, without the express written approval of NiSource's Chief Human
Resources Officer, directly or indirectly solicit, hire, recruit, or attempt to solicit, hire, or recruit, any
then-current employee of NiSource or any employee who has been employed by NiSource in the six
(6) months preceding such solicitation, hiring, or recruitment (“Covered Employee”). Soliciting,
recruiting, or hiring Covered Employees with whom Grantee did not work or have direct contact
while at NiSource to work as an employee, contractor, consultant or otherwise, shall not be
considered a violation of this Section 16(a), provided, however, that Grantee does not solicit, employ
or hire such employee with an intent to compete with NiSource in violation of this Section 16(a).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section shall restrict or preclude the Grantee from
soliciting or hiring any employee who responds to a general employment solicitation or
advertisement or contact by a recruiter that is not specifically focused or targeted on employees or
former employees of NiSource, provided that the Grantee has not encouraged or advised such.

(b)    If the final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction declares that any term or provision of this
Section is invalid or unenforceable, the parties agree that (a) the court making the determination of
invalidity or unenforceability shall have the power to reduce the scope, duration, or geographic area
of the term or provision, to delete specific words or phrases, or to replace any invalid or
unenforceable term or provision with a term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes
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closest to expressing the intention of the invalid or unenforceable term or provision, (b) the parties
shall request that the court exercise that power, and (c) this Agreement in its revised form shall be
enforceable.

(c)    Grantee agrees that in the event of a breach or threatened breach of the covenants contained in Section
16(a), in addition to any other damages or restrictions that may apply under any employment
agreement, state law, or otherwise, the Grantee shall forfeit, upon written notice to such effect from
the Company, any and all Awards granted to the Grantee under this Agreement, including vested
Awards and including any proceeds thereof. The forfeiture provisions of this Section shall continue
to apply, in accordance with their terms, after the provisions of any employment or other agreement
between the Company and the Grantee have lapsed. Grantee expressly acknowledges that any breach
or threatened breach of any of the terms and/or conditions of this Section 16 may result in
substantial, continuing, and irreparable injury to NiSource, and therefore agrees that, in addition to
any other remedy that may be available to NiSource, NiSource shall be entitled to seek injunctive
relief, specific performance, or other equitable relief (without the requirement to post bond) by a
court of appropriate jurisdiction in the event of any breach or threatened breach of the terms of this
Section 16 without the necessity of proving irreparable harm or injury as a result of such breach or
threatened breach. Grantee expressly acknowledges that Grantee’s violation of this Section 16 will
entitle NiSource to other equitable and legal remedies, including damages, attorney's fees, and costs,
as allowed by law. The provisions of this Section 16 shall continue to apply, in accordance with their
terms, after the Grantee's Service has terminated and regardless of whether the provisions of any
employment or other agreement between the Company and the Grantee have lapsed.

(d)    In the event the Grantee is required to forfeit outstanding vested Shares as a result of breaching the
Grantee's obligations under this Section 16, the Grantee agrees to promptly execute such stock
powers or other instruments of transfer in such forms as are acceptable to the Company without
payment or other consideration therefor.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused the Performance Share Units subject to this Agreement to
be granted, and the Grantee has accepted the Performance Share Units subject to the terms of the Agreement, as
of the date first above written.

NISOURCE INC.

____________________________________________
By: Melanie Berman
Its: Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer
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Exhibit 10.59
NiSource Inc.

2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan

2023 Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement

This Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the “Agreement”), is made and entered into as of [DATE] (the
“Grant Date”), by and between NiSource Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and [NAME], an
Employee of the Company or an Affiliate (the “Grantee”), pursuant to the terms of the NiSource Inc. 2020
Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended (the “Plan”). Any term capitalized but not defined in this Agreement shall
have the meaning set forth in the Plan.

              Section 1.  Restricted Stock Unit Award. The Company hereby grants to the Grantee, on the terms and
conditions hereinafter set forth, an Award of [NUMBER] Restricted Stock Units. The Restricted Stock Units shall
be represented by a bookkeeping entry (the “RSU Account”) of the Company, and each Restricted Stock Unit
shall be equivalent to one share of the Company’s common stock.
    Section 2. Grantee Accounts. The number of Restricted Stock Units granted pursuant to this Agreement shall
be credited to the Grantee’s RSU Account. Each RSU Account shall be maintained on the books of the Company
until full payment of the balance thereof has been made to the Grantee (or the Grantee’s beneficiaries or estate if
the Grantee is deceased) in accordance with Section 1 above. No funds shall be set aside or earmarked for any
RSU Account, which shall be purely a bookkeeping device.
    Section 3.  Vesting and Lapse of Restrictions.

(a) Vesting. Subject to the forfeiture conditions described later in this Agreement, the Restricted Stock
Units shall vest on February 27, 2026 (the “Vesting Date”), at which date they shall become 100%
vested, provided that the Grantee is continuously employed by the Company through and including
January 1, 2026. Except as set forth in subsection (c) below, if the Grantee’s Service is terminated for
any reason on or prior to December 31, 2023, the unvested Restricted Stock Units subject to this
Agreement shall immediately terminate and be automatically forfeited by the Grantee.

(b) Pro Rata Vesting Upon Termination After 2023 and Prior to 2026. If the Grantee's Service is
terminated for any reason (including if the Grantee’s Service is terminated for death or Disability)
after December 31, 2023 and prior to January 1, 2026, the restrictions set forth in subsection (a)
above shall lapse with respect to a pro rata portion of such Restricted Stock Units on the date of
termination of Service for any reason. Such pro rata lapse of restrictions shall be determined using a
fraction, where the numerator shall be the number of full or partial calendar months elapsed between
the Grant Date and
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the date the Grantee terminates Service for any reason (including if the Grantee’s Service is
terminated for death or Disability), and the denominator shall be the number of full or partial
calendar months elapsed between the Grant Date and January 1, 2026.

(c) Effect of Termination of Service Due to Death or Disability On or Prior to December 31, 2023.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Grantee’s Service terminates on or prior to
December 31, 2023 as a result of the Grantee’s death or Disability, the restrictions set forth in
subsection (a) above shall lapse with respect to a pro rata portion of such Restricted Stock Units on
the date of termination of Service on or prior to December 31, 2023 due to the Grantee’s death or
Disability. Such pro rata lapse of restrictions shall be determined using a fraction, where the
numerator shall be the number of full or partial calendar months elapsed between the Grant Date and
the date the Grantee terminates Service on or prior to December 31, 2023 due to death or Disability,
and the denominator shall be the number of full or partial calendar months between the Grant Date
and the Vesting Date.

(d) Change in Control. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, in the event of a Change in Control,
the Restricted Stock Units under this Agreement shall be subject to the Change in Control provisions
set forth in the Plan. In the event of any conflict between the Plan and this Agreement, the Plan shall
control. Notwithstanding any other agreement between the Company and the Grantee, the “Good
Reason” definition set forth in the Plan shall govern this award. Notwithstanding the foregoing or
anything herein to the contrary, in the event the Restricted Stock Units do not become Alternative
Awards under the Plan, then the Restricted Stock Units shall be settled within 60 days following the
Change in Control; provided, however, in the event the Restricted Stock Units constitute
nonqualified deferred compensation subject to Code Section 409A and the Change in Control is not a
“change in control event” within the meaning of Code Section 409A, then, to the extent required to
comply with Code Section 409A, the vested Restricted Stock Units shall be settled within 60 days
following the Vesting Date or, if earlier and subject to Section 4, upon Grantee’s termination of
Service.

        Section 4. Delivery of Shares. Once Restricted Stock Units have vested under this Agreement, the Company
shall convert the Restricted Stock Units in the Grantee’s RSU Account into Shares and issue or deliver the total
number of Shares due to the Grantee within 60 days following the Vesting Date or, if earlier, Grantee’s
termination of Service in accordance with Section 3(b). Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent any portion
of the Restricted Stock Units are subject to Code Section 409A, if any Restricted Stock Units vest prior to the
Vesting Date in
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connection with a Grantee’s “separation from service” within the meaning of Code Section 409A and the Grantee
is a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code Section 409A at the time of such separation from service,
the Shares represented by the vested Restricted Stock Units shall be issued and delivered on the first business day
after the date that is six (6) months following the date of the Grantee’s separation from service (or if earlier, the
Grantee’s date of death). The delivery of the Shares shall be subject to payment of the applicable withholding tax
liability and the forfeiture provisions of this Agreement. If the Grantee dies before the Company has distributed
any portion of the vested Restricted Stock Units, the Company shall transfer any Shares payable with respect to
the vested Restricted Stock Units in accordance with the Grantee’s written beneficiary designation or to the
Grantee’s estate if no written beneficiary designation is provided.
       Section 5.   Withholding of Taxes. As a condition precedent to the delivery to Grantee of any Shares upon
vesting of the Restricted Stock Units or the payment of any cash pursuant to Section 9 hereof, Grantee shall, upon
request by the Company, pay to the Company such amount of cash as the Company may be required, under all
applicable federal, state, local or other laws or regulations, to withhold and pay over as income or other
withholding taxes (the “Required Tax Payments”) with respect to the Restricted Stock Units and any such cash
payments. If Grantee shall fail to advance the Required Tax Payments after request by the Company, the
Company may, in its discretion, deduct any Required Tax Payments from any amount then or thereafter payable
by the Company to Grantee or withhold Shares. Grantee may elect to satisfy his or her obligation to advance the
Required Tax Payments with respect to any Restricted Stock Units by any of the following means: (a) a cash
payment to the Company; (b) delivery to the Company (either actual delivery or by attestation procedures
established by the Company) of previously owned whole Shares having a Fair Market Value, determined as of the
date the obligation to withhold or pay taxes first arises in connection with the Restricted Stock Units (the “Tax
Date”), equal to the Required Tax Payments; (c) authorizing the Company to withhold from the Shares otherwise
to be delivered to Grantee upon the vesting of the Restricted Stock Units, a number of whole Shares having a Fair
Market Value, determined as of the Tax Date, equal to the Required Tax Payments; or (d) any combination of (a),
(b) and (c). Shares to be delivered or withheld may not have a Fair Market Value in excess of the minimum
amount of the Required Tax Payments. Any fraction of a Share which would be required to satisfy such an
obligation shall be disregarded and the remaining amount due shall be paid in cash by Grantee. No Shares shall be
delivered until the Required Tax Payments have been satisfied in full. For any cash payments made pursuant to
Section 9 hereof, the Company shall withhold from such cash payments the Required Tax Payments.
        Section 6.    Compliance with Applicable Law. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary,
the Company’s obligation to issue or deliver certificates evidencing the Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to
all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or national
securities exchanges as may be required. The delivery of all or any Shares that relate to the Restricted Stock Units
shall be effective only at such
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time that the issuance of such Shares shall not violate any state or federal securities or other laws. The Company
is under no obligation to effect any registration of Shares under the Securities Act of 1933 or to effect any state
registration or qualification of the Shares that may be issued under this Agreement. Subject to Code Section
409A, the Company may, in its sole discretion, delay the delivery of Shares or place restrictive legends on Shares
in order to ensure that the issuance of any Shares shall be in compliance with federal or state securities laws and
the rules of any exchange upon which the Company’s Shares are traded. If the Company delays the delivery of
Shares in order to ensure compliance with any state or federal securities or other laws, the Company shall deliver
the Shares at the earliest date at which the Company reasonably believes that such delivery shall not cause such
violation, or at such later date that may be permitted under Code Section 409A.
        Section 7. Restriction on Transferability. Except as otherwise provided under the Plan, until the Restricted
Stock Units have vested under this Agreement, the Restricted Stock Units granted herein and the rights and
privileges conferred hereby may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or
hypothecated (by operation of law or otherwise), other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution. Any
attempted transfer in violation of the provisions of this paragraph shall be void, and the purported transferee shall
obtain no rights with respect to such Restricted Stock Units.
               Section 8. Grantee’s Rights Unsecured. The right of the Grantee or his or her beneficiary to receive a
distribution hereunder shall be an unsecured claim against the general assets of the Company, and neither the
Grantee nor his or her beneficiary shall have any rights in or against any amounts credited to the Grantee’s RSU
Account or any other specific assets of the Company. All amounts credited to the Grantee’s RSU Account shall
constitute general assets of the Company and may be disposed of by the Company at such time and for such
purposes, as it may deem appropriate.
    Section 9.  No Rights as Stockholder or Employee; Dividend Equivalent Cash Payments.

(a)    Unless and until Shares have been issued to the Grantee, the Grantee shall not have any privileges of a
stockholder of the Company with respect to any Restricted Stock Units subject to this Agreement, nor
shall the Company have any obligation to issue any dividends or otherwise afford any rights to which
Shares are entitled with respect to any such Restricted Stock Units. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in
the event that the Company declares a cash dividend or cash distribution on Shares, on the payment
date of the dividend or distribution, the Grantee will be entitled to receive a cash payment equal to the
amount of the cash dividend or distribution per Share multiplied by the number of Restricted Stock
Units granted by this Agreement and held by the Grantee on the dividend’s or distribution's record
date (as adjusted for any proration). The cash payable to the Grantee under the preceding sentence,
less any taxes required to be withheld under Section 5
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hereof, will be distributed to the Grantee as soon as practicable after the date on which the respective
cash dividend or distribution is paid to holders of Shares.

(b)       Nothing in this Agreement or the Award shall confer upon the Grantee any right to continue as an
Employee of the Company or any Affiliate or to interfere in any way with the right of the Company
or any Affiliate to terminate the Grantee’s Service at any time.

    Section 10.  Adjustments. If at any time while the Award is outstanding, the number of outstanding Restricted
Stock Units is changed by reason of a reorganization, recapitalization, stock split or any of the other events
described in the Plan, the number and kind of Restricted Stock Units shall be adjusted in accordance with the
provisions of the Plan. In the event of certain corporate events specified in the Change in Control provisions of
the Plan, any Restricted Stock Units may be replaced by Alternative Awards or forfeited in exchange for payment
of cash in accordance with the Change in Control procedures and provisions of the Plan.
            Section 11.  Notices. Any notice hereunder by the Grantee shall be given to the Company in writing and
such notice shall be deemed duly given only upon receipt thereof at the following address: Corporate Secretary,
NiSource Inc., 801 East 86  Avenue, Merrillville, IN 46410-6271, or at such other address as the Company may
designate by notice to the Grantee. Any notice hereunder by the Company shall be given to the Grantee in writing
and such notice shall be deemed duly given only upon receipt thereof at such address as the Grantee may have on
file with the Company.
                Section 12.   Administration. The administration of this Agreement, including the interpretation and
amendment or termination of this Agreement, shall be performed in accordance with the Plan. All determinations
and decisions made by the Committee, the Board, or any delegate of the Committee as to the provisions of this
Agreement shall be conclusive, final, and binding on all persons. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if subsequent
guidance is issued under Code Section 409A that would impose additional taxes, penalties, or interest to either the
Company or the Grantee, the Company may administer this Agreement in accordance with such guidance and
amend this Agreement without the consent of the Grantee to the extent such actions, in the reasonable judgment
of the Company, are considered necessary to avoid the imposition of such additional taxes, penalties, or interest.
        Section 13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws
of the State of Indiana, without giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof.
    Section 14. Entire Agreement; Agreement Subject to Plan. This Agreement and the Plan contain all of the
terms and conditions with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede any previous agreements, written or
oral, relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement at all times shall be governed by the
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Plan, which is incorporated in this Agreement by reference, and in no way alter or modify the Plan. To the extent
a conflict exists between this Agreement and the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall govern. This Agreement is
pursuant to the terms of the Plan.
       Section 15. Code Section 409A Compliance. This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with Code
Section 409A including the rules related to payment timing for “specified employees” within the meaning of
Code Section 409A. This Agreement shall be deemed to be modified to the maximum extent necessary to be in
compliance with Code Section 409A’s rules. If the Grantee is unexpectedly required to include in the Grantee’s
current year’s income any amount of compensation relating to the Restricted Stock Units because of a failure to
meet the requirements of Code Section 409A, then to the extent permitted by Code Section 409A, the Grantee
may receive a distribution of cash or Shares in an amount not to exceed the amount required to be included in
income as a result of the failure to comply with Code Section 409A.

    Section 16.    Restrictive Covenant.

a)        The Grantee understands the nature of the Company's business and the significant time and expense the
Company and its Affiliates (collectively referred to in this Section as “NiSource”) have expended and
continue to expend in attracting, developing, recruiting and training employees and that the loss of
employees would cause significant and irreparable harm to NiSource. Accordingly, the Grantee agrees that
the scope and duration of the restriction described in this Section 16 is reasonable and necessary to protect
the legitimate business interests of NiSource. The Grantee agrees that during the period of the Grantee's
Service and for a period of one (1) year following the Grantee's separation from Service, the Grantee shall
not, without the express written approval of NiSource's Chief Human Resources Officer, directly or
indirectly solicit, hire, recruit, or attempt to solicit, hire, or recruit, any then-current employee of NiSource
or any employee who has been employed by NiSource in the six (6) months preceding such solicitation,
hiring, or recruitment (“Covered Employee”). Soliciting, recruiting, or hiring Covered Employees with
whom Grantee did not work or have direct contact while at NiSource to work as an employee, contractor,
consultant or otherwise, shall not be considered a violation of this Section 16(a), provided, however, that
Grantee does not solicit, employ or hire such employee with an intent to compete with NiSource in
violation of this Section 16(a). Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Section shall restrict or
preclude the Grantee from soliciting or hiring any employee who responds to a general employment
solicitation or advertisement or contact by a recruiter that is not specifically focused or targeted on
employees or former employees of NiSource, provided that the Grantee has not encouraged or advised
such.
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b)    If the final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction declares that any term or provision of this Section is
invalid or unenforceable, the parties agree that (a) the court making the determination of invalidity or
unenforceability shall have the power to reduce the scope, duration, or geographic area of the term or
provision, to delete specific words or phrases, or to replace any invalid or unenforceable term or provision
with a term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes closest to expressing the intention of
the invalid or unenforceable term or provision, (b) the parties shall request that the court exercise that
power, and (c) this Agreement in its revised form shall be enforceable.

c)    Grantee agrees that in the event of a breach or threatened breach of the covenants contained in Section 16(a),
in addition to any other damages or restrictions that may apply under any employment agreement, state
law, or otherwise, the Grantee shall forfeit, upon written notice to such effect from the Company, any and
all Awards granted to the Grantee under this Agreement, including vested Awards and including any
proceeds thereof. The forfeiture provisions of this Section shall continue to apply, in accordance with their
terms, after the provisions of any employment or other agreement between the Company and the Grantee
have lapsed. Grantee expressly acknowledges that any breach or threatened breach of any of the terms
and/or conditions of this Section 16 may result in substantial, continuing, and irreparable injury to
NiSource, and therefore agrees that, in addition to any other remedy that may be available to NiSource,
NiSource shall be entitled to seek injunctive relief, specific performance, or other equitable relief (without
the requirement to post bond) by a court of appropriate jurisdiction in the event of any breach or threatened
breach of the terms of this Section 16 without the necessity of proving irreparable harm or injury as a result
of such breach or threatened breach. Grantee expressly acknowledges that Grantee’s violation of this
Section 16 will entitle NiSource to other equitable and legal remedies, including damages, attorney's fees,
and costs, as allowed by law. The provisions of this Section 16 shall continue to apply, in accordance with
their terms, after the Grantee's Service has terminated and regardless of whether the provisions of any
employment or other agreement between the Company and the Grantee have lapsed.

d)    In the event the Grantee is required to forfeit outstanding vested Shares as a result of breaching the Grantee's
obligations under this Section 16, the Grantee agrees to promptly execute such stock powers or other
instruments of transfer in such forms as are acceptable to the Company without payment or other
consideration therefor.

7



[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Award to be granted, and the Grantee has accepted this
Award, as of the date first above written.

NISOURCE INC.

____________________________________________
By: Melanie Berman
Its: Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer
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Exhibit 10.60
NiSource Inc.

2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan
2023 Performance Share Unit Award Agreement

        This Performance Share Unit Award Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of
[DATE] (the “Grant Date”), by and between NiSource Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and
[NAME], an Employee of the Company or an Affiliate (the “Grantee”), pursuant to the terms of the NiSource Inc.
2020 Omnibus Incentive Plan, as amended (the “Plan”). Any term capitalized but not defined in this Agreement
shall have the meaning set forth in the Plan.

Section 1.     Performance Share Unit Award. The Company hereby grants to the Grantee, on the terms
and conditions hereinafter set forth, a target award of [Grant Custom Field 3] Performance Share Units (the
“Target Total Award” or “TTA”). The Performance Share Units shall be represented by a bookkeeping entry with
respect to the Grantee (the “PSU Account”), and each Performance Share Unit shall be settled in one Share, to the
extent provided under this Agreement and the Plan. This Agreement and the award shall be null and void unless
the Grantee accepts this Agreement electronically within the Grantee’s stock plan account with the Company’s
stock plan administrator according to the procedures then in effect.

Section 2. Performance-Based Vesting Conditions.
(a) General. Subject to the remainder of this Agreement, the TTA shall vest pursuant to the terms of this

Agreement and the Plan based on the achievement of the performance goals set forth in this Section 2 over the
performance period beginning on January 1, 2023 and ending on December 31, 2025 (the “Performance Period”),
with a vesting date of February 17, 2026 (the “Vesting Date”), provided that the Grantee remains in continuous
Service through January 1, 2026. Attainment of the performance goals shall be determined and certified by the
Compensation and Human Capital Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) prior
to the settlement of the TTA.

(b) Relative Total Shareholder Return (RTSR) Performance Goal. Subject to the terms of this Agreement
and the Plan, [Grant Custom Field 1] Performance Share Units (twenty-five percent (25%) of the TTA) shall be
eligible to vest based on the Company’s achievement of RTSR during the Performance Period, as follows:
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Performance Level(1) RTSR Percentage of the 25% of the TTA Eligible for
Vesting

Trigger 30  Percentile 25%

Target 50  Percentile 100%

Stretch 80  Percentile and above 200%

(1)The vesting percentage for performance between performance levels shall be determined
based on linear interpolation.

(c) NOEPS, Operations or Process Safety, Workforce, and Sustainability Performance Goals.
(1) Subject to the terms of this Agreement and the Plan, [Grant Custom Field 2] of the Performance
Share Units (seventy-five percent (75%) of the TTA) shall be eligible to vest based on the Company’s
achievement of Cumulative NOEPS (50% of the TTA), Operations or Process Safety (10% of the TTA),
Supplier Diversity Spend (5% of the TTA), Employee Engagement Index Score (5% of the TTA), and
Environmental Green House Gas Reduction (5% of the TTA) goals during the Performance Period, as
follows:

th

th

th
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LTI Metrics-Measure TTA Weighting Trigger Target Stretch
Cumulative NOEPS 50% $4.71 $4.96 $5.21 or greater
Economic Inclusion
(Supplier Diversity
Spend as a percentage of
total supplier spend)

5% 22% 25% 30%

Operations or Process
Failure 10% NA 0 NA

Employee Engagement
Index Score 5% 77% 79% 81%

Environmental GHG
Reduction 5%

Achieve goal
AND reduce NI

LDC fugitive and
vented menthane
emissions by less

than 15.3%

Retire Schahfer
Generating Station

coal units AND
reduce LDC

fugitive and vented
methane emissions

by 15.3%

Achieve goal
AND reduce NI

LDC fugitive and
vented menthane
emissions by 34%

(2) The total of the weighted levels of achievement for the performance measures described in Section
2(c)(1) above shall be aggregated and the percentage of Performance Share Units eligible to vest under
Section 2(c) shall vest in the respective percentages set forth below, as applicable.
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Performance Levels(1) Percentage of the 75% of TTA
Vesting Based on Achievement

Trigger 50%
Target 100%
Stretch 200%

(1)The vesting percentage for performance between performance levels shall be determined
based on linear interpolation.

(d) Definitions.
(1) “Cumulative NOEPS” means the Company’s cumulative net operating earnings per share, as

reported in the Company’s annual financial statements. Additional adjustments to cumulative net
operating earnings per share shall be made to the targets and results for: (x) transactions that the
Company discloses on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including
merger, acquisition, divestiture, consolidation or corporate restructuring, any recapitalization,
reorganization, spin-off, split-up, combination, liquidation, dissolution, sale of assets or similar
corporate transactions that meet the Company’s disclosure thresholds; (y) pending transactions as
a result of requirements to present operations as “held for sale” under Accounting Standard
Codification 205; and (z) changes in law or accounting principles, in each case, as determined by
the Committee.

(2) “Operations or Process Failure” means no fatalities or PHMSA reportable incidents due to
process safety failures.

(3) “RTSR” means the annualized growth in the dividends and share price of a Share, calculated
using a 20 day trading average of the Company’s closing price beginning on January 1, 2023 and
ending December 31, 2025 compared to the TSR performance of the TSR Peer Group. The
starting and ending share prices for the computation of RTSR shall equal the average closing
price of each company’s common stock over the 20 trading days immediately preceding the first
and last day of the performance period.

(4) “TSR Peer Group” means the peer group of companies approved by the Committee at its meeting
on January [__], 2023, as adjusted to reflect corporate transactions with respect to peer group
companies as

4



approved by the Committee at such meeting or from time to time thereafter.
Section 3.     Termination of Employment.
(a) Vesting. Subject to the forfeiture conditions described later in this Agreement, the Performance Share

Units shall vest on February 27, 2026 (the “Vesting Date”) based on actual performance results,
provided that the Grantee is continuously employed by the Company through January 1, 2026.
Except as set forth in subsection (c) below, if the Grantee’s Service is terminated for any reason on or
prior to December 31, 2023, the unvested Performance Share Units subject to this Agreement shall
immediately terminate and be automatically forfeited by the Grantee.

(b) Pro Rata Vesting Upon Termination After 2023 and Prior to 2026. If the Grantee's Service is
terminated for any reason (including if the Grantee’s Service is terminated for death or Disability)
after December 31, 2023 and prior to January 1, 2026, then the Grantee shall vest in a pro rata
portion of such Performance Share Units, based on the actual performance results for the
Performance Period. Such pro rata portion of the Performance Share Units shall be determined by
multiplying the number of Performance Share Units earned based on actual performance by a
fraction, where the numerator shall be the number of full or partial calendar months elapsed between
the Grant Date and the date the Grantee terminates Service for any reason (including if the Grantee’s
Service is terminated for death or Disability), and the denominator shall be the number of full or
partial calendar months elapsed between the Grant Date and January 1, 2026.

(c) Effect of Termination of Service due to Disability or Death On or Prior to December 31, 2023.

(1)    Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Grantee’s Service terminates on or prior to
December 31, 2023 as a result of the Grantee’s Disability then the Grantee (or the Grantee’s
beneficiary or estate in the case of the Grantee’s death) shall vest in a pro rata portion of the
Performance Share Units, based on the actual performance results for the Performance Period. Such
pro rata portion of the Performance Share Units shall be determined by multiplying the number of
Performance Share Units earned based on actual performance by a fraction, where the numerator
shall equal the number of calendar months (including partial calendar months) that have elapsed
from the Grant Date through the date of the Grantee’s termination of Service on or prior to
December 31, 2023 due to the Grantee’s Disability, and the denominator shall be the number of
calendar months (including partial calendar months) that have elapsed between the Grant Date and
the Vesting Date.
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(2)    Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Grantee’s Service terminates on or prior to
December 31, 2023 as a result of the Grantee’s death, then the Grantee’s beneficiary or estate shall
vest, on the date of termination of Service, in a pro rata portion of the target Performance Share
Units. Such pro rata portion of the Performance Share Units shall be determined by multiplying the
number of target Performance Share Units by a fraction, where the numerator shall equal the number
of calendar months (including partial calendar months) that have elapsed from the Grant Date
through the date of the Grantee’s termination of Service on or prior to December 31, 2023 due to
death, and the denominator shall be the number of calendar months (including partial calendar
months) that have elapsed between the Grant Date and the Vesting Date.

(d) Change in Control. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, in the event of a Change in Control,
the Performance Share Units under this Agreement shall be subject to the Change in Control
provisions set forth in the Plan. In the event of any conflict between the Plan and this Agreement, the
Plan shall control. Notwithstanding any other agreement between the Company and the Grantee, the
“Good Reason” definition set forth in the Plan shall govern this award.

Section 4. Delivery of Shares. Subject to the terms of this Agreement and except as otherwise provided for
herein, the Company shall convert the Performance Share Units in the Grantee’s PSU Account into Shares and
issue or deliver the total number of Shares due to the Grantee within 60 days following the Vesting Date (but in
any event no later than the March 15th immediately following the year in which the substantial risk of forfeiture
with respect to the Performance Share Units lapses) or, if earlier, within 30 days following (a) the Grantee’s death
in accordance with Section 3(c)(2), (b) Grantee’s termination of Service without Cause or due to Good Reason in
accordance with the Change in Control provisions of the Plan or (c) a Change in Control in the event the
Performance Share Units do not become Alternative Awards under the Plan. The delivery of the Shares shall be
subject to payment of the applicable withholding tax liability and the forfeiture provisions of this Agreement. If
the Grantee dies before the Company has issued or distributed the vested Performance Share Units, the Company
shall transfer any Shares with respect to the vested Performance Share Units in accordance with the Grantee’s
written beneficiary designation or to the Grantee’s estate if no written beneficiary designation is provided. The
issuance or delivery of the Shares hereunder shall be evidenced by the appropriate entry on the books of the
Company or of a duly authorized transfer agent of the Company. The Company shall pay all original issue or
transfer taxes and all fees and expenses incident to such issuance or delivery, except as otherwise provided in
Section 5.

       Section 5. Withholding of Taxes. As a condition precedent to the delivery to Grantee of any Shares
upon vesting of the Performance Share Units, Grantee shall, upon request by the Company, pay to the Company
such amount of cash as the Company may be required, under all applicable federal, state, local or other laws or
regulations, to
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withhold and pay over as income or other withholding taxes (the “Required Tax Payments”) with respect to the
Performance Share Units. If Grantee shall fail to advance the Required Tax Payments after request by the
Company, the Company may, in its discretion, deduct any Required Tax Payments from any amount then or
thereafter payable by the Company to Grantee or withhold Shares. Grantee may elect to satisfy his or her
obligation to advance the Required Tax Payments by any of the following means: (a) a cash payment to the
Company; (b) delivery to the Company (either actual delivery or by attestation procedures established by the
Company) of previously owned whole Shares having a Fair Market Value, determined as of the date the
obligation to withhold or pay taxes first arises in connection with the Performance Share Units (the “Tax Date”),
equal to the Required Tax Payments; (c) authorizing the Company to withhold from the Shares otherwise to be
delivered to Grantee upon the vesting of the Performance Share Units, a number of whole Shares having a Fair
Market Value, determined as of the Tax Date, equal to the Required Tax Payments; or (d) any combination of (a),
(b) and (c). Shares to be delivered or withheld may not have a Fair Market Value in excess of the minimum
amount of the Required Tax Payments. Any fraction of a Share which would be required to satisfy such an
obligation shall be disregarded and the remaining amount due shall be paid in cash by Grantee. No Shares shall be
delivered until the Required Tax Payments have been satisfied in full.

        Section 6. Compliance with Applicable Law. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary, the Company’s obligation to issue or deliver certificates evidencing the Performance Share Units shall
be subject to all applicable laws, rules and regulations, and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or
national securities exchanges as may be required. The delivery of all or any Shares that relate to the Performance
Share Units shall be effective only at such time that the issuance of such Shares shall not violate any state or
federal securities or other laws. The Company is under no obligation to effect any registration of Shares under the
Securities Act of 1933 or to effect any state registration or qualification of the Shares that may be issued under
this Agreement. Subject to Code Section 409A, the Company may, in its sole discretion, delay the delivery of
Shares or place restrictive legends on Shares in order to ensure that the issuance of any Shares shall be in
compliance with federal or state securities laws and the rules of any exchange upon which the Company’s Shares
are traded. If the Company delays the delivery of Shares in order to ensure compliance with any state or federal
securities or other laws, the Company shall deliver the Shares at the earliest date at which the Company
reasonably believes that such delivery shall not cause such violation, or at such later date that may be permitted
under Code Section 409A.

        Section 7. Restriction on Transferability. Except as otherwise provided under the Plan, until the
Performance Share Units have vested under this Agreement, the Performance Share Units granted herein and the
rights and privileges conferred hereby may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or
hypothecated (by operation of law or otherwise), other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution. Any
attempted transfer in violation of the provisions of this paragraph shall be void, and the purported transferee shall
obtain no rights with respect to such Performance Share Units.
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    Section 8. Grantee’s Rights Unsecured. The right of the Grantee or his or her beneficiary to receive a
distribution hereunder shall be an unsecured claim against the general assets of the Company, and neither the
Grantee nor his or her beneficiary shall have any rights in or against any amounts credited to the Grantee’s PSU
Account, any Shares or any other specific assets of the Company. All amounts credited to the Grantee’s PSU
Account shall constitute general assets of the Company and may be disposed of by the Company at such time and
for such purposes as it may deem appropriate.

    Section 9. No Rights as Stockholder or Employee; Dividend Equivalent Rights.

(a)    Unless and until Shares have been issued to the Grantee, the Grantee shall not have any privileges of a
stockholder of the Company with respect to any Performance Share Units subject to this Agreement,
nor shall the Company have any obligation to issue any dividend or otherwise afford any rights to
which Shares are entitled with respect to any such Performance Share Units. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in the event that the Company declares a cash dividend or distribution on Shares, the
Grantee will be credited with Dividend Equivalent Rights equal to the amount of the cash dividend or
distribution per Share multiplied by the number of Performance Share Units granted by this
Agreement and held by the Grantee on the dividend’s or distribution's record date (as adjusted for any
proration). The Dividend Equivalent Rights credited to the Grantee under the preceding sentence will
be deemed to be reinvested in additional Performance Share Units, which will be subject to the same
terms regarding vesting, forfeiture, and Dividend Equivalent Rights as Performance Share Units
awarded to the Grantee under this Agreement. Following the Performance Period, the Grantee will be
entitled to receive a cash payment equal to the value of the accrued Dividend Equivalent Rights (as
adjusted for any proration) multiplied by the vested percentage of the TTA determined under Sections
2(b), 2(c) and 2(d) above.

(b)       Nothing in this Agreement or the Award shall confer upon the Grantee any right to continue as an
Employee of the Company or any Affiliate or to interfere in any way with the right of the Company or
any Affiliate to terminate the Grantee’s Service at any time.

        Section 10. Adjustments. If at any time while the Award is outstanding, the number of outstanding
Performance Share Units is changed by reason of a reorganization, recapitalization, stock split or any of the other
events described in the Plan (in each case as determined by the Committee), the number and kind of Performance
Share Units and the performance goals, as applicable, shall be adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the
Plan. In the event of certain corporate events specified in the Change in Control provisions of the Plan, any
Performance Share Units may be replaced by Alternative Awards or forfeited in exchange for payment of cash in
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accordance with the Change in Control procedures and provisions of the Plan, as determined by the Committee.
Section 11. Notices. Any notice hereunder by the Grantee shall be given to the Company in writing, and

such notice shall be deemed duly given only upon receipt thereof at the following address: Corporate Secretary,
NiSource Inc., 801 East 86th Avenue, Merrillville, IN 46410-6271 (or at such other address as the Company may
designate by notice to the Grantee). Any notice hereunder by the Company shall be given to the Grantee in
writing, and such notice shall be deemed duly given only upon receipt thereof at such address as the Grantee may
have on file with the Company.

        Section 12. Administration. The administration of this Agreement, including the interpretation and
amendment or termination of this Agreement, shall be performed in accordance with the Plan. All determinations
and decisions made by the Committee, the Board, or any delegate of the Committee as to the provisions of this
Agreement shall be conclusive, final, and binding on all persons. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if subsequent
guidance is issued under Code Section 409A that would impose additional taxes, penalties, or interest to either the
Company or the Grantee, the Company may administer this Agreement in accordance with such guidance and
amend this Agreement without the consent of the Grantee to the extent such actions, in the reasonable judgment
of the Company, are considered necessary to avoid the imposition of such additional taxes, penalties, or interest.

       Section 13. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of Indiana, without giving effect to the choice of law principles thereof.

    Section 14. Entire Agreement; Agreement Subject to Plan. This Agreement and the Plan contain all of
the terms and conditions with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede any previous agreements, written
or oral, relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement is subject to the provisions of the Plan and shall be
interpreted in accordance therewith. In the event that the provisions of this Agreement and the Plan conflict, the
Plan shall control. The Grantee hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plan.

    Section 15. Code Section 409A Compliance. This Agreement and the Performance Share Units granted
hereunder are intended to be exempt from Code Section 409A to the maximum extent possible, and shall be
interpreted and construed accordingly.

    Section 16.    Restrictive Covenant.

(a)    The Grantee understands the nature of the Company's business and the significant time and expense
the Company and its Affiliates (collectively referred to in this Section as “NiSource”) have expended
and continue to expend in attracting, developing, recruiting and training employees and that the loss
of employees would cause significant and irreparable harm to NiSource. Accordingly, the Grantee
agrees that the scope and duration of the restriction described in this Section 16 is reasonable and
necessary to protect the legitimate
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business interests of NiSource. The Grantee agrees that during the period of the Grantee's Service
and for a period of one (1) year following the Grantee's separation from Service, the Grantee shall
not, without the express written approval of NiSource's Chief Human Resources Officer, directly or
indirectly solicit, hire, recruit, or attempt to solicit, hire, or recruit, any then-current employee of
NiSource or any employee who has been employed by NiSource in the six (6) months preceding
such solicitation, hiring, or recruitment (“Covered Employee”). Soliciting, recruiting, or hiring
Covered Employees with whom Grantee did not work or have direct contact while at NiSource to
work as an employee, contractor, consultant or otherwise, shall not be considered a violation of this
Section 16(a), provided, however, that Grantee does not solicit, employ or hire such employee with
an intent to compete with NiSource in violation of this Section 16(a). Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing in this Section shall restrict or preclude the Grantee from soliciting or hiring any employee
who responds to a general employment solicitation or advertisement or contact by a recruiter that is
not specifically focused or targeted on employees or former employees of NiSource, provided that
the Grantee has not encouraged or advised such.

(b)    If the final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction declares that any term or provision of this
Section is invalid or unenforceable, the parties agree that (a) the court making the determination of
invalidity or unenforceability shall have the power to reduce the scope, duration, or geographic area
of the term or provision, to delete specific words or phrases, or to replace any invalid or
unenforceable term or provision with a term or provision that is valid and enforceable and that comes
closest to expressing the intention of the invalid or unenforceable term or provision, (b) the parties
shall request that the court exercise that power, and (c) this Agreement in its revised form shall be
enforceable.

(c)    Grantee agrees that in the event of a breach or threatened breach of the covenants contained in Section
16(a), in addition to any other damages or restrictions that may apply under any employment
agreement, state law, or otherwise, the Grantee shall forfeit, upon written notice to such effect from
the Company, any and all Awards granted to the Grantee under this Agreement, including vested
Awards and including any proceeds thereof. The forfeiture provisions of this Section shall continue
to apply, in accordance with their terms, after the provisions of any employment or other agreement
between the Company and the Grantee have lapsed. Grantee expressly acknowledges that any breach
or threatened breach of any of the terms and/or conditions of this Section 16 may result in
substantial, continuing, and irreparable injury to NiSource, and therefore agrees that, in addition to
any other remedy that may be available to NiSource, NiSource shall be entitled to seek injunctive
relief, specific
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performance, or other equitable relief (without the requirement to post bond) by a court of
appropriate jurisdiction in the event of any breach or threatened breach of the terms of this Section
16 without the necessity of proving irreparable harm or injury as a result of such breach or
threatened breach. Grantee expressly acknowledges that Grantee’s violation of this Section 16 will
entitle NiSource to other equitable and legal remedies, including damages, attorney's fees, and costs,
as allowed by law. The provisions of this Section 16 shall continue to apply, in accordance with their
terms, after the Grantee's Service has terminated and regardless of whether the provisions of any
employment or other agreement between the Company and the Grantee have lapsed.

(d)    In the event the Grantee is required to forfeit outstanding vested Shares as a result of breaching the
Grantee's obligations under this Section 16, the Grantee agrees to promptly execute such stock
powers or other instruments of transfer in such forms as are acceptable to the Company without
payment or other consideration therefor.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused the Performance Share Units subject to this Agreement to
be granted, and the Grantee has accepted the Performance Share Units subject to the terms of the Agreement, as
of the date first above written.

NISOURCE INC.

____________________________________________
By: Melanie Berman
Its: Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer
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Exhibit 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF NISOURCE

as of December 31, 2022

Segment/Subsidiary

GAS DISTRIBUTION OPERATIONS State of Incorporation
Bay State Gas Company d/b/a Columbia Gas of Massachusetts Massachusetts
Central Kentucky Transmission Company Delaware
Columbia Gas of Kentucky, Inc. Kentucky
Columbia Gas of Maryland, Inc. Delaware
Columbia Gas of Ohio, Inc. Ohio
Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania, Inc. Pennsylvania
Columbia Gas of Virginia, Inc. Virginia
NiSource Gas Distribution Group, Inc. Delaware
   
ELECTRIC OPERATIONS  
Northern Indiana Public Service Company LLC* Indiana
RoseWater Wind Generation LLC Indiana
RoseWater Wind Farm LLC Delaware
Indiana Crossroads Wind Generation LLC Indiana
Indiana Crossroads Wind Farm LLC Delaware
Dunn's Bridge I Solar Generation LLC Delaware
Dunn's Bridge II Solar Generation LLC Delaware
Cavalry Solar Generation LLC Delaware
Elliot Solar Generation LLC Delaware
Fairbanks Solar Generation LLC Delaware
Indiana Crossroads Solar Generation LLC Delaware
Meadow Lake Solar Park LLC Delaware
   
CORPORATE AND OTHER OPERATIONS  
Columbia Gas of Ohio Receivables Corporation Delaware
Columbia Gas of Pennsylvania Receivables Corporation Delaware
NIPSCO Accounts Receivable Corporation Indiana
NiSource Corporate Group, LLC Delaware
NiSource Corporate Services Company Delaware
NiSource Development Company, Inc. Indiana
NiSource Energy Technologies, Inc. Indiana
NiSource Insurance Corporation, Inc. Utah
Lake Erie Land Company Indiana
NiSource Retail Services, Inc. Delaware (Inactive)
EnergyUSA-TPC, Inc. Indiana (Inactive)

* Reported under Gas Distribution Operations and Electric Operations.



Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-268084 on Form S-3, Registration Statement Nos. 333-107743, 333-166888,
333-228102, 333-233382, 333-238501, 333-248405, 333-260906 on Form S-8, and Registration Statement Nos. 333-228790 and 333-228791 on Form S-4 of
our reports dated February 22, 2023, relating to the consolidated financial statements of NiSource Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) and the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2022.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Columbus, Ohio
February 22, 2023



Exhibit 31.1

Certification Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Lloyd M. Yates, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of NiSource Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

 

Date: February 22, 2023 By:   /s/ Lloyd M. Yates
    Lloyd M. Yates
    President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification Pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Donald E. Brown, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of NiSource Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

 

Date: February 22, 2023 By: /s/ Donald E. Brown
Donald E. Brown

  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of NiSource Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2022 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Lloyd M. Yates, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

/s/ Lloyd M. Yates
Lloyd M. Yates

President and Chief Executive Officer

Date:                     February 22, 2023



Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of NiSource Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2022 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Donald E. Brown, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

/s/ Donald E. Brown
Donald E. Brown

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date:             February 22, 2023


